SAR 500,000,000

SUKUK ISSUANCE PROGRAMME
RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY

A Saudi listed joint-stock company established pursuant to Ministerial Resolution No. Q/5287 dated
05/01/1442H (corresponding to 24/08/2020G) and Commercial Registration No. 1010260422 dated

07/01/1430H (corresponding to 04/01/2009G)

The Issuer was established pursuant to Ministerial
Resolution No. Q/5287 dated 05/01/1442H (corresponding
to 24/08/2020G) and Commercial Registration No.
1010260422 dated 07/01/1430H (corresponding to
04/01/2009G). The paid-up capital of the Issuer is SAR
55,000,000, divided into 55,000,000 shares, with the
nominal amount of each share being SAR 1. It should be
noted that the Issuer has one major shareholder being: Mr.
Mohsen Miteb Al-Dajani Al-Otaibi who owns 20,404,530
shares representing approximately 37.0991455% of the
Issuer’s total shares.

Under the sukuk issuance programme described in this
Base Prospectus (the “Programme”), Rawasi Al Bina
Investment Company (the “Company” or “Issuer”) subject
to compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
directives, may from time-to-time issue sukuk (the
“Sukuk™) in series (each, a “Series”) in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Sukuk (the “Conditions”).

The maximum aggregate nominal amount (the “Aggregate
Nominal Amount”) of all Sukuk from time to time as
are current under the Programme will not exceed SAR
500,000,000 (as defined Section 13 (Subscription and
Sale)). On 15/02/1444H (corresponding to 11/9/2022G),
the Issuer have registered its shares for direct listing in
the Parallel Market (“Nomu Market”), trading such shares
have been confined to Qualified Investors in accordance
with the Rules on the Offer of Securities and Continuing
Obligations (the “OSCO Rules”).

Notice of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of Sukuk and
any other terms and conditions not contained herein
which are applicable to each Series will be set out in the
final terms relating to such Series (the “Applicable Final
Terms”).

Each Series of Sukuk issued under the Programme will be
constituted by a master declaration of agency (the “Master
Declaration of Agency”) dated [*]H (corresponding
to [*]G) between the Issuer and Al Khair Capital Saudi
Arabia Company (in its capacity as agent on behalf of
the Sukukholders, the “Sukukholders’ Agent”, which
expression includes any successor Sukukholder’s Agent in
relation to the Sukuk), as supplemented by a supplemental
declaration of agency between the same parties in relation
to the relevant Series (each a “Supplemental Declaration
of Agency”), and a payment administration agreement
(the “Payment Administration Agreement”) dated [°]
H (corresponding to [+]G) between the Issuer and the
Sukukholder’s Agent and Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia
Company (in its capacity as payment administrator, the
“Payment Administrator”); in addition to other Sukuk
Documents including the Master Murabaha Agreement
and the Mudaraba Agreement.

The Sukuk of each Series confer on the holders thereof
from time to time (the “Sukukholders”) the right to
receive certain payments (as more particularly described
herein) arising from the Sukuk Assets (as defined in the
Conditions, and any reference herein to a numbered
Condition is to the corresponding numbered provision
thereof) in relation to the relevant Series.

Each Series of Sukuk will constitute an undivided
ownership interest of the Sukukholders in the Sukuk
Assets of the relevant Series, and will at all times rank
pari passu, without any preference or priority, with all
other Sukuk of the relevant Series issued under the
Programme. The payment obligations of the Issuer under
the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents to which it is a party
will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated,
unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall (save for
certain obligations required to be preferred by provisions
of law that are both mandatory and of general application)
rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured,
unsubordinated monetary obligations of the Issuer,
present and future.

The Sukuk issued under the Programme will be subject to
an offering period for each relevant Series which will be
determined by the Issuer after consultation with the Sole
Arranger and according to the conditions of the market
at the time.

Each offer period for the relevant Series of the Sukuk will
be specified in the Applicable Final Terms (each, an “Offer
Period”) and the relevant Series of Sukuk will be allocated
after the end of the applicable Offer Period and issued on

a date (each, an “Issue Date”) notified by the Issuer and
the Sole Arranger and Dealers to the relevant potential
investors after the end of the relevant Offer Period.

The applicant must complete the entire investor application
form (the “Investor Application Form™), provided that
incomplete application shall not be accepted. Investor
Application Forms will be available from the Dealers or
from the receiving banks (as applicable) in relation to the
relevant Series of Sukuk.

The Sukuk may be issued on a continuing basis to one or
more dealers (each a “Dealer” and together the “Dealers”)
and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme
from time to time by the Issuer, which appointment may
be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References
in this Base Prospectus to the relevant Dealer shall, in
the case of an issue of Sukuk being (or intended to be)
subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers
agreeing to subscribe (or procure the subscription of)
such Sukuk.

The Issuer shall not pay any additional amounts in respect
of any withholding required by law to any person who
holds Sukuk but is not a Qualified Person. See Condition
9.16 (Taxation).

The Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Sukuk may
be issued with terms and conditions not contemplated
by the Conditions, in which event a supplemental Base
Prospectus, if appropriate, will be made available which
will describe the effect of the agreement reached in
relation to such Sukuk.

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed
together with any amendments or supplements hereto
and, in relation to any Series of Sukuk, should be read and
construed together with the Applicable Final Terms.

The Issuer has submitted an application for the
registration and offer of the Sukuk to the Capital Market
Authority (the“Authority”), and to the Saudi Stock
Exchange Company (“Tadawul”) for the listing of the
Sukuk. This Base Prospectus has been approved and all
required documents have been submitted to the relevant
authorities. All regulatory requirements have been
satisfied and all required corporate approvals have been
obtained.

This Base Prospectus includes information provided
as part of the application for registration and offer of
securities in compliance with the OSCO Rules of the
Capital Market Authority (the “Authority”) of the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (the “Kingdom™) and the application for
listing of securities in compliance with the Listing Rules
of the Tadawul. The directors, whose names appear in
this Base Prospectus, collectively and individually accept
full responsibility for the accuracy of the information
contained in this Base Prospectus and confirm, having
made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission
of which would make any statement herein misleading. The
Authority and the Tadawul do not take any responsibility
for the contents of this Base Prospectus, do not make any
representation as to its accuracy or completeness, and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this
Base Prospectus.

Prospective investors of the Sukuk offered hereby should
conduct their own due diligence on the accuracy of
the information relating to the securities. If you do not
understand the contents of this document, you should
consult an authorised financial adviser.

The Sukuk will be admitted to listing on the Tadawul and
the Securities Depository Center Company (“Edaa”) will be
appointed as registrar (the “Registrar”), which expression
includes any successor registrar of the Sukuk issued under
the Programme (as described in the Conditions and the
“Subscription and Sale” section of this Base Prospectus,
respectively). The Sukuk will be in registered form in
Specified Denominations of SAR 1,000 and the aggregate
nominal value of each Series of Sukuk will be outlined in
the Applicable Final Terms.

The Sukuk of each Series will be collectively represented
by a global sak (the “Global Sak”) which will be deposited
with Edaa. The Sukuk may only be held in book entry
dematerialised form and definitive sukuk will not be issued

to Sukukholders in relation to their holdings of Sukuk.

The offering, sale and trading of Sukuk is limited to
persons who are categorized as Qualified Persons (as
defined below) being:

a) Any natural person who has an investment account
in the Kingdom and an account at the Depositary
Center;

b) Any legal person who has an investment account
in the Kingdom and an account at the Depositary
Center; and

c) Foreign natural and legal persons in accordance with
the Rules for Foreign Investment in Securities and
any other relevant laws and regulations.

The Authority and Tadawul do not make any
representation as to the accuracy or completeness of
this Base Prospectus, and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance
upon, any part of this Base Prospectus.

An investment in the Sukuk issued under the Programme
involves certain risks and uncertainties. For a discussion of
certain factors to be considered before determining

whether to invest in the Sukuk issued under the
Programme, see the Section 1 “Risk Factors” and
“Important Notice” sections of this Base Prospectus.

The entire shares of the issuer have been initially listed in
the Nomu Market with a number of 5,500,000 ordinary
shares and a nominal amount of 10 Saudi riyals per share,
on 20/01/1444H (corresponding to 18/08/2022G) after
obtaining the approval of both the Authority and the
Tadawul.

The Issuer’s long-term corporate ratings are “BBB” with a
stable outlook according to the credit rating certification
of the Rating Financial Analytics (“RFA”), which is a
national rating scale. A rating is not a recommendation
to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency.

Where a Series of Sukuk is rated, such rating will be
specified in the Applicable Final Terms. A security rating
is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and
may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating agency.

Any Sukuk to be issued under the Programme may only
be offered and sold in the Kingdom in accordance with the
OSCO Rules of the Authority of the Kingdom.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering,
sale and delivery of Sukuk issued under the Programme in
any jurisdiction other than the Kingdom may be restricted
by law. Any Persons who come into possession of this Base
Prospectus are required by the Issuer, Al Khair Capital
Saudi Arabia Company (the “Sole Arranger”) and the
Dealers to inform themselves about and to observe any
such restrictions. For a description of certain restrictions
on offers, sales and deliveries of Sukuk issued under the
Programme and on distribution of this Base Prospectus
and other offering material relating to Sukuk issued under
the Programme, see the “Subscription and Sale” section
of this Base Prospectus.

This Prospectus must be read in full and the “Important
Notice” section on page (i) and Section 1 “Risk Factors” of
this Prospectus must be considered prior to making any
investment decision in the Sukuk offered hereby.

The transaction structure relating to the Sukuk (as
described in this Base Prospectus) has been approved
by members of Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company’s
Shari‘ah Committee (the “Shari‘ah Committee”).
Prospective Sukukholders should not rely on such
approval in deciding whether to make an investment in
the Sukuk and should consult their own Shari’ah advisers
as to whether the proposed transaction described in such
approvals is in compliance with their individual standards
of compliance with Shari’ah principles. None of the Issuer,
the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent
or the Payment Administrator makes any representation
as to the Shari'ah compliance of the Sukuk and/or any
trading thereof.

Sole Arranger, Dealer
and Financial Advisor
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Important Notice

This Base Prospectus provides certain information relating to the Issuer and the Sukuk being offered. This
Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the Sukuk by any
person in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. The distribution of this
Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of the Sukuk in certain jurisdictions is restricted by law. This Base
Prospectus may not be used for, or in connection with, and does not constitute, any offer to, or solicitation
by, anyone in any jurisdiction or under any circumstance in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised
or is unlawful.

This Base Prospectus contains details and sufficient information related to the Issuer and Sukuk. This Base
Prospectus can be obtained by visiting the Issuer’s website (https://rawasi-albina.com/), the Authority’s
website (Www.cma.org.sa), Tadawul’s website (www.saudiexchange.sa) or the website of the Sole Arranger
and the Dealer (https://alkhaircapital.com.sa/).

In connection with the offering of the Sukuk, no person has been authorised to give any information or to
make any representation about the Issuer or the Sukuk (other than as contained in this Prospectus) and, if
given or made, any such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been made
by the Issuer or the Arranger.

By receiving this Base Prospectus and other information relating to the Programme or the offering of the
Sukuk, each recipient agrees that neither it nor any of its employees or advisers shall use the information for
any purpose other than for evaluating its interest in the Programme or the offering of the Sukuk or divulge
such information to any other party. This Base Prospectus shall not be photocopied, reproduced or distributed
to others without the prior consent of the Issuer, the Sole Arranger and the Dealers. No person is or has been
authorised to give any information or to make any representation about the Issuer, the Programme or the
Sukuk (other than as contained in this Base Prospectus) and, if given or made, any such other information or
representation should not be relied upon as having been made or authorised by the Issuer, the Sole Arranger
and the Dealers. Neither the publication and/or delivery of this Base Prospectus nor any sale of any Sukuk
shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that the information
contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the
document containing the same. The Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Payment
Administrator expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the
life of the Programme or to advise any investor in the Sukuk of any information coming to their attention.

None of the Sole Arranger and the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator is acting
for any person in connection with the offering of any Series of Sukuk and, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, the Sole Arranger and the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Payment Administrator will not
regard any person (whether or not a recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other offering material relating
to any Series of Sukuk) as its client or customer (as such terms are defined in the Glossary of Defined Terms
Used in the Regulations and Rules of the Capital Market Authority) in relation to the offer, sale and trade of the
Sukuk. To the fullest extent permitted by law none of the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent
or the Payment Administrator or any of their respective affiliates shall be responsible to anyone for providing
the protections afforded to clients or customers of the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent
or the Payment Administrator or any of their respective affiliates, or for providing advice in relation to the
offering of any Series of Sukuk, the contents of this Base Prospectus or any other offering material relating
to any Series of Sukuk, or any transaction, arrangement or other matter referred to in this Base Prospectus.

The Issuer accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Base Prospectus
and the Applicable Final Terms and confirms, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, the information contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and
there are no other facts, the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading. The Authority
and Tadawul do not take any responsibility for the contents of this Base Prospectus, do not make any
representation as to its accuracy or completeness, and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this Base Prospectus.

This Prospectus contains information given in compliance with the OSCO Rules of the Authority of the
Kingdom. The sole purpose of this Base Prospectus is to provide background information about the Issuer,
and to assist each recipient of this Base Prospectus in making an independent evaluation and appraisal
of the Issuer, the offering and any investment in the Sukuk. The Authority and Tadawul do not make any
representation as to the accuracy or completeness of this Base Prospectus, and expressly disclaims any
liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this Base Prospectus.
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While the Issuer has made all reasonable enquiries as to the accuracy of the information contained in
this Base Prospectus as at the date hereof, such information has not been independently verified and no
representation is made with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of this information.

The information contained in this Base Prospectus is subject to change. In particular, the actual financial
state of the Issuer and the value of the Sukuk may be adversely affected by future developments in inflation,
financing charges, taxation, calculation of zakat or other economic, political and other factors, over which
the Issuer has no control, see Section 1 “Risk Factors”. The Issuer does not intend to update or otherwise
revise any information or forward-looking statements in this Base Prospectus, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. As a result of these and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions,
the forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this Base Prospectus might not occur in the way
they are expected, or at all. Prospective investors should consider all forward-looking statements in light of
these explanations and should not place undue reliance on forward looking statements.

Neither the publication and/or delivery of this Base Prospectus nor any oral, written or printed interaction in
relation to the Sukuk is intended to be or should be construed as or relied upon in any way as, a promise or
representation as to future earnings, results or events.

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed together with the Applicable Final Terms.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programmme or any
Sukuk issued under the Programme: (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation; or
(b) should be considered as a recommendation on the part of the Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the
Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator or any of their advisers or affiliates that any recipient of this
Base Prospectus should participate in the offering of any Sukuk issued under the Programme. Information
provided herein is of a general nature and has been prepared without taking into account any prospective
investor’s investment objectives, financial situation or particular investment needs. Prior to making an
investment decision, each recipient of this Base Prospectus and any other information supplied in connection
with the Programme or the issue of any Sukuk issued under the Programme is responsible for obtaining
their own independent professional advice from a financial adviser licensed by the Authority in relation
to the Issuer and the offering of the relevant Sukuk and for making their own independent investigation,
evaluation and appraisal of the financial condition and affairs, as well as the creditworthiness, of the Issuer,
an investment in the relevant Sukuk and of the information and assumptions contained herein, using such
advice, analysis and projections as they deem necessary in making any investment decision. None of the
Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator accepts any liability in
relation to the information contained in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer
in connection with the Programme or for any other statement made or purported to be made by the Sole
Arranger, a Dealer, the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator or on its behalf in connection with
the Issuer, the Programme or the issuance and offering of the Sukuk.

None of the Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator
makes any representation to any investor in the Sukuk regarding the legality of its investment under any
applicable laws. Any investor in the Sukuk should be able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the
Sukuk for an indefinite period of time.

Prospective investors should note that the Issuer shall not pay any additional amounts in respect of any
withholding required by law to any person who holds Sukuk who is not a “Qualified Person”. A “Qualified
Person” means:

a. Any natural person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the Depositary
Center;

b. Any legal person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the Depositary
Center; and

c. Foreign natural and legal persons in accordance with the Rules for Foreign Investment in Securities
and any other relevant laws and regulations.

If the prospective investor received this document by e-mail, they should not reply by e-mail to this document.
Any reply e-mail communications, including those generated by using the “Reply” function on the prospective
investor’s e-mail software, will be ignored or rejected. If the prospective investor receives this document by
e-mail, their use of that e-mail will be at their own risk, and it is their responsibility to take precautions to
ensure that it is free from viruses and any other similar items of a destructive nature.

If this Base Prospectus has been sent to a prospective investor in an electronic form, they must be aware
that documents transmitted via this medium may be altered or changed during the process of electronic
transmission and consequently none of the Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent,
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the Payment Administrator or any person who controls or is a director, officer, employee or agent of any of
the Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator or any affiliate
of any such person accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever in respect of any difference between this
Base Prospectus distributed to prospective investors in electronic format and the hard copy version available
to prospective investors on request from the Sole Arranger and Dealers.

The information provided in this Base Prospectus is of a general nature and has been prepared without taking
into account individual investment objectives, the financial situation or particular investment needs of the
persons who intend to invest in the Sukuk. Prospective investors are not to construe the contents of this Base
Prospectus as constituting tax, zakat, investment, legal, regulatory or Shari’ah advice. Prior to purchasing any
Sukuk, a prospective investor should consult with its own legal, financial, business, tax, zakat and Shari’ah
advisers to determine the appropriateness and consequences of an investment in the Sukuk for such investor
and arrive at an independent evaluation and appraisal of such investment.

d. The Sukuk may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Each potential investor in Sukuk must
determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each
potential investor should:

a. have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Sukuk, the merits
and risks of investing in the Sukuk and the information contained, or incorporated by reference, in
this Base Prospectus;

b. have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Sukuk and the impact the Sukuk will have on its
overall investment portfolio;

c. have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Sukuk;

understand thoroughly the terms of the Sukuk and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial markets; and

e. be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, profit rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments. The investment activities of certain
investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each
prospective investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent: (i) the Sukuk
are legal investments for it; (ii) the Sukuk can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing; and (iii)
other restrictions apply to their purchase or pledge of any Sukuk. Financial institutions should consult their
legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of the Sukuk under any
applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

The Sukuk are complex financial instruments and are of high risk and are not a suitable or appropriate
investment for all investors. See Section 1.3 “Risks Related to The Sukuk”. In some jurisdictions, regulatory
authorities have adopted or published laws, regulations or guidance with respect to the offer or sale of
securities similar to the Sukuk. There are risks inherent in holding of the Sukuk, including the circumstances
in which holders of the Sukuk may suffer loss as a result of holding the Sukuk. See Section 1 “Risk Factors”
for a discussion of certain considerations to be taken into account in connection with an investment in the
Sukuk. Institutional or qualified clients generally do not purchase complex financial instruments as stand-
alone investments. They purchase complex financial instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield
with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor
should not invest in Sukuk unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how
the Sukuk will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Sukuk and the
impact this investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.

The Issuer reserves the right, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, to
terminate at any time any further participation by any party in the evaluation process and the offering of the
Sukuk and/or reject all bids without any liability or responsibility. The Issuer shall have no obligation to inform
any investor or bidder of the grounds of such termination or rejection. The cost and expenses incurred by any
prospective investor or successful bidder (which includes, but is not limited to, cost of employing the services
of financial, accounting, technical, legal and Shari’ah advisers, travelling expenses, etc.) will be for their own
account and neither the Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealers, the Sukukholders’ Agent nor the Payment
Administrator in any way would be held responsible for any such cost, regardless of, without limitation, the
conduct or outcome of the bidding, evaluation and selection process.
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Notice to Prospective Investors

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Sukuk in
any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.
The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Sukuk may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. The Issuer, the Sole Arranger, the Dealer (Dealers), the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Payment
Administrator require persons in possession of this Base Prospectus to inform themselves about and to
observe all such legal or regulatory restrictions in this regard.
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Corporate Directory

Corporate Directory

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company’s Board of Directors (the “BoD” or “Board”)

Table 1: Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company’s Board of Directors

Board of Directors (BoD) and Secretary

ares owned “directly””

Percentage
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Independence’
Nationality
appointment

Marzouq
Mutaib o sirman Non- _ Not Saudi 51 13/09/2023G 1170 0.0021273%
Mutlag executive independent
Al-Otaibi
Salman Vice Non- Not
Gazai Al . . . Saudi 47  13/09/2023G 107,762 0.1959309%
. Chairman executive independent
Judaie
Managing
Mohsen Director Not
Muteb and Chief Executive . Saudi 53 13/09/2023G 20,404,530 37.0991455%
. . independent
Al-Otaibi Executive
Officer
Abdul
Aziz . Non- .
Abdullah Director executive Independent  Saudi 58 13/09/2023G - -
Al-Faqgih
Faisal Non-
Saad Al- Director . Independent  Saudi 39 13/09/2023G 686,163 1.2475691%
. executive
Bogami
Secretary of the Board
Abdul Secretary
Rahman of the
Ahmed Board of - - Syrian 43 13/09/2023G - -
Hajar .
Directors
Hazeen

Source: Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company

The Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority pursuant to Resolution Number 8-16-2017 as
amended by Resolution of the Board of the Capital Market Authority Number 8-5-2023 dated 25/6/1444H (corresponding to
18/1/2023G) were relied upon to determine the independence of each of the Directors.

There is no indirect ownership in the shares of the Company for any of the Directors or the Secretary as of the date of this Base
Prospectus.
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Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company
P.O. Box 2886, Riyadh 12215
Riyadh - King Fahd Road - Al Worood District -

Olaya Avenue Center R aw aé—i

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ———uilg

Website: www.rawasi-albina.com
Email: info@rawasialbina.com

Issuer Representatives

1st Representative of the Issuer 2nd Representative of the Issuer
Name: Marzouq Mutaib Al Otaibi Name: Mohsen Miteb Al-Dajani Al-Otaibi
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Managing Director and CEO
Address: Riyadh - P.O. Box 63658, Address: Riyadh - P.O. Box 63658,
postal code 11526 postal code 11526
Phone No.: 0114655519 Phone No.: 0114655519
Mobile No.: 0556990999 Mobile No.: 0556666016
Fax: - Fax: -
E-mail: marzoug@rawasialbina.com E-mail: ceo@rawasialbina.com

Financial Advisor, Sole Arranger and Dealer

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

King Abdul Aziz Road- Al-Wizarat District -
Abraj Madarat

P.O. Bpx: 69410, Riyadh11547 _Jl i Ulﬁ : LA ”
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia —

Phone: +966112155678 ALKHAIR CAPITAL
Fax: +966112191270

Website: www.alkhaircapital.com.sa

E-mail: info@alkhaircapital.com.sa
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Receiving Agents

SNB Capital

King Saud Street

P.O. Box 2575

Riyadh 12624 ~ .
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia S N B Capltal
Phone: +966 (92) 000 0232

Website: www.alahlicapital.com

Email: snbc.cm@alahlicapital.com.sa

Saudi Fransi Capital

King Fahad Road - 8092

P.O. Box 23454

Riyadh 12313-3735 @

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia B S F |
Tel: +966 (11) 282 6666 CO p |tQ |
Fax: +966 (11) 282 6823

Website: www.bsfcapital.sa

E-mail: sfc-supportcenter@FransiCapital.com.sa

Al Rajhi Capital

Head Office, King Fahd Road, Al Murouj District

P.O. Box 5561

Riyadh 12263 .
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia G&JLD." 9.“33.1'.!"

Tel: +966 92 000 5856 alrajhi capital
Fax: +966 (11) 460 0625

Website: www.alrajhi-capital.com

Email:InvestmentBankingTeam@alrajhi-capital.com

Riyad Capital

2414 - Al Shahada District, Unit No. 69

P.O. Box 13241

Riyadh 7279 d -
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia cRu|JgL(a)-Ic: Cl’;Ip_:tjj:

Tel: +966 (11) 486 5649

Fax: +966 (11) 486 5908
Website: www.riyadcapital.com
Email: ask@riyadcapital.com

Al Bilad Investment

King Fahd Road - Al Olaya

Riyadh 3701- 12313
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia KL,J%M
Tel: +966 (92) 000 3636 Albilad Capital -

Fax: +966 (11) 290 6299
Website: www.albilad-capital.com
Email: investmentbanking@albilad-capital.com
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Receiving Agents

Al Jazira Capital

King Fahd Street, Al Rahmaniya

P.O. Box 20438

Riyadh 11455

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: +966 (11) 225 6000

Fax: +966 (11) 225 6182

Website: www.aljaziracapital.com.sa
Email: contactus@aljaziracapital.com.sa

Alistithmar for Financial Securities and Brokerage
King Fahd Road

P.O. Box 6888 - 11452

Riyadh

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: +966 (11) 254 7666

Fax: +966 (11) 489 6253

Website: www.alistithmarcapital.com

Email: WebEcare@icap.com.sa

Derayah Financial

Al-Takhasusi Street - Prestige Centre -Third Floor
Riyadh

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: +966 (11) 299 8000

Fax: +966 (11) 419 5498

Website: web.derayah.com

Email: support@derayah.com

Alinma Investment

Al Anood Tower 2, King Fahd Road
P.O. Box 55560

Riyadh 11544

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: +966 (11) 218 5999

Fax: +966 (11) 218 5970

Website: www.alinmainvestment.com
Email: info@alinmainvest.com

ANB Capital

ANB Capital Building, King Faisal Street

3851 New Al Moayed - Al Murabba District
P.O. Box 220009

Riyadh 11311

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: +966 (11) 406 2500

Fax: +966 (11) 406 2548

Website: anbcapital.com.sa

Email: investment.banking@anbcapital.com.sa

viii
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Receiving Agents

Yageen Capital
Al-Wurud District - Al-Olaya Street

P.O. Box 884 —

Riyadh 11421 - L
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia U - - ( ))
Tel: 800 429 8888 Yaqeen >

Fax: +966 (11) 205 4827
Website: http://www.yageen.sa
Email: addingvalue@yageen.sa

Al Khabeer Financial
Madinah Road
P.O. Box 128289

Jeddah 21362 = l I N l
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia AIIII(hLT)J }-C*Jatj|
Tel: +966 (12) 612 9345 abeer Capita

Fax: +966 (12) 685 6663
Website: www.alkhabeer.com
Email: info@alkhabeer.com
Al-Awwl Investment (SAB Invest)
Al-Olaya General Street

P.O. Box 1467
Riyadh 11431 o <
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia < 'l } jSLZLEuII#;I/éJsgtuI

Tel: 8001242442

Fax: +966 (12) 216 9102

Website: www.sabinvest.com

Email: customercare@sabinvest.com

Sukuk Capital Company

Riyadh - Al-Malga District, Anas Bin Malik Road, P.O.
Box: 8373, Postal Code: 13521.

Tel: 920006731 .
Email: Info@sukuk.sa Sukuk COpIth
Website: https://sukuk.sa/

It should be noted that Receiving Bank/ Banks may be appointed for each Series of Sukuk and their names will be included in the
Applicable Final Terms for the relevant Series of Sukuk.
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Sukukholders’ Agent and Payment Administrator

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company
King Abdul Aziz Road- Al-Wizarat District -
Abraj Madarat

P.O. Bpx: 69410, Riyadh11547 B .
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Jliplay o Al
Phone: +966(11)2155678 ALKHAIR CAPITAL

Fax: +966(11)2191270
Website: www.alkhaircapital.com.sa
E-mail: info@alkhaircapital.com.sa

Account Bank

Arab National Bank

Riyadh, King Faisal Street, AlIMurabba

P.O.Box 56921 Riyadh 11564

Tel:+ 966(11)4029000 q n
Fax:+ 966(11)4050244

Website: www.anb.com.sa

Email: info@anb.com.sa

Saudi Stock Exchange Compny

Saudi Exchange
Tawuniya Towers, Northern Tower -
Unit Number: 15 - King Fahd Road

Olaya 6897 - Riyadh 12211 - 3388- angaull Jolai
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Saudi Exchange

Tel: +966 (11) 9200 1919

Fax: +966 (11) 218 9133

Email: csc@saudiexchange.com.sa
Website: https://www.saudiexchange.sa

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Securities Depository Center Company
Tawuniya Towers

Unit Number: 15 EID._.!I
King Fahd Road - Olaya 6897 Edaa

Riyadh 12211 - 3388

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Email: cc@edaa.sa

Website: www.edaa.sa

Norton Rose Fulbright for Legal Consultation PLLC

Level (18), Al Faisaliah Tower,

King Fahad Road

Olaya District, A
P.O Box 54995 Riyadh NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT
Kingdom of Saudia Arabia

Tel: +966(11)4847138

Website: www.nortonrosefulbright.com
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Legal Advisers to the Sole Arranger and Dealer

STAT Law Firm

Sky Towers, Northern Tower, 2nd Floor

King Fahad Road, Olaya

P.O. Box 230020

Riyadh 11321

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: + 966(11) 2720003 STAT
Fax: +966 (11) 2370005

Email: info@statlawksa.com
Website: www.statlawksa.com

Auditors to the Issuer

At El Sayed El Ayouty & Co.
58, Al Watan Al Arabi Street,

Al Hamra District, Jeddah 21421 } MOORE
Tel: +966(12)6693478 A
Fax: +966(12)66602432 albuig yibguell sl

. Jg4igild Jgealpg gguulan
Website: www.elayouty-cpas.com

Email: Jeddah@elayouty.com
Osama Abdullah Elkhereiji & Partners Co.

Al-Rawda District, Mahmoud Arif Street ﬂdm
P.O. Box 15046, Jeddah 21444 Q;ﬁla
Tel: +966(12)6600085

S kg Al atae Al 484
Fax: +966(12)6609321 R A TS

Osama Abdualish Elkherelfi & Partners Co
Website: www.oakcpa.com ailgisee s bbsuastocions

Email: info@oakcpa.com

Shariah Committee

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company
King Abdul Aziz Road
Al-Wizarat District - Abraj Madarat

P.O. Bpx: 69410, Riyadhl1547 . .
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 'Jl I--I-JIj _’I -.I al ”
Phone: +966(11)2155678 ALKHAIR CAPITAL

Fax: +966(11)2191270
Website: www.alkhaircapital.com.sa
E-mail: info@alkhaircapital.com.sa
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Offering summary

The following is an overview of the principal features of the Programme. This overview does not contain all
of the information that an investor should consider before investing in Sukuk and is qualified in its entirety
by the remainder of this Base Prospectus and the Applicable Final Terms. Each investor should read the
entire Base Prospectus and the Applicable Final Terms carefully, before making an investment decision. In
particular, prospective investors should consider carefully the risks of investing in Sukuk issued under the
Programme discussed under the headings “Important Notice” on page (i) and Section 1 “Risk Factors” before
making an investment decision. Capitalised terms used but not defined in this summary have the meaning
given to them in section 9 (Sukuk Terms and Conditions).

Issuer:

Issuer’s name,
Description and
incorporation:

Issuer’s
Activities:

Issuer’s
Substantial
Shareholders,
Shares Number
and Ownership
Percentage:

Issuer Capital:

Issuer’s total
Numbers of
Shares:

Issuer’s Credit
Rating:

Nominal Value of
Sukuk:

Xii

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company

The Issuer is a listed joint stock company established under the laws of Saudi Arabia with
Commercial Registration Number 1010260422 dated 07/01/1430H, issued in Riyadh, and
whose address is at P.O.Box 2886, Riyadh, 12215 Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

According to the Issuer’s Bylaws, its activities are as follows:

Construction

Mining and quarrying

Transformative Industries

Supply of electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning

Water supply, sanitation activities, waste management and treatment

Wholesale and retail trade and repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles.

Transportation and storage

Agriculture, forestry and fishing

Professional, scientific and technical activities

10. Education

1. Human health and social work activities

© N A NN =

12. Arts, entertainment and amusement

13. Accommodation and food service activities
14. Information and communication

15. Real estate activities

16. Administrative and support services

Mr. Mohsen Miteb Al-Dajani AI-Otaibi (who owns 20,404,530 shares representing
approximately 37.0991455% of the Issuer’s total shares).

The paid up capital of the Issuer is 55,000,000 Saudi riyals divided into 55,000,000 shares
with a nominal amount of 1 Saudi riyal per share.

55,000,000 shares

BBB with a stable outlook according to the credit rating certification of the Rating Financial
Analytics (“RFA”)

The Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk shall not exceed, from time to time, under the
Programme 500,000,000 Saudi riyals as specified in the Applicable Final Terms relevant to
each Series. The Issuer determines the size and price of the offer Sukuk in accordance with
the market conditions at the time, and each Sak has the value specified in the Applicable Final
Terms pertaining to each Series.

TABLE OF
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Use of Proceeds:

Types of
Targeted
Investors:

Subscription
Method for
Targeted
Investors:

Minimum
Number of
Sukuk that Can
be Subscribed
to by Targeted
Investors:

Value of
Minimum
Number of
Sukuk that can
be Subscription
to by Targeted
Investors:

Maximum
Number of
Sukuk that Can
be Subscripted
to by Targeted
Investors:

Value of
Maximum
Number of
Sukuk that can
Be Subscription
to be Targeted
Investors:
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The Issuer will use the net proceeds of each Series of Sukuk for general corporate purposes.

On the Issue Date of the relevant Series, the Payment Administrator shall, to the order of
the Sukukholders’ Agent, from the amounts standing to the credit of the Sukuk Proceeds
Account:

- provide an amount equal to the Mudaraba Capital (as defined in the Conditions) to the
Mudareb to apply as the capital of the mudaraba constituted by the Mudaraba Agreement
and, in accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement, the Mudareb shall invest
the Mudaraba Capital in the Mudaraba Assets; and

- apply the remaining amount standing to the credit of the Sukuk Proceeds Account being
an amount equal to the Murabaha Capital in a Murabaha Transaction to be entered into
by the Seller on behalf of the Sukukholders with the Purchaser pursuant to the Master
Murabaha Agreement in the manner described in Condition 9.5 (d).

Subscription to the offer Sukuk under the Programme is limited to eligible persons who falls
under any of the below categories:

(a) Any natural person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the
Depositary Center;

(b) Any legal person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the
Depositary Center; and

(c) Foreign natural and legal persons in accordance with the Rules for Foreign Investment in
Securities and any other relevant laws and regulations.

Prospective Investors must submit to the relevant Dealer the application to subscribe for the
relevant Series of Sukuk according to the approved investor application form during normal
working hours (adopted by banks) during the Offer Period for each relevant Series of Sukuk
as identified in the Applicable Final Terms and The Offer Period could be extended (as may
be suggested by Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company in its capacity as the Arranger and
Initial Dealer), and in relation to the individual participants, to the receiving banks (“Receiving
Banks”), before the end of the Offer Period (as defined herein) and shall make payment for
the Sukuk of such Series as per the instructions contained in the Investor Application Form.
Investor Application Forms will be available from the relevant Dealer(s), or from the Receiving
Banks, as applicable, in respect of such Series. Applications to purchase Sukuk for less than
the Specified Denomination will not be accepted. For further details, please see section 13
“Subscription and Sale”.

The applicant must complete the entire investor application form, provided that incomplete
application shall not be accepted. Applications must be dated, signed and filed (and in the
case of Institutional Investors only applications may be delivered by fax and/or sent by e-mail)
with the Arranger’s manager on the final submission date.

The minimum number of Sukuk to be subscribed for is 5 Sukuk of each Series of Sukuk to be
issued under the Programme, unless otherwise specified in the Applicable Final Terms.

The minimum value of the Sukuk that can be subscribed to is 5,000 Saudi riyals for each
Series under the Programme, unless otherwise specified in the Applicable Final Terms.

The maximum number of Sukuk that can be subscribed to under the Programme is 500,000
Sukuk (each of them being of 1,000 Saudi riyals denomination), and the Applicable Final
Terms will determine the maximum number of Sukuk that can be subscribed to for each
Series.

The maximum value shall not exceed the Aggregate Nominal Amount of all Sukuk offered for
subscription.
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Methods of
Allocation
and Excess
Refund for
Each category
of Targeted
Investors:

The Offer Period:

Detailed
Information
about the Rights
Granted to
Sukukholders:

Rawaf'

The Sukuk will be allocated at the discretion of the Issuer and Arranger as defined in the
Applicable Final Terms for the relevant Series of Sukuk. After the offering period ends, the
Arranger will notify the subscribers of the final number of Sukuk allocated to each of them
with the amounts to be redeemed. The Subscription surplus will be returned (if any) to
subscribers without any commissions or deductions and will be deposited in the subscriber’s
account specified in the Investor Application Form.

Each Sukuk offering within the Programme is subject to an offering period, and the Issuer
(after consultation with the Arranger) determines the offering period for each Series of Sukuk
offering according to the market’s conditions at the time.

Each offer period for the relevant Series of Sukuk will be specified in the Applicable Final
Terms (each, an “Offer Period”) and the relevant Series of Sukuk will be allocated after the
end of the applicable Offer Period and issued on a date (each, an “Issue Date”) notified by
the Issuer and the Arranger and Dealers to the relevant potential investors after the end of
the relevant Offer Period.

Each Sukuk will constitute an undivided ownership interest of the Sukukholders in the Sukuk
Assets of the relevant Series, and will at all times rank pari passu, without any preference
or priority, with all other Sukuk of the relevant Series issued under the Programme. The
payment obligations of the Issuer under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents to which it is
a party will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, unsecured obligations of the
Issuer and shall (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by provisions of law that
are both mandatory and of general application) rank pari passu with all other outstanding
unsecured, unsubordinated monetary obligations of the Issuer, present and future. The Sukuk
of each Series will be collectively represented by a Global Sak which will be deposited with
Edaa. Definitive Sukuk representing holdings of the Global Sak will not be issued however
Sukukholders will on request be entitled to receive a statement from the Registrar recording
their holding of Sukuk.

A summary of the provisions for convening meetings of Sukukholders of each Series to
consider matters relating to their interests as such is set out in Condition 9.15 (Meetings of
Sukukholders; Modification) and as further set out in the Declaration of Agency.

Sukukholders should note that the provisions contained in the Declaration of Agency regarding
Sukukholder meetings are subject to applicable Saudi Arabian law as may be amended from
time to time and as applied in practice. In the event of any inconsistency between those
provisions and applicable law as applied in practice, the applicable law shall prevail.

Definitions and Sukuk Details

Status of the
Sukuk:

Payment
Administrator:

Account Bank:

Issue Price:

Currencies:

Periodic
Distributions:

Expiry Date

Mudareb,
Purchaser and
Principal:

Sole Arranger:

Xiv

Each Sukuk will constitute an undivided ownership interest of the Sukukholders in the Sukuk
Assets of the relevant Series, and will at all times rank pari passu, without any preference or
priority, with all other Sukuk of the relevant Series issued under the Programme. The payment
obligations of the Issuer under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents to which it is a party
will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
shall (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by provisions of law that are both
mandatory and of general application) rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured,
unsubordinated monetary obligations of the Issuer, present and future.

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

Arab National Bank, and its address at Riyadh, King Faisal Street, AlMurabba P.O.Box 56921
Riyadh 11564

Sukuk may only be issued on a fully paid basis and at an issue price as specified in the
Applicable Final Terms.

The Sukuk will be denominated in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“SAR”).

Sukukholders are entitled to receive Periodic Distribution Amounts calculated on the basis
specified in the Applicable Final Terms.

The maturity date of each Series of the Sukuk will be specified in the Applicable Final Terms
issued in respect of each respective issuance Series.

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company
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Dealers:

Sukukholders’
Agent:

On-Sale Agent:

Registrar and
Transfer Agent:

Method of Issue:

Programme Size:

Issue Date:

Distribution:

Specified
Denominations:

Form of Sukuk:

Sukuk Account:

Sukuk Proceeds
Account:

Application of
Proceeds on the
Issue Date:

Sukuk Assets:
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Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company together with any other Dealers appointed in
accordance with the Programme Agreement (together, the “Dealers”).

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

Securities Depository Center Company (“Edaa”) with its registered address at Tawuniya
Towers, Unit Number: 15, King Fahd Road - Olaya 6897, Riyadh 12211 - 3388, Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia.

The Sukuk will be issued in Series. The specific terms of each Series will be set out in the
Applicable Final Terms.

Up to SAR 500,000,000 in Aggregate Nominal Amount of Sukuk as are current at any time.
The Issue Date of each Series of Sukuk will be set out in the Applicable Final Terms.

There are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of
Sukuk of any Series. In particular, in the Kingdom, the distribution of this Base Prospectus and
the offering, sale and delivery of the Sukuk issued under the Programme are limited solely to
those persons who are permitted under the OSCO Rules. For a more detailed description of
these and other restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Sukuk and on the distribution
of this Base Prospectus and any offering materials relating to the Sukuk, see Section 13
“Subscription and Sale”.

Sukuk will be issued in the Specified Denomination specified in the Applicable Final Terms.

The Sukuk will be issued in dematerialized registered form. The Sukuk of each Series will be
collectively represented by a Global Sak which will be deposited with Edaa. Definitive Sukuk
representing holdings of the Global Sak will not be issued however Sukukholders will on
request be entitled to receive a statement from the Registrar recording their holding of Sukuk.

In relation to each Series, on or before the Issue Date, an account shall be established by (or
on behalf of) and held in the name of the Issuer with the Account Bank and operated by the
Payment Administrator on behalf of the Issuer (the “Sukuk Account”).

In relation to each Series, on the Issue Date (as defined in the Conditions), the proceeds of
the subscription of the Sukuk shall be deposited by the Sukukholders into an account held
in the name of the Sukukholders’ Agent with the Account Bank (for and on behalf of the
Sukukholders) and operated by the Sukukholders’ Agent (the “Sukuk Proceeds Account”).

On the Issue Date of each Series, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall, from the amounts standing to
the credit of the Sukuk Proceeds Account and on the instruction of the Issuer:

(a) provide the Mudaraba Capital (as defined in the Conditions) (equal to an amount which
is not less than 51% of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk for the relevant
Series) to or to the order of the Mudareb to apply as the capital of the mudaraba, which
shall be invested by the Mudareb in the relevant Mudaraba Assets (as defined below) in
accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement; and

(b) apply the remaining amount standing to the credit of the Sukuk Proceeds Account (equal
to an amount which is not more than 49% of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk
for the relevant Series) in a murabaha arrangement to be entered into by the Sukukholders’
Agent (in its capacity as Seller) for and on behalf of the Sukukholders (in respect of each
Series, the “Murabaha Transaction”).

In respect of each Series, the sukuk assets (the “Sukuk Assets”) shall comprise:

(a) the Sukukholders’ Agent’s share (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the Mudaraba
Assets (as assessed in accordance with Condition 9.5 (the “Mudaraba Assets”)); (b) the
Sukukholders’ Agent’s interest as Seller (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the Murabaha
Transaction (including the Deferred Sale Price) and its rights under the Master Murabaha
Agreement (the “Murabaha Assets”); (c) the Sukukholders’ Agent’s rights in, to and under
the Sukuk Documents; (d) any amounts standing to the credit of the Sukuk Account and the
Collection Account; and (e) the payment obligations of the Mudareb and the Purchaser under
the Mudaraba Agreement and the Master Murabaha Agreement, respectively.

The Issuer shall be entitled to commingle its own assets with the Sukuk Assets.

None of the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator, the Account Bank or
the Dealers are responsible for the performance or profitability of the Sukuk Assets or for the
share and amount of the distributions (if any) made to the Sukukholders.
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Mudaraba
Agreement:

Mudaraba Asset:

Mudaraba
Income:

Mudaraba
Income Sharing:
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The mudaraba in respect of each Series (the “Mudaraba”) will be constituted by a mudaraba
agreement (the “Mudaraba Agreement”) dated [+] between the Issuer (acting as Mudareb)
and the Sukukholders’ Agent (acting as rab-al-maal for and on behalf of the Sukukholders).

In respect of each Series, the Sukukholders’ participation in the Mudaraba shall be constituted
by the Sukukholders’ Agent paying the Mudaraba Capital (as defined in the Conditions) to
or to the order of the Mudareb on the relevant Issue Date. Unless previously liquidated in
accordance with the Conditions, the Mudaraba in relation to any Series shall be liquidated on
the applicable Redemption Date of that Series.

Means the investment returns from the trading activities of the Issuer, which are compliant
with Shari’ah and the relevant Available Amount, according to the provisions of the Mudaraba
Agreement and as specified in the Conditions.On the Issue Date of each Series, the Mudareb
shall invest the Mudaraba Capital of such Series as follows:

i. an amount of the Mudaraba Capital equal to the Available Amount (as defined the
Conditions) will (for so long as the Sukuk of such Series remain current) be invested
in the Mudaraba as immediately available funds, which are available to the Mudareb in
accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement; and

ii. the remainder of the Mudaraba Capital will be invested by the Mudareb in the Shari’ah-
compliant business activities of the Issuer.

Under the Mudaraba Agreement, the Mudareb shall be entitled, in its sole and absolute
discretion, to:

(i) use all or any part of the Mudaraba Assets (as defined in the Conditions) (including,
without limitation, the Available Amount) as it sees fit, subject to the terms of the Mudaraba
Agreement; and (ii) commingle its own assets and funds with the Mudaraba Assets.

The Sukukholders’ Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) and the Mudareb shall each
have an undivided ownership share of the Mudaraba Assets and all assets acquired from or
through the Mudaraba Assets on the basis of the sharing of profit and the bearing of losses
pro rata to their respective shares.

The Mudareb shall from time to time have the right to act as mudareb for other sukukholders
in connection with other Series of Sukuk under the Programme and to invest further for its
own account (whether from its own funds or funds from other sources) and/or for other
investors or sukukholders who agree to invest with it in the applicable Mudaraba Assets. The
Sukukholders’ Agent’s entitlements (for the benefit of the Sukukholders of the relevant Series
of Sukuk) and the Mudareb’s entitlements (for its own account and/or for the account of such
other investors or sukukholders who agree to so invest with it) to the Mudaraba Assets shall
be pro rata to their respective shares from time to time in the aggregate investment in the
Mudaraba Assets.

Any debt, leverage or other financial obligation incurred by the Mudareb in any capacity
before or after the constitution of the Mudaraba (“indebtedness”) and any repayment thereof
or payment in connection therewith or if incurred after the Issue Date of the relevant Series
(including, for the avoidance of doubt, any debt service amounts):

(a) shall be the sole responsibility of the Mudareb and solely for its own account; and
(b) shall count towards the share of the Mudareb (for its own account) in the Mudaraba Assets.

The Mudaraba Income for the relevant Series of Sukuk shall be credited to a ledger account
to be maintained by the Mudareb in its books for and on behalf of the Sukukholders (the
“Collection Account”).

For the purposes of calculating the Mudaraba Income, at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time)
one (1) Business Day prior to each relevant Periodic Distribution Date or any Partial Periodic
Distribution Date, as the case may be, the Mudareb shall calculate the Mudaraba Income for
the relevant Series of Sukuk received during the corresponding Periodic Distribution Period:

(a) on the basis of a constructive liquidation of the Mudaraba Assets one (1) Business Day
prior to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Periodic Distribution Date; and

(b) based on the Mudareb’s management accounts for the relevant period, and shall credit
the same to the relevant Collection Account.

The proportional profit shares of the Sukukholders’ Agent (being the “Mudaraba Profit”) and
the Mudareb (being the “Mudareb Profit”) in any Mudaraba Income credited to the relevant
Collection Account as described above shall be calculated using the ratios set out in the
Applicable Final Terms.

The Mudareb shall be entitled at any time to deduct and retain the Mudareb Profit from the
relevant Collection Account for its own account.
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Application At or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business Day prior to each relevant Periodic
of Mudaraba Distribution Date or any Partial Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Redemption Date or
Income: Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change of Control Put Date or the relevant Redemption

Date (as the case may be), the Mudareb shall apply the amounts standing to the credit of
the relevant Collection Account (in each case only to the extent of funds available in such
Collection Account) towards any Shortfall which has not otherwise been paid in accordance
with the Sukuk Documents and thereafter on a pari passu basis as follows:

(a) with respect to any Mudareb Profit which has not previously been deducted and
retained by it as described above, to itself to retain for its own account; and

(b) with respect to the Mudaraba Profit, to the Sukukholders’ Agent (by crediting such
amounts to the relevant Sukuk Account) in an amount equal to: (i) the Required
Amounts relating to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Periodic Distribution
Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date
and/or Redemption Date, as applicable.

Any surplus Mudaraba Profit remaining in the relevant Collection Account after the application
of the amounts referred to above shall be reinvested by the Mudareb on behalf of the
Sukukholders’ Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the Mudaraba Assets.

Master Murabaha Pursuant to the master murabaha agreement (the “Master Murabaha Agreement”) dated [¢]

Agreement: (corresponding to [*]) the Seller will make available to the Purchaser, in respect of each
Series of Sukuk, a murabaha based financing facility (the “Murabaha Facility”) under which
the Seller agrees to sell on behalf and for the benefit of the Sukukholders, on a murabaha
basis, to the Purchaser, on the applicable Settlement Date, certain Commodities purchased
by the Seller from nominated suppliers at a price(s) negotiated between the Purchaser and
the Seller. Once the Seller has acquired the Commodities, the Seller will sell the Commodities
to the Purchaser on deferred payment terms, providing for the Purchaser to pay to the Seller
the “Deferred Sale Price” (being, with respect to each Series of Sukuk and the corresponding
Murabaha Contract (as defined below), an amount equal to the aggregate of the relevant Cost
Price of the Commodities and the relevant Murabaha Profit) in accordance with the terms of
the Master Murabaha Agreement.

In respect of each Series, the Seller (acting for and on behalf of the Sukukholders) and the
Purchaser shall enter into a Murabaha Contract on the terms set out in the Master Murabaha
Agreement to utilize the Murabaha Facility.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk, the Purchaser may propose to enter into a murabaha
contract (a “Murabaha Contract”) with the Seller by delivering a duly completed Purchase
Order With Promise to Purchase to the Seller by 9.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business
Day prior to the proposed Settlement Date specified therein. As soon as practicable upon the
Seller receiving such a Purchase Order With Promise to Purchase on the applicable Settlement
Date, the Seller (or an agent on its behalf) shall enter into the purchase agreement with the
relevant Supplier for the Commodities which are the subject of the Purchase Order With
Promise To Purchase and shall transfer the Cost Price payable in respect of such Commodities
directly to the relevant Supplier from the Sukuk Proceeds Account.
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As soon as practicable upon completion of the purchase of the Commodities and acquisition
of title to the Commodities by the Seller, and no later than 1.00 p.m. (Riyadh time) on the
applicable Settlement Date, the Seller shall confirm the Murabaha Profit and notify the
Purchaser of the same by delivering a Confirmation of Terms to the Purchaser.

As soon as practicable upon its receipt of a Confirmation of Terms, and no later than 2.00
p.m. (Riyadh time) on the Settlement Date, the Purchaser shall deliver to the Seller a duly
completed Notice of Offer to Purchase. The Purchaser acknowledges that the Seller will be
purchasing Commodities pursuant to a Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase in reliance
upon the Purchaser’s promise set out therein to purchase such Commodities on the applicable
Settlement Date for the Deferred Sale Price from the Seller after the Seller has purchased the
same from the relevant Supplier. If the Purchaser fails to send a Notice of Offer to Purchase,
then it shall be deemed to have failed to purchase the Commodities and the Purchaser shall
indemnify the Seller (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) on demand and hold it harmless
from and against all claims, suits, actions, actual costs, expenses, Taxes, liabilities, losses and
damages of whatsoever nature suffered or incurred by the Seller resulting from the failure by
the Purchaser to send the Notice of Offer to Purchase.

As soon as practicable upon the Seller acquiring title to the Commodities which are the
subject of a Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase and receiving a duly completed Notice
of Offer to Purchase from the Purchaser in respect of such Commodities, and no later than
3.00 p.m. (Riyadh time) on the Settlement Date, the Seller will deliver to the Purchaser its
Notice of Acceptance of Offer. Upon the delivery of a Notice of Acceptance of Offer by the
Seller to the Purchaser, a Murabaha Contract shall be created between the Seller and the
Purchaser upon the terms of the Confirmation of Terms, Notice of Offer to Purchase and
Notice of Acceptance of Offer and incorporating all of the terms and conditions of the Master
Murabaha Agreement. Upon the Seller delivering a Notice of Acceptance of Offer, ownership
of and title to the Commodities shall immediately pass to and be vested in the Purchaser,
together with all rights and obligations relating thereto.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis (as defined
in the Conditions) is specified as Bullet, on the relevant Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the
Purchaser shall pay to the order of the Seller, in full, the Deferred Sale Price due on such date.
In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as
Amortising, on each Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the Purchaser shall pay to the order of
the Seller, in full, the relevant Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amount due on such date

Upon purchasing any Commodities pursuant to a Murabaha Contract, Rawasi Al Bina
Investment Company, in its capacity as principal (the “Principal”), will appoint Al Khair Capital
Saudi Arabia Company as its on-sale agent (the “On-Sale Agent”) pursuant to the on-sale
agency agreement (the “On-Sale Agency Agreement”) dated [*] (corresponding to [*]), to
sell such Commodities on the terms and conditions contained in such agreement.
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In relation to each Series, at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business Day prior
to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Redemption Date, Partial Redemption Date,
Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Partial Periodic Distribution
Date (as applicable):

(a)Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (in its capacity as Mudareb) shall pay monies standing
to the credit of the Collection Account to the Sukuk Account as follows:

i. the Required Amounts (as defined in the Conditions) relating to the relevant Periodic
Distribution Date, Redemption Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right
Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Partial Periodic Distribution Date, as applicable;
and

ii. any Shortfall (as defined in the Conditions) relating to any previous Periodic Distribution
Date(s) or Partial Redemption Date(s) which has not otherwise been paid in accordance
with the Sukuk Documents,

which amount(s) shall be paid in the above order of priority, if relevant; and

(b)Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (in its capacity as Purchaser) shall pay the relevant
Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding or, as the case may be, Deferred Sale
Price Outstanding Instalment Amount, Change of Control Put Right Deferred Sale Price or
Sukukholder Put Right Deferred Sale Price falling due on the Deferred Sale Price Payment
Date(s) corresponding to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Redemption Date, Partial
Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Partial
Periodic Distribution Date, as applicable, to the Sukuk Account.

At or prior to 12.00 p.m. (Riyadh time) on each Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Periodic
Distribution Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control
Put Date and/or Redemption Date (as applicable), the Payment Administrator shall, on behalf
of the Sukukholders’ Agent, apply the monies standing to the credit of the Sukuk Account in
the following order of priority:

(a) (to the extent not previously paid) to the Sukukholders’ Agent in respect of all amounts
owing to it under the Sukuk Documents;

(b) to the Sukukholders in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of all Periodic
Distribution Amounts due and unpaid;

(c) only if such payment is due on a Partial Redemption Date, to each Sukukholder in or
towards payment of the Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount then due and unpaid;

(d) only if such payment is due on the Redemption Date, a Sukukholder Put Right Date,
a Change of Control Put Date or a Partial Periodic Distribution Date, to the relevant
Sukukholders in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of the Total Sukuk Capital
Outstanding or, as the case may be, the relevant Early Redemption Amount in respect of
the relevant Sukukholder Put Right Sukuk or Change of Control Sukuk (as applicable) or
Partial Periodic Distribution Amount (as applicable); and

(e) provided that all amounts required to be paid on the Sukuk have been discharged in full,
only on the Redemption Date or, if later, the date on which all amounts required to be paid
on the Sukuk have been discharged in full, in payment of any residual amount to the Issuer.

The Events of Default are described in Condition 9.13 (Events of Default). Upon the occurrence
of any Event of Default which is continuing, the Sukuk may be redeemed in full and each
Sukukholder shall receive the Sukuk Capital in respect of each of the Sukuk held by it together
with any accrued and unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk, unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled,
the Sukuk shall be redeemed on the Expiry Date and each Sukukholder shall receive its pro
rata share of the Sukuk Capital (as defined in the Conditions) in respect of each of the Sukuk
held by it together with any accrued and unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Redemption Basis (as defined in the Conditions)
is specified as Amortising, each Sukukholder is entitled to receive the Sukuk Capital Instalment
Amounts due on the relevant Partial Redemption Dates (each as specified in the Applicable
Final Terms) and, subject to any other early redemption, purchase and/or cancellation, the
Sukuk shall be redeemed in part in proportion to the value of each Sukuk Capital Instalment
Amount paid to the Sukukholders upon payment of each such Sukuk Capital Instalment
Amount to the Sukukholders.
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If so specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable and subject to the value of the
Sukuk Assets not being below the Aggregate Nominal Amount, the Issuer shall give not less
than thirty (30) days’ nor more than sixty (60) days’ notice to the Sukukholders in accordance
with Condition 9.18 (Notices) (which notice: (a) shall be irrevocable; and (b) shall specify the
relevant Periodic Distribution Date fixed for redemption (the “Optional Redemption Date”)),
and the Issuer shall redeem in whole, but not in part, the Sukuk from the Sukukholders on the
Optional Redemption Date and, subject to Condition 9.5(c)(Liquidation of the Mudaraba),
each Sukukholder shall receive the Early Redemption Amount (as defined in the Conditions)
in respect of the Sukuk held by it together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution
Amounts payable.

The Sukuk may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer, in its sole discretion, in whole, but
not in part, on any Periodic Distribution Date by giving not less than thirty (30) days’ notice
nor more than sixty (60) days’ notice (a “Tax Redemption Notice”) to the Sukukholders in
accordance with Condition 9.18 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify
the date fixed for redemption (the “Tax Redemption Date”)) and, subject to Condition 9.5(c)
(Liquidation of the Mudaraba), each Sukukholder shall receive its pro rata share of the Total
Sukuk Capital Outstanding together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution
Amounts payable, if:

On the occasion of the next payment due under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents, the
Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for, or referred
to, in Condition 9.16 (Taxation) and the Sukuk Documents as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Kingdom or any political subdivision or any
authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in the application or official
interpretation of such laws or regulations (including a holding by a court of competent
jurisdiction), which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which
agreement is reached to issue the relevant Series of Sukuk and such obligation cannot be
avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it.

Provided however, that no Tax Redemption Notice shall be given earlier than sixty (60) days
prior to the Periodic Distribution Date occurring immediately before the earliest date on
which the Issuer, as the case may be, would be obliged to pay such additional amounts if
payment of such additional amounts in respect of the Sukuk and/or Sukuk Documents (as
applicable) were then due.

Prior to the publication of any Tax Redemption Notice pursuant to Condition 9.12(c)
(Redemption for tax reasons), the Issuer shall obtain and make available to the Sukukholders
for inspection at its principal office during business hours: (i) a certificate signed by two (2)
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer, as the case may be, stating that the Issuer is entitled
to effect such redemption and stating that the conditions to the redemption of the Sukuk
set out in Condition 12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons) have been met; and (ii) an opinion
of an independent tax adviser of recognized standing to the effect that the Issuer, as the
case may be, has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of such
change or amendment. Upon the expiry of any Tax Redemption Notice as is referred to in
Condition 9.12(c)(Redemption for tax reasons), the Issuer shall be bound to redeem the Sukuk
in accordance with Condition 12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons).

If so specified in the Applicable Final Terms, Sukukholders may, in accordance with Condition
9.12(d) (i), elect to redeem their Sukuk on any Sukukholder Put Right Date(s) specified in
the Applicable Final Terms at the applicable Early Redemption Amount together with any
accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts payable.

If so specified in the Applicable Final Terms, upon the occurrence of a Change of Control
Event, Sukukholders may, in accordance with Condition 9.12(d)(ii), elect to redeem their Sukuk
on the relevant Change of Control Put Date at the applicable Early Redemption Amount
together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts payable.

A “Change of Control Event” means any change in the direct or indirect ownership of the
Issuer which would result in any person having the ability to, directly or indirectly, influence
the actions or decisions of the Issuer , whether alone or with a relative or affiliate, through: (a)
holding thirty per cent. (30%) or more of the voting rights in the Issuer; or (b)having the right
to appoint thirty per cent. (30%) or more of the members of the governing body of the Issuer;
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All payments in respect of the Sukuk will be made free and clear of withholding taxes of
Saudi Arabia unless such withholding is required by law. In that event, the Issuer will pay or
cause to be paid to the Sukukholders (other than Sukukholders who are not, at the time of
the relevant payments, Qualified Persons) such additional amounts so that the net amount
received by the Sukukholders after the withholding shall equal the respective amounts which
would have been receivable in respect of the Sukuk in the absence of such withholding but
only to the extent that such amounts are available for distribution to Sukukholders from any
relevant Sukuk Assets.

Sukukholders should note that the Sukuk are being sold only to Qualified Persons and that
only Qualified Persons may be registered as Sukukholders. No additional amounts in respect
of any withholding required by law to any person who holds Sukuk but is not a Qualified
Person.

All payments by the Issuer under the Sukuk Documents to which it is a party shall be made
free and clear of withholding taxes of Saudi Arabia unless such withholding or deduction is
required by law.

Tax Considerations: See Section 12 “Taxation and Zakat” for a description of certain tax
considerations applicable to the Sukuk.

Subject to Conditions 9.3.3 (Transfer Record Dates and Closed Periods) and 9.3.4 (Regulations
concerning Transfers and Registrations), the Sukuk may be transferred in accordance with
the regulations and procedures established by the Registrar by delivering to the Registrar
such information as such regulations and procedures shall require. The Sukuk may not be
transferred unless:

(a) the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk to be transferred together with any existing
holding of Sukuk by the party acquiring the Sukuk to be transferred is not less than 1,000
Saudi riyals;

(b) where not all the Sukuk held by a Sukukholder are being transferred, the nominal amount
of the balance of Sukuk not transferred is not less than 1,000 Saudi riyals;

(c) the transferee is a Qualified Person; and
(d) any applicable requirements of the KSA regulations are complied with.

Except as stated in Condition 9.3 “Transfers of Sukuk” (for more details on this condition,
please see Condition 9.3 “Transfers of Sukuk” of Section 9 “Sukuk Terms and Conditions” of
this Prospectus; the Sukuk are freely traded without any restrictions and may be traded in
accordance with the adopted conditions and procedures in Tadawul and the provisions of the
Securities Clearing Center Company “Muqassa”.

(1 the Mudaraba Agreement; (2) the Declaration of Agency and the relevant Supplemental
Declaration of Agency; (3) the Payment Administration Agreement; (4) the Master Murabaha
Agreement; (5) the On-Sale Agency Agreement; (6) the Programme Agreement, (7) the
Placement Agency Agreement and (8) the Sukuk (including the Global Sak).

An investment in any Series of Sukuk issued under the Programme should be made only
after careful consideration by a prospective investor of its individual circumstances. There
are certain factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under a Series of
Sukuk issued under the Programme and the Sukuk Documents. In addition, there are certain
factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Sukuk
of such Series issued under the Programme. These are set out in the section entitled “Risk
Factors”. A prospective investor must also carefully review the section of this Base Prospectus
entitled “Important Notice” before deciding to invest in the Sukuk.

The Sukuk Documents and each Series of Sukuk are to be governed by, and are to be construed
in accordance with, the laws and regulations of the Kingdom and are subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Kingdom’s Committee for Resolution of Securities Disputes and the Appeal
Committee for Resolution of Securities Disputes (the “Committees™).
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Payment Agent:

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

King Abdul Aziz Road- Al-Wizarat District - Abraj Madarat
P.O. Bpx: 69410, Riyadh11547

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Phone: +966112155678

Fax: +966112191270

Website: www.alkhaircapital.com.sa

E-mail: info@alkhaircapital.com.sa

Registration and Sukuk Transfer Agent:

Securities Depository Centre Company

An agreement was reached with Edaa (a closed Saudi joint stock company established under
Commercial Registration Certificate No. (1010463866) dated 27/11/1437H, and its head office
is located in the city of Riyadh - King Fahd Road - Olaya 6897 - Unit No.: 11 - Riyadh 12211-3388)
to hold the sukukholders register and record any procedures, amendments, modifications,
additions and/or changes that may occur to the register, Sukukholders or Sukuk.
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How to apply for subscription

Pursuant to the Programme dated on or prior the issue date, an agreement between the Dealer(s), the
Arranger, the Issuer and the Sukukholders’ Agent’s containing the general provisions on the basis of which,
from time-to-time, they will introduce potential investors categorized as “Qualified Persons” (as mentioned
above) to purchase Sukuk.

Persons wishing to purchase the Sukuk will be required to submit a duly completed form (an “Investor
Application Form”) to any relevant dealer before the end of the Offer Period. They shall make payment
for the purchase of the Sukuk of any Series in accordance with the instructions contained in the Investor
Application Form.

Investor Application Forms will be available from each relevant Dealer in relation to the relevant Series
of Sukuk issuance via electronic channels during the Offer Period. Investor Application Forms will also be
available from the Arranger (in its capacity as the Initial Dealer) or the Receiving Banks in case of individual
participants during the Offer Period.

Applications to purchase Sukuk for less than the amount specified in the Applicable Final Terms will not
be accepted. Applications will not be accepted if they are less than the specified amount as defined in the
Applicable Final Terms.

Persons wishing to submit their Investor Application Form must acknowledge that they have read and
understood the Base Prospectus and the terms and conditions of the Investor Application Form (including
Section 1 “Risk Factors” and Section 9 “Sukuk Terms and Conditions”) since the execution of the Investor
Application Form constitutes acceptance of and agreement to the Conditions and the basis upon which the
Sukuk are offered.

They must also declare that they reside in the Kingdom for tax purposes and that all information provided in
the Investor Application Form is true and accurate.

Allocation of Sukuk will be at the discretion of the Issuer and the Arranger and will be made within a maximum
period of 10 business days following the end of the Offer Period, although the basis on which applications are
to be accepted has been specified.

The Issuer reserves the right to reject any Investor Application Form, in part or in whole, if any of the terms
and conditions of the purchase are not fulfilled or the instructions are not duly and timely followed. The
Investor Application Form may not be modified or withdrawn once it has been submitted. Furthermore, the
Investor Application Form, upon submission, constitutes a legally binding agreement between the applicant
and the Issuer (for more details on the terms, instructions and procedures for subscription, please see Section
13 “Subscription and Sale” of this Prospectus).
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Summary of key information of the company

This summary is intended to provide an overview of the key information contained in this Base Prospectus.
As such, it does not contain all of the information that may be important to prospective Sukukholders. This
Base Prospectus should be read in its entirety and carefully reviewed before making a decision to invest in the
Sukuk. Any decision to invest in the Sukuk by prospective Sukukholders should be based on a consideration
of this Base Prospectus as a whole. In particular, it is important to carefully consider the sections entitled
“Important Notice” on page (i) and “Risk Factors” on page (1) prior to making any investment decision with
respect to the Sukuk.

Overview of Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (the Company or the Issuer) was initially established as a limited liability
company under the trade name “Rawasi Al Bina Company for Investment and Real Estate Development” by
its founding shareholders, Abdullah Muhsin Al Al-Dajani Al-Otaibi, Nayef Muhammad Rahim Al- Nafi, Faisal
Muhammad Rahim Al-Nefie, and Abdul Rahman Muhammad Rahim Al-Nefie (the Founding Shareholders).
The Company’s name was then changed to “Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company Limited”. Subsequently,
certain of the Founding Shareholders sold their shares in the Company to Mohsen Mutaib Al - Otaibi,
resulting in the Company being jointly owned by Abdullah Mohsen Al-Dajani Al-Otaibi and Mohsen Mutaib
Al-Otaibi, and the Company’s name was again changed to “Rawasi Al Bina Investment Holding Company”. On
05/01/1442H (corresponding to 24/08/2020G), the Company was converted from a limited liability company
to a closed joint-stock company, and its name was changed to its current name, “Rawasi Al Bina Investment
Company”. Pursuant to a capital increase approved on 26/01/1442H (corresponding to 14/09/2020G), 261
new shareholders owned shares in the Company, and the total number of shareholders subsequently reduced
to 60 pursuant to certain assignment and share exchange transactions. On 15/02/1444H (corresponding to
11/9/2022G) the shares of the Company were admitted to the Nomu market of Tadawul.

The Company’s Mission, Vision and General Strategy

Principal Activities of the Company

The Company principally provides electrical installation and connection services and network installation
services to its customers.

The Company provides comprehensive electrical services that encompass designing, engineering, procuring,
supplying, and installing electrical systems. This includes work for new projects, such as the construction and
installation of electrical infrastructure for buildings and facilities.

In the area of network installation, the Company focuses on the integration and implementation
of communication networks. This includes the installation of telecommunication systems, laying of
communication cables, and setting up network infrastructure for both public and private sector clients. Their
services extend to building and maintaining GSM sites, fiber-to-the-home (FTTH) networks, and other related
network infrastructure.

Vision

To become a partner in progress with its customers by providing high value expertise in its business and the
most effective solutions.

Mission

To gain the trust of its customers by providing distinguished services at competitive prices, provide a safe
and healthy working environment, preserve natural resources and bear the Company’s social responsibility
by carrying out all transactions in an ethical manner and supporting local needs in the cultural, social,
educational and economic fields. By doing so, the Company aims to provide value to its shareholders.

Strategy

The Company seeks to achieve its strategic objectives based on its strengths and the available opportunities
in the market that are consistent with its vision and mission, by consolidating its leading position in the market
in the field of telecommunications, electricity and water services, in addition to developing integrated and
innovative solutions that enhance the quality of water services, protects resources, and enhances operational
efficiency with the adoption of digital technologies.
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Strengths and Competitive Advantages of the Company
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The Company is qualified by the Saudi Electricity Company (SEC) and several local telecommunications
companies as a main contractor for the provision of supply, installation, and connection services as
well as construction work. It is also classified as “first class” by the Contractors Classification Agency
for construction services.

The Company has maintained its reputation and gained the trust of its customers through its ability to
deliver projects on schedule and at reasonable costs.

Its strong relationship with equipment suppliers and material suppliers.

A diversified customer base and its close relationship with them.

The administrative, technical and financial experience of the Company.

Its presence in the main cities of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Its strong relationship with local banks and financing companies for funding when needed.

Its interest in applying environmental health and safety standards and levels.
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Summary of financial information

The summary of the financial information presented below is based on the Company’s consolidated audited
financial statements for the financial years ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December
2023G (the Audited Annual Financial Statements) and the consolidated reviewed financial statements for
the six month financial period ended 30 June 2024G (the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements and,
together with the Annual Audited Financial Statements, the Financial Statements) and the notes attached
thereto.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the standards and publications approved by the Saudi
Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCPA).

The audit and review of the Financial Statements has been performed by the independent auditors of the
Company Osama ElKhereji and Partner Co. (“OEK”) for the year ended 31 December 2021G and by El Sayed
El Ayouty and Co. (“MOORE”) for the years ended 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G and for the
six month period ended on 30 June 2023G and on 30 June 2024G.

Statement of Financial Position:

Table 2: Statement of Financial Position

Statement of financial position

SAR

Dec21

Dec22

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 34,703,386 36,182,426 37,204,038 36,314,494
Right-of-use assets 8,342,930 9,118,628 11,261,727 9,196,624
Total non-current assets 43,046,316 45,301,054 48,465,765 45,511,118
Current assets

Trade receivables- net 73,815,716 68,219,636 76,921,013 87,745,399
Accrued revenue 15,977,662 20,611,616 54,126,302 46,705,361
Prepayments and other assets 13,585,657 37,325,549 20,039,468 44,801,737
Cash and cash equivalent 4,004,224 9,422,607 10,579,685 1,083,113
Total current assets 107,383,259 135,579,408 161,666,468 180,335,610
Total assets 150,429,575 180,880,462 210,132,233 225,846,728
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Capital 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000
Statutory reserve 3,823,811 5,913,639 8,182,353 8,182,353
Actuarial (losses)/ profits (639,735) 343,001 521,840 521,840
Retained earnings 34,840,595 53,649,044 74,067,472 64,317,693
Total equity 93,024,671 114,905,684 137,771,665 128,021,886
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Murabaha financing 13,307,287 4,202,046 2,977,285 8,217,199
Lease obligation 5,560,652 5,001,023 5,973,603 3,913,127
EOSB 3,886,242 3,947,266 3,888,538 4,380,275
Total non-current liabilities 22,754,181 13,150,335 12,839,426 16,510,601

Current Liabilities
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Statement of financial position

SAR Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Murabaha financing- current portion 28,409,934 36,686,862 47,314,637 66,467,313
Due to related parties - 5,006,032 - -
Lease obligation - current portion 1,829,222 1,947,223 2,779,949 2,403,232
Trade payables 1,430,576 5,347,804 3,857,700 5,519,959
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,282,850 1,568,597 2,703,211 5,596,935
Zakat payable 1,698,141 2,267,925 2,865,645 1,326,802
Total current liabilities 34,650,723 52,824,443 59,521,142 81,314,241
Total liabilities 57,404,904 65,974,778 72,360,568 97,824,842
Total equity and liabilities 150,429,575 180,880,462 210,132,233 225,846,728

Source: the Financial Statements

Statement of Income:

Table 3: Statement of Income

Statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

o8&
oS
Ky
o
o N
>
>LL

Variance
FY22-FY23
Variance
1H23-1H24

Revenue - net 95,532,446 135,221,094 164,240,496 41.5% 21.5% 94,202,132 38,094,269 (59.6%)
Cost of revenue (65,523,689) (97,675,620) (121,741,907) 491% 24.6%  (69,557,006) (35,438,421) (49.1%)
Gross profit 30,008,756 37,545,474 42,498,589 25.1% 13.2% 24,645,126 2,655,848 (89.2%)
General and

administrative (5,986,165) (6,549,432) (7152,449) 9.4% 9.2% (3,735,214) (3,949,359) 5.73%
expenses

:Expected credit (49,012) _ (561,962) _ _ _ (251,899) -
osses

Operating profit’ 23,973,580 30,996,042 34,991,527 29.3% 12.9% 20,909,912 (1,545,410) (107.4%)
Finance charges (5,104,587) (7,894,730) (9,438,740) 54.7% 19.6% (4,570,287) (5,083,826) 1.2%
Other income 311,970 64,890 - (79.2%) - - (1,793,741) -

Profit before zakat 19,180,063 23,166,202 25,552,787 20.8% 10.3% 16,339,625 (8,422,977) (151.5%)

Zakat and income

tax (1,698,141) (2,267,925) (2,865,645) 33.6% 26.4% (1,214,438) (1,326,802) 9.25%

Net profit 17,482,822 20,898,277 22,687,142 19.5% 8.56% 15,125,187 (9,749,779) (164.5%)

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Actuarial (losses)/

profits 43,279 982,736 178,839 2170.7%  (81.8%) - - -

Other
comprehensive 43,279 982,736 178,839 2170.7% (81.8%) - - -
profit

Total
comprehensive 17,526,101 21,881,013 22,865,981 24.8% 4.50% 15,125,187 (9,749,779) (164.5%)
profit

o Note: As per the audited financial Statement for FY21, other income used to be the part of operating profit. From FY22 onwards,
the other income was re-classified. For consistency, the other income is not the part of operating profits for the year FY21in the
table shown above.

Source: the Financial Statements
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Statement of Cash Flows:

Table 4: Statement of Cash Flows

Cashflow statement

SAR

FY22

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before zakat 19,180,963 23,166,202 25,552,787 16,339,625  (8,422,977)
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation / amortization 4,171,591 4,388,837 4,734,479 2,182,776 2,488,530
Expected credit loss 49,012 - 354,613 251,899
Sr?(;”ezzissrfe?‘i property, plant - (64,890) - - 1,793,741
EOSB 949,208 1,081,470 1103100 566,678 706,162
Finance costs 5,104,586 8,052,900 9,599,394 4,570,287 5,083,826
Working capital changes

Accounts receivables (7,639,525) 5,596,080 (8,494,028) (1,266,373) (10,824,386)
Accrued revenue (184,353) (4,633,954) (34,076,648) (22,037,290) 769,042
Prepayments and other assets (6,983,207) (23,739,892) 17,286,081 (2,702,624) (24,762,269)
Trade payables (6,681,019) 4,093,989 (1,490,104) 1128,864 1,662,259
ﬁ;&m?e‘l expenses and other (1,365,242) 285,747 1134,614 (661,190) 2,893,724
Cash utilized in operations 6,602,014 18,226,489 15,704,288 (1,879,247) (21,960,449)
EOSB Paid (167,488) (195,880) (1143,643) (418,812) (214,425)
Zakat paid (1,330,775) (1,698,141 (2,267,925)  (2.267,925)  (2,865,645)
Finance cost (5,026,613)  (7,894,730)  (9,438740)  (4,570,287)  (5,083,826)
glftti\z?isehsfbws gemleesEting 77,138 8,437,738 2,853,980 (9,136,271)  (30,124,345)
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for purchase of (9,326,890)  (5,897,016)  (3,389,289) (756,651) (2194,723)
property, plant and equipment

oroparty plant and squiement : 581,370 : : :
:;ti\fi‘:‘;hsfbws genlpEsting (9,326,890)  (5,315,646)  (3,389,289)  (756,651)  (2,194,723)
Cash flows from financing activities

Changes in loans 11,648,616 (828,313) 9,403,014 10,465,703 24,392,590
Capital paid - - - - -
Shareholder financing - 5,006,032 (5,006,032)  (4,884,904) -
Lease obligations (1,221,033) (1,881,428) (2,704,595)  (1,250,286)  (1,570,094)
:;tivciiihsfmws gemiinenclnd 10,427,583 2,296,291 1,692,387 4,330,513 22,822,496
Net cashflow 1,177,831 5,418,383 1,157,078 (5,562,409)  (9,496,572)
Opening cash 2,826,393 4,004,224 9,422,607 9,422,607 10,579,685
(EELD M) @60 CRIVEL S o 4,004,224 9,422,607 10,579,685 3,860,198 1,083,113

the end of the period

Source: the Financial Statements

xxviii |
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Key Performance Indicators:

Table 5: Key Performance Indicators

Financials KPIs 2021G pioyic 2023G 30/06/2023G | 30/06/2024G
Gross profit margin 31.41% 27.77% 25.88% 26.16% 6.97%
Operating profit margin 25.09% 22.92% 21.31% 22.20% (4.06%)
Net profit margin 18.30% 15.45% 13.81% 16.06% (25.59%)

KPIs 2021G ployic] 2023G 30/06/2024G

Current ratio (times) 310 2.57 2.72 2.22
Asset turnover ratio (times) 0.69 0.82 0.84 0.17
Return on assets (%) 11.62% 11.55% 10.80% (4.32%)
Return on equity (%) 18.79% 18.19% 16.47% (7.62%)
Debt to equity (times) 0.45 0.36 0.37 0.58

Source: the Financial Statements
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Risk Factor summary

XXX

Risks related to the Company’s Activity and Operations

Risks related to the Company’s inability to implement its strategic plan.
Risks related to credit and bad and doubtful debts.

Risks related to non-issuance or non-renewal of licenses, permits and certificates.
Risks related to dependence on key personnel and executive management.
Risks related to employee errors or misconduct.

Risks related to providing financing in the future.

Risks related to Saudization requirements.

Risks related to natural disasters.

Risks related to potential legal zakat entitlements and additional claims.
Risks related to the protection of trademarks and property rights.

Risks related to reliance on external advisors.

Risks related to the concentration of the Company’s revenues.

Risks related to customer concentration.

Risks related to adequacy of insurance coverage.

Risks related to currency fluctuations.

Risks related to the competitive environment.

Risks related to working capital management.

Risks related to lack of experience in managing listed joint-stock companies.

Risks related to investigations, lawsuits and fines against the Company, and its Directors, senior

executives and/or shareholder.

Risks related to non-compliance with the terms and pledges of credit facilities.
Risks related to the rise in financing expenses.

Risks related to operating systems and information technology.

Risks related to contracts with suppliers.

Risks related to government fees applicable to non-Saudi employees.

Risks related to dependence on non-Saudi employees.

Risks related to sudden failures in the Company’s projects.

Risks related to consumer spending due to poor economic conditions.

Risks related to COVID-19 and other communicable diseases.

Risks related to the availability of raw materials and the fluctuation of their prices.
Risks related to the machinery and equipment used.

Risks related to climatic conditions.

Risks related to the Saudi Ports Authority’s decision to raise its fees.

Risks related to changing the mechanism for calculating zakat.

Risks related to Executives or Directors conducting business competing with the Company’s business.

Risks related to lease contracts.

Risks related to the inability to develop the Company’s current services and introduce new ones.

Risks related to the presence of a minimum number of Directors and the consequences in the event

of the resignation of a Director.

Risks related to impact of cybersecurity attacks on security and reliability of technology system.

S)
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2. Risks Related to the Market and the Sector in which the Company Operates

¢ Risks Related to General Economic Conditions.
¢ Risks related to the economic performance of the Kingdom.
¢ Risks related to political and economic instability in the Middle East.

¢ Risks related to legislative and regulatory changes in the Kingdom may adversely affect the Company’s
operations.

¢ Risks related to the application of the Corporate Governance Regulations.
* Risks related to value added tax.

¢ Risks related to the seasonality of the Company’s business.

¢ Risks related to energy, electricity and water products.

¢ Risks related to the Company’s operations being subject to environmental, health and safety laws and
regulations.

¢ Risks related to the Company’s inability to implement the growth strategy in the future.

3. Risks related to Sukuk

¢ Risks related to the suitability of investments.
* Risks related to legal investment considerations which may restrict certain investments.

¢ Risks related to certain Sukukholders who may be exposed to currency conversion risks due to the
Sukuk being denominated in Saudi Arabian Riyals.

¢ Risks related to trading and settlement.

* Risks related to Qualified Persons.

¢ Risks related to the Registry Agreement.

¢ Risks related to the secondary market generally.

¢ Risks related to the Sukuk may be subject to redemption at the option of the Issuer.

¢ Risks related to the Sukuk may be redeemed prior to the Expiry Date for tax reasons.

¢ Risks related to Change of law.

¢ Risks related to the Sukuk which will cease to accrue profit from the due date for redemption (if any).

¢ No late payment amount will be payable by the Issuer as a result of any delay in payments due under
the Sukuk or the Sukuk Documents, as applicable.

¢ Risks associated with payments relating to the Sukuk.
¢ Risks related to modification, waivers and substitution.

¢ Risks related to Compliance with the Kingdom’s bankruptcy and other laws may affect the Issuer’s
ability to perform its obligations under the Sukuk Documents.

¢ Risks related to the Sukuk being unsecured obligations of the Issuer.
* Risks related to the Pari Passu.

¢ Risks related to the lack of third-party guarantees.

* Risks related to Murabaha Contracts.

¢ Risks related to Shari’ah-compliance.

* Risks related to Enforceability and Taxation in Saudi Arabia.
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1. Risk Factors

The purchase of any Sukuk may involve substantial risks and is suitable only for investors who have the
knowledge and experience in financial and business matters necessary to enable them to evaluate the risks
and merits of an investment in any Sukuk.

The Issuer believes, to the best of its knowledge, that the factors described below represent the principal
risks inherent in investing in Sukuk, but the inability of the Issuer to pay any amounts on or in connection
with any Sukuk may occur for other reasons and the Issuer does not represent that the statements below
regarding the risks of holding any Sukuk are exhaustive. The risks set out below may not include all risks that
the Issuer may encounter, as additional risks that are not currently known to the Issuer may occur, as well as
risks that are known to the Issuer but are considered immaterial as at the date of this Base Prospectus. These
additional risks and the risks highlighted below, if they occur, may have an adverse effect on the Issuer’s
operational performance, financial position, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

There can be no assurance that the various structural elements described in this Base Prospectus will be
sufficient to ensure payment to Sukukholders of any Periodic Distribution Amount or the Mudaraba Capital
in respect of any Sukuk on a timely basis or at all.

An investment in the Sukuk is only appropriate for those investors who are able to evaluate the risk and the
benefits of the investment and those who have sufficient resources to sustain any loss resulting from such
investment. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out in the below risks and
other information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any
investment decision.

The risks set out below are not presented in any assumed order of priority that can reflect the expected
impact on the Issuer, importance, materiality or the likelihood of occurrence.

Words and expressions defined in this Base Prospectus shall have the same meanings in this section.

1.1 Risks related to the Company’s Activity and Operations

1.1.1 Risks related to the Company’s inability to implement its strategic plan

The Company’s ability to increase its revenues and improve its profitability depends on the effective
implementation of its business plans and the successful achievement of its strategy by delivering projects
and providing services according to their schedule and entering into new projects. The Company’s ability to
expand its business in the future depends on its ability to continue implementing and improving operational
and financial information systems efficiently and in a timely manner, as well as its ability to increase and train
its workforce. The Company may need to obtain additional financing for the implementation of any expansion
plans. If the Company is unable to implement its expansion plans according to the schedule it sets for the
same and according to the estimated costs or in the event that the desired profitability from these strategic
plans is not achieved (which may be due to various reasons, including a change in the market situation at the
time of carrying out these works, or in the event that a defect in the market feasibility study), this may have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s competitive position and, consequently, its business, results of
operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.2 Risks related to credit and bad and doubtful debts

Bad debts or doubtful debts are considered a major obstacle for the Company and affect its performance
and financial results at the end of each financial year which, in turn, reduces the Company’s net profits. Trade
receivables are recorded net of any provision for impairment of trade receivables. Any future change in the
accounting policies that the Company may adopt may force it to raise the value of the provisions that it must
set aside to cover the value of doubtful debts. This would negatively and directly affect the profitability of
the Company.

In terms of the accounting policies employed by the Company in this regard, IFRS 9 requires an entity to
apply a model for measuring expected credit losses in relation to impairment of financial assets. It is not
necessary for a credit event to have occurred in order to recognize credit losses. Instead, using the “ECL
model”, the entity calculates expected credit losses and changes as at each reporting date.
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With regard to trade receivables, the Company has applied the “simplified method” according to the standard
and calculated credit losses according to the expectations of credit losses over the life of the relevant financial
assets, which approach the Company has taken based on previous experience and customer behaviors in
payment, estimated credit losses and adjusted them in relation to future factors related to the relevant
debtors and the economic environment.

Trade receivables accounted for 78.42%, 50.45% and 47.38% of total revenue as at 31 December 2021G, 31
December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, respectively.

The following table shows the age of receivables as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31
December 2023G:

Table 6: Age of receivables as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G

Age of ;’sl‘i‘; receiv- 31 December 2021G 31 December 2022G 31 December 2023G

(all figures in Saudi
Riyals)

% of Total
Accounts receivable
% of Total Revenue
Accounts receivable
balance
% of Total Accounts
receivable
% of Total Revenue
Accounts receivable
balance
% of Total Accounts
receivable
% of Total Revenue

Q@
Q2
©
2
7}
o8
o c
Kol
2w
[=ie]
S
o
I}
o
<

Rolling (Not past

due) 19,058,021 25.44% 19.95% - 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

1- 60 days past due 29,758,748 39.72% 3115% 35,094,918 50.63%  25.95% 42,094,215 54.09% 25.63%
61.120 days past due 20,051,566 26.76% 20.99% 12,591,203 18.16% 9.31% 12,529,835  16.10% 7.63%
121180 days past due 999,294 1.33% 1.05% 15,121,523 21.81% 11.18% 7,989,230 10.27% 4.86%

181.365 days past due 3,948,087 5.27% 413% 6,514,728 9.40% 4.82% 14,815,200  19.04% 9.02%

366 + past due 49,012 0.07%  0.05% - 0.00%  000% 378920  050%  0.24%
720 days - 0.00%  0.00% - 0.00%  0.00% - 0.00%  0.00%
past due over 721 o o o o o o

Hoys 1,053,724 1.41% 110% - 0.00%  0.00% - 0.00%  0.00%
e BEEI0Ee O 74,918,452 = 78.42% 69,322,372 . 51.27% 77,816,400 5 47.38%

trade receivables

Source: Rawasi Al-Bina Investment Company

As shown above, the balance of receivables past due by more than 180 days and less than a year, amounted to
5.27% 7.93% and 19.05% of the total receivables balance respectively as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December
2022G and 31 December 2023G. The balance of receivables past due by 60 days or less amounted to 39.72%,
19.10% and 54.09% of the total receivables balance respectively as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December
2022G and 31 December 2023G. In the event that the Company’s debtors encounter difficulties in their
operations and financial conditions, this will lead to their failure to pay their debts owed to the Company, and
this may lead to the insolvency of these debtors or to their declaring bankruptcy. A significant drop in oil
prices could also affect government spending on new projects or the payment of amounts due on the agreed
dates. Whilst the Company implements a policy to form provisions for doubtful debts to limit its exposure to
credit risk by, among other things, imposing credit limits for each customer, in the event that debtors fail to
pay or delay in paying material amounts due to the Company, it may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.
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1.1.3 Risks related to non-issuance or non-renewal of licenses, permits and
certificates

The Company is required to obtain and maintain permits, licenses and various regulatory approvals in
connection with its activities. These licenses include, but are not limited to company registration certificates
issued by the Ministry of Commerce, trademark registration certificates, Saudization certificates, zakat
certificates, value added tax registration certificate, social insurance certificates, a certificate of membership
with the Chamber of Commerce, civil defense permits, environmental license for operation from the General
Authority of Meteorology and Environment, a certificate from the Saudi Contractors Authority, and work
permits from the municipality.

The Company’s inability to renew and keep up to date its existing licenses, permits and certificates, or to
obtain any new licenses necessary for the conduct of its business, or if any such licenses are renewed under
conditions that are onerous for the Company may, in each case, cause the Company to stop and refrain from
carrying out its work. For example, whilst the Company’s commercial registration (CR) is up to date it does
not, as of the date of this Base Prospectus, accurately reflect the Company’s current address. Noting that the
Company’s address on the CR is used for official communications, this may lead to material tax notices and
other official communications not being received by the Company.

Under applicable Saudi Arabian law, the Company is required to hold a valid municipality license with respect
to each property which it uses to operate its business. Whilst the Company uses numerous leased properties
as part of its business, it does not currently possess a municipality license with respect to each such property.
In addition, the municipal authority in respect of certain of the Company’s leased properties has indicated that
it will not be issuing a municipality license given that the relevant locality has or will become earmarked for
residential purposes. Operating without a municipality license is a violation of applicable Saudi Arabian laws,
and can result in regulatory fines and the shutdown of the relevant leased properties. This is also the case for
required civil defence licenses which are similarly required for each of the Company’s leased properties, and
which are not currently held by the Company for all such properties. If, therefore, the Company cannot obtain
such municipality and civil defence licenses or otherwise is unable to procure alternative leased premises at
reasonable rates or at all, this could lead to business interruption issues which may have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

Other potential sanctions for not renewing and keeping up to date applicable licenses, permits and certificates
could include the winding up of the Company, the freezing of all services provided by regulatory authorities
to the Company (such as renewing licenses and certificates, issuance of visas, residence permits, transfer of
guarantees, etc.) or it may expose the Company to financial fines imposed by the authorities in connection
with licenses, permits and certificates, which will result in the disruption of the Company’s operations and
additional cost incurrence. These circumstances may, in turn, it may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.4 Risks related to dependence on key personnel and executive management

The Company and its future plans for success depend on the expertise and competencies of its executive
management and key employees. The Company aims to attract and employ qualified people to ensure the
efficiency and quality of business through effective management. The Company will also need to increase the
salaries of its employees in order to ensure their retention or to attract new professionals with appropriate
qualifications and experience. Furthermore, the Company may not always be in a position to negotiate
preferential or market standard terms in service contracts with key personnel; for example, for certain key
management, the Company currently has only a 30 day notice requirement for their resignation, and there
is an absence of certain customary contractual protections such as non-competition and confidentiality
obligations. Accordingly, if the Company loses any of the senior executives or qualified employees and fails
to recruit replacements with the same level of experience and qualifications and at an appropriate cost for
the Company, or if certain key management leave the Company on short notice and seek employment with
a competitor of the Company due to a lack of customary contractual protections for the Company, this
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.

1.1.5 Risks related to employee errors or misconduct

The Company may encounter employee errors or misconduct and cannot guarantee avoiding employee
misconduct or mistakes such as fraud, deliberate errors, embezzlement, misappropriation, theft, forgery,
misuse of its property and acting on its behalf without obtaining the required administrative authorizations.
Consequently, such actions may result in adverse consequences and liabilities being incurred by the Company,
statutory penalties, or financial liability, any of which may negatively affect the Company’s reputation which
may, in turn, a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition
and prospects.
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1.1.6 Risks related to providing financing in the future

The Company may need to obtain bank loans and facilities to finance its expansion plans in the future; doing
so depends on the Company’s financial position, cash flows, the credit support (if any) provided and its credit
record. The Company may not be able to obtain appropriate financing or credit facilities if the need arises
for it to do so. The Company'’s inability to obtain the financing it requires from financing entities, or financing
with acceptable terms to the Company, or the Company’s failure to adhere to the terms and/or pledges of
credit facilities in the future, will have an adverse effect on the Company’s performance, operations and
future plans which may, in turn, a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation,
financial condition and prospects.

Furthermore, banks may request guarantees or other credit support in exchange for the granting to the
Company of credit facilities. If the Company is unable to procure such credit support, it may not receive
such financing. In addition, if the Company is unable to fulfill its payment and other obligations under its
credit facilities, the lender(s) may request that the debt(s) be repaid immediately and call on the guarantees
procured by the Company. If this were to occur, the Company may not be able to obtain sufficient alternative
financing sources to meet debt repayment obligations, and any of these factors, alone or in combination,
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.

11.7 Risks related to Saudization requirements

Compliance with Saudization requirements is a statutory requirement under which all companies operating
in the Kingdom, including the Company, are obligated to employ a certain percentage of Saudi national
employees among its total employees, and to maintain that percentage. In accordance with the Nitagat
program issued by the MHRSD, the Saudization rate of the Company as at 31 December 2022G was 18.09%.
However, if it does not continue to maintain this percentage or if the MHRSD decides to impose more severe
Saudization policies in the future, and the Company is unable to comply with the requirements of the MHRSD,
this will lead to the imposition of penalties on the Company by government agencies, such as suspending
work visa applications and removing sponsorship for non-Saudi workers, which may have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.8 Risks related to natural disasters

Any damage from natural disasters affecting the Company’s facilities such as floods, fires, earthquakes and
other natural events for which there is no sufficient insurance coverage on commercially reasonable terms
or at all (unless the Company incurs disproportionately significant costs) may disrupt and adversely affect
the Company’s operations. Such events may also severely affect the Company’s ability to undertake its
operations and discharge its contractual obligations. As at the date of this Base Prospectus, the Company
has not obtained insurance against natural disasters. In the event that natural disasters occur and damage the
Company'’s facilities and assets, this may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results
of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.9 Risks related to potential legal zakat entitlements and additional claims

The Company submitted its zakat and tax returns to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) for all
years within the specified time since its establishment through 2022G, and it pays the amounts due on an
annual basis. The Company has not, as of the date of this Base Prospectus, received any zakat assessments
from ZATCA since its incorporation, and there are no zakat or tax dues, discrepancies or disputes applicable
to the Company as at the date of this Base Prospectus Documents. The balance of the Zakat provision
amounted to SAR 1,698,141 as at 31 December 2021G, SAR 2,267,925 as at 31 December 2022G and SAR
2,865,645 as at 31 December 2023G.

The Company cannot predict whether ZATCA will accept its zakat estimates for all previous financial years
since its incorporation until the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2023G, or will require it to
pay any future zakat differences for these years. ZATCA may impose substantial zakat differences on the
Company that exceed the value of what the Company paid as zakat in its favor, in addition to fines for delays
in paying these amounts. In the event that such claims arise, the Company will pay these claims, which
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.
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1.1.10 Risks related to the protection of trademarks and property rights

The Company’s ability to market its products and develop its business depends on the use of its name, logo
and trademarks, which support its business and competitive position and give it a clear distinction in the
market among customers. Whilst the Company has applied to the Saudi Authority for Intellectual Property
(SAIP) for the registration of its trademarks, the Company has not, as of the date of this Base Prospectus,
received a formal trademark registration certificate and the trademark has not been published in the Official
Gazette. If the SAIP does not issue the trademark registration or if, before or following registration, there
is any use of the Company’s trademark by third parties, this may affect the Company’s reputation. Whilst
lawsuits and claims will be filed before the competent courts to protect these rights, any such actions will
involve costs and are time consuming, requiring significant effort on the part of the management to pursue
such actions. In the event that the Company fails to protect its trademarks effectively or pursuing similar
trademarks when required for its business, this will negatively affect their value, which may have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

111 Risks related to reliance on external advisors

The Company’s operations involve providing supply, installation and connection services, in addition to
construction work, in the telecommunications, electricity and water sectors. The Company is a party to
numerous contracts with external engineering consultants regarding the implementation of projects, where
the work is approved upon completion of its implementation by one of such consultants. The external
engineers review the works to be delivered as agreed upon. Accordingly, in the event that the consultants are
unable to perform their roles as required or on time and at the specified cost, the Company may be exposed
to lawsuits and fines in cases of delayed delivery of projects, which will lead to failure or non-implementation
of projects and high costs. This will negatively reflect on the Company’s reputation and lead to delaying the
realization of its revenues from these projects or not achieving them at all, which may have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1112 Risks related to the concentration of the Company’s revenues

The Company’s revenues are mainly dependent on network installation services (comprising the integration
and implementation of communication networks), which accounted for 29.13%, 17.27% and 22% of total
revenues as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, respectively, while
revenues from electrical installation and connection services (comprising comprehensive electrical services
that encompass designing, engineering, procuring, supplying and installing electrical systems) accounted for
70.87%, 82.73% and 78% of total revenues as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December
2023G, respectively. In the event that the Company is unable to diversify its service offering to add new
services or develop future plans for expansion in other sectors, this may have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1113 Risks related to customer concentration

The Company’s revenues are generated from a number of major customers, all of which are institutions and
companies. Of such customers, the largest 4 major customers of the Company (being Saudi Electric Company,
Al Fahad Trading Industry and Contracting Company, Saudi Telecom Company and Tawal) constituted
approximately 87.2%, 96.2% and 81.0% of the Company’s total revenues for the years ended 31 December
2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2023G,
the revenue generated from each of Saudi Electric Company, Al Fahad Trading Industry and Contracting
Company, Saudi Telecom Company and Tawal accounted for 51.78%, 15.91%, 2.83% and 14.25% of the
Company’s overall revenues. Accordingly, in the event of the collapse or severance of the relationship with
one or a group of such major customers, and the Company’s failure to establish the necessary relationships
with new customers, this may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation,
financial condition and prospects.

1114 Risks related to adequacy of insurance coverage

The Company maintains various types of insurance policies to cover its business and assets, such as
mandatory insurance for vehicles and medical insurance for employees. However, there can be no assurance
that the Company has all the necessary insurance policies in place for its business and assets, or that any
policies it does have contain sufficient coverage in all cases. In addition, such policies may not cover all
risks that the Company may be exposed to, such as risks resulting from natural disasters. It is also possible
that events will occur in the future against which the Company is not insured in a way that covers potential
losses, or at all. There can be no assurance that the Company’s insurance contracts will remain available on
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commercially acceptable terms or will remain available at all. As a result of changing market conditions,
insurance premiums and deductibles in some insurance policies can increase significantly in some cases.
Any of these events or circumstances or the occurrence of an event that is not insured for the Company
and causes material damage to the Company’s assets may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.15 Risks related to currency fluctuations

The Company is exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates with respect to its liabilities and
expenses that are denominated in a currency other than the currency of the Kingdom (being Saudi Riyals),
and as part of the policy of the Kingdom, the Saudi Riyal, as at the date of this Base Prospectus, is pegged
to the US dollar at an exchange rate of 3.75 Saudi Riyals for 1 US dollar. However, there can be no assurance
as to the stability of the exchange rate of the Saudi Riyal against the US dollar, and fluctuations in the value
of the Saudi Riyal against foreign currencies (including the US dollar) used by the Company may lead to
an increase in expenses, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operation, financial condition and prospects.

1116  Risks related to the competitive environment

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment, and there can be no assurance that the Company
will continue to be able to compete effectively with other companies in the market. In addition, the pricing
policies of the Company’s competitors greatly affect its financial performance, and the Company may be
unable to compete with any such competitor companies, which may lead to a decrease in the Company’s
share in the market. This may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation,
financial condition and prospects.

1117  Risks related to working capital management

In the course of the Company’s operations, it may experience working capital risk in the context of it being
unable to meet its obligations related to financial liabilities as they become due. The Company’s current ratio
of current assets to current liabilities was 3.10 times, 2.57 times and 2.72 times as at 31 December 2021G, 31
December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, respectively. The Company’s working capital was approximately
SAR 72,732,537, SAR 82,754,965 and SAR 102,145,326 as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and
31 December 2023G, respectively. The Company’s financial liabilities consist of bank overdrafts, Murabaha
transactions, trade payables, accounts receivable and the zakat provision. The Company may not be able to
fulfill its obligations on maturity dates. Liquidity risks may also result from the inability of the Company to
sell financial assets quickly and at an amount close to their fair value in instances where it requires immediate
liguidity. Any of these factors may, alone or in combination, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1118 Risks related to lack of experience in managing listed joint-stock companies

The success of the Company depends on the ability of its management to take correct and appropriate
decisions in relation to its business and activities. The Company’s senior executives in the Company have
limited experience in managing a listed joint-stock company and complying with the laws and regulations
to which it is subject. Since the Company’s admission to the Nomu segment of the Saudi Stock Exchange,
senior executives have had to undertake additional efforts to ensure the Company’s ongoing compliance
with the Capital Market Law, its Implementing Regulations and related disclosure requirements. Going
forward, these efforts may reduce the time that senior executives devote to managing the day-to-day
operations of the Company which, in turn, may affect the Company’s business results. In addition, in the
event that the Company’s management makes materially incorrect decisions with regard to its ongoing
regulatory compliance (including compliance with applicable laws, regulations and disclosure requirements),
this will expose the Company to penalties and statutory fines that may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.19  Risks related to investigations, lawsuits and fines against the Company, and
its Directors, senior executives and/or shareholders

The Company is not a party to any lawsuit as a plaintiff or defendant as at the date of this Base Prospectus.
However, the Company may be involved in lawsuits in the future. Any negative outcome regarding litigation
and regulatory actions may negatively impact the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations
and future prospects. The Company cannot predict, with any accuracy, the quantum of the costs of any
lawsuits or judicial procedures which it may file or which may be initiated against it in the future, or the final
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results of those lawsuits or judgments issued therein and the related damages and penalties, and the negative
impact on the Company’s reputation. These lawsuits may include, but are not limited to: Zakat and tax issues
and errors and complaints that result from negligence or fraud on the part of individuals or institutions.
Therefore, any negative outcome of such cases may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects. In addition, as a company listed on the Nomu
Market of Tadawul, the Company and its Directors, senior executives and shareholders are subject to ongoing
compliance with the Capital Market Law, its Implementing Regulations and related disclosure requirements.
Any breach of these applicable laws and regulations by such persons could adversely affect the reputation
of the Company, which could have an adverse impact on the reputation of the Company, thereby having a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

On 9 December 2024G, the Capital Market Authority issued a resolution to refer two investors to the Public
Prosecution on suspicion of violating Article (49) of the Capital Market Law and Article (7) of the Market
Conduct Regulations. These violations were committed by these investors through making a false statement
in the registration document for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Parallel Market of Tadawul. The
statement pertained to the actual ownership percentage available to the public, resulting in a misleading
and incorrect impression regarding the fulfillment of the liquidity requirements mentioned in the Company’s
share registration document. This announcement by the Capital Market Authority, and any subsequent
action taken by the Public Prosecution against the individuals involved, could have an adverse impact on
the Company’s reputation, thereby having a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects.

Among the risks to be considered as well is the possibility that a member of the Board of Directors or the
Senior Executives of the Company is among the mentioned investors, which could lead to a potential conflict
of interest that may affect the decisions made and the interests of other parties.

11.20 Risks related to non-compliance with the terms and pledges of credit
facilities

The Company has traditionally entered into Shariah compliant credit facilities with banks and local financing
companies from time to time to help finance its business and its operations. The below table shows a summary
of the amounts outstanding under the Company’s existing credit facilities and financing contracts as at 31
December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G:

Table 7: Outstanding amounts under financings-31 December 2021G (SAR)

Outstanding amounts under financings - 31 December 2021G (SAR)

Credit
facilities

Average interest rate’
Cost of financing
Funding type
Term of the agreement
Credit limit in riyals
Murabaha balance at the begin-
ning of the year, including future
financing costs
Amount added during the year
in riyals
Amounts paid in riyals
Costs of future funding
Amounts outstanding in riyals
do not include costs of future
funding and matching the bal-
ance in the financial position

Murabaha - Finar_wcing
Banks 6% 4,338,677 project Annual 109,000,000 28,884,314 66,918,631 (53,704,162)  (4,538,591) 37,560,192
materials
Murabaha Machinery Long
- financing 10% 765,910 and Term 29,800,000 3,074,951 10,687,523 (8,616,270) (989,175) 4,175,029
companies equipment

Source: Financial Statements
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Table 8: Outstanding amounts under financings - 31 December 2022G (SAR)

Outstanding amounts under financings - 31 December 2022G (SAR)
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Murabaha - Financing
Banks 6% 5,236,126 project Annual 109,000,000 42,098,783 75,898,519 74,145,234 3,313,159 40,888,908
materials

Source: Financial Statements

Table 9: Outstanding amounts under financings - 31 December 2023G (SAR)

Outstanding amounts under financings - 31 December 2022G (SAR)

Funding type
position

w
2
=
o)

(]
&8
£
T

[

o
O

Average interest rate’
Cost of financing
Term of the agreement
Credit limit in riyals
Murabaha balance at the beginning
of the year, including future financing
costs
Amounts paid in riyals
Costs of future funding
Amounts outstanding in riyals do not
include costs of future funding and
matching the balance in the financial

Amount added during the year in riyals

Muéaatr:il;a- 12.55% 8,663,576 Guarantee 6 months 84,059,000 43,852,067 115,726,974 117,569,748 1,913,364 40,095,927
Murabaha 19

- financing  22.50% 434,441 Guarantee months 40,000,000 o} 14,709,176 2,090,377 2,422,804 10,195,995
companies

The interest on the outstanding credit facilities for the Company has been calculated for the financial years ending on December
31, 2021G, December 31, 2022G, and December 31, 2023G, based on the applicable LIBOR plus the fixed margin. The average
interest rates provided in the tables above represent the total average interest (LIBOR plus margin) paid during the respective
period to the relevant lender type (whether a bank or a finance company).

There can be no assurance that the Company will continue to generate the cash flows necessary to discharge
its payment obligations under its outstanding financings. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the
Company will not breaches any of the other obligations or covenants contained in such financings. Any of
these factors may cause banks and finance companies with which the Company has contracted to request
the immediate payment of the relevant financing, call the guarantees procured by the Company and enforce
any security interests applicable to such financings. In this case, the Company may not be able to obtain
sufficient alternative financing sources to fund its business and operations. Any of these factors may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.21 Risks related to the rise in financing expenses

The Company’s operating expenses may increase as a result of certain factors, including anincrease in financing
costs associated with the credit facilities obtained by the Company, which amounted to SAR 4,338,677,
SAR 5,206,431 and SAR 9,098,016 as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G,
respectively. Any further increases in financing costs will result in an increase in the operating expenses of
the Company, which will lead to a decrease in its cash flows and profit margins which, in turn, may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.
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1.1.22 Risks related to operating systems and information technology

The Company relies on information technology systems to manage its business and facilities, which exposes
the Company to the risks of failure of these systems, such as system failure, failure of protection systems,
penetration of the Company’s systems, electronic viruses, natural disasters, fires, communication errors, or
the unavailability of the skilled labor required to operate and manage these systems. If the Company fails
to maintain and develop technical systems information, or if there are any malfunctions in its functions or a
major failure or repeated failure occurs, this may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.23 Risks related to contracts with suppliers

The Company relies on its relationships with its suppliers for the purposes of carrying on its business. The
Company’s major suppliers represented 34.21%, 29.10% and 17.35% of the total cost of revenue as at and
for the years ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, respectively. In the
event that the Company or the suppliers with which it contracts are unable to abide by the terms of those
contracts, or in the event of any future disputes, or if the Company fails to maintain its relationship with
its main suppliers, such factors may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.24 Risks related to government fees applicable to non-Saudi employees

The government approved a number of decisions aimed at conducting comprehensive reforms to the labor
market in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, which included the approval of additional fees payable by companies
for each non-Saudi employee working for a Saudi entity; as of 01/01/2018G, such fees were payable at a rate of
four hundred (400) Saudi riyals per month for each non-Saudi employee, which fees increased to six hundred
(600) Saudi riyals and then eight hundred (800) Saudi riyals per month in 2019G and 2020G, respectively.
Such continued increases in government fees payable by the Company in respect of its non-Saudi employees
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.

In addition, the government also introduced fees for issuing and renewing residency permits for dependents
of non-Saudi employees. Such fees have increased in recent years and, accordingly, further increases in the
fees for issuing and recognizing residency permits that non-Saudi employees will bear on behalf of their
family may lead to an increase in the cost of living for such employees, which may lead them to work in
countries other than the Kingdom with lower cost of living. If this were to happen, the Company will face
difficulty in maintaining its non-Saudi employees, which may force it to bear some or all of these costs for
non-Saudi employees, either directly or indirectly by raising the wages of its non-Saudi employees, which
will lead to an increase in the Company’s costs, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.25 Risks related to dependence on non-Saudi employees

The percentage of non-Saudi employees of the Company was approximately 82.2%, 81.9% and 83.15% of the
total employees in the Company as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G,
respectively. If the Company is unable to maintain its non-Saudi employees or find replacements for them
with the same required skills and experience should they leave the Company, or in the event of any change
in the policies, regulations, and laws of the MHRSD which would result in an increase in the percentage of
Saudization of the private sector, this would make it difficult for the Company to maintain its staff of non-
Saudi workers. This could cause an increase in the financial cost to the Company, which may have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.26 Risks related to sudden failures in the Company’s projects

Any sudden interruptions in the Company’s projects, whether resulting from technical failures in the heavy
equipment and machinery used in construction operations, a shortage or interruption in the components
necessary for the continuation of the work of such heavy equipment and machinery or for any other reasons
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.
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1.1.27 Risks related to consumer spending due to poor economic conditions

Fluctuations in economic conditions may affect, among other things, the ability of consumers to borrow,
interest rates, unemployment rates, salary levels, tax levels (including VAT, which was increased from 5%
to 15% starting 1 July 2020G), water and electricity costs and the cancellation of the Saudi government’s
subsidies - whether fully or partially - for some items. Any of these factors may, in turn, adversely affect the
level of income available for spending and the levels of consumer spending (including discretional spending
on various products), government spending and fiscal policies. The majority of the Company’s contracts are
made with semi-governmental agencies and the private sector. Government spending is historically linked to
oil and gas prices and petroleum derivatives, and thus any change in oil prices and consumer behavior will
adversely affect the Company’s services. The success of the Company’s business also depends on its ability
to continue to develop its services and its speed in keeping up with changes in the market. Any decline in
the number of consumers, or the levels of consumer spending, may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.28 Risks related to COVID-19 and other communicable diseases

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a negative impact on the Kingdom’s economy and the world economy
in general. The pandemic began to spread in late December 2019G, starting in China and spreading all
over the world. In response to this, resolutions were issued by the relevant authorities in the Kingdom to
introduce precautions and preventive measures to face and curb the spread of the pandemic. Such measures
included, but were not limited to, the following: (i) partial or full curfews in some of the Kingdom’s cities
and governorates; (ii) the closure of shopping centres and retail shops; (iii) a decrease of working hours in
certain sectors and remote working requirements; (iv) the suspension of all domestic flights and restrictions
in the movements of buses, cars, and trains; (v) refusal of, and restrictions on, entry into the Kingdom; and
(vi) closure of commercial complexes and all businesses therein, save for foodstuff stores and pharmacies.
Aside from the health measures taken by the relevant authorities in the Kingdom to contain the spread of
the pandemic, financial support was also provided to citizens in the form of family and sick leave payments,
an increase in unemployment compensations and tax payment holidays. Separate measures were also
introduced to protect the financial wellbeing of companies in the Kingdom.

Given the inability to accurately predict the duration of the current pandemic or any other pandemic which
may arise in connection with any communicable disease in the Middle East or any other region in the future,
it is not clear whether there may be a reimposition of a full or partial lockdown in some of the Kingdom’s
cities in the future. A reintroduction of such measures would negatively affect the Kingdom’s economy in
general. It is inherently difficult to predict the impact of COVID-19 or any future pandemic on the Company’s
future activity. The reimposition of a full or partial curfew in the Kingdom’s cities, amongst other measures,
may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.

1.1.29 Risks related to the availability of raw materials and the fluctuation of their
prices

The Company’s revenues and profits depend, to some extent, on the prevailing prices of commodities and
raw materials, as the costs of materials used in the Company’s projects amounted to 64.87%, 51% and 40.14%
of the total cost of revenue as at and for the years ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31
December 2023G, respectively, and the prices of these commodities depend on global markets and global
supply and demand considerations. The Company will not be able to control the factors that affect the prices
of basic commodities, such as increases in energy prices, especially with regard to the prices of gasoline
and diesel needed to operate the equipment and vehicles of the Company, in addition to high prices of
raw materials, such as the price of cement and iron. Actual changes in supply and demand, market fears,
speculation by market traders, and international economic and political factors can affect prices and the
accuracy of assumptions and/or future prospects of the Company, and substantial increases may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.30 Risks related to the machinery and equipment used

The Company uses machinery and equipment in the course of its operations which are critical to the carrying
out of its business. The depreciation rate of such machinery and equipment is 10% annually, and the annual
depreciation percentage of the total asset value of machinery and equipment was 5.27%, 6.94% and 5.21%
as at 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, respectively. In the event that the
Company encounters any sudden disruption in the proper functioning of these machines and equipment,
the Company may need specialized technicians or spare parts that are not available in its stock. As such,
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any breakdown or any unexpected maintenance that is required to the main machines or equipment would
disrupt the Company’s business and weaken its ability to provide services on an ongoing basis or may impact
the quality of services the Company is required to offer under its contracts with its customers. The occurrence
of any such material interruptions may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.31 Risks related to climatic conditions

Climate changes such as high temperatures, changes in precipitation and volatile weather patterns may lead
to the Company incurring significant costs resulting from, among other things, increased costs associated
with raw materials that the Company imports, such as transportation costs or storage for additional periods
in ports. In addition, climate conditions may lead to the disruption of the Company’s project completion
operations for any reasons related to climate conditions, or to delay the delivery of projects according to the
schedule of its customers, especially in areas outside Riyadh. Such factors may also affect the Company’s
ability to undertake its operations, thus reducing its operational results. Any such factors, alone or in
combination, may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial
condition and prospects.

1.1.32 Risks related to the Saudi Ports Authority’s decision to raise its fees

With effect from 1 January 2021G, the Saudi Ports Authority increase fees it charges passengers and ships
that benefit from its services. Such fees were increased for container ships that are offloaded by specialized
container cranes from SAR1,500 to SAR 6,300 (with effect from 1 January 2021G) for each crane per hour or
partial hour, representing an increase in fees of 320%. The port entry fees amounted to SAR 100 for one visit
to any ship, and SAR 100 for the departure fee. Whilst the Company does not currently import raw materials
from abroad, in the event that the Company is required to do so in the future, such increases in fees by the
Saudi Ports Authority will be reflected in the increase in the costs of raw materials imported from outside the
Kingdom, and thus an increase in production costs for the Company, may have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.33 Risks related to changing the mechanism for calculating zakat

ZATCA issued circular no. (1438/16/6768), dated 05/03/1438H (corresponding to 5 December 2016G) which
requires Saudi companies listed on the capital market to calculate income and zakat based on shareholders’
nationalities and actual ownership among Saudi, Gulf and other citizens (based on the information reflected
in the “Tadawulati” system at the end of the prior year). Prior to the issuance of the circular, companies listed
on the capital market were generally subject to zakat or tax based on the ownership of their founders as
per the Company’s articles of association. The circular was set to be applied in the year ending 31 December
2016 and subsequent years. However, ZATCA issued its letter no. (1438/16/12097) dated 19/04/1438H
(corresponding to 17 January 2017G) requiring postponement of the coming into force of the circular to
the year ending on 31 December 2017. Such postponement has continued in subsequent years. Until ZATCA
issues implementing directives, its execution including the final requirements to be fulfilled remain unclear.
The Company has neither assessed the potential financial impact of this circular, nor taken any steps to
guarantee compliance therewith. The Company is a listed joint stock company owned by Saudi shareholders
and if the financial impact of this circular is considerable and the Company incurs additional costs to take the
steps necessary for guaranteeing compliance with the circular, this could have may have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.34 Risks related to Executives or Directors conducting business competing
with the Company’s business

As at the date of this Base Prospectus, none of the Directors or Senior Executives of the Company is a party to
any agreement, arrangement or understanding under which they are subject to any obligation that prevents
them from competing with the Company in relation to its business. In the event that any of the Directors or
Senior Executives fails to comply with the requirements of continuous disclosure, this will have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, financial position and future prospects.

Some of the Company’s Directors or Senior Executives may compete with the Company, either through their
membership on boards of directors or through ownership in businesses that fall within the framework of the
Company’s business if these activities are similar to the Company’s business or compete with it, directly or
indirectly. In the event of a conflict of interest between the Company’s business on the one hand and the
work of the Directors or Senior Executives on the other hand, this may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.
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11.35 Risks related to lease contracts

The Company has concluded a number of contracts and agreements. These contracts include lease contracts
for warehouses and administrative buildings in the form of separate contracts, all of which are automatically
renewed annually. The Company’s failure to comply with its contractual agreements and ensure its continuity
under the same current conditions or special preferential terms for leased real estate will expose it to the
loss of those sites, which will force it to transfer its assets to another location, in addition to exposing the
Company to the risk of the inability or unwillingness of the contracting parties to fulfill their contractual
obligations. The Company cannot give any assurance that these parties will fulfill the aspirations of the
Company. In the event that the Company or their contracting parties are unable to abide by the terms of
those contracts, or in the event of any future disputes or lawsuits leading to the Company losing the same,
this may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition
and prospects.

Furthermore, pursuant to Council of Ministers issued Resolution No. 292 dated 16/05/1438H, a lease contract
that is not registered in the electronic network for rental services shall be deemed to be null and void with
no administrative and judicial effect. Certain of the Company’s lease contracts are not in accordance with
the electronic form and were not registered in the electronic network, which may lead to the imposition of a
fines. In addition, in the event that a dispute arises between the Company and any of the lessors regarding
these lease contracts, such dispute will not be considered by the Saudi courts and, therefore, the Company,
as a plaintiff, may not be able to protect its rights in the event that any of the lessors breach their contractual
obligations, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation,
financial condition and prospects.

11.36 Risks related to the inability to develop the Company’s current services and
introduce new ones

The Company'’s ability to develop and introduce new services in a timely manner is crucial for the Company to
develop its business and remain competitive. The development of new services usually requires a long-term
strategic outlook regarding market trends, developing new designs and programs and implementing the
same. Given that such growth in services typically also requires significant capital investment, it is imperative
for the Company to quickly adapt to changing market conditions and customer requirements. If the Company
cannot anticipate technical developments or changes in sector standards or customer requirements or
respond to them accordingly on an effective basis in terms of cost and in a timely manner, or if the Company
delays significantly in developing or introducing new services that meet customer satisfaction, this may have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.1.37 Risks related to the presence of a minimum number of Directors and the
consequences in the event of the resignation of a Director

The Company relies on its Board of Directors to manage the Company’s business due to the practical
experience that they possess. The Company is currently complying with the requirements of Article 16.3
of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, which stipulates that the
number of independent directors shall not be less than two members or one-third of the members of the
Board, whichever is greater. However, in the event that the Company does not achieve this, and despite the
fact that the Corporate Governance Regulations are considered guidance for companies listed on the Nomu
Market as at the date of this Base Prospectus, if they are applied in a mandatory manner, the Company will be
obliged to apply all the compulsory articles thereof, including the commitment to the number of independent
directors on the Company’s Board. In the event that it does not comply with the same in the future, it will be
subject to penalties by the Capital Market Authority, may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

11.38 Risks related to impact of cybersecurity attacks on security and reliability
of technology systems

The Company depends heavily on technologies, systems and networks that are managed by the Company
or third-party service and equipment vendors to conduct their business and operations. Cybersecurity risks
and threats to such systems continue to grow in sophisticated ways and may be increasingly difficult to
anticipate, detect, prevent or mitigate. If any of the security systems used by the Company for detecting
and protecting against cybersecurity threats proves to be insufficient, the Company’s business and financial
systems could be compromised, confidential or proprietary information in the Company possession could
be altered, lost or stolen, or the Company (or its customers’) business operations or safety procedures
could be disrupted, degraded or damaged. A cybersecurity breach of failure could also potentially result
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in injury (financial, operational or otherwise) to people, loss of control of, or damage to, the Company (or
its customers’) assets, harm to the environment, reputational damage, breaches of laws or regulations,
litigation and other legal liabilities. In addition, the Company may incur significant costs to prevent, respond
to or mitigate cybersecurity risks or events and to defend against any investigations, litigation or other
proceedings that may follow such events. Any failure or breach of the Company’s systems could materially
adversely impact the Company’s reputation, business, financial position, results of operation and cash flows,
as well as the Company’s ability to service its indebtedness.

1.2 Risks Related to the Market and the Sector in which the Company
Operates

1.2.1 Risks Related to General Economic Conditions

General economic conditions may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects. Declines in consumer confidence and/or consumer spending,
changes in unemployment, significant inflationary or deflationary changes or disruptive regulatory or
geopolitical events, including the ongoing conflicts in other parts of the world, could contribute to increased
volatility and diminished expectations for the economy, including the market for the Company’s services,
and lead to demand or cost pressures that could negatively and adversely impact the Company’s business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects. The Saudi economy may be adversely affected
by tightening global economic conditions and external shocks, including financial market volatility, trade
disruptions and protectionist trade policies or threats thereof. In particular, a global shift in policies with
lower global growth due to reduced trade, migration and cross-border investment flows, could slow non-oil
growth in the Kingdom. These conditions could affect the Company’s business. Examples of such conditions
could include:

* a general or prolonged decline in, or shocks to, regional or broader macro-economies;
¢ regulatory changes that could impact the markets in which the Company operates; and

¢ deflationary economic pressures, which could hinder the Company’s ability to operate profitably
in view of the challenges inherent in making corresponding deflationary adjustments to its cost
structure.

Spending by the Company’s customer base can also be impacted by conditions in capital markets which may
be impacted by the general economic conditions. Limitations on the availability of capital or higher costs of
capital may cause companies to make additional reductions to their spending on exploration, development
or production, even if oil and natural gas prices increase.

The nature of these types of risks makes them unpredictable and difficult to plan for or otherwise mitigate,
compounding their potential impact on the Company’s business, results of operations, financial condition
and prospects.

1.2.2 Risks related to the economic performance of the Kingdom

The expected future performance of the Company depends on a number of factors related to the economic
conditions in the Kingdom in general, including, but not limited to, inflation factors, GDP growth and per
capita income levels. The Kingdom’s economy depends mainly on oil and petroleum industries, which still
contribute a large share of the Kingdom’s gross domestic product. Accordingly, any unfavorable fluctuations
that occur in oil prices will have a direct and substantial impact on the plans and development of the
country’s economy and on government spending, which would negatively impact the Company’s financial
performance, given its work within the Kingdom’s economic system and its impact on government spending
rates. For example, the government may reduce the volume of costs and expenses related to infrastructure
projects, which may lead to a reversal or cancellation of current and future contracts, which would have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial results, and future prospects.

The continued growth of the Kingdom’s economy also depends on several other factors, including continued
population growth and investments of the public and private sectors in the infrastructure. Therefore, any
negative change in any of these factors will have a significant impact on the economy, which may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.
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1.2.3 Risks related to political and economic instability in the Middle East

The Company’s financial performance is subject to the Kingdom’s prevalent economic and political landscape
circumstances as well as international macroeconomic conditions which affect the Kingdom’s economy. The
oil sector remains the largest contributor to the Kingdom’s gross domestic product. As such, volatility or a
decline in oil prices may negatively affect the Kingdom’s economy.

Moreover, several Middle Eastern countries are presently suffering from political and security unrest. There
is no guarantee that the political, security, and economic circumstances of these countries or any other
countries will not have a negative impact on, amongst other things, the Kingdom’s economy, direct foreign
investment, or capital markets in the Kingdom generally. In addition, any major unexpected changes in the
political, economic, or legal environment in the Kingdom and/or any other Middle Eastern countries, including
but not limited to: (i) normal fluctuations in markets; (ii) economic recession; (iii) high unemployment rates;
and (iv) technological transformations, could alone, or cumulatively, have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.2.4 Risks related to legislative and regulatory changes in the Kingdom may
adversely affect the Company’s operations

The Company’s business is subject to laws, implementing regulations, rules, general instructions, and circulars
applicable in the Kingdom. As with other companies operating in the Kingdom, the Company is subject to
companies laws, labour laws, laws of municipalities and civil defense, laws and regulations issued by the
Capital Market Authority, laws issued by Ministry of Municipal, Rural Affairs and Housing, laws and circulars
issued by ZATCA and various other laws that may be changed or renewed by the respective authorities.
In addition, new laws may be issued by the relevant authorities from time to time. As a result, laws and
regulations that apply to the Company may change from time to time. It is noteworthy that regulatory
changes resulting from political, economic, technological, and environmental factors result in unanticipated
costs for the Company and affect its operations and business development. New laws or regulations could
impose additional requirements, taxes or fees which are difficult or costly to comply with. In the event of any
change in any of the laws and regulations applicable to the Company’s activity or breach or misapplication
thereof by the Company’s management or employees, it may become subject to fines or penalties and/
or suffer from harm to its reputation. Any or all of the above consequences could decrease the Company’s
competitiveness and demand for its products and services which, in turn, could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.2.5 Risks related to the application of the Corporate Governance Regulations

Save for certain provisions, the Authosity’s Corporate Governance Regulations constitute guidance only
for companies listed on the Nomu Market as at the date of this Base Prospectus. However, if they are
compulsorily applied, the success of the Company in properly applying governance depends on the extent
to which the Board, its committees, management and employees of the Company understand these rules
and procedures. Therefore, if the Corporate Governance Regulations are compulsorily applied to companies
listed on the Nomu Market, the Company will be required to apply all mandatory articles thereof, including
compliance with the number of independent board members. In the event that it does not comply with such
requirements, it will be subject to fines by the Capital Market Authority, or if the Company appoints new
independent members who lack experience and knowledge in managing a listed Company, these matters
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospects.

1.2.6 Risks related to value added tax

The Kingdom issued the Value Added Tax Law, which was enacted on 01 January 2018G. This law imposes
a value-added tax of 5% on a number of products and services, according to the provisions of the Law. The
Kingdom’s government has decided to increase the VAT rate from 5% to 15% as of July 2020G. Therefore,
entities must be aware of the nature of VAT, its method of application and how it is calculated. They will
also have to submit their own reports to the relevant government agencies. Accordingly, the Company must
adapt to the changes resulting from the application of the value -added tax, which includes the collection
and delivery thereof, and the impact of applying the Value Added Tax Law to the Company’s business. There
are currently no claims or objections related to VAT. The implementation of VAT in the Kingdom has led to
an increase in the prices of most goods and services, including the Company’s products. Accordingly, if the
Company passes on the VAT in full to the customer, the prices of its services will increase, which would lead
to a decrease in demand for them. Therefore, the Company’s operations and profits would be adversely
affected. If the Company is unable to pass on the VAT, in whole or in part, to the customer due to competition
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or other factors, it will be forced to bear the amount of the tax not collected from the customer, which
would adversely affect the Company’s profits and results of operations. This is because an increase in VAT
will negatively affect the purchasing power of the consumer, which would adversely affect the Company’s
revenue growth rates. Any violation or incorrect application of the VAT Law by the Company’s management
will expose it to fines or penalties or lead to damage to its reputation, which will also increase operating costs
and expenses and can affect the Company’s competitive position and the level of demand for its products.
These matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial
condition and prospects.

1.2.7 Risks related to the seasonality of the Company’s business

The Company’s sector, like other sectors, is affected by fluctuations in supply and demand in the market,
and by virtue of the nature of the Company’s activity, by the period of Ramadan, holidays and Hajj, during
which the Company’s business decreases. Therefore, there is no guarantee that the volume of revenues will
be stable or sustainable in light of the Company’s contractual relationships with these customers. The loss
of any major customer of the Company, or a decrease in the volume of business with them, could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.2.8 Risks related to energy, electricity and water products

The Council of Ministers issued Resolution No. 95, dated 17/03/1437H (corresponding to 28/12/2015G),
raising the prices of energy products, the electricity consumption tariff, and the price for water and sanitation
services for the residential, commercial and industrial sectors as part of the policies related to raising the
efficiency of government subsidies in the Kingdom.

The Ministry of Energy (formerly, Ministry of Energy, Industry and Mineral Resources) issued a statement
on 24/03/1439H (corresponding to 12/12/2017G) about the fiscal balance program plan, for example, to
reform the prices of energy products that are adjusted monthly according to the procedures for governing
the adjustment of prices of energy and water products, to be effective on 14/04/1439H (corresponding to
01/01/2018G).

Any interruption or reduction in supplies of these products, or any increase in their prices (noting that the
prices of energy products are adjusted monthly in accordance with the governance procedures for adjusting
the prices of energy and water products) would affect the Company’s operations, which would lead to a
reduction in its profit margins and thus could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.2.9 Risks related to the Company’s operations being subject to environmental,
health and safety laws and regulations

The Company’s operations are subject to a wide range of laws and regulations related to environmental
protection, health and safety in the Kingdom, which impose increasingly stringent standards that the
Company must adhere to on an ongoing basis. The costs of complying with these laws and regulations and
the resulting fines levied for non-compliance can be significant, and compliance with new and stringent
standards requires additional capital expenditures or changes in operating practices. Accidents related
to the environment, health and safety may arise. For example, the Company’s operations may result in a
number of polluting waste materials that, if not properly controlled and managed, or if left untreated or
properly managed, could lead to a risk of environmental pollution. Whilst the Company has experience in
such matters, it does not currently have detailed written policies or internal procedures for the safe handling
of hazardous waste. Non-compliance with any environmental laws and regulations can lead to the closure
of the Company’s industrial facilities and will expose the Company to violations, fines or penalties that may
be imposed by the regulatory authorities, such as withdrawing or suspending licenses. This would adversely
affect its operations as it limits the growth of its revenues or suspends its business or licenses, and affect its
ability to conduct its business, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results
of operation, financial condition and prospects.
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1.2.10 Risks related to the Company’s inability to implement the growth strategy
in the future

The Company regularly evaluates its expansion plans, such as its ability to obtain new projects. Such expansion
entails risks, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to obtain new financings or refinancing its
existing facilities to appropriate levels (and the consequential effects on the Company’s financial position),
the extent of the Company’s ability to execute several projects at the same time, its ability to efficiently
manage the expansion process and respond to the change and development of the industry in the sectors
in which it operates in an effective manner from a cost and time perspective, maintain relationships with
key customers, attracting managers and key workers for the Company and training them to implement new
projects and the Company’s ability to continue implementing its existing projects efficiently. In the event that
the Company is unable to exploit growth opportunities through expansion and implementation of the growth
strategy in the future or if it is unable to manage the expansion process as required, this could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects.

1.3 Risks Related to The Sukuk

1.3.1 Risks related to the suitability of investments

The Sukuk issued in Series under the Programme may not be a suitable investment for all investors.
Each potential Sukukholder in Sukuk must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

a. have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant
Sukuk, the merits and risks of investing in the Sukuk and the information contained, or
incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus;

b. have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of
its particular financial situation, an investment in the relevant Sukuk and the impact that such
investment may have on its overall investment portfolio;

c. have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in
the relevant Sukuk including where the currency of payment is different from the potential
Sukukholder’s currency;

d. understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Sukuk and be familiar with the behaviour of
any relevant indices and financial markets; and

e. be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, profit rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

The absence of any of the factors listed above may result in an investor entering into an investment that is
not suitable for their financial situation and investment goals which may lead to adverse results or results that
are contrary to their expectations or goals.

1.3.2 Risks related to legal investment considerations which may restrict certain
investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or the
review of such laws and regulations by certain governmental or regulatory authorities. Each potential investor
should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent: (i) the relevant Sukuk constitute
legal investments for it; (ii) the relevant Sukuk can be used as collateral for various types of financing; and
(iii) other restrictions apply to any purchase or pledge of any Sukuk by the investor.

Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the
appropriate treatment of the relevant Sukuk under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules and
regulations to avoid breaching any laws and regulations or the provisions of contracts or agreements to
which they are a party.
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1.3.3 Risks related to certain Sukukholders who may be exposed to currency
conversion risks due to the Sukuk being denominated in Saudi Arabian
Riyals

Payments to Sukukholders will be made in Saudi Arabian Riyals. If such an investor’s financial activities are
principally denominated in a currency other than Saudi Arabian Riyals, it will be subject to certain currency
conversion risks. These risks include: (i) the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including
changes due to the devaluation of the Saudi Arabian Riyal or revaluation of the investor’s currency); and
(ii) the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the investor’s currency may impose or modify exchange
controls which could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate.

In recent years, exchange rates between certain currencies have been volatile and such exchange rate
volatility may continue in the future. Any appreciation of an investor’s currency relative to the Saudi Arabian
Riyal would decrease such investor’s currency-equivalent value of the Periodic Distribution Amounts payable
in respect of the relevant Sukuk, such investor’s equivalent value of the applicable Sukuk Capital payable on
the relevant Sukuk, and such investor’s currency equivalent market value of such Sukuk. In addition, exchange
controls could adversely affect the availability of a specified foreign currency at the time of payment of
amounts on the relevant Sukuk. As a result, investors may receive less than expected, or no payment at all.

1.3.4 Risks related to trading and settlement

The Sukuk of any Series of issuance will be listed on Tadawul and deposited in Edaa, and as such the Sukuk
will be traded, cleared and settled in accordance with the procedures applicable to listed debt instruments.
However, there can be no assurance that there will be no interruption to, or errors in, trading, clearing or
settlement of the Sukuk. Moreover, the market value of the Sukuk may fluctuate. Consequently, any sale of
Sukuk by Sukukholders in any secondary market may be at a price that is higher or lower than the initial
offering price depending on many factors, including prevailing interest rates, the Issuer’s performance and
the market for similar securities or may not be possible at all.

The Arranger and Dealers will be under no obligation to provide pricing on, or make a market in, any Sukuk.
Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the liquidity of, or trading market for, the Sukuk and an investor
in the Sukuk must be prepared to hold the Sukuk for an indefinite period of time or until their maturity.

1.3.5 Risks related to Qualified Persons

Prospective Sukukholders should note that the Sukuk are being sold only to Qualified Persons and that only
Qualified Persons may be registered as Sukukholders. The Issuer shall not pay any additional amounts in
respect of any withholding required by law to any person who holds Sukuk but is not a Qualified Person.

Therefore, interested investors must ensure satisfaction of the requirements of being a Qualified Person to
avoid such withholding or any other legal or regulatory consequences.

1.3.6  Risks related to the Registry Agreement

The Registry Agreement is required to complete registration of Sukuk issued under the Programme with
Tadawul and such registration is necessary to facilitate trading of Sukuk by investors though Tadawul.

However, as at the Issue Date of the first Series of Sukuk to be issued under the Programme, the Registry
Agreement may not have been signed and registration of such Series of Sukuk with Tadawul may not have
occurred. As such, investors should be aware that trading of Sukuk of such first Series may not be possible
through Tadawul as of the relevant Issue Date. Under the Programme Agreement, the Issuer is required
to sign the Registry Agreement and procure registration of the Sukuk with Edaa and Tadawul as soon as
practicable and, in any event, no later than ten (10) Business Days after the Issue Date.

1.3.7 Risks related to the secondary market generally

There is no assurance that a secondary market for the Sukuk of any Series will develop after the Sukuk
are issued and listed on Tadawul or, if one does develop, that it will provide Sukukholders with liquidity
of investment or that it will continue for the life of the Sukuk. Any sale of Sukuk by Sukukholders in any
secondary market that may develop may be at a lower price than the original purchase price of the relevant
Sukuk for various reasons including the possibility that such market may not be liquid. In addition, Sukuk
may be sold only to Qualified Persons (as defined in the Conditions) and therefore any access to a secondary
market that may develop will be limited to Qualified Persons. Accordingly, Sukukholders may not be able
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to sell their Sukuk easily or at prices that will provide them with a return comparable to similar investments
that have a developed secondary market. llliquidity may have a material adverse effect on the market value
of the relevant Sukuk.

1.3.8 Risks related to the Sukuk may be subject to redemption at the option of
the Issuer

If so provided in the Applicable Final Terms, a Series may be redeemed early at the option of the Issuer. Any
such optional redemption feature of any Sukuk is likely to limit their market value. During any period when
the Issuer may redeem Sukuk, the market value of such Sukuk generally will not rise substantially above the
price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuer may elect to redeem Sukuk when the cost of financing is lower than the profit rate on the Sukuk.
At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective
profit rate as high as the profit rate on the Sukuk being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a
significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments
available at that time.

1.3.9 Risks related to the Sukuk may be redeemed prior to the Expiry Date for
tax reasons

If on the occasion of the next payment due under a Series, the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay any
additional amounts in respect of the Sukuk as provided for, or referred to, in Condition 9.16 (Taxation) or
referred to, in the Sukuk Documents as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations
of the Kingdom or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any
change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment
becomes effective on or after the date upon which agreement is reached to issue the relevant Series and
such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it, the Issuer may
redeem all, but not some only, of the outstanding Sukuk of such Series in accordance with Condition 12(c)
(Redemption for tax reasons). If the Sukuk are redeemed early, Sukukholders may only be able to reinvest
the redemption proceeds at an effective profit rate that is lower than the profit rate on the Sukuk.

1.3.10 Risks related to Change of law

The structure of each issue of Sukuk under the Programme is based on Saudi Arabian law in effect as at the
date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or
change to Saudi Arabian law or administrative practice after the date of this Base Prospectus which could
affect the legal status of the Sukuk and therefore affect the Issuer’s ability to make the relevant payments
due in respect of the Sukuk.

1.3.11 Risks related to the Sukuk which will cease to accrue profit from the due
date for redemption (if any)

Prospective Sukukholders are advised that each Series of Sukuk will cease to accrue profit from the due date
for redemption (if any) (following liquidation of the Mudaraba of the relevant Series). Consequently, should
payments owing to the Sukukholders on the due date for redemption (if any) be received by them after the
due date for any reason, no additional profit payment, late payment amount or other equivalent amount will
be payable in respect of such delay.

1.3.12 No late payment amount will be payable by the Issuer as a result of any delay
in payments due under the Sukuk or the Sukuk Documents, as applicable

Prospective Sukukholders should be aware that the Issuer is not required to pay any fee, penalty or any other
additional amount as a result of any delay in payment by the Issuer of any amount due under the Sukuk or
the Sukuk Documents, as applicable, whether to (or for the benefit of) the Sukukholders, to a charitable
organisation or to any other party.
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1.3.13 Risks associated with payments relating to the Sukuk

Prospective Sukukholders should note that the Periodic Distribution Amount or Partial Periodic Distribution
Amount (as defined in the Conditions) on the relevant payment date will be paid from the Mudaraba Profit.
Prospective Sukukholders should note that the Sukuk are being sold only to Qualified Persons and that only
Qualified Persons may be registered as Sukukholders. The Issuer shall not pay any additional amounts in
respect of any withholding required by law to any person who holds Sukuk but is not a Qualified Person.

1.3.14 Risks related to modification, waivers and substitution

The Conditions contain provisions for calling meetings of the Sukukholders of each Series of Sukuk to consider
matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Sukukholders,
including Sukukholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meetings and the Sukukholders who
voted in a manner contrary to the majority. The meeting provisions in the Sukuk Documents are subject in
their entirety to the relevant provisions of Saudi Arabian Companies Regulations as amended which will, in
case of a contradiction, prevail over the meeting provisions set out in the Sukuk Documents.

1.3.15 Risks related to compliance with the Kingdom’s bankruptcy and other laws
may affect the Issuer’s ability to perform its obligations under the Sukuk
Documents

A new bankruptcy law promulgated pursuant to Royal Decree No. M/50 dated 28/05/1439H (corresponding
to 14/02/2018G) (the “Bankruptcy Law”) created general bankruptcy procedures. If the Issuer’s insolvency
satisfied the eligibility conditions for such bankruptcy procedures, this could adversely affect the Issuer’s
ability to perform its obligations in respect of the Sukuk. There is little precedent to predict how claims by or
on behalf of the Sukukholders would be resolved in the event of the Issuer satisfying the eligibility conditions
of any such bankruptcy procedures and, accordingly, it is uncertain exactly how and to what extent the
Sukuk Documents would be enforced by a Saudi Arabian adjudicatory body in that situation and, therefore,
there can be no assurance that Sukukholders will receive repayment of their claims in full or at all in these
circumstances.

The Bankruptcy Law provides for various procedures with respect to preventive settlement, financial
restructuring and administrative liquidation and stipulates, among other things, that provisions for the
termination of the contract, which have been triggered as a result of certain bankruptcy proceedings, are
generally void with the exceptions provided in connection with government contracts. Additional exceptions
related to financing transactions will be determined by the SAMA and the Authority, after communication and
agreement with the Ministry of Commerce in the KSA. The bankruptcy Law also stipulates that a trustee may
terminate the contract if such termination: (a) is in the interest of the majority of the creditors concerned; (b)
will not harm the counterparty; and (c) is necessary to implement the relevant proposal.

The Implementing Regulations of the Bankruptcy Law issued pursuant to Ministerial Resolution No. 622
dated 24/12/1439H (corresponding to 04/09/2018G) and published in the Official Gazette on 30/12/1439H
(corresponding to 10/09/2018G) (the Executive Regulations of the Bankruptcy Law) stipulates the rules and
procedures of bankruptcy in the KSA. The Implementing Regulations of the Bankruptcy Law provide that
the debtor may (in connection with the preventive settlement) request the court to terminate any contract
to which such debtor is a party, by submitting a report issued by a registered custodian proving that such
termination: (a) is in the interest of the majority of the creditors concerned; (b) will not harm the counterparty.

1.3.16 Risks related to the Sukuk being unsecured obligations of the Issuer

The Sukuk of any Series are not debt obligations of the Issuer. The Sukuk represent undivided ownership
interest in the Sukuk Assets. Recourse to any party in respect of the Sukuk is limited to the Sukuk Assets,
including the payment obligations of that party, the proceeds of which are the sole source of payments on
the Sukuk. Upon the occurrence of the relevant Expiry Date or any Redemption Date (each as defined in
the Conditions), the sole recourse of each Sukukholder will be against the Issuer to perform its obligations
(including payment obligations) under the Sukuk Documents. The Sukukholders will otherwise have no other
recourse to any assets of the Issuer (to the extent that the Sukuk Assets have been exhausted), the Arranger,
the Dealers, the Payment Administrator, the Sukukholder’s Agent (to the extent that the Issuer has complied
with its obligations under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents) or any affiliate of any of the foregoing
entities in respect of any shortfall in the expected amounts.

There can be no assurance that the proceeds or the realisation of, or the enforcement with respect to, the
Sukuk Assets and the payment obligations will be sufficient to make all payments due in respect of the Sukuk.
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1.3.17 Risks related to the Pari Passu

The Issuer has existing obligations and may incur further obligations in the future (either through the
issuance of other debt instruments or otherwise). The Sukuk of any Series of Sukuk issuance will rank pari
passu with the unsecured financial obligations of the Issuer. Secured creditors will take priority in recovering
their exposure from the security granted to them. The existence of other financial obligations may reduce
the amount recoverable by Sukukholders where the Issuer has no sufficient assets to satisfy its financial
obligations or upon the occurrence of any other insolvency event. Accordingly, upon the occurrence of such
events, there may not be a sufficient amount to satisfy the amounts owing to the Sukukholders which would
result in the Sukukholders losing all or part of the amount invested in the Sukuk.

1.3.18 Risks related to the lack of third-party guarantees

Investors should be aware that no guarantee is or will be given in relation to any Series of Sukuk by the
shareholders of the Issuer or any other person.

1.3.19 Risks related to Murabaha Contracts

Taxation risk

The Issuer (in its capacity as Purchaser) will, pursuant to the terms of the Master Murabaha Agreement,
acquire from time to time Commodities from the Seller for subsequent on-sale, pursuant to the On-Sale
Agency Agreement, to independent purchasers in any commodity market. Upon purchasing, and prior to
on-selling, any Commodities, the Issuer will, for a limited period, assume the legal and beneficial title to the
relevant Commodities. It is possible that the acquisition of the Commodities, or the disposal thereof, may
be, or may by virtue of a change in law, become subject to increased taxation. To the extent that taxation
costs arise in respect of the Issuer’s acquisition, ownership or disposition of the Commodities, there may be
a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s ability to perform its obligations (including payment obligations)
under the Master Murabaha Agreement and, in turn, in respect of the Sukuk.

Price fluctuation risk

The price at which a commodity changes hands is determined as a function of its market as a whole, and
both under- and over-supply of a commodity can have significant implications for the price at which it is
traded. If, after the Purchaser has purchased any Commodities, the market for the Commodities becomes
over-supplied or flooded, the price at which the Commodities can be on-sold or traded subsequently may be
adversely affected. Similarly, if after the Purchaser has purchased the Commodities, additional governmental
or import or export licences become applicable to the market for the Commodities, the price at which the
Commodities can be sold or traded subsequently may also be adversely affected. The effect of such price
fluctuations may have a material adverse impact on the Purchaser’s ability to secure on-sale prices for the
Commodities and, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the Purchaser’s ability to perform its obligations
(including payment obligations) under the Master Murabaha Agreement and, in turn, the Issuer’s ability to
perform its obligations (including payment obligations) in respect of the relevant Series of Sukuk.

Commodity risk

Upon purchasing Commodities from the Seller and prior to on-selling the Commodities to independent
purchasers in any commodity market, the Purchaser will, for a limited period, assume the operational risks
associated with taking ownership of the Commodities. These risks include, without limitation:

a. that the Commodities may suffer damage of a nature that reduces their value whilst in storage
or during transit;

b. that the Purchaser’s storage or transfer of the Commodities may cause environmental
damage, such as pollution, leakage or contamination, which may breach environmental laws or
regulations making the Purchaser susceptible to legal or financial recourse;

c. that the Commodities may be liable to theft or vandalism;

d. and that the Commodities may be damaged by sabotage attacks, natural disasters, fire or other
catastrophic events that are beyond the control of the Purchaser.

To the extent that these risks are not mitigated, or fully covered, by any insurance taken out in respect of
the Commodities, the occurrence of any of these events may have a material adverse effect on the value
of the Commodities and the Purchaser’s ability to on-sell the Commodities which may, in turn, affect the
Purchaser’s ability to perform its obligations (including payment obligations) under the Master Murabaha
Agreement and, in turn, the Issuer’s ability to perform its obligations (including payment obligations) in
respect of the relevant Series of Sukuk.
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Supplier risk

From time to time, it will be necessary for the Purchaser to acquire and on-sell (at satisfactory prices) specific
guantities and types of Commodities in order to meet its obligations under the Master Murabaha Agreement
and in respect of the relevant Series of Sukuk. The Purchaser’s ability to perform such obligations (including
payment obligations) may be materially adversely affected in the event that the Seller is unable to secure
from Suppliers the requisite quantities or types of Commodities.

Mudaraba Assets risk

Pursuant to the Mudaraba Agreement, an amount which is not less than 51%. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk, less the relevant Available Amount, will be directly invested in the
business of the Issuer with a view to earning profit therefrom, which will in turn be applied towards payments
due to Sukukholders in respect of the Sukuk. In the event that any of the risks relating to the business of
the Issuer materialize, it would impact the value of and profit earned from the investment in such Mudaraba
Assets may drop which may, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its payment
obligations in respect of the Sukuk Documents.

The Murabaha Transaction may only cover a part of the principal value of a Series

Pursuant to the Conditions of the Sukuk and the provisions of the Mudaraba Agreement and other Sukuk
Documents, an amount equal to not less than 51%. of the proceeds of each Series will be invested in a mudaraba
arrangement (the “Mudaraba”) whereby the Sukukholders’ Agent will act on behalf of the Sukukholders as
rab-al-mal and the Issuer will act as mudareb. The remaining amount (equal to an amount not more than 49%.
of the proceeds of the Series) will be used as the Cost Price in a Murabaha Transaction, whereby the Seller
will sell commodities to Purchaser for a Deferred Sale Price equal to a certain percentage of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk as at the relevant Issue Date.

Accordingly, investors should note that the Aggregate Nominal Amount of a Series may not be covered in
its entirety by the Deferred Sale Price under the relevant Murabaha Transaction (such shortfall being the
“Principal Shortfall Amount”).

In respect of such Principal Shortfall Amount, investors will have recourse solely to returns from the investment
of the Mudaraba Capital in the Mudaraba. To the extent that the Mudaraba suffers losses such that the
Mudaraba Capital falls in value to an amount less than the Principal Shortfall Amount, the Sukukholders will
not be entitled to receive the full Aggregate Nominal Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk on maturity or
redemption of the Sukuk.

In addition, investors should also note that any profits generated by the Mudaraba during the term of a Series
in excess of the relevant Periodic Distribution Amounts will not be distributed to the Sukukholders or held as
a reserve for their benefit but will instead be reinvested in the Mudaraba. Therefore, such excess Mudaraba
profits will become part of the Mudaraba Assets and therefore will be subject to the performance of the
Mudaraba in the same manner as the Mudaraba Capital referred to above.

1.3.20 Risks related to Shari’ah-compliance

There is no assurance that the Sukuk will be Shari’ah-compliant

Prospective Sukukholders should note that different Shari’ah advisers, and Saudi courts and judicial
committees, may form different opinions on identical issues and therefore prospective Sukukholders should
consult their own legal and Shari’ah advisers to receive an opinion on the compliance of the Sukuk Programme
with Shari’ah principles. Prospective Sukukholders should also note that although Al Khair Capital Saudi
Arabia Company’s Shar’iah advisor issued pronouncements confirming that the Sukuk are in compliance
with Shari’ah principles, such pronouncements would not bind a Saudi Arabian court or judicial committee,
including in the context of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings relating to the Issuer and any Saudi
Arabian court or judicial committee will have the discretion to make its own determination about whether
the Sukuk, the Sukuk Documents and the related structure (or any part thereof) complies with Saudi law and
Shari’ah principles and therefore is enforceable.

Accordingly, no person (including, without limitation, the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Arranger)
make any representation that the Sukuk, the Conditions and any other Sukuk Document comply with Shari’ah
principles and in particular no representation is made regarding the Shari’ah pronouncements issued by Al
Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company’s Shari’‘ah committee regarding the Sukuk, which pronouncements are
subject to change and disagreement from other Shari’ah scholars. Accordingly, there is no assurance that
the Sukuk will be considered to be Shari’ah compliant by any person other than the members of the Shari’ah
committee of Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company.
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1.3.21 Risks Related to Enforceability and Taxation in Saudi Arabia

Governing law, jurisdiction and enforceability

Each Series of Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents are governed by, and are to be construed in accordance with,
Saudi Law, which laws are based on Islamic law, or Shari’ah. The relevant principles of Islamic law are generally
construed and applied pursuant to the teachings of certain schools of jurisprudence. In this regard, the Saudi
courts may decline to enforce any contractual or other obligations (including any provisions relating to the
payment of profit) if it is their view that the enforcement thereof would be contrary to principles of Shari’ah.

There are a number of Saudi courts which have jurisdiction in respect of certain types of claims. Commercial
disputes are subject to the jurisdiction of the Commercial Courts. Commercial disputes do not include
disputes arising out of or in connection with transactions governed by the Capital Market Law and delegated
legislation. Disputes arising under the Capital Market Law of the KSA (issued by Royal Decree No. (M/30)
dated 2/6/1424H (corresponding to 1/8/2003G) as amended by Royal Decree No. (M/16) dated 19/1/1441H
(corresponding to 18/9/2019G)) and its implementing regulations are heard before a quasi-judicial body
known as the Committee for the Resolution of Securities Disputes established pursuant to paragraph (a) of
article 30 of the Capital Market Law and the Appeal Panel formed pursuant to paragraph (i) of article 30 of
the Capital Market Law (the “Committee”).

In accordance with Condition 9.19 (Governing Law and Jurisdiction), the Committee shall have jurisdiction
to hear and determine any suit, action or proceedings, and to settle any disputes, which may arise out of
or in connection with the Sukuk. Prospective Sukukholders should note that, to the best of the Issuer’s
knowledge, no securities of a similar nature to the Sukuk have previously been the subject of enforcement
in the Kingdom.

However, prospective Sukukholders should also be aware that, generally, the Saudi courts, including the
Committee, have a wide discretion as to how principles of Islamic Shari’ah are applied to a particular set
of circumstances and previous decisions of such courts and judicial committees are not considered as
establishing binding precedents for deciding subsequent disputes.

Accordingly, it is uncertain exactly how and to what extent the Sukuk, the Conditions and/or the Sukuk
Documents would be enforced by the Committee or, should circumstances dictate that they have jurisdiction,
in the Saudi courts.

In some circumstances, it may not be possible to obtain the legal remedies provided under Saudi Law in a
timely manner. As a result of these and other factors, the outcome of any legal disputes in the Kingdom may
be uncertain, which may adversely affect the value of the Sukuk.

Events of Default

There is a risk that the courts and judicial committees of the Kingdom would not give effect to an event of
default other than one consisting of the non-payment of due amounts.

Penalties and indemnities

There is arisk that should any provision of the Sukuk Documents be construed by a court or judicial committee
of the Kingdom to be an agreement to pay a penalty rather than a genuine estimate of loss incurred, such
provision would not be enforced in the Kingdom. Further, any indemnity provided by the Issuer in relation
to the Sukuk or pursuant to the Sukuk Documents would not be enforceable under the laws and regulations
of the Kingdom to the extent that it (a) purports to be effective notwithstanding any judgment or order of a
court to the contrary or (b) is contrary to any applicable law or public policy relating thereto.

A court may not grant an order for specific performance

In the event that the Issuer fails to perform its obligations under any Series of Sukuk or any Sukuk Document,
the potential remedies available to the Sukukholders’ Agent (on behalf of Sukukholders) include (i) obtaining
an order for specific performance of the Issuer’s obligations, or (ii) a claim for damages.

There is no assurance that a court will provide an order for specific performance, as this is generally a matter
for the discretion of the relevant court. Specific performance, injunctive relief and declaratory judgments
and remedies are rarely available as judicial and other adjudicative remedies in the Kingdom. The amount
of damages which a court may award in respect of a breach will depend upon a number of possible factors,
including an obligation on the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Sukukholders to mitigate any loss arising as a
result of such breach. No assurance is provided on the level of damages which a court may award in the event
of a failure by the Issuer to perform its obligations set out in the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents. Damages
for loss of profits, consequential damages or other speculative damages are not awarded in the Kingdom by
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the courts or other adjudicatory authorities, and only actual, direct and proven damages are awarded.

Notices

The Electronic Transactions Law was issued pursuant to Royal Decree No. M/18 dated 08/03/1428H
(corresponding to 26.03/2007G) as amended or supplemented from time to time, most recently pursuant
to Royal Decree No. M/57 dated 01/08/1436H (corresponding to 19/05/2015G). Notices given by way of
facsimile or other electronic means are prima facie acceptable forms of notification in the Saudi Courts.
In principle, parties to an agreement governed by Saudi law which stipulates that notices may be given
by way of facsimile or other electronic means may rely on such notices provided that such provisions are
stipulated in the relevant agreement as the agreed form of communication between such parties (as clarified
by Circular No. 34 dated 24/04/1439H).

Tax consequences in the Kingdom

The Sukukholders may be subject to payment of income tax, withholding tax, zakat or other taxation in
the Kingdom as a result of acquiring, holding or disposing of the Sukuk of any Series. Each prospective
Sukukholder must take its own professional advice as to the tax consequences for such Sukukholder of
acquiring, holding or disposing of any Sukuk. For a further discussion of taxation and zakat issues relating
to the acquisition, holding or disposal of the Sukuk, see the Section 12 “Taxation and Zakat” of this Base
Prospectus.
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2. Financial Information About Rawasi Al Bina
Investment Company

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

2.1 Introduction

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial results of Rawasi Albina
Investment Company (referred to as “Rawasi” or the “Company”) is based on the audited financial statements
for the years ended 31 December 2021G (“FY21”), 31 December 2022G (“FY22”), 31 December 2023G (“FY23”)
and reviewed interim condensed financial information for the six month period ended 30 June 2023G (“1H23")
and 30 June 2024G (“1H24”) (“Historical Period”), (together being the “Financial Statements”). This MD&A
should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements.

The financial information presented in this MD&A has been derived from the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G, prepared by the Company
and audited in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”), as endorsed by the Saudi
Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“KSA”).

The financial information presented in this MD&A has also been derived from the reviewed interim condensed
financial information for the period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G, prepared by the Company
and reviewed in accordance with the International Standard on Review Engagements 2410 - Review of the
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity that are endorsed by
SOCPA in KSA. The audit and review of the Financial Statements has been performed by the independent
auditors of the Company Osama ElKhereji and Partner Co. (“OEK”) for the year ended 31 December 2021G
and by El Sayed EI Ayouty and Co. (“MOORE”) for the year ended 31 December 2022G and 31 December
2023G and for the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

The Company has applied the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in
KSA and other standards and pronouncements that are issued by SOCPA for the preparation of the financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G.

The Company has applied International Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting that is endorsed
by SOCPA in KSA for the preparation of the interim condensed financial information for the six month period
ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Neither OEK, MOORE, nor any of their employees’ relatives own any shares or stock of any kind in the
Company that would impair their independence.

The Financial Statements are an integral part of this Section, and it should be read in conjunction with
supplementary notes in the Financial Statements of the Company. The Financial Statements of the Company
are contained in Section 15 (“External Auditor’s Report”) of this Prospectus.

The figures in this MD&A have been rounded to the nearest Saudi Arabian Riyal (“SAR”) in millions, except
where specifically noted otherwise. In any case, if summed, the numbers may differ from those stated in the
tables. Annual percentages and margins are based on the figures in SAR.

This Section might include forward-looking statements related to the Company’s future capabilities based
on management’s plans and prospects for its growth, operations results, and financial condition that could
involve prospective risks and uncertainties.

The Company’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated as a result of numerous factors,
risks, and future events, including those discussed in this Section of the Prospectus or elsewhere thereof,
particularly Section 1 (“Risk Factors”).
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Directors’ declaration for financial information

All material facts related to the Company, and its financial performance have been disclosed in
this Prospectus. Furthermore, there is no information, documents, and other facts, omission of
which would make any of the statement having as misleading.

The financial information contained in this section has been extracted without substantial
change from the Financial Statements.

The Company had profits for the year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and for the six month period ended on 30 June 2023G. However, the
Company reported loss during the six month period ended on 30 June 2024G. There was no
negative or significant change in the financial and commercial position of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and for the six
month period ended 30 June 2023G, except for the six month period ended 30 June 2024G,
where the Company reported a net loss of SAR 9.7 million.

The Company’s shares are not under any option as of the date of this Prospectus.

Board members have shares in the Company in the manner detailed under Corporate Directory
section of this Base Prospectus.

Other than what has been mentioned in the sub-section Loans and borrowings of this Section,
the Company does not have any mortgages, rights or charges/assignment on its properties as
of the date of this Prospectus.

The Company has not granted any commissions, discounts, brokerage fees or non-monetary
compensations from the Company to any director, senior executives, responsible parties for
presenting or offering securities or experts in connection with the issue or offering of any
securities during the Historical Period immediately preceding the date of submission of debt
raise application.

The Company does not hold any contractually based securities or other assets whose value
may be subject to fluctuations or be difficult to ascertain, significantly affecting the assessment
of the Company’s financial position, except as disclosed in this Prospectus.

The Company does not have information about any governmental, economic, financial,
monetary, political, or any other factors that affected or could materially (directly or indirectly)
affect the Company’s operations.

Except for the information disclosed in the sub-section Loans and borrowings, the Company
does not have any loans or other debts, including bank account overdraft. Additionally, and
except for the information disclosed in the sub-section Loans and borrowings, there are no
guarantee obligations (including personal guarantee, not covered by personal guarantee,
secured by mortgage or not secured by mortgage), obligations under acceptance, acceptance
credit or lease purchase obligations.
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2.3 Company Overview

Established under the commercial registration number 1010260422 dated 7 Muharram 1430H (corresponding
to 4 January 2009G), as a limited liability company and was converted into a closed joined stock company
on 10 August 2020G. The Company got approval from Capital Market Authority (CMA) for the listing in the
parallel market on 15 June 2022G and converted into a listed joint stock company. The Company is engaged
in provision of construction services to the energy and telecommunication sector.

2.3.1 Geographical footprint of the Company

Following locations represent the geographical presence of the Company:

)
=

H=C)
Riyadh

Warehouse % Head office @

Details Location

Head office Riyadh

Details Location

Banban

Al Rass
Warehouse

Unayzah

Buraydah
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.4.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current / non-
current classification.

The assets

An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The liabilities

A liability is current when:

e |tis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
e |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

2.4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank
balances, cash on hand, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, banks and
other highly liquid short-term investments, if any, with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of its creation.

2.4.3 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value (“NRV”) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Allowance is made for slow moving
inventories.

As of June 30, 2024G, 31 December 2023G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2021G, the Company has
no retained inventory.

2.4.4 Property, plant and equipment

A. Recognition and measurement

* Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to be realized from the continued
use of the asset.

e The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property and equipment, and is
recognized in other income (expenses) in the statement of profit or loss.

¢ Subseqguent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits to
the Company and can be measured reliably.
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¢ Financing costs related to loans to finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
during the year necessary to complete and prepare the assets for their intended purpose.

¢ |If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives then
they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of a replaced item is treated as disposal when significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals of time. The Company recognizes such parts as individual
assets with specified useful lives and is depreciated accordingly.

Other repair and maintenance costs are included in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

B. Depreciation

The cost less the estimated residual value is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building on leasehold land 33 - 34 years Devices and cabinets 10 years
Machines and equipment 20 years Air conditions 10 years
Computers 10 years Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 6 - 7 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.4.5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing cost are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.4.6 Leases

Right-of-use assets and obligations of leases

The Company evaluates whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease. At the beginning of the contract,
the Company establishes the right-of-use asset and the corresponding lease obligation in relation to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee party, with the exception of short-term leases and low-value leases.

The assets and liabilities arising from the lease contract are initially measured on the basis of present value.
The assets and liabilities of the lease contracts are recognized and each lease payment is distributed between
the liabilities and the financing cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the
lease period.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset and the lease term, whichever is
shorter, on a straight-line basis. The right-of-use asset is measured at the date of initial application for leases
previously classified as operating leases at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied from the
inception date of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application.

Obligations of leases

Lease obligation is recognized at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as operating
leases at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
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2.4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”) exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. The value in use is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) model,
whereby the future expected cash flows discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.

An assessment is conducted at each reporting date to determine whether there is an evidence of impairment
loss previously not recorded or curtailed. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Any impaired non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.4.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

An asset and a financial liability are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
obligations of the instrument.

All financial assets are classified and subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. The classification
depends on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets as described below at the time of initial recognition.

All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as stated below are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Net gains and losses
are recognized and include any interest or dividend income in profit or loss.

Assets measured at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the following two conditions are met:
¢ The objective to hold financial assets within a business model is to collect contractual cash
flows.

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

e Financial assets classified as trade receivables are measured at amortized cost as they are held
in the business model to collect contractual cash flows from payments of principal and interest
only.

¢ Amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

TABLE OF
CONTENTS




Rawaf'i

2.4.8.1.1 Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI

¢ Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income:

¢ Financial assets are maintained within a business model whose goal is achieved through
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. The contractual terms of the
financial asset give the right, on specific dates, to cash flows that are considered from the
principal amount (principal payments) and interest on the principal amount.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividend distributions are recognized as revenue in the
statement of profit or loss, except when these distributions represent a recovery of part of the investment
cost.

Any other losses or profits are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net profits or losses, including any interest or dividends,
are recognized in the statement of profits or losses.

Financial assets are not subsequently reclassified to the initial measurement unless the Company changes
the business model for managing financial assets. In this case, all financial assets that will be affected by this
are reclassified on the first day of the first financial period following the change in the business model.

De-recognition

The Company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual cash flows for those assets expire, or when
the Company transfers the right to obtain the contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction
in which all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are substantially transferred. Any
interest resulting from the transferred financial assets that the Company creates or maintains is recognized
as separate assets or liabilities.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the contractual arrangements, which also include creditors,
the amounts payable and loans. All financial obligations are initially measured at fair value, after the initial
recognition, the direct transaction costs are recorded at amortized cost using the effective rate over the life
of the instrument and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right and when the Company has the intention to settle on
a net basis to realize the asset and settle the liability, simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenues arising from contracts are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements IFRS-15
(Revenue form contracts with customers), where revenues are recorded with the amount that reflects the
consideration that the entity expects to receive in exchange for services to the client. Revenue is measured
on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract with the customer and excludes amount collected
on behalf of other parties. The Company also recognizes the revenue when it transfers control of the products
or services provided to the customer.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract with the client and excludes

amounts collected on behalf of other parties. The Company recognizes revenue when control of the products
or services provided to the client is transferred.
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The Company establishes contracts with clients based on the following five steps:

Step 1. Determine the contract (s) with a client:

A contract is an agreement concluded between two or more parties that establishes rights and undertakings
and sets out the criteria that must be fulfilled for each contract.

Step 2. Determine the performance obligations in the contract:

A performance commitment is a promise in the contract with the client to transfer goods or provide services
to the client.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price:

The transaction price is the amount of the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange
for transferring the goods or services promised to the client, excluding the amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Step 4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:

In a contract that contains more than one performance obligation, the Company will distribute the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that determines the amount of the consideration that the
Company expects to receive in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognition of revenue when (or where) the entity fulfills a performance obligation.

The Company’s revenues are:

Short-term installation and delivery services revenues

Revenues are recognized as described above, and revenues from short-term services provided are recorded
when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably at the financial reporting date. Accordingly,
the Company postpones the revenues distributed to short-term services and recognizes them over that
period on an accrual basis. If it is not possible to measure the results in a reliable manner, revenues are
included only to the extent that the expenses incurred can be recovered.

Contracts revenue

Contract revenue is recognized when the contract outcome can be estimated with a reasonable degree of
confidence. Revenue and costs are recognized according to the percentage of completion method.

The completed work is measured based on the contract costs incurred for the completed work up to the
date of the financial statements to the total estimated contract costs, except if this does not express the
stage that has been completed, as it is then measured based on an inventory and estimate of the work that
has been completed from the contract, and orders are included. Changes in contract, claims and incentives
within contract revenues to the extent that they can be measured with a reasonable degree of confidence
and their collection is considered probable.

When it is not possible to estimate the contract outcome with a reasonable degree of confidence, revenue is
recognized to the extent of the amounts expected to be recovered from the cost incurred. The contract cost
incurred is recognized as an expense for the period in which it is incurred.

When it is likely that the total costs of a contract exceed the total revenues of the contract, the loss is
recognized as an expense directly.

Recorded revenues in excess of the amounts issued in customer invoices are classified as current assets
under the name of revenues for which no invoices were issued. However, the amounts issued in customer
invoices in excess of the revenues recorded with them are classified as current liabilities under the name of
invoices in excess of revenues.

Accounts payable and accruals

Trade payables are recognized for amounts payable in the future for goods and services received, whether
or not billed by suppliers.
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2.4.9 Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses include direct and indirect costs
that are not specifically considered part of the cost of revenues.

Selling and marketing expenses are those expenses arising from the Company’s efforts behind the sales and
marketing functions.

All expenses except financial charges, depreciation, amortization and impairment losses are classified as
general and administrative expenses.

Other common expenses are distributed between revenue costs, selling and marketing costs, and general
and administrative expenses on a fixed basis when necessary.

2.410 Zakat and tax

A. Zakat

The Zakat provision is calculated in accordance with the regulations issued by the Zakat, Tax and Customs
Authority (“ZATCA”) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The zakat provision is charged to profits or losses.

Any additional zakat obligations are recorded and adjustments resulting from the zakat assessment, if any,
that may become due upon completion of the assessment are processed in the same financial year in which
the Zakat assessment is issued.

B. Withholding tax

The Company deducts taxes on certain transactions with non-resident entities in Saudi Arabia as required in
accordance with the applicable tax regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The withholding tax relating
to foreign payments is recorded as a liability.

C. Value Added Tax (VAT)

1. Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized after deducting the transaction tax (value-added tax),
except for:

- When transaction tax incurred in connection with the purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the tax authority, in which case the transaction tax is recognized as part of the
cost of purchasing the asset or as part of expense items, where applicable, and

- Receivables and payables that are included with the transaction tax amount.

2. The net amount of transaction tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

2.411 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded after converting them according to the prevailing exchange
rates into the functional currency (the Saudi riyal) on the date of the transaction, and the balances of assets
and liabilities of a monetary nature in foreign currencies are converted into the Saudi riyal (the functional
currency) at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the financial statements. Gains and losses resulting
from changes in exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are retranslated using
the exchange rates as at the date of the initial transactions and are not subsequently adjusted. Non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Gains or losses arising on the translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value are treated in line with the recognition of gains or losses from changes in the fair value
of the related item.
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2.4.12 Provisions

A provision is recognized if the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation arising from previous
events and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations, and
can be measured reliably. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to this liability.

2.413 Employees’ benefits

A. Defined benefits programs

The Company offers employees’ defined benefits plan in accordance with the labor law in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, where the Company’s net obligation in relation to defined benefit programs is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefits that the employee has earned in the current and previous periods
and deducting that amount. Defined benefits obligations are calculated annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method, which takes into account the provisions of the labor law in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and the Company’s policy.

The defined benefit obligation is re-measured periodically by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows. Given the absence of a deep market for government bonds/sukuks or corporate bonds/
sukuks in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the discount rate is determined by reference to the “yield to maturity”
of the Dow Jones Sukuk Index. Net commission cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit obligation balance and the fair value of the plan assets.

Defined benefits obligations are costed using actuarially defined retirement costs at the end of the previous
year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any significant one-time events such as program
modifications, workforce reductions, and reimbursements. In the absence of such significant market
fluctuations and one-time events, the actuarial liabilities are extended based on the assumptions at the
beginning of the year. If there are significant changes in assumptions or arrangements during the initial
period, changes are considered to re-measure these obligations and related costs.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan liability consisting of actuarial gains and losses is recognized
directly in other comprehensive income. The Company calculates net benefit by applying the discount rate
used to measure the net defined benefit obligation or asset. Net interest expense and other related expenses
for defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is reduced, the resulting

change in the benefit that relates to previous service or profits or losses from the reduction is recorded
immediately in profits or losses.

B. Short-term employee’s benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the Year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

C. Retirement benefit

Retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees are paid by Company of the General Organization
for Social Insurance and considered as a defined contribution plan. The payments are expensed as incurred.

2.414 Dividends

a. The Company records the obligations related to paying cash dividends to the Company’s
shareholders when the distribution is approved.

b. According to the Companies’ Act in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved upon
approval by shareholders.
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2.415 Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue represents the total value of work carried out for clients for which extracts have not been
issued until the date of the statement of financial position. Its value is expected to be collected from clients in
the following period when the extract is issued in accordance with the contracts concluded with the clients.
Unbilled revenues are recognized as current assets in the statement of financial position.

2.4.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(after adjusting for interest on convertible preferred stock) by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be
issued upon conversion of all potentially dilutive common shares into common shares.

Since the Company does not have any convertible shares, basic earnings per share equals diluted earnings
per share.

2.4.17 Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”)

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model to determine the impairment losses of trade
receivables and other receivables. This requires the Company to take certain factors to ensure that the
balances of receivables are not overvalued as a result of the possibility of un-collecting them, such as ageing
of receivables and continuous credit evaluation. Provisions are recorded when there is an objective evidence
indicates the possibility of un-collection according to IFRS 9.

2.5 New standards, interpretations and amendments applied by the
Company

During 2022G, the following amendments to the International Financial Reporting Standards became
effective for the annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January, 2023G.

Amendments to Standards Description Eff'ect'lve el ViR
beginning on or after

IAS 1 Classification of liabilities into current or non-current 1 January 2023G
IAS 1 and IFRS 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023G
IFRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023G
IFRS 12 Deferred tax relating to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023G

from a single transaction
¢ The application of these amendments does not have any material impact on the financial statements.

Issued standards but not applied

Some new standards and interpretations of accounting standards that are not mandatory have been published
for the current reporting period and that the Company did not early adopt. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impact of these new and amended standards that have not yet been applied in the current or
future reporting periods and on expected future transactions.
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2.6 Summary of financial information and Key Performance Indicators
(‘EKPI!!)

The financial information of the Company listed below has been extracted from the Financial Statements of
the Company. The selected financial information and the Company’s KPIs below should be read in conjunction
with the information presented in the “Risk Factors” 1 section, the “Financial Information About Rawasi
Al Bina Investment Company” 2 section and the Financial Statements, which are included in Section 15
(“External Auditor’s Report”) and other financial statements contained in any other part of this Prospectus.

Table 10: Summary of the statement of profit and loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31
December 2022G and 31 December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June
2024G

Summary of financial information and Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)

Revenue - net 95.5 135.2 164.2 41.5% 21.5% 94.2 38.1 (59.6%)
Cost of sales (65.5) (97.7) 21.7) 49.1% 24.6% (69.6) (35.4) (49.1%)
Gross profit 30.0 375 425 251% 13.2% 24.6 2.7 (89.2%)
Operating profit 24.0 31.0 35.0 29.3% 12.9% 20.9 (1.5) (107.4%)
Net profit for the year 17.5 20.9 22.7 19.5% 8.6% 15.1 (9.7) (164.5%)

Financials KPlIs

Gross profit margin 31.4% 27.8% 25.9% 262%  7.0%
Operating profit 251% 22.9% 21.3% 222%  (41%)
margin

Net profit margin 18.3% 15.5% 13.8% 16.1% (25.6%)

Note: As per the audited financial Statement for FY2], other income used to be the part of operating profit. From FY22 onwards, the
other income was re-classified as below operating profit item. For consistency, the other income is not the part of operating profits
for the year FY21 in the table above.

Table 11: Summary of the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Summary of the financial position

SAR’M
Non-current assets 43.0 45.3 48.5 45.5
Current assets 107.4 135.6 161.7 180.3
Non-current liabilities 228 13.2 12.8 16.5
Current Liabilities 34.7 52.8 59.5 81.3
Net assets 93.0 14.9 137.8 128.0

Represented by

Capital 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0
Statutory reserve 3.8 5.9 8.2 8.2
Actuarial profits/ (losses) (0.6) 0.3 0.5 0.5
Retained earnings 34.8 53.6 741 64.3
Net assets 93.0 114.9 137.8 128.0
KPls

Current ratio (times) 3.1 2.6 27 2.2
Asset turnover ratio (times) 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.2
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Summary of the financial position

SAR’M
Return on assets (%) 11.6% 11.6% 0.0% (4.3%)
Return on equity (%) 18.8% 18.2% 0.0% (7.6%)
Debt to equity (times) 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.6

Table 12: Summary of the statement of cash flow for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31
December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Summary of cash flows

SAR’M FY21 FY22 FY23 TH23 1H24
Net cash flow from operating activities 0.1 8.4 2.9 .n (30D
Net cash flow from investing activities (9.3) (6.8) (3.4) (0.8) (2.2)
Cash flow from financing activities 10.4 3.7 1.7 4.3 22.8
lc\l:sthirézr:ii:;elggsecrease) in cash and 1.2 5.4 1.2 (5.6) (9.5)
beainning of the year 28 40 2.4 9.4 106
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 4.0 9.4 10.6 3.9 1

the year

2.7 Statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

Table 13: Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31
December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31 December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June
2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Variance | Variance Variance
FY21- FY22- TH23-
FY22 FY23 1H24
Revenue - net 95.5 1352  164.2 41.5% 21.5% 94.2 38.1 (59.6%)
Cost of revenue (65.5) (977> (Q21.7) 491% 24.6% (69.6) (35.4) (49.1%)
Gross profit 30.0 3745 42.5 25.1% 13.2% 24.6 2.7 (89.2%)
ng‘:r:i"es”d administrative (60) (65 (72)  9.4% 92% (37 (39  57%
E;(Cpe?\cl:&t]zcliezredit losses - trade (0.0 B 02 (100.0%) } ) 0.3) B
contract assets. : - 0 - - - :
Operating profit 24.0 31.0 35.0 29.3% 12.9% 20.9 (1.5) (107.4%)
Finance costs (5D 7.9 (9.4) 54.7% 19.6% (4.6) (5D 1.2%
Other income 0.3 0.1 - (79.2%)  -100.0% - 1.8) -
Profit before zakat 19.2 23.2 25.6 20.8% 10.3% 16.3 (8.4) (151.5%)
Zakat and income tax Qa.7) (2.3) (2.9) 33.6% 26.4% 1.2) 1.3) 9.3%
Net profit for the year 17.5 20.9 22.7 19.5% 8.6% 15.1 (9.7) (164.5%)
Actuarial profits/ (losses) 0.0 1.0 1.0 2170.7% 0.0% - - -
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Variance | Variance Variance

FY21- FY22- TH23-
FY22 FY23 1H24

Other comprehensive profit for

0, 0, O,
the year 0.0 1.0 1.0 2170.7% 0.0% 15.1 (9.7) (164.5%)

Total comprehensive profit for
the year
Note: As per the audited financial Statement for FY2I, other income used to be the part of operating profit. From FY22 onwards, the

other income was re-classified as below operating profit item. For consistency, the other income is not the part of operating profits
for the year FY21 in the table above.

17.5 21.9 23.7 24.8% 8.2% 15.1 (9.7) (164.5%)

2.7.1 Revenue by services lines

Table 14: Service line-wise revenue for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Revenue

Variance | Variance Variance

FY22 | FY23 FY21- FY22- 1H23-
FY22 FY23 1H24

Electrical installation and connection

. 67.7 11.9 128.1 65.2% 14.5% 841 30.3 (64.0%)
services
Network installation services 27.8 23.4 36.1 (16.1%) 54.7% 10.1 7.8 (22.7%)
Total revenue 95.5 135.2 164.2 41.5% 21.5% 94.2 38.1 (59.6%)

Electrical installation and connection

Due to the increase in the number of contracts in FY22, primarily driven by a surge in unified contracts with
the Saudi Electric Company (SEC), the Company’s largest client, and an uptick in work orders from various
other customers, revenue experienced significant growth. It rose from SAR 67.7 m in FY21 to SAR 111.9 m
in FY22 (65.2% increase p.a.). The upward trend continued in FY23, reaching SAR 1281 m (14.5% increase
p.a.), largely attributed to additional work orders from SEC for the Qassim and Riyadh regions and contracts
secured with Al-Fahad Trading Company.

However, revenue sharply declined from SAR 84.1 m in TH23 to SAR 30.3 m in TH24 (64.0% decrease p.a.) This
reduction is primarily attributed to reduction in the number of work orders received from SEC. Although, the
Company secured contracts with SEC in Dec23, however, no work orders have been received during 1H24.

Network installation services

In FY22, the Company revised its policy for taking up the contractual works by limiting the services provided
to the customers. Due to the change in the nature of contracts executed in FY22, the revenue decreased from
SAR 27.8 m in FY21 to SAR 23.4 m in FY22 (16.1% decrease p.a.). However, the revenue in FY23 increased to
SAR 36.1 m (54.7% increase p.a.) as the Company was able to secure 16 contracts in FY23 as compared to 2
contracts in FY22.

The revenue decreased from SAR 94.2 m in TH23 to SAR 38.1 m in 1H24 (59.6% decrease p.a.). This decrease
is primarily due to the completion of a significant portion of the contractual work during FY23.
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Cost of revenue

Table 15: Cost of revenue for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December
2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G

Cost of revenue

Variance | Variance Variance
FY21- FY22- TH23-
FY22 FY23 TH24
Raw materials 425 54.2 48.9 27.6% (9.9%) 231 81 (65.0%)
Salaries 13.2 16.4 20.9 24.5% 27.2% 10.3 10.9 5.6%
Depreciation 3.7 3.7 3.7 1.2% 0.0% 1.8 2.0 7.4%
Amortization 0.5 0.7 1.0 35.1% 52.0% 0.4 0.5 47.8%
Government expense 1.0 3.2 52 212.4% 62.4% 2.6 2.5 (5.5%)
Maintenance 1.0 34 6.7 253.9% 96.9% 2.8 2.0 (27.4%)
Subcontractors 1.7 13.7 29.4 699.9% 14.4% 26.2 6.5 (751%)
Miscellaneous 2.0 2.3 6.0 18.7% 157.5% 2.4 3.2 31.2%
Total 65.5 97.7 121.7 49.1% 24.6% 69.6 35.6 (48.8%)

Raw materials cost

Table 16: Raw materials cost for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G

Raw material cost

Variance | Variance Variance

FY21- FY22- 1H23-
FY22 FY23 1H24

Electrical installation and

connection services 28.5 39.0 27.4 36.8% (29.7%) 19.7 53 (73.2%)
Network installation services 14.0 15.2 215 8.6% 41.4% 3.4 2.8 (17.6%)
Total 42.5 54.2 48.9 27.5% (9.8%) 231 8.1 (65.1%)
As a % of revenue

Flectrical installation and 421%  34.9%  21.4% - - 23.4%  17.4% -
Network installation services 50.3% 651% 59.5% - - 33.8% 36.0% -
Total 44.5% 40.1% 29.8% o o 24.5% 21.2% o

Electrical installation and connection

The cost of raw materials as a percentage of revenue from electrical installation and connection decreased
from 421% in FY21to 34.9% in FY22. This reduction was attributed to the nature of contracts executed in FY22,
which required less raw material usage. Additionally, the Company revised its operational strategy in FY22,
increasing reliance on subcontractors and outsourcing a portion of its raw material requirements to these
subcontractors instead of engaging in direct procurement. In FY23, the raw material cost further declined to
21.4% of revenue, driven by continued outsourcing of raw material procurement to subcontractors.

This downward trend is also observed during 1H24, with raw material costs decreasing to 17.4% of revenue
compared to 23.4% in 1H23, reflecting the Company’s strategy to rely more on subcontractors.

Network installation service

The cost of raw materials as a percentage of revenue from network installation services rose from 50.3% in
FY21to 65.1% in FY22, primarily due to an increased requirement for raw materials, including lithium batteries
and electric generators, necessary for completing contractual work at Saudi Telecom Company (“STC”) sites.

TABLE OF
CONTENTS



Rawaf'

In the FY24, the cost of raw materials decreased to 59.5% of revenue, as the scope of work performed during
this period required fewer raw materials compared to FY23. No significant fluctuation was recorded in the
cost of raw material as a % of revenue during 1H23 and 1H24.

Salaries

The salary cost decreased from 13.8% of the revenue in FY21to 12.2% of the revenue in FY22 due to a change
in the operating model of the Company. As opposed to hiring direct employees for the projects, the Company
outsourced a portion of the contracting work to the third-party subcontractors resulting in an increase in
subcontracting cost. In FY23, the salary cost as a percentage of revenue slightly increased to 12.7%, owing to
the annual salary increment of employees.

In TH23 and TH24, the salary cost remained in the range of SAR 10.3 m to SAR 10.9 m.

Subcontractors

As COVID-19 restrictions began to ease in FY21, the Company initiated outsourcing operational tasks to
subcontractors, leading to subcontracting costs amounting to 1.8% of total revenue. This trend continued in
FY22, with subcontracting costs rising to 10.1% of total revenue as the Company resumed full-scale operations
post-July 2022G. In FY23, the Company maintained its strategy of outsourcing contractual work, resulting in
subcontracting costs further increasing to 17.9% of total revenue.

The subcontracting cost decreased significantly from SAR 26.2 m in TH23 to SAR 6.5 m in TH24 owing to the
decrease in revenue.

Maintenance

Table 17: Maintenance expense for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Maintenance

Variance | Variance Variance

FY22 | FY23 FY21- FY22- TH23-

FY22 FY23 1H24
Car maintenance and fuel cost 1.0 3.4 6.7 98.4% 96.9% 2.8 2.0 (27.4%)
Total 2.1 3.4 6.7 66.6% 96.9% 2.8 2.0 (27.4%)

Maintenance expenses include vehicle running cost. In FY21, the maintenance cost stood at 1.0% of the total
revenue. In FY22, owing to the reclassification of the fuel cost from raw material to maintenance expenses,
the maintenance cost as a percentage of revenue increased to 2.5% of the total revenue. (If the fuel cost for
FY21 were to be classified as part of the maintenance cost, the maintenance cost will compute to 2.2% of the
total revenue in FY21). In FY23, maintenance costs rose to 4.1% of revenue, driven by the increased use of
vehicles and transportation required for projects with SEC.

Maintenance cost as a percentage of revenue increased from 3.0% in THY23 to 5.3% in TH24 due to inflation.

Government expenses

Government expenses includes igama expenses, municipal licenses, subscriptions, license renewal and
transfer of vehicle ownership. Governmental expenses increased from 1.1% in FY21to 2.3% in FY22 and to 3.1%
in FY23 owing to increase in business activities.

The governmental expenses remained in the range of SAR 2.5 m to SAR 2.6 m during 1TH23 and 1H24.

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous expenses include electricity expenses, medical insurance, rental cost, vehicles rent, vehicle
license renewals and warehouse repairs expenses etc.

During the Historical Period, the miscellaneous expenses did not notice any significant fluctuations and
remained in the range of 2.0% to 3.6% of the revenue.
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2.7.2 General and administrative expenses

Table 18: General and administrative expenses for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G,31 December
2022G, 31 December 2023G, and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G

General and administrative expenses

Variance | Variance Variance
FY22 | FY23 FY21- FY22- TH23-
FY22 FY23 1H24
Salaries 4.5 4.7 5.0 5.0% 7.5% 2.4 2.6 10.0%
Professional fees 0.3 0.9 1.2 197.0% 33.4% 0.7 0.8 5.6%
Government expense 0.5 0.3 0.2 (24.7%) (54.4%) 0.1 0.1 (26.6%)
Medical insurance 0.2 0.3 0.3 54.3% (3.3%) 0.1 0.2 127.5%
Miscellaneous 0.6 0.4 0.5 (40.7%) 40.1% 0.4 0.3 (36.2%)
Total 6.0 65 762 9.4% 9.2% &t/ 319 5.7%
Salaries

The salaries increased from SAR 4.5 min FY21 to SAR 4.7 m in FY22 (5.0% increase p.a.) due to increase in
number of employees as the business activity picked up post COVID-19.

In FY23, the salaries expense further increased to SAR 5.0 m (7.5% increase p.a.) owing to the annual salary
increments. During 1H24, the salaries increased to SAR 2.6 m as compared to same period last year due to
salary increments.
Professional fees

The professional fee of SAR 0.3 m in FY 21 increased to SAR 0.9 m in FY22 and further to SAR 1.2 min FY23
due to the hiring of legal and financial consultants for Sukuk filing.

No significant movement was noticed in professional fees between 1H23 and 1H24.

Government expenses

Government expenses mainly include igama cost for employees. During the Historical Period, no significant
fluctuations were noted and the government expenses in FY21 and FY22 remained in the range of SAR 0.3
m to SAR 0.5 m. In FY23 the governmental expenses decreased to SAR 0.2 m primarily attributed to the
reclassification of government expense to the cost of revenue.

No significant movement was noticed in government expenses between TH23 and 1H24.

Medical insurance

Medical insurance remained in the range of SAR 0.2 m to SAR 0.3 m during FY21 to FY23, as no significant
movement was observed. During 1H23 to 1H24, the medical insurance remained in the range of SAR 0.1 m to
0.2 m.

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous expenses mainly include vehicle insurance, bank charges, training expenses, office supplies
and stationery and etc. No significant fluctuations were noted during the Historical Period.

2.7.3 Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)

The Company follows a simplified approach to compute ECL as per the provisions of IFRS-9. During the
Historical Period and except for FY21, there were no indications of doubtful debt. In FY21, the Company
created a provision of SAR 47,012 as there were significant indication due to COVID-19 lockdowns. In FY23,
the Company successfully recovered SAR 0.2 m from a previously impaired customer, resulting in a reversal
of the corresponding bad debt provision.
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2.7.4 Finance costs

Table 19: Finance costs for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G and 31
December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G

Finance charges

Variance | Variance Variance

FY22 | FY23 FY21- FY22- TH23-
FY22 FY23 1H24

Murabaha and facilities finance costs 4.3 7.3 91 69.77% 24.66% 4.3 3.5 (18.56%)

Lease finance cost 0.7 0.5 0.34 (28.57%) (32.00%) 0.3 1.6 503.85%
EOSB interest cost 01 0.1 0.16 0.00% 60.00% - - -
Total 5.1 7.9 9.6 41% 53% 4.6 5.1 485%

The fluctuations in finance charges during the Historical Period was on account of fluctuation in the interest
rate ranges from 8.97% to 13.50%.

2.7.5 Other income

Other income mainly pertains to scrap sales and the gain on disposal of assets.

2.7.6 Zakat and Income tax

Zakat expense increased from SAR 1.7 m in FY21 to SAR 2.3 m in FY22 (33.6% increase p.a) and further
increased to SAR 2.9 m in FY23. The Zakat expense increased to SAR 1.3 m in TH24 from SAR 1.2 m in THY23
(9.3% increase p.a). The movement during the Historical Period was driven by the fluctuations in the Zakat
base of the Company.

2.8 Statement of financial position

Table 20: The Company’s statement of financial position as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and 30 June 2024G

Statement of financial position

Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 34.7 36.2 37.2 36.3
Right-of-use assets 8.3 91 1n.3 9.2
Total non-current assets 43.0 45.3 48.5 45.5

Current assets

Trade receivables- net 73.8 68.2 76.9 87.7
Accrued revenue 16.0 20.6 541 46.7
Prepayments and other assets 13.6 37.3 20.0 44.8
Cash and cash equivalent 4.0 9.4 10.6 11

Total current assets 107.4 135.6 161.7 180.3
Total assets 150.4 180.9 210.1 225.8

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Capital 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0
Statutory reserve 3.8 5.9 8.2 8.2
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Statement of financial position

SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24
Actuarial (losses)/ profits 0.6) 0.3 0.5 0.5
Retained earnings 34.8 53.6 741 64.3
Total equity 93.0 114.9 137.8 128.0
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Murabaha financing 13.3 4.2 3.0 8.2
Lease obligation 5.6 5.0 6.0 3.9
EOSB 3.9 3.9 3.9 4.4
Total non-current liabilities 22.8 13.2 12.8 16.5
Current Liabilities
Murabaha financing- current portion 28.4 36.7 47.3 66.5
Due to related parties - 5.0 - -
Lease obligation - current portion 1.8 1.9 2.8 2.4
Trade payables 1.4 53 3.9 55
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1.3 1.6 2.7 5.6
Zakat payable 1.7 2.3 2.9 1.3
Total current liabilities 34.7 52.8 59.5 81.3
Total liabilities 57.4 66.0 72.4 97.8
Total equity and liabilities 150.4 180.9 210.1 225.8

2.8.1 Property, plant and equipment

Table 21: Property, plant and equipment as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G
and 30 June 2024G

Property, plant and equipment

Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Cost

Opening balance

Buildings on leased lands 14.9 16.4 16.4 17.4
Vehicles 131 16.8 15.3 16.3
Furnitures 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6
Equipment 9.9 15.2 20.6 21.9
Computers 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5
Devices 0.1 0.2 0.3 1.4
Air conditioners 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3
Capital works in progress 1.4 - - -
Total 40.2 49.5 53.6 58.4

Additions/(disposals) during the year
Buildings on leased lands 1.5 - 1.0 (1.8)
Vehicles 3.7 (1.5) 1.0 1.4
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SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Furnitures 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Equipment 53 54 1.4 0.9
Computers 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Devices 0.1 0.1 11 0.0
Air conditioners 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Capital works in progress (1.4) - - -
Total 9.3 4.1 4.7 0.6
Closing balance

Buildings on leased lands 16.4 16.4 17.4 15.5
Vehicles 16.8 15.3 16.3 17.6
Furnitures 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7
Equipment 15.2 20.6 21.9 22.8
Computers 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5
Devices 0.2 0.3 1.4 1.4
Air conditioners 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

Capital works in progress - - - -

Total 49.5 53.6 58.4 59.0

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance

Buildings on leased lands 11 2.4 2.9 3.4
Vehicles 5.0 6.5 7.6 9.6
Furnitures 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4
Equipment 4.5 53 6.3 7.3
Computers 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2
Devices 0.0 01 0.1 0.2
Air conditioners 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

1.1 14.8 17.5 21.2

Additions/(disposals) during the year

Buildings on leased lands 1.2 0.5 0.5 (0.3)
Vehicles 1.5 11 2.0 11

Furnitures 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Equipment 0.8 1.0 1.1 0.6
Computers 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Devices 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Air conditioners 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 3.7 2.6 387 1.4
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SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Closing balance

Buildings on leased lands 2.4 2.9 3.4 31
Vehicles 6.5 7.6 9.6 10.6
Furnitures 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4
Equipment 5.3 6.3 7.3 8.0
Computers 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Devices 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2
Air conditioners 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2
Total 14.8 17.5 21.2 22.6
Net book value

Buildings on leased lands 14.0 13.5 14.0 12.5
Vehicles 10.3 7.8 6.7 7.0
Furnitures 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3
Equipment 9.9 14.3 14.6 14.9
Computers 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3
Devices 0.1 0.2 1.2 1.2
Air conditioners 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2

Capital works in progress - - - -

Total 34.7 36.2 37.2 36.3

Buildings on leased lands

Buildings primarily include warehouse buildings used to store raw materials. In FY21, the capital works in
the warehouse located at Banban was transferred from CWIP to buildings of SAR 1.4 m, resulting in a total
addition of SAR 1.5 m.

During FY23, the Company incurred capital works on the warehouse located in Al-Arid amounting to SAR 0.6
m, while SAR 0.4 m was incurred on the improvement of warehouses located in Banban, Unayzah, Al-Rass
and Buraydah, as well as the capital works for employee’s accommodation.

During 1H24, the Company disposed-off the capital works in the warehouse in Unayzah amounting to SAR
2.3 m due to the branch close. Further, the Company capitalized improvement expenditures of SAR 0.5 m on
the warehouses in Banban, Al-Arid and Buraydah.

Vehicles

Vehicles primarily comprise pickup trucks, passenger cars, and buses employed to transport materials and
personnel to the project site. This category also involves dump trucks and mixers utilized for the preparation
and processing of raw materials at the operational site.

During FY21, the Company obtained extra vehicles (including vehicles equipped with special equipment)
totaling SAR 3.7 m, for projects in Riyadh and Qassim with SEC. In FY22, the Company disposed-off damaged
vehicles, yielding a total consideration of SAR 0.6 m and bought new passenger cars and trucks for SAR 0.2
m. During FY23, the Company made a strategic investment in the procurement of passenger cars for use of
engineers and supervisors to enhance their mobility and facilitating efficient site visits to the project location.

Furnitures

Furniture includes security cameras, Global Positioning Systems (“GPS”) and office furniture. No significant
additions were made during the Historical Period.
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Equipment

The equipment mainly includes rock-breakers, skid street loader, wheel saw, backhoe loader, and cable drums
utilized for the excavations work etc.

In FY21, the Company acquired additional equipment (three skid steer loaders and three drum rollers etc.)
for a total consideration of SAR 5.3 required to execute the contractual works agreed with SEC in Riyadh.
In FY22, the Company made an additional CAPEX of SAR 5.4 m to acquire rotary hammers, fork lifters and
asphalt rollers etc. These additions were made in light of the significant increase in the operational activity
post COVID-19.

To sustain the growth in operational activity, the Company made an additional CAPEX of SAR 1.4 m and SAR
0.7 min FY23 and 1H24, respectively, to acquire skid steer loaders, wheel saw machines etc.

Others (computers, devices and air conditioners)

Other assets include computers, devices and air conditioners. During the Historical Period no major
fluctuations were noted for these assets.

Capital work in progress

The capital work in progress includes expenses incurred on the warehouses owned by the Company. The
CAPEX amounting to SAR 1.4 m was transferred to buildings in FY21.

2.8.2 Right-of-use assets

Table 22: Right of use assets as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and 30
June 2024G.

Right-of-use-assets

‘ Dec21 ‘ Dec22 ‘ Dec23 ‘ Jun24
Cost
Opening
Land parcels 54 5.4 54 6.6
Machines 2.6 4.7 6.1 7.6

Movement during the year

Land parcels - - 1.2 (1.4)
Machines 2.1 1.4 1.5 (0.7)
Closing

Land parcels 54 5.4 6.6 5.2

Machines 4.7 6.1 7.6 6.8

Total 10.1 1.5 14.2 121

Accumulated amortization

Opening
Land parcels 1.0 1.4 1.7 2.4
Machines 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.6

Movement during the year

Land parcels 0.4 0.4 0.7 (0.2)
Machines 01 0.3 ((OR)) 0.1
Closing

Land parcels 1.4 1.7 2.4 2.2
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SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24
Machines 0.4 0.7 0.6 0.7
Total 1.8 2.4 3.0 2.9
NBV
Land parcels 4.0 3.7 4.2 3.0
Machines 4.3 55 7.0 6.2
Net book value 8.3 9.1 1.3 9.2

Table 23: Right of use assets as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and 30

June 2024G.

Right-of-use-assets

SAR’'M Start date End date Details Location | Dec21 | Dec22 Dec23 | Jun24
Lands
Headquarter Riyadh 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.3
Land #6188 29/10/2019G  13/7/2020G ~ Establish g on 01 01 0.3 02
warehouse
Land #6150 1/1/2018 13/12/20326 ~ Establish b s 09 0.8 06 0.5
warehouse
Establish
Land #6150 1/1/2018 13/12/2032G  ~>°° IS0 Unayzah 11 1.0 0.8 -
Land #6700 1/1/2018 13/12/20326 ~ Establish g/ gah 14 13 11 0.9
warehouse
Land #6468 11/1/2023G 11/1/2028G Establish 5 pan - - 0.3 0.3
warehouse
Land #2410 11/1/2023G 11/1/2028G Establish g han - - 0.3 0.3
warehouse
Establish .
Land 10/1/20236  10/1/2028G > 2PEY - Riyadh - - 0.6 0.6
T‘f;‘f\;mght EIREE 40 37 4.2 3.0
Machines
Machine #9351 20/12/2020G  20/1/2023G ~ SKid steer 07 0.7 0.7 -
machine
Wheel
. Saw &
Machine #8732 15/7/2019G  15/6/2023G ¢ n NS 0.4 0.3 - -
machines
. Quester
Machine #9513 15/3/2021G  15/2/2024G  E50 50 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3
GPS, cold
Machine #9773 25/10/2021G  25/9/2024G ~ Planer and 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3
compactor
machines
GPS &
Machine #9874 25/12/2021G ~ 25/11/2024G  compactor 01 01 01 01
machines
Machine #6006390  28/8/2021G ~ 28/7/2024G  JCB DX3 0.5 05 0.4 0.4
Machine #6005750  28/12/2020G  28/03/2023G JCB 11 11 - -

S)
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Right-of-use-assets

SAR’'M Start date End date Details Dec21 | Dec22 Dec23 | Jun24
Machine #6006474 28/10/2021G 28/9/2024G Isuzu NPR 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
. Toyota
Machine #6000475 28/10/2021G 28/9/2024G Hiace 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Machine #6008009 28/10/2022G 28/9/2025G JCB DX3 - 0.8 0.8 0.8
Machine #6008010  28/10/2022G  28/9/2025G d's“Z” - 0.5 0.5 0.5
umper
Backhoe
Machine #10554 1/4/2023G 1/3/2026G heave - - 1.5 1.4
machine
Machine #10555 1/4/2023G 1/3/2026G Isuzu - - 1.0 1.0
Machine #10561 1/4/2023G 1/3/2026G Isuzu - - 0.6 0.6
Total Right of Use - 03 54 70 6.2
machines
Total 8.3 9.1 1.3 9.2

Right-of-use assets include leased land and equipment. The land is obtained on lease to construct warehouses
while the leased equipment is in the normal operations of the Company. The Company does not have a
specific policy to purchase or lease and the decisions are made on case to case basis.

Right-of-use assets are initially recorded at a present value of minimum lease payments and is amortized
over the useful life of the asset and the lease term, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.

2.8.3 Trade receivables- net

Table 24: Trade receivables as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and 30
June 2024G

Trade receivables- net

SAR’'M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24
Trade receivables 74.9 69.3 77.8 88.6
Less: Expected credit losses an an (0.9) (0.9
Total Trade receivables 73.8 68.2 76.9 87.7
Trade receivable days 282 184 171 420

On average, the Company allows most of the customers with the 180-day bracket. Since SEC is the single
biggest client of the Company and owing to internal protocols, the invoice clearance was significantly delayed
which resulted into 282 receivable days.

In FY22, SEC implemented a new procedure and the delay in invoice clearance was reduced significantly to
184 days and further reduced to 171 days as of Dec23.

As of Jun24, trade receivables increased to SAR 87.7 m from SAR 76.9 m as of Dec23 due to non-recovery
of receivables. The Company provided extra leverage to the customers and believed all of the outstanding
amounts are good receivables and recoverable. The non-collection of receivables has led to an increase in
receivable days from 171 to 420 days.

2.8.4 Accrued revenue

Accrued revenue represents the total value of work carried out for the clients on which the client confirmation
is not issued until the date of the statement of financial position. The value of the work carried out, is expected
to be received from clients in the following period when the client confirmation is received in accordance
with the contracts concluded with the clients.
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The accrued revenue balances increased from SAR 16.0 m (61 days of revenue outstanding) to SAR 20.6 m
(56 days of revenue outstanding) as of Dec22. A significant portion of the accrued revenue, amounting to
SAR 15.6 million, is related to SEC.

As of Dec23, the accrued revenue substantially increased to SAR 54.1 m (120 days of revenue outstanding)
which primarily pertained to SEC. This significant increase was driven by the works completed by the
Company for SEC but could not be billed due to the pending approval from SEC. Additionally SEC issued a
letter in June 2023G confirming an accrued revenue position of SAR 38.3 m.

Accrued revenue amounted to SAR 46.7 m as in Jun24 (224 days of revenue outstanding) with SAR 22.5 m
recognized during Jun24 and SAR 24.2 m carried forward from the FY23 due to the extended billing cycles.

2.8.5 Prepayments and other assets

Table 25: Prepayments and other assets as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G
and 30 June 2024G

Prepayments and other assets

SAR’'M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24
Advances to suppliers 77 27.3 6.6 29.8
Insurance held by others 1.4 54 8.5 7.9
Prepaid expenses 2.3 21 3.3 3.4
Bank guarantee insurance 11 0.9 1.2 2.3
Credit letters 0.6 0.4 0.0 1.0
Employee advances 0.4 1.3 0.3 0.4
Others 01 - - -
Total 13.6 373 20.0 44.8

Advances to suppliers mainly include advance payment to local and foreign suppliers in relation to the
procurement of raw materials, equipment, and other professional services. Advances to suppliers substantially
increased from 66 days as of Dec21 to 184 days as of Dec22 due to continuous requirement of imported raw
materials (lithium batteries, cellular modules, etc) which is required in telecommunication sites to complete
the performance obligation under contract with STC. As of Dec23, advances to suppliers decreased to SAR
6.6 m as the batteries were received, returning advances to suppliers to normal levels.

As of Jun 24, advances to suppliers substantially increased to SAR 29.8 m. This increase is primarily driven by
the need to secure materials in response to the work orders from telecommunication companies.

Insurance held by others mainly pertains to the bank guarantee issued to Al-Fahad Company for Trade,
Industry and Contracting Services (“Al-Fahad”) to whom the Company provided subcontracting services
for electrical works implementation, communications and lighting works for the Ministry of Housing. The
subcontracting services to Al-Fahad, requires the bank guarantee of 15% of the contract value. The closing
balance of these guarantees increased from SAR 1.4 m as of Dec21 to SAR 5.4 m as of Dec22. As of Dec23
and Jun24, the balance stood at SAR 8.5 m and SAR 7.9 m, respectively, as the Company entered into several
addendums with Al-Fahad and submitted additional bank guarantees equivalent to 15% of the total contract
value.
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2.8.6 Cash and cash equivalent

Table 26: Cash and cash equivalent as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and
30 June 2024G

Cash and cash equivalent

SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24

Saudi Awwal Bank 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Saudi Fransi Bank 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Riyad Bank 0.1 9.2 4.6 0.9
Al-Jazira Bank 0.1 0.2 5.0 0.1
Saudi National Bank 3.8 0.1 0.9 0.1
SAMBA Bank - - - -

Al-Bilad Bank 0.0 0.0 - -

Alinma Bank 01 0.0 0.1 0.0
Al-Rajhi Bank 0.0 0.0 - -

Total 4.0 9.4 10.6 1.1

2.8.7 Shareholder’s equity

Table 27: Shareholder’s equity as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and 30
June 2024G

Statement of changes in equity

Share Statutory Actuarial Retained

capital reserve profits/ (losses) earnings Jetll Gy

Opening - Jan21 55.0 2.1 (0.7) 19.1 75.5
Net profit for the year - - - 17.5 17.5
Other comprehensive loss - - 0.0 - 0.0
Total comprehensive income - - 0.0 17.5 17.5
Statutory reserve - 1.7 - Qa7 -
Closing - Dec21 55.0 3.8 (0.6) 34.8 93.0
Net profit for the year - - - 20.9 20.9
Other comprehensive loss - - 1.0 - 1.0
Total comprehensive income - - 1.0 20.9 21.9
Statutory reserve - 2.1 - @n -
Closing - Dec22 55.0 5.9 0.3 53.6 14.9
Net profit for the year - - - 22.7 22.7
Other comprehensive loss - - 0.2 - 0.2
Total comprehensive income - - 0.2 22.7 22.9
Statutory reserve - 2.3 - 2.3) -
Closing - Dec23 55.0 8.2 0.5 741 137.8
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - 9.7) (9.7)

Other comprehensive loss - - - - -

Closing - Jun24 55.0 8.2 0.5 64.3 128.0
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Share capital

As of Jun24, the Company had a share capital of SAR 55.0 m divided into 5.5 m share at a par value of SAR
10.0 per share.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the Company’s By-laws and the Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, the Company transfers 10% of the profit for the year, after adjusting accumulated losses, to a statutory
reserve until it equals to at least 30% of its share capital. As of Jun24, the statutory reserves amount to SAR
8.2 m.

Actuarial profit / (losses)

The Company hire the services of a qualified actuary for the calculation of actuarial profit / losses and
calculation of EOSB liability at each financial year end. The actuary uses unit credit method to account for
computation of actuarial profit / loss. The actuarial gain / (losses) during the FY21 to FY23 relates to the
change in actuarial assumption in relation to the employee turnover and discount rate.

2.8.8 Loans and borrowings

Table 28: Murabaha financing as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and 30
June 2024G

Murabaha financing

SAR’'M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 June24
Riyadh Bank 40.3 4.6 23.3 29.9
Bank Al-Ahli 1.8 39.7 18.7 23.0
Interest to be accrued 4.5 (3.3) 1.9) 0.8)
Murabaha from companies 4.2 - 10.2 22.6
Total 41.7 40.9 50.3 74.7

The Company entered into several Murabaha financing agreements to finance:

¢ Working capital requirements of the contract with SEC; and

e Guarantees issued as per the contractual terms;

Except as set out above, the Company did not have any other loans or indebtedness, including bank overdrafts,
acceptances and acceptance credits, or hire purchase obligations as at the dates set out in Table 28 above.

Collateral and Personal Guarantees

The financing facilities from Riyadh bank and Bank Al-Ahli have the following collateral:

¢ Proceeds from the contracts with SEC

¢ Proceeds from multiple contracts against which letter of guarantees have been issued by the
banks

¢ Acknowledgement of indebtedness guarantee and personal solidarity bond signed by
shareholders of the Company.

¢ Personal guarantee from major shareholder (Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi).

e Guarantee under Kafalah program amounting to SAR 12.8 million.

The financing facility from the financing companies have been issued against the personal guarantees of
Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi.
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2.8.9 Lease obligation

Table 29: Lease obligation as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G, and 30
June 2024G

Lease obligation

SAR’'M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 June24
Land parcel 5.9 53 6.0 4.2
Machines 3.1 3.0 4.2 3.0

Less: financing costs

Land parcel (1.3) an an (0.7)
Machines (0.3) (0.3) 0.3) (0.2)
Net

Land parcel 4.6 4.2 4.9 3.5
Machines 2.8 2.7 3.9 2.8
Closing balance 7.4 6.9 8.8 6.3

Lease liability pertain to the leasehold land for warehouse facilities and equipment operations. The movement
during the Historical Period was on account of additions of equipment and repayment of lease liability.

2.8.10 Employees service benefits

Table 30: Employees service benefits as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G
and 30 June 2024G

Employee service benefits

SAR’'M ‘ Dec21 ‘ Dec22 ‘ Dec23 ‘ June24
At the beginning 31 3.9 3.9 3.9
Current service cost 0.9 11 11 0.7
Interest cost 0.1 0.2 0.2 -
Actuarial (losses)/ profits (0.0) (1.0) ((OR))] -
Paid during the year (0.2) (0.2) an (0.2)
Closing balance 3.9 3.9 3.9 4.4

EOSB liabilities represents the statutory provision relating to end of service benefits based on the actuarial
valuation performed by an independent third-party actuary. These benefits are payable to employees upon
resignation or termination of the employment contract with the company in accordance with the Saudi Labor
Law.

No significant movements were noted during the Historical Period.

2.8.11 Trade payables

Trade payable days outstanding remained low at 8 days as of Dec21 primarily due to disruption of the business
activity during the COVID-19 lockdowns. As of Dec22, trade payable days increased to 20 days as operations
became more normalized post COVID-19. Trade payable decreased to 12 days as of Dec23 largely due to the
bulk of materials being procured in FY22, with suppliers having received advance payments. As of Jun24, the
trade payable days increased to 28 days, as the Company was able to renegotiate a better credit term from
suppliers to effectively manage the cashflow.
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2.8.12 Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Table 31: Accrued expenses and other liabilities as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December
2023G, and 30 June 2024G

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

SAR’M Dec21 Dec22 Dec23 Jun24
Accrued expenses 0.8 0.5 2.0 3.8
VAT 0.3 11 0.7 1.8
Employee advances 0.1 - - -
Others 01 0.0 - -
Total 1.3 1.6 2.7 5.6

Accrued expenses mainly include expenses related to annual vacation allowance, travel tickets, professional
fees and social insurance expenses. Accrued expenses decreased to 0.5 m as of Dec22 as compared to
Dec21, as the Company paid for the employee vacations and airline tickets during the year. Accrued expenses
increased to SAR 2.0 m as of Dec23 driven by salaries accrued to employees and SAR 1.2 m in social insurance
expenses, and further increased to SAR 3.8 m as of Jun24 due to employee salary accruals.

The fluctuation in VAT payables is mainly due to the contracting nature of the business where the customers
are invoiced monthly and the expenses arise as per the project requirement, which directly affect the VAT
liability position of the Company.

2.8.13 Due to related parties

Table 32: Due to related parties as of 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31 December 2023G and
30 June 2024G

Due to related parties

SAR’'M ‘ Dec21 ‘ Dec22 ‘ Dec23 ‘ June24
Mohsen Bin Motaib Al-Otaibi 5.0 - -
Total - 5.0 - -

During the Historical Period, the Company obtained financing from a major shareholder, Mohsen Bin Motaib
Al-Otaibi, to finance its operations. As of Dec22 amount payable to the related party stood at SAR 5.0 m,
which was repaid during 1H23.

2.9 Statement of cash flows

Table 33: Statement of cash flow for the financial year ended 31 December 2021G, 31 December 2022G, 31
December 2023G and the six month period ended 30 June 2023G and 30 June 2024G.

Cashflow statement

SAR’'M FY21 FY22 FY23 1H23 1H24

Profit before zakat 19.2 23.2 25.6 16.3 (8.4)

Adjustments for non cash items: -

Depreciation 4.2 4.4 4.7 2.2 2.5
ECL 0.0 - 0.4 - 0.3
Gain on sale of PPE - (o)) - - 1.8
EOSB 1.0 1.2 1.3 0.6 0.7
Finance costs 5.0 7.9 9.4 4.6 51
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Cashflow statement

SAR’M FY21 FY22 FY23 TH23 1H24
WC changes
Accounts receivables (7.6) 5.6 (8.5) Q.3) (10.8)
Contract asset (0.2) (4.6) 341 (22.0) 7.2
Prepayments and other assets (7.0) (23.7) 17.3 2.7) (24.8)
Trade payables (6.7) 4] 1.5) 11 1.7
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (1.4) 0.3 11 (0.7) 2.9
Cash from operations 6.6 18.2 15.7 (1.9) (22.0)
EOSB Paid (0.2) (0.2) an (0.4) (0.2)
Zakat paid (1.3) (7.9) 2.3) (2.3) (2.9)
Finance cost (5.0) Qa7 (9.4) 4.6) (5D
CFO 0.1 8.4 2.9 9.1 (30.1)
Cash paid for purchase of PPE (9.3) (5.9 (3.4) (0.8) (2.2)
Additions to RoU - .4) - - -
Cash received from sale of PPE - 0.6 - - -
CFl (9.3) (6.8) (3.4) (0.8) (2.2)
Free cash flow to the firm (9.2) 1.7 (0.5) (9.9) (32.3)
Changes in loans .6 (0.8) 9.4 10.5 24.4
Shareholder financing - 5.0 (5.0) (4.9) -
Lease obligations (1.2) (0.4) 2.7) 1.3) (1.6)
CFF 10.4 3.7 1.7 4.3 22.8
Net cashflow 1.2 5.4 1.2 (5.6) (9.5)
Opening cash 2.8 4.0 9.4 9.4 10.6

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the period 4.0 9.4 10.6 3.9 1.1

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operations increased from SAR O1 min FY21 to SAR 8.4 m in FY22, owing to the increase in
profit before zakat by SAR 4.0 min FY22 on YoY basis. Also, the net working capital decreased by SAR 4.5 m,
owing to the efficient collection of receivables by the Company in FY22, whereby the number of receivable
days substantially decreased from 282 days as of Dec21 to 184 days as of Dec22 and better negotiation with
the suppliers due to which the number of payable days increased from 8 days as of Dec21 to 20 days as of
Dec22.

Cash flow from operating activities decreased to SAR 2.9 m, owing to the decrease in net working capital by
SAR 7.2 m, increase in accrued revenue by SAR 34.1 m during FY23.

During 1H23, cash flow from operating activities declined to a negative SAR 9.1 m, primarily due to a significant
increase in the uninvoiced work, rising from SAR 20.6 m as of Dec22 to SAR 42.6 m as of Jun23. During 1H24,
cash flow from operating activities further decreased to SAR 30.1 m, mainly driven by a loss before zakat
amounting to SAR 8.4 m. This was also due to cash stuck in the working capital as the Company was unable
to recover amounts from its customers on a timely basis.
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Cash flow from investing activities

During the Historical Period, the movement in investing activities was on account of the purchase of
equipment and vehicles. In FY21, the Company purchased equipment, mainly loaders and drum rollers for
SAR 5.3 m and vehicles, mainly pickup trucks, dump trucks and passenger cars for SAR 3.7 m and other
vehicles for SAR 0.3 m. In FY22, the Company made an additional CAPEX of SAR 5.9 m for the equipment
which included rotary hammers, fork lifters and asphalt rollers etc. These additions were made in light of the
significant increase in the operational activity post COVID-19. The Company also disposed of the vehicles for
the cash consideration of SAR 0.6 m.

In FY23, the Company incurred a CAPEX of SAR 3.4 m on vehicles and capital works on warehouse, vehicles
and devices to meet the project requirements from SEC.

Cash flow from financing activities

The movement in financing cash flows during the Historical Period was primarily driven by the issuance and
repayment of Murabaha loans to banks. In FY21, the Company secured Murabaha financing totaling SAR 66.9
m. In FY22, the Company obtained financing of SAR 5.0 m from its principal shareholder to manage working
capital requirements, which was subsequently repaid in FY23.

In FY23, the Company further secured Murabaha financing from other financing companies and banks to
support the execution of contractual projects and operational needs. During 1H24, the Company obtained
additional loans financing from financing companies and banks to finance the operations.

2.10 Financial Information Declarations
The members of the Board of Directors of the Company confirm that:

1. no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other non-cash compensation were granted by the
Issuer within the three years immediately preceding the application for the registration and
offer of the securities in connection with the issue or sale of any securities; and

2. there has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer
in the three financial years immediately preceding the date of filing the application for the
registration and offering of securities that are the subject of this Base Prospectus and during
the period covered in the Auditor’s report up to the date of approval of this Base Prospectus.
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3. Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of each Series of Sukuk will be used for general corporate purposes.
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4. Statements by Experts

All of the Advisors and Auditors, whose names are listed starting on pages (vi) and (xi) have given and, as
of the date of this Base Prospectus, have not withdrawn, their written consent to the publication of their
names, addresses, logos and statements attributed to each of them in this Base Prospectus, and neither
they nor their employees forming part of the team serving the Issuer, nor any of their relatives have any
shareholding or interest of any kind in the Issuer as of the date of this Base Prospectus which would impair
their independence.
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5. Declarations

The members of the Board of Directors of the Issuer declares the following:

1. no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other non-cash compensation were granted by the
Issuer within the three years immediately preceding the application for the registration and
offer of the securities in connection with the issue or the offer of any securities;

2. there has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer
in the three financial years immediately preceding the date of filing the application for the
registration and offering of securities that are the subject of this Base Prospectus and during
the period covered in the Auditor’s report up to the date of approval of this Base Prospectus;
and

3. except as otherwise described in page (v) of this Base Prospectus, neither they nor any of the
Senior Executives nor their relatives have any shareholding or interest of any kind in the Issuer.
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6. Legal Information

The Board confirms the following in relation to each Series of Sukuk to be issued under the Programme:
¢ That no issuance of Sukuk will constitute a breach of the relevant laws and regulations in the
Kingdom;

¢ That no issuance of Sukuk will constitute a breach of any contract or agreement to which the
Company is a party;

¢ That all material legal issues concerning the Issuer have been disclosed in this Base Prospectus;

¢ none of the directors, senior executives or the company secretary of the Issuer have been
subject to any bankruptcy proceedings; and

¢ none of the directors, senior executives or the company secretary of the Issuer have been
employed in a managerial or supervisory capacity by any company which has been subject
to any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings in the five years preceding the date of this Base
Prospectus.

6.1 Guarantees

The Company confirms that there are no guarantees, pledges or any similar obligations in relation to the
Sukuk.
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7. Expenses

[to be updated]
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8. Waivers

The Issuer has not applied to the Authority for any waivers from any of the regulatory requirements in
relation to this offering.
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O. Sukuk Terms and Conditions

The following is the text of the Terms and Conditions of the Sukuk which will be attached and (subject to the
provisions thereof) apply to each Global Sak.

The Applicable Final Terms in relation to any Series may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to
the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following Terms and Conditions, replace or
modify the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such Series.

Application has been made to the Authority for the application for registration and offer of Sukuk that are
the subject of this Base Prospectus and to Tadawul for the listing of such Sukuk.

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (the “Issuer”) a listed joint-stock company established pursuant to
Ministerial Resolution No.Q/5287 dated 05/01/1442H (corresponding to 24/08/2020G) and Commercial
Registration No. 1010260422 dated 07/01/1430H (corresponding to 04/01/2009G), has established a
programme (the “Programme”) for the issuance of sukuk (“Sukuk”) in series (each a “Series”) where the
aggregate nominal amount of Sukuk (the “Aggregate Nominal Amount”) that are current (as defined below)
at any time under all Series taken together does not exceed SAR 500,000,000 (numbered Condition is to the
corresponding numbered provision hereof), references to Sukuk shall be references to the sukuk which are
the subject of a final terms document (the “Applicable Final Terms”) and references to the Applicable Final
Terms are to the final terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) of that Series as completed by the Issuer and
Sukukholders’ Agent at the time of issue of the relevant Series.

The Applicable Final Terms supplement these Conditions and may specify other terms and conditions which
shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Conditions, replace or modify these
Conditions for the purposes of each Global Sak issued in respect of a Series under the Programme.

Each of the Sukuk will represent an undivided ownership interest in the Sukuk Assets (as defined below) and
will at all times rank pari passu among themselves.

Pursuant to a master declaration of agency (the “Master Declaration of Agency”) dated [*] between the
Issuer and Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company (in its capacity as agent on behalf of the Sukukholders,
the “Sukukholders’ Agent”, which expression includes any successor Sukukholders’ Agent in relation to the
Sukuk), as supplemented by a supplemental declaration of agency between the same parties in relation to
the relevant Series of Sukuk (each a “Supplemental Declaration of Agency” and together with the Master
Declaration of Agency, each a “Declaration of Agency”), the Sukukholders’ Agent will be appointed to act as
agent for and on behalf of the Sukukholders in respect of the relevant Series of Sukuk.

Each Sukukholder by subscribing to, acquiring and/or holding Sukuk shall be deemed to authorise, ratify
and approve the entry by the Sukukholders’ Agent into the Sukuk Documents (as defined below) and
agrees to the terms of each of the Sukuk Documents including, but not limited to, the appointment of the
Sukukholders’ Agent as agent of the Sukukholders in the Master Declaration of Agency. The appointment
of the Sukukholders’ Agent may be revoked or terminated (and the Sukukholders’ Agent may resign its
appointment) in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration of Agency.

Payments relating to the Sukuk will be made pursuant to a payment administration agreement (the “Payment
Administration Agreement”) dated [+] between the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent and Al Khair Capital
Saudi Arabia Company (in its capacity as payment administrator, the “Payment Administrator”, whose
address is at King Abdul Aziz Road- Al-Wizarat District - Abraj Madarat, P.O. Box: 69410, Riyadh 11547,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia).

The Sukuk of each Series (as defined below) shall form a separate series and these Conditions shall apply
mutatis mutandis separately and independently to the Sukuk of each Series and, in these Conditions, the
expressions “Sukuk”, “Sukukholders” and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Certain provisions of these Conditions are summaries of the Sukuk Documents and are subject to their
detailed provisions. The Sukukholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have
notice of, all the provisions of the Sukuk Documents applicable to them. Copies of the Sukuk Documents are
available for inspection from the Issue Date by Sukukholders during normal business hours at the specified
offices of each of the Issuer and the Sukukholders’ Agent.
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All Final Terms applicable to each Series of Sukuk are determined before the offering period through
consultation and agreement between the Issuer and Al Khair Capital. The pricing and profit rate applicable
to each Series of Sukuk, along with all other agreed terms between the Issuer and Al Khair Capital, will be
announced before the offering period. These will be specified in the Final Terms applicable to that Series,
including the determination and publication of the total applicable profit rate, profit margin, maturity date,
and any Issuer Call Option related to the relevant Series for potential investors before the offering period,
along with all other information and terms included in the Final Terms applicable to that Series of Sukuk.

Factors determining the pricing of the profit rate for each Series of Sukuk include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1. The profit margin determined based on certain factors, including but not limited to, the Issuer’s
risk, market conditions, the Issuer’s credit rating, the sovereign risk premium of Saudi Arabia,
any additional risk premiums related to the Issuer’s activity, the Issuer’s financial condition
and performance, maturity period, redemption premium, any Issuer Call Option, any liquidity
premium, and any initial issuance premium for the relevant Series of Sukuk; and

2. Any index rate agreed upon between the Issuer and Al Khair Capital to be applied to the total
profit rate, such as, but not limited to, the yield on Saudi government sukuk denominated in
Saudi Riyals for the period agreed upon between the Issuer and Al Khair Capital.

The Issuer is committed to announcing to potential investors before the offering period all the above-
mentioned information and any other factors on which the pricing of the Sukuk depends in relation to the
relevant Series of issuance and all other terms to be included in the Final Terms applicable to each Series of
Sukuk.

The Issuer is also committed to providing all information that enables potential investors to make an informed
decision, with the importance of referring to the sections “Important Notice” on page (i) and “Risk Factors”
of this Prospectus before making any investment decision in the Sukuk offered under this Prospectus.

9.1 Definitions

Words and expressions defined in the Applicable Final Terms, the Master Declaration of Agency and the
Payment Administration Agreement shall have the same meanings where used in these Conditions unless the
context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of any inconsistency
between any such documents and the Applicable Final Terms, the Applicable Final Terms will prevail. In
addition, the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Account Bank” means Arab National Bank, and its address at Riyadh, King Faisal Street, AIMurabba P.O.Box
56921 Riyadh 11564;

“Agents” means the Sukukholder’s Agent and the Payment Administrator and “Agent” means any one of the
Agents;

“Aggregate Nominal Amount” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”, as reduced from time
to time for any Series where the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising in accordance with Condition
9.12 (Redemption of Sukuk);

“Applicable Final Terms” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;
“Authority” means the Capital Market Authority (CMA) of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia;

“Authorised Signatory” means the person or persons duly authorised by the Issuer to sign documents and
to do other acts and things on behalf the Issuer or any other person or persons duly notified by the Issuer to
the Sukukholders’ Agent as being an authorised signatory pursuant to Clause 7(k) (Authorised Signatories)
of the Declaration of Agency;

“Available Amount” means, in relation to each Series:

a. in the period from and including the Issue Date to but excluding the first Periodic Distribution
Date, an amount that is equal to the first Periodic Distribution Amount due under the Sukuk;
and

b. thereafter, during each Periodic Distribution Period, an amount that is equal to the Periodic
Distribution Amount falling due on the next Periodic Distribution Date;
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“Base Prospectus” means the base prospectus dated 07/07/1446H (corresponding 07/01/2025) relating to
the Programme, as amended and updated from time to time, including all information and supplements
which form part of the Base Prospectus;

“Board or BoD” Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company’s Board of Directors;

“Business Day” means a day on which banks are open for general business in the locations specified in the
Applicable Final Terms;

“Business Day Convention” means, where a Business Day Convention is specified in the Applicable Final
Terms and (a) if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which a Periodic
Distribution Date or Partial Periodic Distribution Date should occur or (b) if any Periodic Distribution Date
or Partial Periodic Distribution Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the
Business Day Convention specified is:

a. the Following Business Day Convention, such Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Periodic
Distribution Date (as applicable) shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

b. the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Periodic Distribution Date or Partial
Periodic Distribution Date (as applicable) shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business
Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Periodic
Distribution Date or Partial Periodic Distribution Date (as applicable) shall be brought forward
to the immediately preceding Business Day; or

c. the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Periodic
Distribution Date (as applicable) shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding
Business Day.

“Capital Market Law” means the Capital Market Law issued by Royal Decree No. M/30 dated 02/06/1424H
(corresponding to 31/07/2003G), amended by the CMA Board Resolution No. (3-45-2018) dated 07/08/1439H
(corresponding to 23/04/2018G) and amended by the Authority’s Board Resolution No. (104-1-2019) dated
02102/1441H (corresponding to 30/09/2019G) pursuant to Royal Decree No. (M/16) dated 19/01/1441H
(corresponding to 18/ 09/2019G)’

“Calculation Date” means 30 June and 31 December in each year.

“Change of Control Event” means any change in the direct or indirect ownership of the Issuer which would
result in any person having the ability to, directly or indirectly, influence the actions or decisions of the Issuer,
whether alone or with a relative or affiliate, through: (a)holding thirty per cent. (30%) or more of the voting
rights in the Issuer; or (b)having the right to appoint thirty per cent. (30%) or more of the members of the
governing body of the Issuer.

“Change of Control Notice” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.12(d)

“Change of Control Put Date” shall be the tenth (10th) day after the expiry of the Change of Control Put
Period provided that, if such day is not a Business Day, the Change of Control Put Date shall be the next
following Business Day;

“Change of Control Put Period” means the period of 30 days commencing on the date that a Change of
Control Notice is given;

“Change of Control Put Right Deferred Sale Price” means, at any time in respect of a Series of Sukuk in
respect of which a Change of Control Put Right is specified as applicable in the Applicable Final Terms, an
amount equal to the Relevant Percentage of the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding of such
Series;

“Change of Control Sukuk” means, in respect of a Series of Sukuk, those Sukuk in respect of which a Change
of Control Put Right is exercised;

“Closed Period” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.3.3 (Transfer Record Dates and Closed Periods);

“Corporate Governance Regulations” means The Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital
Market Authority pursuant to Resolution Number 8-16-2017 as amended by Resolution of the Board of the
Capital Market Authority Number 8-5-2023 dated 25/6/1444H (corresponding to 18/1/2023G);

“Collection Account” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5 (d)(Murabaha Transactions);

“Committees” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.19 (Governing Law and Jurisdiction);
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“Commodities” has the meaning given to it in the Master Murabaha Agreement;

“Companies Regulations” means the regulations for companies in Saudi Arabia promulgated pursuant to
Council of Ministers Resolution No. 678 dated 29/11/1443H (corresponding to 28 June 2022G) and Royal
Decree No. M/132 dated 01/12/1443H (corresponding to 30 June 2022G), as amended:;

“Conditions” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;
“Confirmation of Terms” means a notice to be delivered to the Purchaser by the Seller confirming:

a. the terms upon which the Commodities that were the subject of the relevant Purchase Order
With Promise To Purchase were purchased by the Seller; and

b. the terms which will apply to the Murabaha Contract to be entered into between the Seller and
the Purchaser in respect of such Commodities,

such notice to be substantially in the form set out in Schedule 2 (Form of Confirmation of Terms) of the
Master Murabaha Agreement or in such other form as the Purchaser and the Seller shall agree;

“Cost Price” means, with respect to each Series of Sukuk and the corresponding Murabaha Transaction, the
aggregate amount payable in Saudi Arabian Riyals to the relevant Supplier by or on behalf of the Seller for
the purchase of the Commodities from the relevant Supplier by the Seller as set forth in item 3(c) of the
Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase and which amount shall be equal to the relevant Murabaha Capital;

“Connected Party” means:

a. each Permitted Shareholder; and

b. each of the Issuer, any of the Issuer’s Subsidiaries (if any), any holding company of the Issuer
from time to time, any director, officer, employee, consultant, agent, advisor or shareholder of
any thereof or any family member of any such director, officer, employee, consultant, agent,
advisor or shareholder or any company or other entity controlled by any such director, officer,
employee, consultant, agent, advisor, shareholder or family member. For this purpose, control
means, in respect of a company or other entity, the ability to direct its affairs and/or control the
composition of its board of directors or equivalent body;

“Consolidated Net Assets of the Issuer” means the aggregate of the Issuer’s total assets less the aggregate
of the Issuer’s total liabilities, in each case, as such terms are used in and as determined by reference to the
Financial Statements;

“Debt to Asset Ratio” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the ratio calculated by dividing (a) Total
Borrowings by (b) Total Assets.

“Declaration of Agency” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;

“Deferred Sale Price” means, with respect to each Series of Sukuk and the corresponding Murabaha
Transaction, the amount set out as item [f] of the Confirmation of Terms being an amount equal to the
aggregate of the relevant Cost Price of the Commodities and the relevant Murabaha Profit;

“Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amount” means, in respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale
Price Payment Basis is specified as Amortising, such portion of the Deferred Sale Price as is due and payable
on each Deferred Sale Price Payment Date as set out as item [h] of the Confirmation of Terms;

“Deferred Sale Price Outstanding Instalment Amount” means, at any time in respect of each Series of Sukuk
where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as Amortising, such portion of the Total Murabaha
Deferred Sale Price Outstanding as is due and payable on each subsequent Deferred Sale Price Payment
Date (each such portion being an amount equal to the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding at
such time divided by the number of Deferred Sale Price Payment Dates remaining in respect of such Series
at such time);

“Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis” means the basis of repayment of the Deferred Sale Price as specified
in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Deferred Sale Price Payment Date(s)” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Dealers” Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company together with any other Dealers appointed in accordance
with the Programme Agreement;

“Early Redemption Amount” means the amount specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms;
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“EBITDA” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the operating profit before taxation:

a. without inclusion of any commission, fees, discounts, prepayment fees, premiums or charges
and other finance payments whether paid or payable;

b. without inclusion of any amount attributable to the amortisation, depreciation or impairment of
assets (and taking no account of the reversal of any previous impairment charge made in that
specified period);

c. without inclusion of any unrealised gains or losses on any financial instrument (other than
that part of any derivative instrument that is accounted for in the operating profit on a hedge
accounting basis under the accounting standards applicable); and

d. without inclusion of any gain arising from an upward revaluation of any other asset at anytime,

in each case, to the extent added, deducted or taken into account, as the case may be, for the purposes of
determining adjusted operating profits before taxation and without duplication.

“Event of Default” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
“Event of Default Date” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
“Event of Default Notice” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
“Exercise Notice” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
“Expiry Date” means the date specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms;
“Extraordinary Resolution” has the meaning given to it in the Declaration of Agency;

“Financial Statements” means, with respect to any period, the audited (with respect to annual only) or
unaudited financial statements of the Issuer for such period and, where no period is specified, shall be
in reference to the most recent financial year or interim financial period of the Issuer for which audited
financial statements or unaudited financial statements (as applicable) are available (in each case, prepared
on a consolidated basis);

“Finance Charges Coverage Ratio” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the ratio calculated by
dividing (A) EBITDA by (B) Finance Charges.

“Finance Charges” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the aggregate amount of the non-
capitalised commission (including the commission element of leasing and hire purchase payments), fees,
discounts and other finance payments or accruals to third parties (including any commission, fees, discounts
and other finance payments or accruals to third parties under any non-capitalised commission rate hedging
arrangement in respect of Financial Indebtedness but after deducting any commission, fees, discounts
and other finance payments received or accrued as receivable by the Issuer under any non-capitalised
commission rate hedging instrument in respect of Financial Indebtedness) less any commission receivable
by the Issuer on any deposit or bank account, provided that the amounts of any payments or accruals
under any commission rate hedging arrangements shall be determined by reference to the ongoing payment
obligations under such arrangements and not any amount payable on any early termination or cancellation
of such arrangements unless the Issuer intends to do so terminate or cancel such arrangements or such
arrangements are terminated or cancelled.

“Financial Indebtedness” means any indebtedness for or in respect of:

moneys borrowed,;

any acceptance credit (including any dematerialised equivalent);

any bond, note, debenture, loan stock, sukuk or other similar instrument;
any redeemable preference share;

any agreement treated as a finance or capital lease in accordance with Saudi GAAP or IFRS;

=0 00 T ®

receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the extent they are sold on a non
recourse basis);

g. any other transaction (including any forward sale or purchase agreement) which has the
commercial effect of a borrowing;

h. any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection against or benefit from
fluctuation in any rate or price (and, when calculating the value of any derivative transaction,
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only the marked to market value will be taken into account);

i. any counter indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, indemnity, bond, sukuk, standby or
documentary letter of credit or any other instrument issued by a bank or financial institution;
and

j. any liability in respect of any guarantee or indemnity for any of the items referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (i) (inclusive) above.

“Kingdom” means Kingdom of Saudia Arabia;
“Global Sak” means the registered form global Sak representing the Sukuk;

“Issue Date” means, in respect of each Series of Sukuk, the date specified as such in the Applicable Final
Terms;

“Issuer” or the “Company” means Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company”;
“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards;

“Investor Application Forms” means the form required to be submitted to the Dealer or Dealers or the
receiving bank (banks) depending on the situation as determined by the Arranger;

“Income Tax Law” means the Income Tax Law issued by a Royal Decree no. M/1 dated 15/1/1425H (as
amended) and the implementing regulations thereof;

“Liability” means any loss, damage, cost, fee, charge, claim, demand, expense, judgment, action, proceeding
or other liability whatsoever (including, without limitation, in respect of taxes, duties, zakat, levies, imposts
and other charges) and including any value added tax or similar tax charged or chargeable in respect thereof
and properly incurred legal fees and expenses;

“Long-Term Debt to Equity Ratio” means the ratio calculated by dividing (A) Long Term Liabilities by (B)
Total Equity.

“Long Term Liabilities” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the aggregate of all liabilities (including,
without limitation, any contingent liabilities) of the Issuer falling due on demand later than twelve (12) months
as at the last day of such Measurement Period.

“Material Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary of the Issuer, present or future, the aggregate assets of which
exceed an amount equal to five per cent. (5%) of the Consolidated Net Assets of the Issuer, as determined by
reference to the Financial Statements;

“Master Murabaha Agreement” means the master murabaha agreement dated [¢]H (corresponding to
[*1G) between the Issuer (as Purchaser), and the Sukukholders’ Agent(as Seller for and on behalf of the
Sukukholders);

“Measurement Period” means, in relation to each Calculation Date, the twelve-month period preceding such
Calculation Date;

“Ministry of Human Resources and Social Development (MHRSD)” means the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Development in the Kingdom.;

“Ministry of Municipal, Rural Affairs and Housing” means the by Ministry of Municipal, Rural Affairs and
Housing in the Kingdom;

“Ministry of Commerce” means the Ministry of Commerce in the Kingdom;
“Mudaraba” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(Sukuk Assets);

“Mudaraba Agreement” means the mudaraba agreement dated [*]H (corresponding to [*]G) between [¢],
the Issuer (acting as Mudareb) and the Sukukholders’ Agent acting as rab-al-maal and as agent on behalf of
the Sukukholders ;

“Mudaraba Assets” means the Shari’'ah-compliant business activities of the Issuer and the applicable Available
Amount;

“Mudaraba Capital” means the amount specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms, being equal to an
amount which is not less than 51%. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk;
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“Mudaraba Income” means the income received by the Mudareb in respect of the Mudaraba Assets, less total
costs (consisting of direct costs and allocated costs of such activities) relating thereto;

“Mudaraba Profit” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(b) (Mudaraba Assets);

“Mudareb” means Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company in its capacity as mudareb under the Mudaraba
Agreement;

“Mudareb Profit” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(b) (Mudaraba Assets);

“Murabaha Capital” means the amount specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms, being equal to an
amount which is not more than 49%. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk;

“Murabaha Contract” means a contract created between the Seller and the Purchaser pursuant to Clause 4(e)
(Murabaha Contract) of the Master Murabaha Agreement by the exchange of a Notice of Offer to Purchase
and a Notice of Acceptance of Offer between the Seller and the Purchaser;

“Murabaha Facility” has the meaning given toitin Condition 9.5(e) (Participation in purchase of Commodities);

“Murabaha Percentage” means the percentage, not to exceed 99%, of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the
Sukuk of that Series specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Murabaha Profit” means, with respect to each Series of Sukuk and the corresponding Murabaha Transaction,
an amount equal to:

(i) the amount equal to the Murabaha Percentage; less
(ii) the relevant Cost Price,

as set out as item (e) of the Confirmation of Terms;

“Murabaha Transaction” means a transaction completed by:

a. the delivery of a duly completed Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase by the Purchaser
to the Seller;

b. the delivery of a Confirmation of Terms by the Seller to the Purchaser in respect of the Purchase
Order With Promise To Purchase described in paragraph (a) above and its acknowledgment
and confirmation by the Purchaser;

c. the delivery of a Notice of Offer to Purchase by the Purchaser to the Seller in respect of the
Confirmation of Terms described in paragraph (b) above and the delivery of the corresponding
Notice of Acceptance of Offer by the Seller to the Purchaser; and

d. the purchase of the Commodities by the Seller from the relevant Supplier and the conclusion of
the corresponding Murabaha Contract between the Seller and the Purchaser for the purchase
of such Commodities by the Purchaser from the Seller;

“Notice of Acceptance of Offer” means a notice to be delivered to the Purchaser by the Seller confirming
the Seller’s acceptance of the Purchaser’s Notice of Offer to Purchase for the relevant Deferred Sale Price,
such notice to be substantially in the form set out in Part 2 of Schedule 3 (Form of Notice of Acceptance of
Offer) of the Master Murabaha Agreement or in such other form as the Purchaser and the Seller shall agree;

“Notice of Offer to Purchase” means a notice to be delivered by the Purchaser to the Seller offering to
purchase the relevant Commodities from the Seller on the terms set out in the relevant Confirmation of
Terms, such notice to be substantially in the form set out in Part 1 of Schedule 3 (Form of Notice of Offer
to Purchase) of the Master Murabaha Agreement or in such other form as the Purchaser and the Seller shall
agree;

“Non-Recourse Project Financing” means any financing of all or part of the costs of the acquisition,
construction or development or any project, provided that: (1) any Security Interest given by the Issuer
is limited solely to assets of the project; (2) the person providing such financing expressly agrees to limit
its recourse to the project financed and the revenues derived from such project as the principal source of
payment for the moneys advanced; and (3) there is no other recourse to the Issuer in respect of any default
by any person under the financing;

“Offer Period” means each offer period for the relevant Series of the Sukuk, which will be specified in the
Applicable Final Terms;
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“OSCO Rules” means the Rules on the Offer of Securities and Continuing Obligations” as issued by the
Board of the Capital Market Authority (the “Authority”) resolution number 3-123-2017 dated 09/04/1439H
(corresponding to 27/12/2017G), as amended by its Resolution numbered 3-114-2024 dated 04/04/1446H
(corresponding to 07/10/2024G);

“On-Sale Agent” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(e) (Participation in purchase of Commodities);

“On-Sale Agency Agreement” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(e) (Participation in purchase of
Commodities);

“Optional Redemption Date” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.12(b)(Redemption at the option of
the Issuer);

“Partial Periodic Distribution Amount” means, in relation to any Partial Periodic Distribution Date, an amount
calculated as follows:

a. where the Fixed Periodic Distribution Provisions are applicable (delete if not applicable):

PxRxD
N

where:

= the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series as are current on the Transfer Record Date immediately
preceding the Partial Periodic Distribution Date;

R= the Profit Rate;

D = the number of days from (and including) the immediately preceding Periodic Distribution Date to (but
excluding) the Partial Periodic Distribution Date; and

N = the number of days from (and including) the immediately preceding Periodic Distribution Date to (but
excluding) the next scheduled Periodic Distribution Date calculated on the basis of a 360-day year;
and

b. where the Floating Periodic Distribution Provisions are applicable (delete if not applicable):

P x (S+M) x D
N

where:

= the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series as are current on the Transfer Record Date immediately
preceding the Partial Periodic Distribution Date;

S= the Reference Rate for the Periodic Distribution Period in which the Partial Periodic Distribution Date
falls;

M= the Margin;

D = the number of days between the immediately preceding Periodic Distribution Date and Partial Periodic
Distribution Date; and

N = the number of days between the immediately preceding Periodic Distribution Date and the next
scheduled Periodic Distribution Date calculated on the basis of a 360- day year;

“Partial Periodic Distribution Date” means any Redemption Date, Sukukholders’ Put Right Date or Change of
Control Put Date (as the case may be) or other date on which the relevant Sukuk are redeemed in full which,
in each case, is not also a Periodic Distribution Date, subject to adjustment in accordance with the applicable
Business Day Convention;

“Partial Periodic Distribution Period” means the period from and including the last Periodic Distribution Date
to but excluding the relevant Partial Periodic Distribution Date;

“Partial Redemption Date” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Payment Administration Agreement” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;
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“Payment Administrator” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;

“Periodic Distribution Amount” means the amount expected to be paid by the Issuer as further described
in Condition 9.7 (Fixed Periodic Distribution Provisions) or Condition 9.8 (Floating Periodic Distribution
Provisions) as applicable;

“Periodic Distribution Date” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms, subject to Condition
9.7(c)(Cessation of accrual) or Condition 9.8(d) (Cessation of accrual), as applicable;

“Periodic Distribution Determination Date” means the date specified in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Periodic Distribution Period” means the period from and including the Issue Date to but excluding the first
Periodic Distribution Date, and each successive period from and including a Periodic Distribution Date to but
excluding the next succeeding Periodic Distribution Date;

“Person” means any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, association,
organisation, state or agency of a state or other entity, whether or not having separate legal personality;

“Principal” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(e) (Participation in purchase of Commodities);
“Programme” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;

“Programme Agreement” means the programme agreement dated [+] (corresponding to []) between the
Issuer and the arrangers and initial dealers named therein;

“Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase” means a notice to be sent by the Purchaser to the Seller
requesting that the Seller purchase the Commodities which will subsequently be purchased by the Purchaser
from the Seller, such notice to be substantially in the form set out in Schedule 1 (Form of Purchase Order
With Promise To Purchase) of the Master Murabaha Agreement or in such other form as the Purchaser and
the Seller shall agree;

“Purchaser” means Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company in its capacity as purchaser under the Master
Murabaha Agreement;

“Permitted Financial Indebtedness” means:

a. any Financial Indebtedness outstanding on the Issue Date of the first Series of Sukuk;

b. Financial Indebtedness owed by the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary of the Issuer to the Issuer or
any other Material Subsidiary of the Issuer (as applicable); provided however, that any subsequent
disposition, pledge or transfer of such Financial Indebtedness (other than to the Issuer or a Material
Subsidiary of the Issuer) shall be deemed, in each case, to constitute the incurrence of such Financial
Indebtedness by the Issuer thereof;

c. Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer or a Material Subsidiary of the Issuer (if any) incurred and
outstanding on or prior to the date on which such an entity became a Material Subsidiary of the Issuer
(other than Financial Indebtedness Incurred in connection with, or to provide all or any portion of
the funds or credit support utilised to consummate, the transaction or series of related transactions
pursuant to which such an entity became a Material Subsidiary of the Issuer);

“Permitted Security Interest” means:

a. any Security Interest arising by operation of law and in the ordinary course of trading;

any Security Interest existing on the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first Series of
Sukuk;

c. any Security Interest granted to secure a Non-Recourse Project Financing or to secure any Financial
Indebtedness incurred in connection with a Securitisation;

d. any Security Interest securing the Financial Indebtedness of a person existing at the time that such
person is merged into, or consolidated with, the Issuer provided that such Security Interest was not
created in contemplation of such merger or consolidation and does not extend to any other assets or
property of the Issuer;

e. any Security Interest existing on any property or assets prior to the acquisition thereof by the Issuer
and not created in contemplation of such acquisition;

f. any renewal of or substitution for any Security Interest permitted by any of paragraphs (a) to (c)
(inclusive) of this definition, provided that with respect to any such Security Interest the principal
amount secured has not increased and the Security Interest has not been extended to any additional
assets (other than the proceeds of such assets);
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“Permitted Shareholders” means the shareholders of the Issuer as at the Issue Date and any of their legal
heirs authorised under the laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia to hold shares in the Issuer and Permitted
Shareholder shall mean any one of them, as applicable;

“Qualified Person” means:

a. Any natural person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the
Depositary Centre;

b. Any legal person who has an investment account in the Kingdom and an account at the
Depositary Centre; and

c. Foreign natural and legal persons in accordance with the Rules for Foreign Investment in
Securities and any other relevant laws and regulations.

“Redemption Basis” means the basis of redemption of the Sukuk and of repayment of the Sukuk Capital
specified in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Redemption Date” means the Expiry Date, the relevant Optional Redemption Date (where applicable), the
Tax Redemption Date or an Event of Default Date;

“Reference Banks” means each of three (3) banks licensed by the Saudi Central Bank and engaged in the
Riyadh interbank market selected by or on behalf of the Payment Administrator from time to time and
Reference Bank shall mean any one of them as the context may require.

“Register’” means the registry system administered by the Registrar or any successor entity;

“Registrar” means the Securities Depository Center Company (Edaa) (and includes any successor registrar
as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of the registry and trading agreement to be entered
into between the Issuer and the Registrar in relation to the Sukuk on or about the Issue Date) whose address
is at Tawuniya Towers, Unit Number: 15, King Fahd Road - Olaya 6897, Riyadh 12211 - 338, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia;

“Relevant Obligations” means, in respect of any Sukuk of a Series, all obligations of the Issuer to make
payments to the Sukukholders of the relevant Sukuk of: (i) the Periodic Distribution Amounts and/or (as
applicable) Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts due and owing in respect of such Sukuk; (ii) any part of
the Sukuk Capital, Sukuk Capital Instalment Amounts and/or Early Redemption Amount in respect of such
Sukuk; and (iii) each other amount payable by the Issuer to the Sukukholders under the Conditions and any
Sukuk Document in respect of such Sukuk;

“Relevant Indebtedness” means any present or future indebtedness which is in the form of, or represented
or evidenced by, bonds, notes, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, Sukuk Obligations in respect of
certificates or other securities, in each case which for the time being are, or are intended to be or are capable
of being, quoted, listed, dealt in or traded on any stock exchange, overthe-counter or other securities market;

“Relevant Percentage” means, with respect to each Series of Sukuk, the percentage calculated as follows:

p
— X1
CXOO

where

P = the Aggregate Nominal Amount of, as the case may be, the relevant: (i) Sukukholder Put Right Sukuk;
or (ii) Change of Control Sukuk; and

C= the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the then current Sukuk of the Series;
“Relevant Screen Page” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms;
“Required Amount” means:

a. inrespect of each Periodic Distribution Date, the amount required by the Issuer in order for the Issuer
to pay in full, when due, the applicable Periodic Distribution Amount;

b. in respect of any Partial Periodic Distribution Date, the amount required by the Issuer in order for the
Issuer to pay in full, when due, the Partial Periodic Distribution Amount;

c. if the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising, in respect of each Partial Redemption Date:

the amount required by the Issuer in order for the Issuer to pay in full, when due, the relevant Sukuk
Capital Instalment Amount in respect of the aggregate of all Sukuk that are current; less
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ii. the Deferred Sale Price Outstanding Instalment Amount due on the Deferred Sale Price Payment
Date falling on such Partial Redemption Date (to the extent that the same has been paid by the
Purchaser to the Sukuk Account);

d. in respect of any Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change of Control Put Date:

the amount required by the Issuer in order for the Issuer to pay in full, when due, the relevant Early
Redemption Amount in respect of the relevant Sukukholder Put Right Sukuk or Change of Control
Sukuk (as applicable); less

ii.  the relevant Sukukholder Put Right Deferred Sale Price or Change of Control Put Right Deferred
Sale Price (as applicable) (to the extent that the same has been paid by the Purchaser to the Sukuk
Account); and

e. inrespect of the applicable Redemption Date:
the amount required by the Issuer in order for the Issuer to pay in full, when due, the Total Sukuk
Capital Outstanding; less

ii. the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding for such Series of Sukuk (to the extent that
the same has been paid by the Purchaser to the Sukuk Account);

“Required Sukukholders”, as of any date, means the Sukukholders holding more than 50%. of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount of the Series as are current on such date;

“SAR” or “Saudi Riyals” means the lawful currency of Saudi Arabia;

“The Saudi Organization for Auditors and Accountants (SOCPA)” means the Saudi Organization for
Chartered and Professional Accountants in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. (Formerly the Saudi Organization
for Certified Public Accountants);

“Saudi GAAP” means accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as
promulgated by SOCPA;

“Saudi Authority for Intellectual Property (SAIP)” means the Saudi Authority for Intellectual Property in the
Kingdom;

“Saudi Ports Authority” means the Saudi Ports Authority in the Kingdom;
“Securitisation” means any securitisation of existing or future assets and/or revenues, provided that:
a. any Security Interest given by the Issuer in connection therewith is limited solely to the assets

and/or revenues which are the subject of the securitisation;

b. each person participating in such securitisation expressly agrees to limit its recourse to the
assets and/or revenues so securitised as the sole source of repayment for the money advanced
or payment of any other liability; and

c. there is no other recourse to the Issuer in respect of any default by any person under the
securitisation;

“Screen Rate” means the rate appearing on the Relevant Screen Page;

“Security Interest” means any mortgage, charge (fixed or floating), pledge, encumbrance, lien or
hypothecation, any taking of title, reservation of title, set-off or trust arrangement for the purpose of taking
security, any assignment by way of security or any other security interest securing any obligation of any
person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect including, without limitation, anything
analogous to any of the foregoing under the laws of any jurisdiction;

“Seller” means the Sukukholder’s Agent in its capacity as seller (for and on behalf of the Sukukholders’)
under the Master Murabaha Agreement;

“Series” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;

“Settlement Date” means, with respect to the Commodities which are the subject of a Purchase Order With
Promise To Purchase in relation to a Series of Sukuk, the date for the payment of the Cost Price by or on
behalf of the Seller to the relevant Supplier, such date being the Issue Date of the relevant Series of Sukuk
and as specified in the relevant Purchase Order With Promise To Purchase;

“Shari’ah Committee” means, Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company’s Shari’ah Committee
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“Shortfall” means a shortfall arising one (1) Business Day prior to any Periodic Distribution Date, Partial
Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put
Date or the applicable Redemption Date (after payment in each case into the relevant Sukuk Account of
the applicable Mudaraba Profit and all other amounts payable into the Sukuk Account pursuant to any other
Sukuk Document on such date) between:

a. the amounts standing to the credit of the relevant Sukuk Account; and

b. the Required Amounts relating to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Periodic
Distribution Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put
Date or Redemption Date, as applicable;

“Specified Denominations” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms;
“Subsidiary” means in relation to any Person, any entity:

a. which is controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person;

b. more than 50% of the issued share capital or ownership or other equity interests of which is
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by such Person; or

c. whose financial statements at any time are required by law or in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles to be fully consolidated with those of such Person.

For an entity to be “controlled” by a Person means that such Person (whether directly or indirectly and
whether by the ownership of share capital (or equivalent), the possession of voting power, contract, trust
or otherwise) has the power to appoint and/or remove all or the majority of the members of the board of
directors or other governing body of that entity or otherwise controls, or has the power to control, the affairs
and policies of that entity;

“Sukuk Account” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(a) (Sukuk Assets);
“Sukuk Assets” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(a) (Sukuk Assets);

“Sukuk Capital” means the amount specified as such in the Applicable Final Terms, being equal to the
Aggregate Nominal Amount of the relevant Series of Sukuk;

“Sukuk Obligation” means any undertaking or other obligation to pay any money given in connection with
the issue of sukuk or other instruments intended to be issued in compliance with the principles of Shari’ah,
whether or not in return for consideration of any kind;

“Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount” means, in respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Redemption Basis is
specified as Amortising, such portion of the Sukuk Capital as is due and payable on each Partial Redemption
Date as specified in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Sukuk Proceeds Account” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.5(a) (Sukuk Assets);
“Sukukholder Put Right Date” has the meaning given to it in the Applicable Final Terms;

“Sukukholder Put Right Deferred Sale Price” means, at any time in respect of a Series of Sukuk in respect of
which a Sukukholder Put Right is specified as applicable in the Applicable Final Terms, an amount equal to
the Relevant Percentage of the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding of such Series;

“Sukukholder Put Right Sukuk” means, in respect of a Series of Sukuk, those Sukuk in respect of which a
Sukukholder Put Right is exercised;

“Sukukholders” means the Person in whose name any of the Sukuk is for the time being registered in the
Register (or, in the case of a joint holding, the first named thereof);

“Sukukholders’ Agent” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;
“Supplemental Declaration of Agency” has the meaning given to it above under “Introduction”;

“Supplier” means the vendor(s) of the Commodities which are the subject of the Purchase Order With
Promise To Purchase;

“Sole Arranger” Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company;

“Tadawul” means the Saudi Stock Exchange;
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“Taxes” means any present or future taxes, zakat, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever
nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or on behalf of Saudi Arabia or any political
subdivision thereof or any authority therein or thereof having power to tax;

“Term” means the term of any Murabaha Transaction, as such period may be reduced on the occurrence of
the Redemption Date in accordance with the terms of the Master Murabaha Agreement;

“Total Assets” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the aggregate of the Issuer’s total assets, as
such term is used in and as determined by reference to the financial statements;

“Total Equity” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the capital, statutory reserves, general reserves
and retained earnings of the Issuer and, to the extent accounted for as equity in accordance with Saudi
GAAP, the equity element with respect to any financial instrument;

“Total Borrowings” means, in respect of any Measurement Period, the total of long-term borrowings and
short-term borrowings from financial institutions and including the amounts in respect of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount of any Sukuk;

“Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding” means, at any time in respect of a Series of Sukuk, the
amount of the applicable Deferred Sale Price that has not yet been paid by the Purchaser to the Seller;

“Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding” means, at any time in respect of a Series of Sukuk, the amount of the
Sukuk Capital (including, if applicable and without double counting, any Sukuk Capital Instalment Amounts)
that has not yet been paid to the Sukukholders; and

“Transfer Record Date” has the meaning given to it in Condition 9.3 (Transfers of Sukuk)

“General Assembly” means the Issuer’s General Assembly of shareholders convened in accordance with
the Companies Law and the Bylaws of the Issuer, which may be an Ordinary General Assembly and/or an
Extraordinary General Assembly;

“Ordinary General Assembly” means an Ordinary General Assembly of the Issuer’s Shareholders;
“The Extraordinary General Assembly” means an Extraordinary General Assembly of the Issuer’s Shareholders.

“Value Added Tax or VAT” The Council of Ministers decided on 02/05/1438H (corresponding to 30/01/2017G)
to approve the unified agreement for VAT for the GCC countries, which came into force on January 1, 2018G,
as a new tax to be added to the system of taxes and other fees to be implemented by specific sectors in the
Kingdom, and in the GCC countries. The amount of this tax is (5%), and a number of products (such as basic
foods and services related to health care and education) were exempted from VAT.

The Board of Directors of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority Resolution No. (20-3-2) dated 17/10/1441H
(corresponding to 09/06/2020G) amended the amount of VAT to become 15% starting from 01/07/2020G
according to Article (5) of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority’s Implementing Regulations issued by
Council of Ministers’ Resolution No. (465) dated 20/07/1438H (corresponding to 17/04/2017G), and after
perusal of Royal Order No. (A/638) dated 15/10/1441H (corresponding to 07/06/2020G) issued regarding the
amendment of the VAT to increase the basic tax rate to 15% starting from July 1, 2020G;

“Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA)” means the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia;

“H” Hijri calendar; and

“G” Gregorian calendar.
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Without prejudice to its status for any other purpose, a Sukuk shall be considered to be “current” unless
it has been redeemed pursuant to Condition 9.12 (Redemption of Sukuk), purchased under Condition 9.10
(Purchase And Cancellation Of Sukuk) or redeemed under Condition 9.13 (Events of Default) and in each
case has been cancelled in accordance with Condition 9.10(b)(Cancellation); provided however, that, for
the purposes of: (i) ascertaining the right to attend and vote at any meeting of Sukukholders; (ii) Condition
9.15(a) (Meetings of Sukukholders) and Schedule 3 of the Declaration of Agency (Provisions for Meetings
of Sukukholders); (iii) determining the Required Sukukholders for the purposes of Condition 9.13 (Events of
Default); (iv) Condition 9.14 (Enforcement and Exercise of Rights) and clause 8.5 (Enforcement and Exercise
of Rights) of the Declaration of Agency; (v) any discretion, power or authority (whether contained in these
Conditions or any Sukuk Document or vested by operation of law) which the Sukukholders’ Agent is required,
expressly or impliedly, to exercise in or by reference to the interests of the Sukukholders or any of them.

Any determination by the Sukukholders’ Agent that any event, circumstance, matter or thing is, in its opinion,
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Sukukholders or any of them, those Sukuk (if any) which are for
the time being held by or for the benefit of the Issuer or any Subsidiary of the Issuer shall (unless and until
ceasing to be so held) shall be deemed to not be current.

9.2 Form, Denomination and Title

9.2.1 Form and Denomination

Each Series of Sukuk will be issued in dematerialized registered form in the Specified Denomination. Each
Series of Sukuk will be collectively represented by a Global Sak which will be deposited with Edaa. Individual
Sukuk representing holdings of the Global Sak will not be issued but Sukukholders will on request be entitled
to receive a statement from the Registrar recording their holding of Sukuk. The Global Sak will represent all of
the Sukuk of each Series that are current and the ownership by the Sukukholders of an undivided ownership
interest in the Sukuk Assets

9.2.2 Title

a. The Global Sak will represent all of the Sukuk that are current in respect of the relevant Series
and the ownership by the Sukukholders of an undivided beneficial ownership interest in the
Sukuk Assets and an undivided interest in the Relevant Obligations. Each Sukukholder shall
(except as otherwise required by law) be treated as the absolute owner of such Sukuk for all
purposes regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any other interest therein.

b. The Issuer will cause the Registrar to maintain the Register. The Registrar will maintain the
Register in respect of each Series of Sukuk in accordance with the regulations and procedures
of the Registrar and Tadawul by implementing the registry system administered by the Registrar
(the “Register”). Each Sukukholder will (except as otherwise required by law) be treated as the
absolute owner of the relevant Sukuk for all purposes (regardless of any notice of ownership,
trust or any interest or any writing on, or the theft or loss of, the Global Sak) and no person will
be liable for so treating the holder of any Sukuk. Each Sukukholder will be recognised by the
Issuer as entitled to such Sukuk free from any equity, set-off or counterclaim on the part of the
Issuer against the original or any intermediate holder of the Global Sak.

9.3 Transfers of Sukuk

9.3.1 Restrictions

Subject to Condition 9.3.4 (Regulations concerning Transfers and Registrations) below, the Sukuk may be
transferred in accordance with the regulations and procedures established by the Registrar and Tadawul by
delivering to the Registrar and Tadawul such information as such regulations and procedures shall require.
The Sukuk may not be transferred unless:

a. the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk to be transferred together with any existing
holding of Sukuk by the party acquiring the Sukuk to be transferred is not less than 1,000 Saudi
riyals;

b. where not all the Sukuk held by a Sukukholder are being transferred, the Aggregate Nominal
Amount of the balance of Sukuk not transferred is not less than 1,000 Saudi riyals;

c. the transferee is a Qualified Person and

d. any applicable requirements of the KSA Regulations are complied with.
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The Sukuk will not be tradable if the Mudaraba Assets at any time comprise less than 25% of the Sukuk
Assets.

9.3.2 Transfer Charges

The transfer of Sukuk may be subject to a charge by the Registrar and Tadawul and all such charges shall
be borne solely by the transferring Sukukholder and the transferee. For the avoidance of doubt, neither
the Issuer nor the Sukukholders’ Agent shall be liable to pay any such charges imposed by the Registrar or
Tadawul.

9.3.3 Transfer Record Dates and Closed Periods

No Sukukholder may require the transfer of any Sukuk to be effected during the period starting at the
opening of business no less than seven (7) Business Days prior to a due date for payment of any Periodic
Distribution Amount, or any other principal or distribution in respect of the Sukuk or, if such a day is not a
Business Day, on the next following Business Day (a “Transfer Record Date”), and ending on (and including)
the applicable due date itself (each such period being a “Closed Period”). However, notwithstanding such
registration, all payments shall continue to be paid to such Persons as are registered as Sukukholders of the
Sukuk at the opening of business on the relevant Transfer Record Date. The Registrar may after each Issue
Date modify these Conditions insofar as they relate to the registration of transfers effected during Closed
Periods by notice to the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent and the Sukukholders.

9.3.4 Regulations concerning Transfers and Registrations

All transfers of Sukuk and entries on the Register are subject to the regulations and procedures of the
Registrar, Tadawul and the provisions of the Payment Administration Agreement, including in relation to
limitations in respect of closed periods. The regulations and procedures may be changed by the Registrar
and Tadawul, respectively, at any time when necessary.

9.4 Status

9.4.1 Status

The Sukuk constitute an undivided beneficial ownership interest in the Sukuk Assets and an undivided
interest in the Relevant Obligations and will at all times rank pari passu among themselves. The obligations
of the Issuer to the Sukukholders are not secured by any assets or security or guaranteed by a third party.

9.5 Sukuk

A. Sukuk Assets

In relation to each Series, on the Issue Date, the proceeds of the subscription of the Sukuk shall be deposited
by the Sukukholders into an account held in the name of the Sukukholders’ Agent with the Account Bank
(for and on behalf of the Sukukholders) and operated by the Sukukholders’ Agent (the “Sukuk Proceeds
Account”).

In relation to each Series, on or before the Issue Date, an account shall be established by (or on behalf of) and
held in the name of the Issuer with the Account Bank and operated by the Payment Administrator on behalf
of the Issuer (the “Sukuk Account”).

On the Issue Date, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall, from the amounts standing to the credit of the Sukuk
Proceeds Account and on the instruction of the Issuer:

i.  provide the Mudaraba Capital to or to the order of the Mudareb to apply as the capital of the
mudaraba (the “Mudaraba”) constituted by the Mudaraba Agreement and, in accordance with
the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement, the Mudareb shall invest the Mudaraba Capital in the
Mudaraba Assets; and

ii. apply the remaining amount standing to the credit of the Sukuk Proceeds Account (i.e., the
Murabaha Capital) in a Murabaha Transaction to be entered into by the Seller for and on behalf
of the Sukukholders with the Purchaser pursuant to the Master Murabaha Agreement and
Condition 9.5(d) (Murabaha Transactions).
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The “Sukuk Assets” shall comprise: (i) the Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the
Mudaraba Assets (as assessed in accordance with Condition 9.5(b) (Mudaraba Assets)); (ii) the Sukukholder’s
Agent interest as Seller (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the Murabaha Transaction (including the
Deferred Sale Price) and its rights under the Master Murabaha Agreement; (iii) the Sukukholders’ Agent’s
rights in, to and under the Sukuk Documents; (iv) any amounts standing to the credit of the Sukuk Account
and the Collection Account; and (vi) the payment obligations of the Mudareb and the Purchaser under the
Mudaraba Agreement and the Master Murabaha Agreement, respectively.

None of the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Agents and the Dealers (so long as they perform their
respective obligations under the Sukuk Documents) are responsible for the performance or the profitability
of the Sukuk Assets or for the share and amount of the distributions (if any) made to the Sukukholders.

B. Mudaraba Assets
On the Issue Date, the Mudareb shall invest the Mudaraba Capital of such Series as follows:

an amount of the Mudaraba Capital equal to the Available Amount will (for so long as the Sukuk of
such Series remain current) be invested in the Mudaraba as immediately available funds, which are
available to the Mudareb in accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement; and

ii.  the remainder of the Mudaraba Capital will be invested by the Mudareb in the Shari’ah-compliant
business activities of the Issuer.

The Mudareb and the Sukukholder’s Agent (as rab ul-maal for and on behalf of the Sukukholders) have
agreed and acknowledged in the Mudaraba Agreement that the Mudareb shall be entitled, in its sole and
absolute discretion, to: (A) use all or any part of the Mudaraba Assets (including, without limitation, the
Available Amount) as it sees fit, subject to the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement; and (B) commingle its own
assets and funds with the Mudaraba Assets.

The Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) and the Mudareb shall each have an undivided
ownership share of the Mudaraba Assets and all assets acquired from or through the Mudaraba Assets on the
basis of the sharing of profit and the bearing of losses pro rata to their respective shares.

The Mudareb shall from time to time have the right to act as mudareb for other sukukholders in connection
with other Series of Sukuk under the Programme and to invest further for its own account (whether from its
own funds or funds from other sources) and/or for other investors or sukukholders who agree to invest with it
in the Mudaraba Assets. The Sukukholder’s Agent entitlements (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) and the
Mudareb’s entitlements (for its own account and/or for the account of such other investors or sukukholders
who agree to so invest with it) to the Mudaraba Assets shall be pro rata to their respective shares from time
to time in the aggregate investment in the Mudaraba Assets.

Any debt, leverage or other financial obligation incurred by the Mudareb in any capacity before or after
the constitution of the Mudaraba (“indebtedness”) and any repayment thereof or payment in connection
therewith or if incurred after the Issue Date of the relevant Series (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any
debt service amounts):

i shall be the sole responsibility of the Mudareb and solely for its own account; and

ii. shall count towards the share of the Mudareb (for its own account) in the Mudaraba Assets.

The Mudareb is required under clause 4.1(d) of the Mudaraba Agreement to ensure at all times that an amount
equal to the applicable Available Amount for the Series is maintained as immediately available funds for the
Mudaraba and that such amount is not utilised by the Mudareb for any purpose unless such purpose is: (i)
as contemplated pursuant to clause 6.1 (Liquidation) of the Mudaraba Agreement; or (ii) otherwise expressly
permitted in writing by the Sukukholders’ Agent (acting on the basis of an Extraordinary Resolution).

The Mudareb has acknowledged and agreed in the Mudaraba Agreement that any utilisation of the Available
Amount or any part thereof in violation of clause 4.1(d) of the Mudaraba Agreement will constitute a material
breach thereof requiring compensation by the Mudareb in full for the Available Amount or (as the case may
be) the utilised portion thereof and, as a consequence of such utilisation, an amount equal to the Available
Amount or (as the case may be) the utilised portion thereof will, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default
Date, become immediately due and payable by the Mudareb to the Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit of
the Sukukholders) and will immediately be paid by the Mudareb to the Sukuk Account as Mudaraba Profit for
application in accordance with Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds).

The Mudaraba Income shall be credited to a ledger account to be maintained by the Mudareb in its books for
and on behalf of the Sukukholders (the “Collection Account”).
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For the purposes of calculating the Mudaraba Income, at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business
Day prior to each Periodic Distribution Date or any Partial Periodic Distribution Date, as the case may be, the
Mudareb shall calculate the Mudaraba Income received during the then current Periodic Distribution Period:

on the basis of a constructive liquidation of the Mudaraba Assets one (1) Business Day prior to the
relevant Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Periodic Distribution Date; and

ii. based on the Mudareb’s management accounts for the relevant period, and shall credit the same to
the Collection Account.

The proportional profit shares of the Sukukholder’s Agent (being the “Mudaraba Profit”) and the Mudareb
(being the “Mudareb Profit”) in any Mudaraba Income credited to the Collection Account as described above
shall be calculated using the ratios set out in the Applicable Final Terms.

The Mudareb shall be entitled at any time to deduct and retain the Mudareb Profit from the Collection
Account for its own account.

At or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business Day prior to each Periodic Distribution Date or any
Partial Periodic Distribution Date or Partial Redemption Date or Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change
of Control Put Date or the Redemption Date (as the case may be), the Mudareb shall apply the amounts
standing to the credit of the Collection Account (in each case only to the extent of funds available in such
Collection Account) towards any Shortfall which has not otherwise been paid in accordance with the Sukuk
Documents and thereafter on a pari passu basis as follows:

with respect to any Mudareb Profit which has not previously been deducted and retained by it as
described above, to itself to retain for its own account; and

ii. with respect to the Mudaraba Profit, to the Sukukholder’s Agent (by crediting such amounts to the
Sukuk Account) in an amount equal to: (A) the Required Amounts relating to the relevant Periodic
Distribution Date, Partial Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right
Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Redemption Date, as applicable.

Any surplus Mudaraba Profit remaining in the Collection Account after the application of the amounts
referred to above in this Condition 9.5(b) (Mudaraba Assets) shall be reinvested by the Mudareb on behalf of
the Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the Mudaraba Assets.

C. Liquidation of the Mudaraba

The Mudareb shall liquidate the Mudaraba on the applicable Redemption Date. The proceeds of such
liquidation (being the Available Amount and the then current value of the Sukukholder’s Agent’s share of the
Mudaraba Assets other than the Available Amount) shall be used by the Mudareb to pay to the Sukukholder’s
Agent any amounts due but unpaid on such Redemption Date by payment of such amounts into the Sukuk
Account at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) on the Redemption Date (but only to the extent that, at
such time on the Redemption Date, amounts are required by the Sukukholder’s Agent to be credited to
the Sukuk Account in order for the Sukukholder’s Agent to be able to pay all amounts due but unpaid to
the Sukukholders under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents in full on the Redemption Date). Any surplus
proceeds of such liquidation, after payment of the amounts (if any) described above in this Condition 9.5(c)
(Liquidation of the Mudaraba) and any amounts accruing pursuant to Condition 9.7(c) (Cessation of accrual)
or Condition 9.8(d) (Cessation of accrual) (as applicable), may be retained by the Mudareb as an incentive
fee for its own account.

D. Murabaha Transactions

On the Issue Date, the Seller, acting for and on behalf of the Sukukholders, and the Purchaser shall enter into
a Murabaha Transaction on the terms set out in the Master Murabaha Agreement.

The terms of the Murabaha Transaction shall specify, inter alia:

i.  that the Cost Price shall be equal to the Murabaha Capital;

ii.  that, subject to paragraph (vi) below, the Term shall be fixed in accordance with the Applicable Final
Terms;

iii.  that, subject to paragraph (vi) below, the Deferred Sale Price Payment Date shall be the Expiry Date;

iv.  that, subject to paragraph (vi) below, where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as
Amortising, the relevant Deferred Sale Price Payment Dates;

V. the Murabaha Profit; and
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vi.  that, on the applicable Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change of Control Put Date,
the Deferred Sale Price or, as the case may be, the applicable Sukukholder Put Right Deferred Sale
Price or Change of Control Put Right Deferred Sale Price shall become immediately due and payable.

The Deferred Sale Price (including any Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amounts) and any Sukukholder Put
Right Deferred Sale Price and/or Change of Control Put Right Deferred Sale Price (as applicable) shall be
paid by the Purchaser to the Sukuk Account.

E. Participation in purchase of Commodities

Pursuant to the Master Murabaha Agreement, the Seller will make available to the Purchaser, in respect
of the Sukuk, a murabaha based financing facility (the “Murabaha Facility”) under which the Seller agrees
to sell on behalf and for the benefit of the Sukukholders, on a murabaha basis, to the Purchaser, on the
applicable Settlement Date, certain Commodities purchased by the Seller fromm nominated Supplier(s) at a
price negotiated between the Purchaser and the Seller. Once the Seller has acquired the Commodities, the
Seller will sell the Commodities to the Purchaser on deferred payment terms, providing for the Purchaser to
pay to the Seller the Deferred Sale Price in accordance with the terms of the Master Murabaha Agreement.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as Bullet, on
the relevant Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the Purchaser shall pay to the order of the Seller, in full, the
Deferred Sale Price due on such date. In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale Price
Payment Basis is specified as Amortising, on each Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the Purchaser shall pay
to the order of the Seller, in full, the relevant Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amount due on such date.

On the occurrence of an Event of Default in relation to any Series of Sukuk and at any time during which such
Event of Default in relation to any Series of Sukuk is continuing, the Seller may demand that the Purchaser
immediately pay the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding in full in relation to that Series of Sukuk
and that the Purchaser immediately pay any other sums owed to the Seller by the Purchaser under the Master
Murabaha Agreement in relation to that Series of Sukuk, whereupon the same shall become so payable.

The Purchaser shall, in any event, discharge in full on the applicable Redemption Date, directly to the Sukuk
Account, all other amounts payable by it to the Seller under the Master Murabaha Agreement in relation
to the Murabaha Transaction entered into relating to the Series of Sukuk for which the Redemption Date
has occurred (including the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding in respect of that Series of
Sukuk), by payment of such amounts into the Sukuk Account at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) on the
Redemption Date.

In respect of a redemption of less than 100% of a Series of Sukuk on a Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change
of Control Put Date, the relevant pro rata proportion of the Deferred Sale Price of a Series which shall be
payable on the relevant Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change of Control Put Date (as applicable) will be
determined by multiplying the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding of the relevant Series of
Sukuk by the applicable Relevant Percentage.

Upon purchasing any Commodities pursuant to a Murabaha Contract, the Purchaser, in its capacity as
principal (the “Principal”), will appoint Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company as its on-sale agent (the
“On-Sale Agent”) pursuant to the on-sale agency agreement (the “On-Sale Agency Agreement”) dated [*]H
(corresponding to [+]G), to sell such Commodities on the terms and conditions contained in such agreement.

F. Application of proceeds

(i) At or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business Day prior to the relevant Periodic Distribution
Date, Redemption Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put
Date and/or Partial Periodic Distribution Date (as applicable):

(A) Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (in its capacity as Mudareb) shall pay monies standing to the
credit of the Collection Account to the Sukuk Account as follows:

i. the Required Amounts relating to the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Redemption Date,
Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or
Partial Periodic Distribution Date, as applicable; and

ii. any Shortfall relating to any previous Periodic Distribution Date(s) or Partial Redemption Date(s)
which has not otherwise been paid in accordance with the Sukuk Documents,

which amount(s) shall be paid in the above order of priority, if relevant; and
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Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (in its capacity as Purchaser) shall pay the relevant Total
Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding or, as the case may be, Deferred Sale Price Outstanding
Instalment Amount, Change of Control Put Right Deferred Sale Price or Sukukholder Put Right
Deferred Sale Price falling due on the Deferred Sale Price Payment Date(s) corresponding to the
relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Redemption Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put
Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Partial Periodic Distribution Date, as applicable, to
the Sukuk Account.

(ii) At or prior to 12.00 p.m. (Riyadh time) on each Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Periodic Distribution
Date, Partial Redemption Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or
Redemption Date (as applicable), the Payment Administrator shall, on behalf of the Sukukholders
Agent, apply the monies standing to the credit of the Sukuk Account in the following order of priority:

(A

®

(®)

(®)

B

9.6

first, (to the extent not previously paid) to the Sukukholders’ Agent in respect of all amounts
owing to it under the Sukuk Documents;

second, to the Sukukholders in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of all Periodic
Distribution Amounts due and unpaid,

third, only if such payment is due on a Partial Redemption Date, to each Sukukholder in or towards
payment of the Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount then due and unpaid;

fourth, only if such payment is due on the Redemption Date, a Sukukholder Put Right Date, a
Change of Control Put Date or a Partial Periodic Distribution Date, to the relevant Sukukholders
in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of the Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding or, as the
case may be the relevant Early Redemption Amount in respect of the relevant Sukukholder Put
Right Sukuk or Change of Control Sukuk (as applicable) or Partial Periodic Distribution Amount
(as applicable); and

fifth, provided that all amounts required to be paid on the Sukuk have been discharged in full, only
on the Redemption Date or, if later, the date on which all amounts required to be paid on the Sukuk
have been discharged in full, in payment of any residual amount to the Issuer.

Issuer’s Covenants

The Issuer covenants that, among other things, so long as any Sukuk remains current:

S)
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a. an amount equal to the Available Amount for the relevant period remains invested in the
Mudaraba as immediately available funds in cash or cash equivalent which are available to the
Mudareb in accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement;

b. to extent that the Mudaraba Assets do not exceed the value of the Mudaraba Capital, no
Mudaraba Assets other than Mudaraba Profit are used to fund the amounts due to be paid from
the Sukuk Account under Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds);

c. it will not, and will not permit any of its Material Subsidiaries (if any) to, directly or indirectly,
create, incur, issue, assume, guarantee or otherwise become directly or indirectly liable,
contingently or otherwise with respect to or otherwise become responsible for, contingently
or otherwise, the payment of (collectively, incur as appropriate, an incurrence) any Financial
Indebtedness (other than Permitted Financial Indebtedness), provided however, that the Issuer
or any of its Material Subsidiaries (if any) may incur Financial Indebtedness if:

i. no Event of Default has occurred or is continuing (or would occur as a result of the incurrence
of such Financial Indebtedness);

ii. such Financial Indebtedness ranks junior to or equal in right of payment with the payment
obligations under these Conditions and any Sukuk Document; and

iii. no breach of any financial covenants pursuant to this Condition 9.6 (g) (or would occur as a
result of the incurrence of such Financial Indebtedness).

d. it will not, and will not permit any of its Material Subsidiaries (if any), to create or permit to
subsist any Security Interest, other than a Permitted Security Interest, upon, or with respect
to, the whole or any part of its present or future undertaking, assets or revenues (including
any uncalled capital) to secure any Relevant Indebtedness, or any guarantee or indemnity in
respect of any Relevant Indebtedness, without at the same time or prior thereto securing the
Sukuk equally and rateably with the same Security Interest as is created or subsisting to secure
any such Relevant Indebtedness, guarantee or indemnity or such other Security Interest as shall
be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Sukukholders.
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it shall not use the proceeds of the issue of the Sukuk for any purpose other than as set out in
the Base Prospectus and the Sukuk Documents;

other than as required by the Companies Regulations, it shall not put to its directors or
shareholders any resolution for or appoint any liquidator for its winding up or any resolution
for the commencement of any other bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding with respect to it;

it shall maintain, or procure the maintenance of, the following financial covenants:

i. the Debt to Asset Ratio for each Measurement Period shall not be greater than 0.4 times.

ii. the Finance Charges Coverage Ratio for each Measurement Period shall not fall below 1.2
times.

iii. the Long-Term Debt to Equity Ratio for each Measurement Period shall not be greater than
0.7 times.

it shall supply to the Sukukholders’ Agent:

i. assoon as the same become available, but in any event not later than [120] after the end of
each of its financial years its Financial Statements for that financial year; and

ii. itsinterim Financial Statements in respect of each first half yearly financial period (including
balance sheet, income statement and full details of receivables with aging analysis) as soon
as the same become available, but in any event not later than [60] days after the end of
each such first half yearly financial period signed by its chief financial officer of the Issuer;

each set of Financial Statements delivered to the Sukukholders’ Agent pursuant to this Condition
9.6 (h) shall be certified by a director or authorised officer of the Issuer as: (1) fairly representing
its financial condition as at the date on which those financial statements were drawn up; and
(2) having been prepared in accordance with IFRS. Each set of Financial Statements shall be
available for inspection by any Sukukholder during normal business hours at the specified
offices of the Issuer and the Sukukholders’ Agent. It shall supply to the Sukukholders’ Agent,
with each set of Financial Statements delivered pursuant to Condition 9.6 (h), an unaudited
compliance certificate (and, only to the extent requested by the Sukukholders’ Agent, an audited
compliance certificate) (any such compliance certificate, a Compliance Certificate) setting out
(in reasonable detail) computations as to compliance with Condition 9.6 as at the date at which
the relevant financial statements delivered were drawn up. The financial covenants set out in
Condition 9.6 (g) shall be tested by reference to the Financial Statements which the relevant
Compliance Certificate delivered pursuant to this Condition 9.6(i) accompanies.

each Compliance Certificate shall be available for inspection by any Sukukholder during normal
business hours at the offices of the Issuer and the Sukukholders’ Agent;

it shall not enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not)
and whether voluntary or involuntary to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any asset,
other than any sale, lease, transfer or other disposal:

i. made in the Issuer’s ordinary course of business;
ii. of assets in exchange for other assets comparable or superior as to type, value and quality;

iii. where the consideration receivable by the Issuer for such sale, lease, transfer or other
disposal is cash in an amount which is at least equal to the market value (as determined
by the Sukukholders’ Agent acting reasonably) of the relevant asset and such sale, lease,
transfer or other disposal is entered into at arm’s length with a person or an entity which is
not a Connected Party;

where the consideration receivable by the Issuer for such sale, lease, transfer or other disposal at
the time of the transaction is in an amount which is less than the market value (as determined by
the Sukukholders’ Agent acting reasonably) of the relevant asset, but the Issuer has the right to
recover:

1.

where the counterparty is a Subsidiary of the Issuer, the difference between the consideration
receivable at the time of the transaction and the market value of the relevant asset at the time
the relevant asset is subsequently disposed of by the counterparty or another Subsidiary (in
case of a subsequent disposal by the counterparty to another Subsidiary of the Issuer) to a
person or entity which is not a Subsidiary of the Issuer, at some time in the future not later than
the date on which the relevant asset is disposed of to that person which is not a Subsidiary of
the Issuer; or
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2. wherethe counterparty is not a Subsidiary of the Issuer, the difference between the consideration
receivable at the time of the transaction and the market value of the relevant asset at the time
of the transaction, at some time in the future not later than the date on which the relevant asset
is subsequently disposed of by the counterparty; or

iv.  where the higher of the market value (as determined by the Sukukholders’ Agent acting reasonably)
or consideration receivable (when aggregated with the higher of the market value or consideration
receivable for any other sale, lease, transfer or other disposal by the Issuer, other than any permitted
under paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) above) does not exceed an amount equal to ten per cent. (10%)
of the Consolidated Net Assets of the Issuer (or its equivalent in another currency or currencies)
in any financial year;

|. it shall make no substantial change to the general nature of its business from that carried on at
the Issue Date; and

m. except as provided in Condition 9.15 (Meetings of Sukukholders; Modification), amend or agree
to any amendment to any Sukuk Document to which it is a party (other than in accordance with
the terms thereof).

9.7 Fixed Periodic Distribution Provisions

A. Application

This Condition 9.7 (Fixed Periodic Distribution Provisions) is applicable to the Sukuk only if the Fixed Periodic
Distribution Provisions are specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable.

B. Periodic Distribution Amount

Subject to Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds) and Condition 9.11 (Payments), the Issuer shall distribute
to the Sukukholders pro rata a distribution in relation to the Sukuk on each Periodic Distribution Date equal
to the applicable Periodic Distribution Amount.

In these Conditions:
“Periodic Distribution Amount” means, for each Periodic Distribution Period, an amount calculated as follows:
where:

PxSxD
360

pP= the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series as are current on the Transfer Record Date immediately
preceding the last day of such Periodic Distribution Period;

D = the actual number of days in such Periodic Distribution Period; and

S= the Profit Rate.

C. Cessation of accrual

No further amounts shall be payable on any Sukuk from and including its due date for redemption unless,
upon due presentation, payment in respect of the Sukuk is improperly withheld or refused or unless default
is otherwise made in respect of payment, in which event such amounts payable on the Sukuk shall continue
to be due and payable and Periodic Distribution Amounts and Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts will
continue to accrue in respect of the Sukuk in the manner provided in this Condition 9.7 until all amounts due
in respect of the Sukuk have been paid in full.

D. Calculations of distribution in respect of Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts
When a distribution is required to be calculated in respect of a period less than a full Periodic Distribution

Period, it shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in such period and on an
actual/360 basis.
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E. Notification

All notifications, opinions, determinations, certificates, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed,
made or obtained for the purposes of this Condition shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the
Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator and the Sukukholders and no liability to any such
Person will attach to the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator in connection with the exercise
or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions under this Condition.

9.8 Floating Periodic Distribution Provisions

A. Application

This Condition 9.8 (Floating Periodic Distribution Provisions) is applicable to the Sukuk only if the Floating
Periodic Distribution Provisions are specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable.

B. Periodic Distribution Amount

Subject to Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds) and Condition 9.11 (Payments), the Issuer shall distribute
to the Sukukholders pro rata a distribution in relation to the Sukuk on each Periodic Distribution Date equal
to the applicable Periodic Distribution Amount. If any Periodic Distribution Date is not a Business Day, it shall
be adjusted in accordance with the relevant Business Day Convention.

The Reference Rate (the “Reference Rate”) for each Periodic Distribution Period shall be determined by or
on behalf of the Payment Administrator on the following basis:

i. the Payment Administrator will determine the applicable benchmark rate for Saudi Arabian
Riyals for a period equal to the relevant Periodic Distribution Period which appears on the
Relevant Screen Page (or such other page as may replace that page on that service, or such
other service as may be nominated by the Payment Administrator as the information vendor
for the purpose of displaying comparable rates) as of 11.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) on the Periodic
Distribution Determination Date; or

ii. if such rate does not appear on that page, the Payment Administrator will:

a. determine the average applicable benchmark rate for Saudi Arabian Riyals which are
provided by the Reference Banks in the Saudi interbank market at approximately 11.00 a.m.
(Riyadh time) on the Periodic Distribution Determination Date to prime banks in the Saudi
interbank market for a period equal to the relevant Periodic Distribution Period and in an
amount that is representative for a single transaction in that market at that time; and

b. determine the arithmetic mean (rounded, if necessary, to the nearest ten thousandth of a
percentage point, 0.00005 being rounded upwards) for such quotations where two or more
guotations are available,

and the Reference Rate shall be the rate or (as the case may be) the arithmetic mean so determined;
provided however, that if the Payment Administrator is unable to determine a rate or (as the case may be) an
arithmetic mean in accordance with the above provisions in relation to any Periodic Distribution Period, the
Reference Rate applicable to the Sukuk during such Periodic Distribution Period will be the Reference Rate
or (as the case may be) arithmetic mean last so determined in relation to the Sukuk in respect of the most
recent preceding Periodic Distribution Period.

In these Conditions:

“Periodic Distribution Amount” means, for each Periodic Distribution Period, an amount calculated as follows:

Px(S + M)x D
360

where:

P = the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series as are current on the Transfer Record Date immediately
preceding the last day of such Periodic Distribution Period,;

D = the actual number of days in such Periodic Distribution Period,;
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S = the Reference Rate for such Periodic Distribution Period; and

M = the Margin.

C. Publication

The Payment Administrator shall cause the Screen Rate and the Periodic Distribution Amount determined
by it, together with the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, to be notified to the Issuer and the Sukukholders’
Agent as soon as practicable after such determination but in any event not later than 8.00 a.m. (Riyadh time)
one (1) Business Day prior to the first day of the relevant Periodic Distribution Period. Notice thereof shall
also promptly be provided by the Payment Administrator to the Registrar and published on the Refinitiv.
The Payment Administrator shall recalculate any Periodic Distribution Amount (on the basis of the foregoing
provisions) in the event of an extension or shortening of the relevant Periodic Distribution Period.

D. Cessation of accrual

No further amounts shall be payable on any Sukuk from and including its due date for redemption unless,
upon due presentation, payment in respect of the Sukuk is improperly withheld or refused or unless default
is otherwise made in respect of payment, in which event such amounts payable on the Sukuk shall continue
to be due and payable and Periodic Distribution Amounts and Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts will
continue to accrue in respect of the Sukuk in the manner provided in this Condition 9.8 until all amounts due
in respect of the Sukuk have been paid in full.

E. Calculation of distribution in respect of Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts
When a distribution is required to be calculated in respect of a period less than a full Periodic Distribution

Period, it shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in such period and on an
actual/360 basis.

F. Notifications

All notifications, opinions, determinations, certificates, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed,
made or obtained for the purposes of this Condition shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the
Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator and the Sukukholders and no liability to any such

Person will attach to the Sukukholders’ Agent or the Payment Administrator in connection with the exercise
or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions under this Condition.

9.9 Sukuk Captial Instalment Amount Payment Provisions

A. Application

This Condition 9.9 (Sukuk Captial Instalment Amount Payment Provisions) is applicable to the Sukuk only if
the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising in the Applicable Final Terms.

B. Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount
In accordance with and subject to Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds), Condition 9.10 (Purchase
And Cancellation Of Sukuk) and Condition 9.11 (Payments), the Issuer shall distribute to each Sukukholder

on each Partial Redemption Date the Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount in relation to all Sukuk held by the
relevant Sukukholder that are current.

9.10 Purchase And Cancellation Of Sukuk

A. Purchase
The Issuer may at any time purchase Sukuk in the open market or otherwise at any price in the open market

or otherwise. Such Sukuk may be held, reissued, resold or, at the option of the Issuer, surrendered to the
Payment Administrator for cancellation.
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B. Cancellation

All Sukuk which are redeemed in accordance with Condition 9.12 (Redemption of Sukuk) will forthwith
be cancelled and the Sukuk Capital shall be reduced pro rata by the Aggregate Nominal Amount of such
cancelled Sukuk. All Sukuk so cancelled and any Sukuk purchased and cancelled pursuant to Condition
9.10(a)(Purchase and Cancellation of Sukuk - Purchase) and Condition 9.12(e) (Partial redemption of Sukuk)
cannot be reissued or resold.

9.1 Payments

A. General

Payments under the Sukuk shall be made by wire transfer to a Saudi Arabian Riyal account maintained by the
payee with a bank in Saudi Arabia as notified in writing to the Registrar and the Payment Administrator not
later than fifteen (15) days before the date of the relevant payment.

B. Payments subject to applicable laws

All payments in respect of the Sukuk are subject in all cases to: (i) any applicable fiscal or other laws and
regulations in the place of payment (except as provided in Condition 9.16 (Taxation), no distributions or
expenses shall be charged to the Sukukholders in respect of such payments); and any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (the “Code”) or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any
regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 9.11) any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto.

C. Payments on Business Days

Payment instructions shall be initiated for value on the due date, or, if the due date is not a Business Day, for
value on the first following Business Day (subject to any applicable Business Day Convention). A Sukukholder
shall not be entitled to any distribution or other payment in respect of any delay in payment resulting from
the due date for a payment not being a Business Day.

D. Transfer Record Date

Each payment in respect of the Sukuk shall be made to the Person shown as the Sukukholder in the Register
at the opening of business in the place of the Registrar’s specified office on the Transfer Record Date, subject
to (for the avoidance of doubt) such Person being a Qualified Person.

9.12 Redemption of Sukuk

A. Scheduled redemption

Unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled, the Sukuk shall be redeemed on the Expiry Date
and, subject to Condition 9.5(c) (Liquidation of the Mudaraba), each Sukukholder shall receive its pro rata
share of the Sukuk Capital together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts payable from
the Sukuk Assets from the proceeds of the Sukuk Assets.

B. Redemption at the option of the Issuer

If the Issuer’s Call Option is specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable, and subject to the
value of the Sukuk Assets not being below the Aggregate Nominal Amount, the Sukuk may be redeemed at
the option of the Issuer, on an optional dissolution date (the “Optional Redemption Date”) which may be:

i at any time (if the Floating Periodic Distribution Provisions are not specified in the Applicable
Final Terms as being applicable); or

ii. on any Periodic Distribution Date (if the Floating Periodic Distribution Provisions are specified
in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable),

on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Sukukholders in accordance with Condition
9.18 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable) and the Issuer shall, subject to Condition 9.5(c) (Liquidation
of the Mudaraba), redeem in whole, but not in part, the Sukuk from the Sukukholders by paying to each
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Sukukholder the Early Redemption Amount in respect of each of the Sukuk held by it as specified in the
Applicable Final Terms on the Optional Redemption Date together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic
Distribution Amounts payable.

C. Redemption for tax reasons

The Sukuk may be redeemed at the option of Issuer , in its sole discretion, in whole, but not in part, on any
Periodic Distribution Date by giving not less than thirty (30) days’ notice nor more than sixty (60) days’
notice (a “Tax Redemption Notice”) to the Sukukholders in accordance with Condition 9.18 (Notices) (which
notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption (the “Tax Redemption Date”)), and,
subject to Condition 9.5(c) (Liquidation of the Mudaraba), each Sukukholder shall receive its pro rata share
of the Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts
payable, if:

On the occasion of the next payment due under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents, the Issuer has or will
become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for, or referred to, in Condition 9.16 (Taxation) and
the Sukuk Documents as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Kingdom
or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in the
application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations (including a holding by a court of competent
jurisdiction), which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which agreement is
reached to issue the relevant Series of Sukuk and such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking
reasonable measures available to it.

provided however, that no Tax Redemption Notice shall be given earlier than sixty (60) days prior to the
Periodic Distribution Date occurring immediately before the earliest date on which the Issuer, would be
obliged to pay such additional amounts if payment of such additional amounts in respect of the Sukuk and/
or Sukuk Documents (as applicable) were then due.

Prior to the publication of any Tax Redemption Notice pursuant to this Condition 9.12(c) (Redemption for tax
reasons), the Issuer shall obtain and make available to the Sukukholders for inspection at its principal office
during business hours: (i) a certificate signed by two (2) Authorised Signatories of the Issuer be, stating
that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and stating that the conditions to the redemption of the
Sukuk set out in this Condition 9.12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons) have been met; and (ii) an opinion of
an independent tax adviser of recognized standing to the effect that the Issuer, has or will become obliged
to pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or amendment. Upon the expiry of any Tax
Redemption Notice as is referred to in this Condition 9.12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons), the Issuer shall be
bound to redeem the Sukuk in accordance with this Condition 9.12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons).

D. Redemption at the option of the Sukukholders

If a Sukukholder Put Right is specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable, upon the
holder of any Sukuk giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 9.18 (Notices) not less than
thirty (30) days’ nor more than sixty (60) days’ notice, the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such
notice (unless prior to the giving of such notice the Issuer has given notice of redemption under
Condition 9.12(b) or Condition 9.12 (c) (Redemption for tax reasons)), redeem, or, purchase (or
procure the purchase of such Sukuk on the Sukukholder Put Right Date at the Early Redemption
Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the Applicable Final Terms together
with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts and/or Partial Periodic Distribution
Amounts payable.

ii. If a Change of Control Put Right is specified in the Applicable Final Terms as being applicable and if
a Change of Control Event occurs, the Issuer will, upon the holder of any Sukuk giving notice within
the Change of Control Put Period to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 9.18 (Notices) (unless
prior to the giving of such notice the Issuer has given notice of redemption under Condition 9.12(b)
or Condition 9.12(c) (Redemption for tax reasons)), redeem or, purchase (or procure the purchase
of) such Sukuk on the Change of Control Put Date at the Early Redemption Amount specified in,
or determined in the manner specified in, the Applicable Final Terms together with any accrued
but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts and/or Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts payable.

Promptly upon the Issuer becoming aware that a Change of Control Event has occurred, the Issuer shall
promptly give notice (a “Change of Control Notice”) to the Sukukholders in accordance with Condition 9.18
(Notices) to that effect.
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E. Partial redemption of Sukuk

Where the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising in the Applicable Final Terms, each Sukukholder
is entitled to receive the Sukuk Capital Instalment Amounts due on the relevant Partial Redemption Dates
(each as specified in the Applicable Final Terms) in respect of the Sukuk held by it and, subject to any other
early redemption, purchase and/or cancellation, the Series shall be redeemed in part (and the Aggregate
Nominal Amount of the Sukuk of the relevant Series that are current will be reduced accordingly) by the
value of each Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount paid to the Sukukholders upon payment in full of each such
Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount to the Sukukholders.

F. No other redemption

Except as set out in Condition 9.10 (Purchase And Cancellation Of Sukuk), this Condition 9.12 (Redemption
for tax reasons) and Condition 9.13 (Events of Default), the Issuer shall not be permitted to redeem or cancel
the Sukuk.

9.13 Events of Default

The occurrence of any of the following events and circumstances shall constitute an Event of Default:

a. default is made in the payment of the Sukuk Capital or any Sukuk Capital Instalment Amount,
Early Redemption Amount, Periodic Distribution Amount or Partial Periodic Distribution
Amount (as the case may be) on the due date for payment thereof and such default continues
for a period of seven (7) Business Days in the case of the Sukuk Capital and any Sukuk Capital
Instalment Amount or Early Redemption Amount or fourteen (14) Business Days in the case of
a Periodic Distribution Amount or Partial Periodic Distribution Amount (as the case may be); or

b. the Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under or in respect of these
Conditions or the Sukuk Documents to which it is a party and (except in any case where, in
the opinion of the Sukukholders’ Agent, acting reasonably, the failure is incapable of remedy
when no such continuation or notice as is hereinafter mentioned will be required) the failure
continues for the period of thirty (30) days next following the service by the Sukukholders’
Agent on the Issuer of notice requiring the same to be remedied; or

c. the lIssuer shall commence a voluntary case or other proceeding seeking liquidation,
reorganisation or other relief with respect to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency
or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a trustee, receiver,
liguidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any substantial part of its property (in
each case, save for the purposes of any intra-Group reorganisation on a solvent basis), or shall
consent to any such relief or to the appointment of or taking possession by any such official
in an involuntary case or other proceeding commenced against it, or shall make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall stop or threaten to stop payment of, or is unable
to, or admits inability to, pay, its debts as they become due or is deemed unable to pay its debts
pursuant to or for the purpose of any applicable law, or is adjudicated or found bankrupt or
insolvent, or shall take any corporate action to authorise any of the foregoing or any analogous
procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction; or

d. an involuntary case or other proceeding shall be commenced against the Issuer seeking
liguidation, reorganisation or other relief with respect to it or its debts under any bankruptcy,
insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a
trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any substantial part
of its property, or an encumbrancer takes possession of the whole or substantially all of its
undertaking or assets, or a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other process is
levied, enforced upon, sued out or put in force against the whole or substantially all of its
undertaking or assets, and such involuntary case or other proceeding shall remain undismissed
and unstayed for a period of thirty (30) days or an order for relief shall be entered against
the Issuer under applicable bankruptcy laws as now or hereafter in effect or any analogous
procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction; or

e. the Issuer ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the whole or substantially all of its business,
save for the purposes of reorganisation on terms approved in writing by the Sukukholders’
Agent or by an Extraordinary Resolution, or shall take any corporate action to authorise any of
the foregoing or any analogous procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction; or

f. if at any time: any regulation, decree, consent, approval, licence or other authority necessary
to enable the Issuer to perform its obligations under or in respect of the Sukuk and/or the
Sukuk Documents to which it is a party or for the validity or enforceability thereof expires or
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is withheld, revoked or terminated or otherwise ceases to remain in full force and effect or is
modified in a manner which adversely affects any rights or claims of any of the Sukukholders;
or

g. it is or becomes unlawful for the Issuer to perform or comply with any or all of its obligations
under or in respect of the Sukuk or the Sukuk Documents or any of the obligations of the Issuer
(acting in any capacity) under or in respect of the Sukuk Documents are not, or cease to be
legal, valid, binding and enforceable; or

h. as of 31December of any year in which Sukuk remain current, any requirement of Condition 9.6
(Issuer’s Covenants) is not satisfied; or

i. any action, condition or thing at any time required to be taken, fulfilled or done in order: (i)
to enable the Issuer to lawfully enter into, exercise its rights and perform and comply with its
obligations under and in respect of the Sukuk or the Sukuk Documents; and (ii) to ensure that
those obligations are legal, valid, binding and enforceable, is not taken, fulfilled or done; or

j. the Issuer repudiates the Sukuk or any Sukuk Document; or
k. If:

i. any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer is not paid when due nor within any originally
applicable grace period; or

ii. any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer is declared to be or otherwise becomes due and
payable prior to its specified maturity as a result of an event of default (however described);

iii. any Security Interest given by the Issuer for any Financial Indebtedness becomes enforceable
and any step is taken to enforce the Security Interest (including the taking of possession
or the appointment of a receiver, manager or other similar person, but excluding the issue
of any notification to the Issuer that such Security Interest has become enforceable) unless
the full amount of the Financial Indebtedness which is secured by the relevant Security
Interest is discharged within thirty (30) days of the later of the first date on which: (a) a step
is taken to enforce the relevant Security Interest; and (b) the Issuer is notified that a step
has been taken to enforce the relevant Security Interest provided, however, that no Event
of Default will occur pursuant to this Condition 9.13(j) if the aggregate amount of Financial
Indebtedness or commitment for Financial Indebtedness falling within Conditions 9.13 (k)(i)
to 13 (k)(iii) above of the Issuer is less than SAR 5,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency or currencies).

iv. One or more judgment(s) or order(s) for the payment of an amount in excess of
SAR[1,000,000] (or its equivalent in any other currency or currencies), whether individually
or in aggregate is rendered against the Issuer and continue(s) unsatisfied and unstayed for
a period of thirty (30) days after the date(s) thereof or, if later, the date therein specified for
payment, unless such judgment(s) or order(s) are being appealed or defended in good faith
and in respect of which adequate provision has been made in accordance with applicable
accounting standards in the Kingdom.

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall as soon as is reasonably
practicable after it receives notice thereof give notice of the occurrence of such Event of Default to the
Sukukholders requiring them to indicate whether they wish to exercise their rights to redeem the Sukuk
pursuant to this Condition 9.13 (Events of Default) provided, however, in the case of the occurrence of an
Event of Default comprising an event described in Condition 9.13(b) above, such notice may only be given
if the Sukukholders’ Agent has certified in writing to the Issuer that such event is, in its opinion, materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Sukukholders. Any Sukukholder may then deliver a notice (an “Event of
Default Notice”) to the Sukukholders’ Agent.

If the Sukukholders’ Agent receives an Event of Default Notice, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall promptly give
notice to the Issuer and the Payment Administrator that such an Event of Default Notice has been received,
specifying the Event of Default referred to therein (but so that such notice shall be the first notice received
regarding the relevant Event of Default). If the Sukukholders’ Agent receives Event of Default Notices from
at least the Required Sukukholders, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall promptly deliver to the Issuer and the
Payment Administrator an exercise notice (the “Exercise Notice”) so notifying the Issuer and the Payment
Administrator (with a copy to the Sukukholders) that the Sukuk are to be redeemed at the Total Sukuk
Capital Outstanding together with any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts and/or Partial
Periodic Distribution Amounts (as applicable) and any accrued and all amounts which have become due and
payable and remain unpaid by the Issuer and on the date specified in such notice.

Upon the delivery of the Exercise Notice pursuant to this Condition 9.13 (Events of Default), the Sukukholders’
Agent may, at any time, and is irrevocably authorised on behalf of the Sukukholders to: (i) enforce such rights
as it may have under the Sukuk Documents following an Event of Default;(ii) demand, claim, enforce and
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prove payment of the Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding applicable to the Sukuk as of the date on which Event
of Default Notices from the Sukukholders were first received (the “Event of Default Date”), together with
payment of the any accrued but unpaid Periodic Distribution Amounts and/or Partial Periodic Distribution
Amounts, calculated as of the date of redemption of the Sukuk, from the Issuer; and (iii) file claims and
proofs, give receipts and take all such proceedings and do all such things as the Sukukholders’ Agent sees
fit to recover the Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding together with each Periodic Distribution Amount and or
Partial Periodic Distribution Amount from the Issuer. Upon payment in full of such amounts, the Sukuk will be
redeemed and shall cease to represent the Sukuk Assets and no further amounts shall be payable in respect
thereof and the Issuer shall have no further obligations in respect thereof.

9.14 Enforcement and Exercise of Rights

a. The Sukukholders’ Agent may at any time, at its absolute discretion and without notice, take
such proceedings against the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce the provisions of the Sukuk
and the Sukuk Documents, but it shall not be bound in any circumstances to take any such
action unless directed or requested to do so:

i. pursuant to Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
ii. by an Extraordinary Resolution; or
iii. in writing by the Required Sukukholders,

iv. and in each case then only if it shall be indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its
satisfaction against all Liabilities to which it may thereby render itself liable or which it may
incur by so doing.

b. The foregoing paragraphs in Condition 9.14 (Enforcement and Exercise of Rights) are subject
to this paragraph. After enforcing or realising the Sukuk Assets and distributing the net
proceeds of the Sukuk Assets in accordance with Condition 9.5(f) (Application of proceeds),
the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Sukuk shall be satisfied and no holder of the
Sukuk may take any further steps against the Issuer to recover any further sums in respect of
the Sukuk and the right to receive any such sums unpaid shall be extinguished. In particular, no
holder of the Sukuk shall be entitled in respect thereof to petition or to take any other steps for
the winding-up of the Issuer.

c. No Sukukholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless: (i) the
Sukukholders’ Agent, having become bound so to proceed, fails to do so within sixty (60) days
of becoming so bound and such failure is continuing; and (ii) the relevant Sukukholder (or such
Sukukholder together with the other Sukukholders who propose to proceed directly against
the Issuer) holds at least twenty-five per cent. (25%) of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the
Series of Sukuk then current on such date. Under no circumstances shall the Sukukholders’
Agent or any Sukukholders have any right to cause the sale or other disposition of any of the
Sukuk Assets except pursuant to the Conditions and the sole right of the Sukukholders’ Agent
and Sukukholders against the Issuer, shall be to enforce the obligations of the Issuer to pay the
relevant Periodic Distribution Amounts, Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts, Sukuk Capital
Instalment Amounts, Early Redemption Amount and the Sukuk Capital, as the case may be, if
due and payable and the obligations of the Issuer to pay any other amounts due and payable
by it under the Sukuk Documents.

9.15 Meetings of Sukukholders; Modification

A. Meetings of Sukukholders

The Declaration of Agency contains provisions for convening meetings of Sukukholders to consider any
matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by an Extraordinary Resolution of a modification
of the Sukuk, these Conditions or any relevant provision of the Declaration of Agency or any other Sukuk
Documents. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer, or the Sukukholders’ Agent and shall be
convened by the Sukukholders’ Agent upon the request in writing of Sukukholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Sukuk as are current as of such date and subject to
the Sukukholders’ Agent having been indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its satisfaction. The
qguorum at any meeting (or at any adjourned meeting) convened to vote on an Extraordinary Resolution will
be in accordance with the Declaration of Agency.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Sukukholders shall be binding on all the
Sukukholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting and whether or not they voted on such
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Extraordinary Resolution. The expression “Extraordinary Resolution” is defined in the Declaration of Agency
to mean either: (i) a resolution passed at a meeting duly convened and held in accordance with by a majority
consisting of not less than three-fourths of the Voters voting thereat upon a show of hands or, if a poll is
duly demanded, by a majority consisting of not less than three-fourths of the votes cast on such poll; or
(ii) a resolution in writing signed by or on behalf of the holders of not less than three-fourths in Aggregate
Nominal Amount of the Sukuk then current which resolution may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form each signed by or on behalf of one or more of such holders;

B. Modification

The Declaration of Agency provides that the Sukukholders’ Agent (acting on behalf of the Sukukholders)
may agree, without the consent or sanction of the Sukukholders, to any modification (subject to certain
exceptions as provided in the Declaration of Agency) of, or to any waiver or authorisation of any breach
or proposed breach of, any of these Conditions or any of the provisions of the Declaration of Agency, the
relevant Supplemental Declaration of Agency or any other Sukuk Document, or may determine that an
Event of Default, shall not be treated as such which in any such case, in the opinion of the Sukukholders’
Agent, is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Sukukholders or to any modification of any of these
Conditions or any of the provisions of the Declaration of Agency or the relevant Supplemental Declaration of
Agency or any other Sukuk Document which is (in the opinion of the Sukukholders’ Agent) of a formal, minor
or technical nature or which is made to correct a manifest error or to comply with mandatory provisions of
law. Any such modification, waiver, authorisation or determination shall be binding on the Sukukholders and,
unless the Sukukholders’ Agent agrees otherwise, any such modification shall be notified to the Sukukholders
as soon as practicable thereafter in accordance with Condition 9.18 (Notices).

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its powers, authorities or discretions (including, but without
limitation, any modification, waiver or authorisation), the Sukukholders’ Agent shall have regard to the
interests of the Sukukholders as a class and, in particular, but without limitation, need not have regard to
the consequences of such exercise for individual Sukukholders resulting from their being for any purpose
domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory
and the Sukukholders’ Agent shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any Sukukholder be entitled to claim,
from the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent or any other Person any indemnification or payment in respect of
any tax consequence of any such exercise upon individual Sukukholders.

9.16 Taxation

All payments in respect of the Sukuk will be made free and clear of withholding taxes of Saudi Arabia
unless such withholding is required by law. In that event, the Issuer will pay or cause to be paid to the
Sukukholders (other than Sukukholders who are not, at the time of the relevant payments, Qualified Persons)
such additional amounts so that the net amount received by the Sukukholders after the withholding shall
equal the respective amounts which would have been receivable in respect of the Sukuk in the absence of
such withholding but only to the extent that such amounts are available for distribution to Sukukholders from
any relevant Sukuk Assets.

Sukukholders should note that the Sukuk are being sold only to Qualified Persons and that only Qualified
Persons may be registered as Sukukholders. The Issuer shall not pay any additional amounts in respect of any
withholding required by law to any person who holds Sukuk but is not a Qualified Person.

The Sukukholders shall be responsible for any other capital gains tax, income tax or zakat assessed on them
as a result of their holding of Sukuk.

All payments under the Sukuk Documents shall be made free and clear of withholding taxes of Saudi Arabia
unless such withholding or deduction is required by law.

9.17 Indemnification and Liability of the Sukukholders’ Agent

The Declaration of Agency contains provisions for the indemnification of the Sukukholders’ Agent in certain
circumstances and for its relief from responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking action unless
indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its satisfaction, in particular, in connection with the exercise
of any of its rights in respect of the Sukuk Assets. The Sukukholders’ Agent shall in no circumstances take any
action unless directed to do so in accordance with Condition 9.14 (Enforcement and Exercise of Rights), and
then only if it shall have been indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its satisfaction.

Nothing in the Declaration of Agency shall, in any case in which the Sukukholders’ Agent has failed to show

the degree of care and diligence required of it as sukukholders’ agent, having regard to the provisions of the
Declaration of Agency conferring on it any rights, powers, authorities or discretions, exempt the Sukukholders’
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Agent from or indemnify it against any Liability which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach
to it in respect of any gross negligence, wilful default or actual fraud which it may be guilty in relation to its
duties under the Declaration of Agency.

The Sukukholders’ Agent makes no representation and assumes no responsibility for the validity, sufficiency
or enforceability of the obligations of the Issuer under the Sukuk Documents and shall not under any
circumstances have any liability or be obliged to account to the Sukukholders in respect of any payment which
should have been made by or on behalf of the Issuer, but is not so made, and shall not in any circumstances
have any liability arising from the Sukuk Assets.

The Sukukholders’ Agent shall not be under any obligation to insure any of the Sukuk Assets or any deeds
or documents of title or other evidence in respect of the Sukuk Assets or to require any other person to
maintain any such insurance or monitor the adequacy of any such insurance and shall not be responsible
for any Liability which may be suffered by any person as a result of the lack of or inadequacy of any such
insurance.

The Sukukholders’ Agent shall not in any event be liable for special, indirect, punitive or consequential loss
or damage of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits, goodwill, reputation, business
opportunity or anticipated saving), whether or not foreseeable, even if the Sukukholders’ Agent has been
advised of the likelihood of such loss or damage and regardless of whether the claim for loss or damage is
made in negligence, for breach of contract or otherwise.

9.18 Notices

All notices to the Sukukholders will be sent to them by registered mail to their respective addresses on the
Register. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the fifth day of mailing. In addition, notices
of any meetings of Sukukholders shall be sent at least twenty-five (25) days prior to the date set for the initial
meeting and at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for any adjourned meeting and shall be valid if sent
to the Sukukholders by registered mail to their respective addresses in the Register. Any such notice shall be
deemed to have been given on the fifth day after the date of mailing.

Notices to be given by any Sukukholder shall be in writing and delivered to the registered postal or e-mail
address of the relevant addressee.

9.19 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

A. Governing law

The Sukuk Documents and the Sukuk are governed by, and are to be construed in accordance with, the laws
and regulations of Saudi Arabia.

B. Jurisdiction

The Committee for the Resolution of Securities Disputes and the Appeal Committee for the Resolution of
Securities Disputes (the “Committees”) shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determine any suit,
action or proceedings, and to settle any disputes, which may arise out of or in connection with the Sukuk or
the Sukuk Documents and, for such purposes, all relevant parties (including the Issuer and the Sukukholders)
irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the Committees. No suit, action or proceedings which may arise out
of or in connection with the Sukuk or the Sukuk Documents may be filed or brought outside Saudi Arabia and
no court or any judicial authority outside Saudi Arabia shall have jurisdiction to hear any such claim.

C. Waiver of immunity

In relation to any judicial proceedings in any jurisdiction with respect to these Conditions, the Issuer waives
generally all immunity it or its assets or revenues may otherwise have in such jurisdiction, including immunity
in respect of:

i.  the giving of any relief by way of injunction or order for specific performance or for the recovery
of assets or revenues; and

ii. the issue of any process against its assets or revenues for the enforcement of a judgment or, in an
action in rem, for the arrest, detention or sale of any of its assets and revenues.
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D. Waiver of usurious interest

If any suit, action or proceedings are brought by or on behalf of the Sukukholders’ Agent or any Sukukholder
under these Conditions, the Sukukholders’ Agent and each Sukukholder agrees that it will:

i.  not claim any judgment interest under, or in connection with, such suit, action or proceedings; and

ii. to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive all and any entitlement it may have to judgment
interest awarded in its favour by any court or other judicial authority as a result of such suit, action
or proceedings.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Condition 9.19(d) (Waiver of usurious interest) shall be construed
as a waiver of rights in respect of any Mudaraba Profit or liquidation proceeds payable under the Mudaraba
Agreement, any Deferred Sale Price (or any part thereof) payable under the Master Murabaha Agreement,
any Periodic Distribution Amount, Partial Periodic Distribution Amount, the Sukuk Capital or any Sukuk
Capital Instalment Amount or Early Redemption Amount payable under the Conditions or profit of any kind
howsoever described payable pursuant to the Sukuk Documents and/or the Conditions, howsoever such
amounts may be described or re-characterised by any court or other judicial authority.
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APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS

Set out below is the form of Applicable Final Terms which will be completed for each Series issued under
the Programme.

[Date]

Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company
(a listed joint stock company with commercial registration no. 1010260422
Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series] [Title of Sukuk]
under the
SAR 500,000,000
Sukuk Issuance Programme

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the terms and conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 07/07/1446H (corresponding 07/01/2025) [and the
supplement to the Base Prospectus dated [+] which [together] constitute[s] a Base Prospectus] ([together, ]
the “Base Prospectus”). This document constitutes the Applicable Final Terms of the Sukuk described herein
and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of
the Sukuk is only available on the basis of a combination of these Applicable Final Terms and the Base
Prospectus. The Base Prospectus is available for viewing during normal business hours at the head office of
the Issuer located at in Riyadh. and copies may be obtained from this office.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable”. Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs.
Italics denote directions for completing the Applicable Final Terms.]

1. Issuer: Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company
2. Sukukholders’ Agent: Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company
3. Series Number: [*]
4. Specified Currency: Saudi Arabian Riyals (“SAR”)
5. Aggregate Nominal Amount of SAR [+] [(as may be reduced from time to time in accordance with
the Series: Condition 9.12(e) (Partial Redemption of Sukuk))]
6. Minimum Number of Sukuk
that Can be Subscribed to by [*]
Targeted Investors:
7. Value of Minimum Number of
Sukuk that can be Subscription [¢]
to by Targeted Investors
8. Issue Price [100%] of the Aggregate Nominal Amount Value of the Series.
9. Specified Denominations: SAR [1,000,000]
[-]
] (If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified Denomination.
10. Calculation Amount If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the highest common
factor. Note: There must be a common factor in the case of two or more
Specified Denominations.)
1. Issue Date: [*]
12. Expiry Date: [Specify Date]
13. Periodic Distribution Amount [[+] per cent. Fixed Periodic Distribution Amount] [[specify reference
Basis: rate] +/- [+] per cent. Floating Periodic Distribution Amount]
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[Bullet/Amortizing]

14. Redemption Basis: Subject to any purchase and cancellation or early redemption, the Sukuk
will be redeemed at 100% of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series

15. Status: Unsubordinated

[A day on which commercial banks are open for general business in Saudi

18, [EEinees (Bey Arabia / specify other]

17. Use of Proceeds []
PROVISIONS RELATING TO PERIODIC DISTRIBUTIONS
18. Fixed Periodic Distribution [Applicable/Not Applicable]
Provisions: (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
(a) Profit Rate: [+] per cent. per annum
(b) Periodic Distribution [+] in each year up to and including the Expiry Date, subject to Condition
Date(s): 9.7(c) (Cessation of Accrual)
19. Floating Periodic Distribution
Provisions:
(If not applicable, delete the [Applicable/Not Applicable]

remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

(a) Margin: [+] per cent. per annum

[+] in each year up to and including the Expiry Date, subject to Condition
9.8(d) (Cessation of Accrual) [subject to adjustment in accordance with
the Business Day Convention]

(b) Periodic Distribution
Date(s):

(c) Manner in which the rate is/

are to be determined: Screen Rate Determination

(d) Screen Rate Determination:

i. Reference Rate: [+] month [SAIBOR/specify other]

ii. Periodic Distribution [Second Business Day before the first day of the relevant Periodic
Determination Date Distribution Period/specify other]

iii. Relevant Screen Page: [Refinitiv Screen / specify other]

[Following Business Day Convention / Modified Following Business Day
Convention / Preceding Business Day Convention / specify other]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

(e).Business Day Convention:

20. Sukuk Capital: The Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series
21. Sukuk Capital Instalment [[+] per Calculation Amount/Not Applicable]
Amount: (Applicable where the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining

22. Issuer Call Option subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[Total Sukuk Capital Outstanding (as defined in the

(a) Early Redemption Amount: . . .
Conditions)/[+] per Calculation Amount/specify other]

(b) Optional Redemption Date: [Any Periodic Distribution Datel/[+]/Not Applicable

23. Sukukholder Put Right [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(a) Early Redemption Amount: [[+] per Calculation Amount/specify other]

(b) Sukukholder Put Right

Date: [[+1/Not Applicable]

24. Change of Control Put Right: [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(a) Early Redemption Amount: [[+] per Calculation Amount/specify other]
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. . [[+] in each year up to and including the Expiry Date / Not Applicable]
25. Partial Redemption Date(s): . . L . .
(applicable where the Redemption Basis is specified as Amortising)

PROVISIONS IN RESPECT OF THE SUKUK ASSETS

26. Mudaraba Capital: [+] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the Series

Mudareb (Mudareb Profit): [+] per cent. of any Mudaraba Income

27. Profit share ratio in any )
Sukukholders’ Agent’s (Mudaraba Profit): [+] per cent. of any Mudaraba

Mudaraba Income:

Income
28. Murabaha Capital: [-]
29. Murabaha Percentage: [+]

(a) Term: []

(b) Deferred Sale Price: []

(c) Murabaha Profit: [*]

(d) Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis: [Bullet / Amortising]
(e) Deferred Sale Price Payment Date(s):

[Expiry Date]

30. Provisions relating to the (Applicable where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as
Murabaha Transaction: Bullet)

[[+] in each year up to and including the Expiry Date]

(Applicable where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as
Amortising)

(f) Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amount: [SAR [+]/Not Applicable]

(Applicable where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as
Amortising)

31. Details of the Sukuk Account: Sukuk Account No: [*] with [] for Series No.: [*]

[Not Applicable/give details]

32. Other final terms: (When adding any other final terms consideration should be given as to
whether such terms constitute “significant new factors” and consequently
trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus)

33. Treatment of Sukuk for Zakat

purposes: -]
DISTRIBUTION
34. Dealer[s] [*]

35. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Applicable Final Terms. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of the Issuer (having taken reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the
information contained in these Applicable Final Terms is in accordance with the facts and there are no other
facts, the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

APPOINTMENT OF THE MUDAREB

By executing these Applicable Final Terms, the Issuer (in its capacity as Mudareb) acknowledges and
agrees that the Sukukholders’ Agent in its capacity as rab-al-maal has contributed the Mudaraba Capital for
investment in accordance with the Mudaraba Agreement and accordingly a Mudaraba has been constituted
in respect of the Sukuk that are the subject of these Applicable Final Terms, in accordance with the terms of
the Mudaraba Agreement as supplemented by these Applicable Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company
By:

Duly authorised
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10. Summary of the sukuk Documents

The following is a summary of certain provisions of certain principal Sukuk Documents and is qualified in
its entirety by reference to the detailed provisions of such principal Sukuk Document. Copies of such Sukuk
Documents will be available for inspection at the offices of the Issuer.

10.1 Mudaraba Agreement

The Issuer and the Sukukholders’ Agent are party to the Mudaraba Agreement dated [*]. The relationship
between the Mudareb on the one hand and the Sukukholder’s Agent (on behalf of the Sukukholders) on the
other is that of Mudareb and rab al-maal respectively. In respect of each Series of Sukuk, the Sukukholder’s
Agent shall pay to the Mudareb the applicable Mudaraba Capital to apply as the capital of the Mudaraba and,
in accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement, the Mudareb shall invest the Mudaraba Capital in
the Mudaraba Assets. The Mudareb shall manage the Mudaraba based on its expertise and shall be entitled
to share in the profit arising from the Mudaraba in accordance with the terms of the Mudaraba Agreement.

The Mudareb’s authorities, duties, obligations and liabilities are limited to those specifically provided for in
the Mudaraba Agreement and the other Sukuk Documents.

The Mudareb shall manage, administer, perform and discharge its obligations relating to the Mudaraba Assets
with absolute freedom and discretion and shall perform, inter alia, the following duties in respect of the
Mudaraba Assets of each Series of Sukuk: (a) maintain appropriate collection procedures in relation to the
amounts falling due in respect of the Sukukholder’s Agent’s share (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) in the
Mudaraba Assets; (b) ensure that all Mudaraba Income is credited to the Collection Account and calculate the
Mudaraba Income; (c) ensure that accounting books and income and expenses of the Mudaraba Assets are
regularly recorded and that its accounts are prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; and (d) ensure at all times that an amount
equal to the applicable Available Amount for the Series is maintained as immediately available funds for the
Mudaraba and that such amount is not utilised by the Mudareb for any purpose unless such purpose is: (i)
as contemplated pursuant to clause 6.1 (Liquidation) of the Mudaraba Agreement; or (ii) otherwise expressly
permitted in writing by the Sukukholders’ Agent (acting on the basis of an Extraordinary Resolution). The
Mudareb shall be entitled to comingle its own assets and funds with the Mudaraba Assets.

The Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit of the Sukukholders) and the Mudareb shall each have an undivided
ownership share of the Mudaraba Assets and all assets acquired from or through the Mudaraba Assets on the
basis of the sharing of profit and the bearing of losses pro rata to their respective shares. The Sukukholders
and the Mudareb shall each have a proportional share of the Mudaraba Income (referred to, respectively,
as the Mudaraba Profit and the Mudareb Profit) credited to the relevant Collection Account, which shall be
calculated using the ratios set out in the Applicable Final Terms.

At or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) one (1) Business Day prior to each relevant Periodic Distribution Date
or any Partial Periodic Distribution Date or Sukukholder Put Right Date or Change of Control Put Date or
Partial Redemption Date or the relevant Redemption Date (as the case may be), the Mudareb shall apply the
amounts standing to the credit of the relevant Collection Account (in each case only to the extent of funds
available in such Collection Account) towards any Shortfall which has not otherwise been paid in accordance
with the Sukuk Documents and thereafter on a pari passu basis as follows:

a. with respect to any Mudareb Profit which has not previously been deducted and retained by it
as described above, to itself to retain for its own account; and

b. with respect to the Mudaraba Profit, to the Sukukholder’s Agent (by crediting such amounts
to the relevant Sukuk Account) in an amount equal to: (i) the Required Amounts relating to
the relevant Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Periodic Distribution Date, Partial Redemption
Date, Sukukholder Put Right Date, Change of Control Put Date and/or Redemption Date, as
applicable.

Any surplus Mudaraba Profit remaining in the relevant Collection Account after the application of the amounts
referred to above shall be reinvested by the Mudareb on behalf of the Sukukholder’s Agent (for the benefit
of the Sukukholders) in the Mudaraba Assets.
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The Mudareb shall liquidate the Mudaraba on the applicable Redemption Date. The proceeds of such
liguidation shall be used to pay any amounts due but unpaid on such Redemption Date by payment of such
amounts into the Sukuk Account at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) on the Redemption Date (but only
to the extent that, at such time on the Redemption Date, amounts are required by the Sukukholder’s Agent
to be credited to the Sukuk Account in order for the Sukukholder’s Agent to be able to pay all amounts
due but unpaid to the Sukukholders under the Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents in full on the Redemption
Date). Any surplus proceeds of such liquidation, after payment of the amounts (if any) described above and
any amounts accruing pursuant to Condition 9.7(c) (Cessation of Accrual) or Condition 9.8(d) (Cessation of
Accrual) (as applicable), may be retained by the Mudareb as an incentive fee for its own account.

The Mudaraba Agreement is governed by the laws of the Kingdom.

10.2 Master Murabaha Agreement

The Issuer (in its capacity as Purchaser) and the Sukukholder’s Agent (in its capacity as Seller) are party
to a Master Murabaha Agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser may avail itself of a Murabaha based
financing facility to be made available to it by the Seller. In respect of each Series of Sukuk, the Seller (acting
for and on behalf of the Sukukholders) and the Purchaser shall enter into a Murabaha Contract on the terms
set out in the Master Murabaha Agreement to utilize such Murabaha Facility. Under the relevant Murabaha
Contract, and subject to the terms and conditions of the Master Murabaha Agreement, the Seller agrees to
sell on behalf and for the benefit of the Sukukholders on a murabaha basis to the Purchaser, Commodities
purchased from the nominated Suppliers at a price negotiated between the Purchaser and the Seller. Once
the Seller (or an agent on its behalf) has acquired the Commodities, the Seller will sell the Commodities to
the Purchaser on deferred payment terms providing for the Purchaser to pay to the Seller the Deferred Sale
Price.

Once the Purchaser has acquired title (together with all rights, obligations and risks relating thereto) in
the relevant Commodities, the Purchaser may, pursuant to the On-Sale Agency Agreement, on-sell such
Commodities. The Purchaser shall apply the proceeds from the on-sale of any Commodities purchased by
it under a Murabaha Contract for use in accordance with “Use of Proceeds” above. The Seller shall not be
bound to monitor or verify the purpose or purposes for which the Purchaser uses the proceeds of any on-sale
of Commodities purchased by it under any Murabaha Contract.

In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis (as defined in the Conditions)
is specified as Bullet, on the relevant Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the Purchaser shall pay to the order
of the Seller, in full, the Deferred Sale Price due on such date. In respect of each Series of Sukuk where the
Deferred Sale Price Payment Basis is specified as Amortising, on each Deferred Sale Price Payment Date the
Purchaser shall pay to the order of the Seller, in full, the relevant Deferred Sale Price Instalment Amount due
on such date.

On the occurrence of an Event of Default in relation to any Series of Sukuk and at any time during which such
Event of Default in relation to any Series of Sukuk is continuing, the Seller may demand that the Purchaser
immediately pay the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding in full in relation to that Series of
Sukuk and that the Purchaser immediately pay any other sums owed to the Seller by the Purchaser under
the Master Murabaha Agreement in relation to that Series of Sukuk, whereupon the same shall become so
payable. The Purchaser shall, in any event, discharge in full on the applicable Redemption Date, directly
to the Sukuk Account, all other amounts payable by it to the Seller under this Agreement in relation to
the Murabaha Transaction entered into relating to the Series of Sukuk for which the Redemption Date
has occurred (including the Total Murabaha Deferred Sale Price Outstanding in respect of that Series of
Sukuk), by payment of such amounts into the Sukuk Account at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Riyadh time) on the
Redemption Date.

The Master Murabaha Agreement is governed by the laws of the Kingdom.

10.3 On-Sale Agency Agreement

Under the On-Sale Agency Agreement, the Issuer in its capacity as Principal, appoints the Sukukholder’s
Agent as its On-Sale Agent to sell any Commodities purchased by the Purchaser, pursuant to the Master
Murabaha Agreement.

The On-Sale Agency Agreement is governed by the laws of the Kingdom.
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10.4 Master Declaration of Agency

Pursuant to a master declaration of agency (the “Master Declaration of Agency”) dated [*] between the
Issuer and Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company (in its capacity as agent on behalf of the Sukukholders,
the “Sukukholders’ Agent”, which expression includes any successor Sukukholders’ Agent in relation to the
Sukuk), as supplemented by a supplemental declaration of agency between the same parties in relation to
the relevant Series of Sukuk (each a “Supplemental Declaration of Agency” and together with the Master
Declaration of Agency, each a “Declaration of Agency”), the Sukukholders’ Agent will be appointed to act as
agent for and on behalf of the Sukukholders in respect of the relevant Series of Sukuk.

Pursuant to the Declaration of Agency each Sukukholder, by completing an Investor Application Form or by
subscribing to, acquiring or holding Sukuk, shall be deemed:

a. to have appointed the Sukukholders’ Agent as its agent in relation to the relevant Series with
full capacity, powers, duties and authority in relation to the Sukuk on the terms set out in
the Master Declaration of Agency, each relevant Supplemental Declaration of Agency and the
Conditions; and

b. to have ratified and accepted the entry by the Sukukholders’ Agent into the Sukuk Documents
to which it is a party and performance by the Sukukholders’ Agent of its obligations thereunder;
and

c. to have given an irrevocable and unconditional instruction requiring the Sukukholders’ Agent
to, on the date fixed for payment of the Dissolution Distribution Amount of a Series, upon
satisfaction of the Relevant Obligations, transfer and/or assign at any time all or part of the
remaining portion of the Sukuk Assets of the relevant Series to the Issuer (for its own account).

In relation to each Series, the Sukukholders’ Agent shall:

a. accept its appointment as agent of the Sukukholders on the terms set out in the Master
Declaration of Agency, each Supplemental Declaration of Agency and the Conditions;

b. agree to comply with the terms of the Master Declaration of Agency and the other Sukuk
Documents; and

c. declare, and the Issuer hereby acknowledges, that, with effect from the first Issue Date with
respect to a Series, the Sukukholders’ Agent holds the benefit of the relevant Sukuk Assets
of that Series as agent of the relevant Sukukholders pro rata according to the share of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Sukuk of that Series held by each Sukukholder, in accordance
with the terms set out in the Master Declaration of Agency.

Subject to the terms of the Master Declaration of Agency, the Sukukholders’ Agent further agrees to perform
the duties specified for it as Sukukholders’ Agent in the Conditions.

The Issuer covenants with the Sukukholders’ Agent that, to the order of the Sukukholders’ Agent, it shall pay,
in respect of each Series of Sukuk, the Periodic Distribution Amounts, the Sukuk Capital, any Sukuk Capital
Instalment Amounts, any Partial Periodic Distribution Amounts and any Early Redemption Amounts, as and
when each such payment shall be required to be made in accordance with the Applicable Final Terms and
the Conditions, and shall make such payments in the manner specified in the Applicable Final Terms and the
Conditions and the Payment Administration Agreement.

The Sukukholders’ Agent has undertaken in the Declaration of Agency that, following it receiving written
notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default in respect of any Series and subject to Conditions 9.13
(Events of Default) and 9.14 (Enforcement and Exercise of Rights), it shall (a) promptly notify the relevant
Sukukholders of the occurrence of such Event of Default, and (b) subject to being instructed or directed
to do so in writing by the Required Sukukholders and subject further to being indemnified and/or secured
and/or prefunded to its satisfaction against all Liabilities to which it may thereby render itself liable or which
it may incur by so doing, enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the Sukuk Documents (acting in any
capacity thereunder) and/or take such other steps as the Sukukholders’ Agent may consider necessary in its
absolute discretion to protect the interests of the Sukukholders.

The Issuer shall further covenant and undertake with the Sukukholders’ Agent to comply with those
provisions of the Master Declaration of Agency, the other Sukuk Documents, the Applicable Final Terms and
the Conditions which are expressed to be binding on it and to perform and observe the same.
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The Declaration of Agency shall specify, including, without limitation, that in relation to each Series:

a.

if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Sukukholders’ Agent may, by notice
in writing to the Issuer and the Payment Administrator, require the Payment Administrator,
until notified in writing by the Sukukholders’ Agent to the contrary and so far as permitted by
applicable law, to act thereafter as its agent in accordance with the Payment Administration
Agreement;

the Sukukholders’ Agent may, without any consent or sanction of the Sukukholders and
without prejudice to its rights in respect of any subsequent breach, condition, event or act,
from time to time and at any time, but only if and in so far as in its opinion the interests
of the Sukukholders shall not be materially prejudiced thereby, authorise or waive, on such
terms and conditions (if any) as shall seem expedient to it, any breach or prospective breach
of any of the covenants or provisions contained in the Master Declaration of Agency, each
relevant Supplemental Declaration of Agency, any other Sukuk Document, the Applicable Final
Terms or the Conditions or determine that any Event of Default shall not be treated as such for
the purposes of the Master Declaration of Agency, any relevant Supplemental Declaration of
Agency, the Applicable Final Terms and the Conditions;

the Sukukholders’ Agent ay from time to time and at any time without the consent or sanction
of the Sukukholders concur with the Issuer in making any modification to the Master Declaration
of Agency, the Applicable Final Terms, the Conditions or any other Sukuk Documents which, in
the opinion of the Sukukholders’ Agent, it may be proper to make provided the Sukukholders’
Agent is of the opinion that:

i. such modification is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Sukukholders; or

ii. such modification is of a formal, minor or technical nature or made to correct a manifest
error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law and/or the related provisions contained
in the Sukuk Documents); and

the Sukukholders’ Agent may at any time, at its sole and absolute discretion and without notice,
take such proceedings against the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce the provisions of the
Sukuk and the Sukuk Documents, but it shall not be bound in any circumstances to take any
such action unless directed or requested to do so:

i. pursuant to Condition 9.13 (Events of Default);
ii. by an Extraordinary Resolution; or
iii. in writing by the Required Sukukholders,

and in each case then only if it shall be indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its
satisfaction against all Liabilities to which it may thereby render itself liable or which it may
incur by so doing.

the Sukukholders’ Agent may resign or be replaced in accordance with, and subject to certain
conditions set forth in, the Master Declaration of Agency.

The Declaration of Agency is governed by the laws of the Kingdom.
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10.5 Structure Diagram and Cash Flows
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1. Shari’ah Pronouncement

Prospective Sukukholders should: (i) not rely on the pronouncement referred to below in deciding whether
to make an investment in a Series of Sukuk; and (ii) consult their own Shari’'ah advisers as to whether the
proposed transaction described in the pronouncement referred to is in compliance with Shari’ah principles.

Pronouncement of members of Shari’ah Committee

Copies of the pronouncement (the “Pronouncement”) issued by Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company
Shari'ah Committee relating to the Sukuk and confirming that, in their view, the structure and mechanism
of the Programme and each Series of Sukuk, as fully outlined in the Sukuk Documents, and in the Base
Prospectus, are in compliance with Shari’ah principles, shall be distributed to prospective Sukukholders upon
request to the Sole Arranger and Dealers.

The Issuer does not accept any liability or make any representation, warranty or undertaking, express or
implied, in relation to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in the Pronouncement.

Overview of Shari’ah Committee at Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company

Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company Shari’ah Committee is an independent committee appointed by Al
Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company to advise on Shari’ah aspects of transactions conducted by Al Khair
Capital Saudi Arabia Company or its clients to ensure their full compliance with Shari’ah principles.

Members of the Al Khair Capital Saudi Arabia Company Shari’ah Committee

Sheikh Dr. Yousef bin Abdullah Al Shubaily

Dr. Yousuf bin Abdullah Al-Shubaily is a prominent scholar and expert in Islamic jurisprudence (Figh). He is
a professor of Comparative Figh at the Higher Institute of Judiciary in Saudi Arabia. He is also a member of
the Islamic Figh Academy and serves as the head and member of several commercial dispute committees.
Additionally, he is the head and member of various Shariah committees in Islamic banks and financial
institutions. Dr. Yousuf is a member of the Saudi Figh Academy and the Saudi Judicial Scientific Society. He
has previously served on the board of directors of the Scientific Society for Islamic Banking. He has authored
numerous publications and scientific research papers on Islamic financial transactions.

Sheikh Dr. Jameel bin Abdulmohsen Al-Khalf

Dr. Jameel bin Abdulmohsen Al-Khalf is a renowned scholar who has held various academic positions. He has
served as a non-resident advisor to the Grand Mufti of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. He has also served as
the Dean of the College of Shariah at Imam Muhammad ibn Saud Islamic University in Riyadh, as well as the
Chairman of the Saudi Figh Society during its fifth term. Dr. Jameel has been the Director of the Research
Excellence Centre in Contemporary Jurisprudence Issues at Imam Muhammad ibn Saud Islamic University. He
is also a professor of postgraduate studies at the College of Shariah in Riyadh.

He has participated in and managed numerous seminars, conferences, discussions, and research workshops.
He has also served on various scientific, research, administrative, and media committees. Dr. Jameel holds a
bachelor’s, master’s, and doctoral degree in Figh and its principles.

Sheikh Dr. Fahd bin Saleh Al-Hamoud

Dr. Fahd bin Saleh Al-Hamoud is an Associate Professor in the Figh Department at the College of Shariah and
Islamic Studies at Qassim University. He has also served as the director of the Center for Shariah Research
at the college. He supervised the Sheikh Ibn Uthaymeen Chair for Shariah Studies and was a member of the
board of directors of the Scientific Society for Islamic Banking and the Shariah Committee for the preparation
of the Judicial Decisions Code.

He holds a doctoral degree from the College of Shariah at Imam Muhammad ibn Saud Islamic University and
a master’s degree from King Saud University. He has authored several specialized publications and research
papers.
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12. Taxation and Zakat

The following is a general description of certain Saudi Arabian zakat/tax considerations relating to the Sukuk.
It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all zakat/tax considerations relating to the Sukuk nor does
it address the considerations that are dependent on individual circumstances.

Prospective purchasers of the Sukuk should consult their own tax and zakat advisers to determine the zakat/
tax consequences for them of acquiring, holding and disposing of any Sukuk and receiving distributions,
payments of principal, profit and/or other amounts under the Sukuk and the consequences of such actions
under the zakat/tax regulations of the Kingdom.

This summary is based upon the regulations in effect in the Kingdom at the date of this Base Prospectus and
is subject to any changes in law occurring after such date, which changes could be made on a retroactive
basis. Prospective Sukukholders should note that the Issuer is not obliged to update this section for any
subsequent changes or modification to the applicable zakat and tax regulations.

12.1 Gcc Sukukholders Residents in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Sukukholders who are GCC nationals with permanent residence in the Kingdom, except for (1) (a) a citizen
of a GCC country other than the Kingdom with a permanent establishment in the Kingdom and (b) a legal
entity established under the law of a GCC country other than the Kingdom with a permanent establishment
in the Kingdom, and (2) companies with Saudi capital or others with Gulf capital residing in the Kingdom (to
the extent that they have Gulf ownership in both), the obligatory and applicable (2.5%) Zakat rate apply to
any income or gains received on Sukuk unless there is a special exemption from that.

However, holders of these Sukuk will not be subject to income tax in the Kingdom in respect of the Sukuk.
Financial payments they receive from the Sukuk will not be subject to any tax deduction or other type of
withholding in accordance with the Saudi Laws. In addition, Sukukholders residing in the Kingdom are entitled
to receive additional payments in accordance with Condition 9.16 “Taxation” (For more details, please see
Section 9 “Sukuk Terms and Conditions” of this Base Prospectus).

In the event that the payments they receive later under the Sukuk actually become subject to this deduction,
although additional payments may not be payable in these circumstances to the extent in which the
Sukukholder is able to obtain an avoidance of withholding/deduction by raising, submitting or providing
certain documents and information. In this regard, reference should be made to the provisions of Condition
9.16 “Taxation”.

However, a Sukukholder who meets the criteria referred to in subparagraphs (a) and (b) of this paragraph
and which falls to the prospective Sukukholder as a result of acquiring, holding or disposing of the Sukuk
after the Initial Distribution on the Closing Day, will be subject to Saudi Arabian income tax.

The GCC means: the countries of the Gulf Cooperation Council.

12.2 Non-Gcc Sukukholders Residents in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Sukukholders who are non-GCC persons resident in the Kingdom, as defined in Article 3 of the Income Tax
Regulation, will be subject to income tax in the Kingdom on their profits and gains in Sukuk unless there is
a special exception (on amounts received in excess of the nominal amount of Sukuk such as any Periodic
Distribution Amounts). In addition, the subsequent distributions of profits by any resident company to its
non-resident shareholders are usually subject to a withholding tax of (5%) and the non-resident shareholder/
partner may be entitled to recover this withholding tax in some cases in the event of a tax agreement between
the Kingdom and the country in which Where the non-resident shareholder/partner resides in the Kingdom,
which provides exemption from that withholding tax. Article 3 of the Income Tax Regulation defines.
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“residency” in the Kingdom, for the purposes of the above, as follows:

a. A natural person is considered a resident in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for a taxable year if
he meets either of the two following conditions:

1. He has a permanent place of residence in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and resides in
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for a total of not less than thirty (30) days in the taxable year;

2. Heresides in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for a period of not less than one hundred eighty-
three (183) days in the taxable year.

For the purposes of this paragraph, residence in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for part of a day is considered
residence for the whole day, except in the case of a person in transit between two points outside the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia.

b. A company is considered resident in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia during the taxable year if it
meets either of the following conditions:

1. Itis formed in accordance with the Companies Law ; or

2. lIts central management is located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

This summary does not take into account the extent to which the potential Sukukholder referred to in the
above paragraph is obligated to pay income tax or Zakat as a result of his possession, acquisition or disposal
of the Sukuk after their Initial Distribution on the Closing Date.

12.3  Sukukholders who are not Residents in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Sukukholders who are not resident in the Kingdom - within the meaning of “residency” explained above -
whether they are Saudi nationals or citizens of the GCC countries - are subject to a (5%) withholding tax
on the financing component only of the payments made under the Sukuk (or overpayments for the original
amount) (i.e., the Periodic Distribution Amount) in accordance with the practices approved by the Zakat, Tax
and Customs Authority as on the date of this Prospectus. Where the Sak holder may be entitled to recover
the withholding tax under a treaty between the Kingdom and the country of residence of that said Sak holder.

As for any payments that represent a payment of the original capital under the Sukuk to Sukukholders who
are not residing in the Kingdom, they will not be subject to a withholding tax. Prospective investors should
note that these practices by the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) are based on a limited number
of Saudi Sukuk transactions, and that the financing component of Sukuk payments is not clearly defined as
being subject to a withholding tax or the Income Tax Law. Accordingly, there is a risk that the DZIT may apply
a different or higher withholding rate in the future.

Sukukholders who are not residing in the Kingdom and who have a permanent establishment (PE) in the
Kingdom are subject to Saudi Income Tax at the current rate of (20%) on their net taxable income and
profits attributable to the activity of the owner of the PE in the KSA. According to the Income Tax Law, if
a registration certificate is presented to the PE owner of the Issuer, the latter will be allowed to make any
payments such as Periodic Distribution Amounts in relation to the Sukuk without withholding any Income Tax.
The Income Tax (if any) charged to the PE owner upon receipt of the Periodic Distribution Amounts from the
Issuer shall be available as a deduction against the Income Tax liability of the PE owner (see further below). If,
for instance, the Income Tax incurred exceeds the aforementioned Periodic Distribution Amounts, the Income
Tax liability of the PE owner may be entitled to a refund of the excess from the Zakat, Tax and Customs
Authority (ZTCA). As for the PE owner obtaining discounts or refunds, these are issues determined by the
ZTCA on the basis of the Authority’s assessment and practices and evaluation of the circumstances. Neither
the Issuer or the Sukukholders’ Agent’s Delegate make any representation as to the existence of deductions
or refunds to the Sukukholders, nor can they give assurance that deductions or refunds will actually be
available to Sukukholders. Sukukholders should obtain independent professional advice regarding tax and/
or zakat before investing in Sukuk.

A non-resident person who carries on an activity in the Kingdom through a licensed branch (as defined in
Article (4) (b) of the Income Tax Law), is considered to be the owner of a PE in the Kingdom and is thus the
owner of a PE for the purposes mentioned in the previous paragraph.

All payments such as Periodic Distribution Amounts related to the Sukuk to the owner of the PE in the
Kingdom will be considered part of the total income subject to Income Tax at the current rate of (20%), after
deducting the permissible costs and making certain account adjustments. In Besides, the transfer of these
amounts to the Head Office or any non-resident company affiliated with the owner of the PE is considered a
distribution of profits from the Kingdom and is hence subject to a withholding tax at the rate of (5%). A tax
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agreement between the Kingdom and the country in which the non-resident shareholder/partner resides in
the Kingdom, which provides exemption from that withholding tax.

12.4 General

Sukukholders who are natural persons with or without a PE in the Kingdom at the time of their death will not
be subject to inheritance or other taxes of a similar nature in the Kingdom.

Sukukholders will not be deemed to be resident, domiciled or carrying on business in the Kingdom solely by
reason of holding any Sukuk.

Under the Zakat Regulations which are in effect as the date of this Base Prospectus in the Kingdom the
investment in Sukuk by the taxpayer is eligible for Zakat deduction, provided that these Sukuk are not traded,
and the issuer includes those Sukuk as part of its capital, without considering the classification of these Sukuk
in the financial statements. However, each investor must consider their specific circumstances regarding the
application of Zakat regulations and amendments to the Zakat Collection Law on their investments. The
applicable final terms will clarify the treatment of the relevant Sukuk series for Zakat purposes.
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13. Subscription and Sale

13.1 Programme Agreement

The Dealer(s) have entered into a programme agreement dated [*] (as the same may be amended,
supplemented or novated, the “Programme Agreement”) with the Issuer. Pursuant to the Programme
Agreement, the Issuer has agreed with the Dealer(s) a basis upon which the Dealer(s) may from time to time
agree to procure persons to purchase Sukuk issued under the Programme. Any such agreement will extend
to those matters stated under “Terms and Conditions of the Sukuk”. The Issuer may pay each relevant Dealer
a commission as agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer in respect of Sukuk placed by it.

The Issuer has agreed to indemnify the Dealer(s) against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and
sale of the Sukuk. The Programme Agreement entitles the Dealers to terminate any agreement that they
make to place Sukuk in certain circumstances prior to payment for such Sukuk being made to the Issuer.

13.2 Application by Prospective Investors

The investor presentation period for each Series will be notified to prospective investors and will be outlined
in the Applicable Final Terms (in respect of each Series, the “Offer x Period”). The Issue Date for each
Series of Sukuk will be a date notified by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) to the prospective investors
after the end of the relevant Offer Period and shall be specified in the Applicable Final Terms. The Issuer
and the relevant Dealer(s) shall, prior to the Offer Period, determine and publish the applicable Profit Rate,
Margin and the Expiry Date for the relevant Series. During the Offer Period, the relevant Dealer(s) may solicit
expressions of interest from prospective investors for acquiring the Sukuk of the relevant Series.

Persons wishing to purchase the Sukuk of the relevant Series will be required to submit a duly completed
form (an “Investor Application Form”) to the relevant Dealer(s) before the end of the Offer Period and shall
make payment for the Sukuk of such Series as per the instructions contained in the Investor Application
Form. Investor Application Forms will be available from the relevant Dealer(s) in respect of such Series.
Applications to purchase Sukuk for less than the Specified Denomination (as defined in the Applicable Final
Terms) will not be accepted.

Persons wishing to purchase the Sukuk will be required to declare that they have read and understood this
Base Prospectus (including sections entitled “Risk Factors” and “Sukuk Terms and Conditions”) and the
terms and conditions of the Investor Application Form and accept in full and agree to the basis on which the
offer of Sukuk is made. They will also be required to declare that they are resident for tax purposes in the
Kingdom and that all the information provided in the Investor Application Form is true and correct.

Allocation of the Sukuk of each Series will be at the discretion of the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and
will be made following the end of the Offer Period. Once the allocation of Sukuk of such Series has been
completed, the Issuer will complete the Applicable Final Terms for that Series.

Only persons who are Qualified Persons may be registered as Sukukholders.

All prospective investors must carefully read the Conditions prior to completing an application for the
purchase of the Sukuk since the execution of the Investor Application Form constitutes acceptance of, and
agreement to, the Conditions.

13.3 Saudi Tadawul

The Saudi Tadawul Group (Tadawul), which was previously the Saudi Stock Exchange Company, announced
on 25/08/1442H (corresponding to 07/04/2021G) its transformation into a holding company in the name
of the Saudi Tadawul Group, with a new structure that supports the development of the future of the Saudi
financial market and ensures the continuity of its development as another step towards the Group’s readiness
for the initial public offering during the current year 2021G.

(Tadawul Saudi Group) includes four subsidiaries: (Saudi Tadawul) as a Stock Market, the Securities Clearing
Center Company (Mugassa), the Securities Depository Center Company (Edaa), and (Wamed) Company,
which specializes in innovation-based technical services and solutions.
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Tadawul Saudi Group will benefit from the integration of the services of its subsidiaries and joint businesses,
and the independence of its companies will provide a work environment characterized by flexibility and
innovation to keep pace with the rapid developments in global markets.

The Tadawul System was established in 2001G as an alternative system to the electronic securities information
system, and electronic stock trading began in the Kingdom in 1990. The trading transaction is carried out
through an integrated electronic system, starting from the execution of the transaction and ending with its
settlement.

Trading takes place every business day of the week from Sunday to Thursday, in one period from 10:00 am to
3:00 pm, during which orders are executed. Outside these times, orders are allowed to be entered, modified
and cancelled from 9:30 am until 10:00 am. Transactions are executed through automated matching of
orders, and orders are received and prioritized according to price. In general, market orders are executed
first, which are the orders with the best prices, followed by the orders with a specific price, and if several
orders are entered at the same price, they are executed according to the entry’s timing.

The Tadawul System distributes a comprehensive range of information through various channels, most
notably the Tadawul website. Market data is provided instantly to well-known information providers such as
“Reuters”. The transactions are settled automatically within two business days according to (T+2).

The company must disclose all decisions and important information to investors through the “Tadawul”
System. The Tadawul System is responsible for monitoring the market, with the aim of ensuring fair trading
and efficient market operations.

13.4 General

Except for the application submitted for registration and acceptance of listing the Sukuk on the main market
Tadawul, the Issuer or the Dealers have not and will not take any action that would or aim to allow a Series
of Sukuk to be offered and acquired or to distribute this Base Prospectus, or any other materials related to
the Offering, that would require action in that matter. The Issuer or the Dealers, and any other person whose
possession this Base Prospectus comes, shall abide by all laws and regulations related to the purchase.

13.5 Transfers and Payments

The Registrar will maintain the Register in respect of the Sukuk in accordance with the provisions of the
Registry Agreement. Investors must either maintain an account directly with the Registrar or through a
custodian or other intermediary in order to hold Sukuk. All the transfers shall be effected as per Condition
9.3 (Transfers of Sukuk).

In addition, pursuant to Condition 9.11(Payments) all payments under the Sukuk will be made to Saudi Riyal
denominated accounts in the Kingdom as notified from time to time to the Registrar and the Payment
Administrator. Accordingly, investors will need to make appropriate arrangements to receive payments under
the Sukuk in such an account. Investors are required to consult with their own advisers as to the requirements
of setting up the accounts referred to above and must take any necessary action in respect of opening
such account themselves. None of the Issuer, the Sukukholders’ Agent, the Payment Administrator, the Sole
Arranger and the Dealers shall have any responsibility for ensuring that investors comply with the correct
process, regulations and requirements in relation to opening such accounts in order to hold Sukuk and receive
payments and none of them accept any liability for any loss arising directly or indirectly as a consequence of
any action or inaction in respect of setting up such accounts.

13.6  Approvals upon which debt instruments have been or will be issued
and offered
1. The Issuer’s Board of Directors’ resolution approving the establishment of the Programme and
the issuance of Sukuk dated 30/04/1445H (corresponding to 14/11/2023G).

2. A copy of the approval of the Authority regarding the issuance and registration of the Sukuk,
dated 07/07/1446H (corresponding to 07/01/2025G); and

3. A copy of the approval of Tadawul regarding the issuance and registration of the Sukuk, dated
29/8/1445H (corresponding to 10/03/2024G).
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14. Documents Available for Inspection

For so long as any of the Sukuk are current, copies of the following documents will be available for inspection
at the Issuer’s head office located at Al-Wurud District, Olaya Complex, King Faisal Street, P.O. Box 2886,
Riyadh 12215, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia during official business hours on each weekday other than a Friday,
Saturday or public holiday:

a. the Ministerial Resolution No. Q/5287 issued by the Ministry of Commerce on 05/01/1442H
(corresponding to 24/08/2020G) approving the establishment of Rawasi Al Bina Investment
Company as a Saudi closed joint-stock company;

b. the Issuer’s Bylaws;
the commercial registration certificate of the Issuer;

d. the Issuer’s Board of Director’s Resolution dated 30/04/1445H (corresponding to 14/11/2023G)
approving the registration and offering of local Sharia-compliant Sukuk with a number of
500,000 Sukuk and a value of 500,000,000 Saudi riyals for the purpose of public offering in
the main market;

e. A copy of the Authority approval announcement to offer the Sukuk;

f. There is no contract or arrangement in effect or contemplated, in which a director or senior
executive or any of their relatives has an interest and that is related to the business of the issuer;

d. A written consent of the Financial Advisor, the Arranger, the Legal Advisor, and the Auditors,
to include their names, logos and any statements they have provided, in the Prospectus; and

h. Audited consolidated financial statements of the Issuer the financial statements or the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2021G, 2022G and 2023G and interim condensed financial
information for the six month period ended 30 June 2024G.

From the date of this Prospectus until the Issue Date, the following draft documents may be viewed during
normal business hours.

at the Issuer’s registered office:

Master Declaration of Agency Agreement
Mudaraba Agreement

Master Murabaha Agreement

Payment Administration Agreement

Programme Agreement

On-Sale Agency Agreement

Sukuk (including the Global Sak and Conditions).

@ "2 o0 T O

Starting from the Issue Date and as long as the Sukuk remain in place, signed copies of these documents may
be viewed during normal business hours at the Issuer’s registered office.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, the statement of profits or losses and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes (1) to (27) thereon, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) adopted in Saudi Arabia. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Code of Conduct and Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards), as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with that Code. We believe that the audit evidences we have
obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current periad. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each key audit matter. A description of how our audit addressed the matter is set out below:

1/4

An Independent Member Firm of Moore Global
Network Limited - Member Firms in principal cities
throughout the world.

TABLE OF
110 | @ CONTENTS




Rawa}/'i

S)

hl MOORE

TABLE OF
CONTENTS

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter [ How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition

As stated in note No. (19), the company's revenues | We performed the following procedures among others
amounted to SR 164.2 million, for the financial year | matters with regard to revenue recognition:

ended on December 31, 2023 (2022: SR. 135.2
million). Verification of the appropriateness of accounting policies
to the company's revenue recognition in accordance with
Revenue is an important component of the the reguirements of the IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
company's performance and profitability. It also| with customers.

includes inherent risk by recognizing revenue at more

than its actual value to increase profitability.

Test the design of internal control procedures and
operational effectiveness with regard to revenue
recognition and trade receivables, as well as cut-off
procedures to ensure that revenues are recorded in the
correct period.

Therefore, this matter was considered a key audit
matters.

Testing a sample of the sales and verifying the proper
application of the revenue recognition policy that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15.

- For the selected sample of revenue contracts, we
recalculated the revenues and compared them with the
accounts prepared by management.

Other information included in the company’s annual report for the year ending December 31, 2023

Other information consists of other information from the information included in the Company's annual report for the
year ended December 31, 2023, other than the financial statements and the auditors' report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information and discover a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by
SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and Company’s By-laws and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

2/4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

34
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

FOR EL SAYED EL AYOUTY & CO.

A Bolamzfy

Abdullah Ahmed Balamesh
Certified Public Accountant
License No. (345)

Jeddah: March 18, 2024
Ramadan 08, 1445 H
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

e ———
Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2023 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - nat 6 37,204,038 36,182 426
Right - of - use assets - net 71 11,261,727 5118628
Total non-current assets 48,465,765 45,301,054
Current assets
Trade receivables — net B 76,921,013 68,219,636
Contract assets (net) 9 54,126,302 20,611,616
Prepaid expenses and other receivables balances 10 20,039,468 37,325,549
Cash at banks 12 10,579,685 8,422 607
Total current assets 161,666,468 135,579,408
i s 210,132,293 180,880,462
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 13 55,000,000 55,000,000
Statutory reserve 14 8,182,353 5913638
Gains on re-measurement of defined employee benefit obligations 521,840 343,001
Retained samings 74,067 472 53,649,044
Total equity 137,771,665 114,905,684
Liabilities T
Non-current liabilities
Murabaha- Non-current portion 15 2,977,285 4,202,046
Lease obligations — Non-current portion 7.2 5,873,603 5,001,023
Employees' defined benefits obligations 16 3,888,538 3,947,266
Total non-Current liabilities 12,839,426 13,150,335
Current liabilities
Murabaha- current portion 15 47,314,637 36,686,862
Due to related parties 11 - 5,008,032
Lease obligations — current portion 7.2 2,779,945 1,847,223
Trade payables 3,857,700 5,347,804
Accrued expenses and other payable balances 17 2,703,211 1,568,597
Provision for zakat 18.2 2,865,645 2,267,925
Total current liabilities 59,521,142 52,824,443
Total liabilities 72,360,568 65,974,778
Total equity and liabilities 210,132,233 180,880,462

The financial statements shown from pages (1] to (28) were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf

(W O o @

Executive Director Chairman of the Board of Directors

The accompanying notes from (1) fo (27) form an integral part of these financial statements
1
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

]
Statement of profits or losses and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2023 2022
Revenues of activity 18 164,240 496 135,221,084
Cost of activity (121,741,907) (97.675,620)
Gross profit 42,498,589 37,545,474
General and administrative expenses 20 (7.152,449) (6,549,432)
Credit losses on trade receivables that no longer required 8.1 207,349 -
Expected credit losses on contract assets 81  (561862) ___E
Profit of activity 34,991,627 30,996,042
Financing charges {9.438,740) (7,8584,730)
Other income B £ 64,890
Net profit before zakat 25,552,787 23,166,202
zakat 182 (2,865 645) (2,267 925)
Net profit for the year 22,687 142 20,898,277
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be re-classified subsequently within profits or losses:
Gain on re-measurement of employees’ defined benefits obligations 16.1 178,838 982,736
Total other comprehensive income for the year 178,838 982,736
Total comprehensive income for the year 22,865,981 21,881,013
Basic and diluted earnings per share from net profit for the year
Earnings per share of net profit for the year 22 0.41 3,80

The financial statements shown from pages (1) to (28) were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Executive Director

The accompanying notes from (1) to (27) form an integral part of these financial statements
' 2
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

E—
Statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals uniess otherwise stated)

[ 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net profit for the year before zakat 25,552,787 23,166,202
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 3,725,268 3,724,735
Depreciation of right —of-use assets 1,008,211 664 102
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipmant - (54,890)
Credit losses on trade receivables that no longer required (207 348) e
Expected credit losses on contract assets 561,962 -
Employees’ defined benefits obligations — current service cost 1,103,100 1,081,470
Employees' defined benefits obligations - finance cost 160,854 158,170
Fmgn;mg ;harges B 438,740 7.854 730
T 41,344,373 36,624,519
Change in:
Trade receivables (8,494,028) 5,596,080
Contract assets (34,076,648) (4,633,854)
Prepaid expenses and other receivable balances 17,288,081 (23,739,892)
Trade payables (1,480,104) 4,093,989
Payables and other payable balances 1134614 285,747
Employaes’ defined benefits obligations — paid {1,143,643) (185,880)
Cash flows provided by operating activities 14,560,645 18,030,609
Financing charges - paid (9,438,740) (7.894,730)
Zakat- paid (2, 267,925) (1.698,141)
Net Cash flows provided by operating activities 2,853,980 8,437,738
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments to purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,3808.289) (5.897,0186)
Proceeds from the sale of Property, plant and equipment - 581,370
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (3,3889,289) (5,316,6486)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in Murabaha during the year 9,402,014 (828,313)
Financing from a shareholder (5,008,032) 5,006,032
Lease obligations (2,704,595) (1,881,428)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 1,692,387 2,296,291
Net change in cash during the year 1,157,078 5,418,383
Cash at the beginning of the year 9,422 6807 4,004,224
Cash at the end of the year 10,579,685 9,422,607
Non-cash transactions:
Sales of property and equipment to a contracior - 176,761
Transferred from right-of-use assets to property, plant and equipment 1,357,561 -
Additions to the right-of-use assets 4,508,801 1,439,800

eir behalf by;

The financial statements shown from pages (1) to (28) were approved by the Board of Directors and signed o

o)

Manager Executive Director Chairman of the Board of Directors

The accompanying notes from (1) to (27) form an integral pant of these financial statements
- 4
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1. General

Company’s profile

Rawasi Al-Bina Investment Company (the “Company”) is a closed Saudi joint stock company (formerly a limited
liability) was incorporated and operates in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The company obtained the initial commercial
registration number 1010260422 on January 4, 2009 (corresponding to Muharram 7, 1430H)

On August 10, 2020, the partners resolved to transform the legal entity of the company from a limited liability company
to a closed joint stock company, with its rights, obligations, labors, licenses, and all elements of its financial, technical,
administrative, and executive classification, and the same capital (SR. 500 thousand), with modifications of the
commercial name of the company to became “Rawasi Al-Bina Investment Company”, and it was approved by the
Ministry of Commerce by Resolution No. (Q/5287) dated Muharram 05, 1442 H corresponding to August 24, 2020.

On September 2, 2020, the company’s Board of Directors resolved to increase the capital from SR. 500 thousand to
SR. 55 million, and this was approved in the extraordinary general assembly of the company held on September 14,
2020, and the transfer was made from the shareholders’ current accounts (additional financing) and the company’s
retained earnings, respectively amounted to SR.14,755,274 and SR. 39,694,726, as well as an amount of SR. 50,000,
through the issuance of 5,000 new shares to be subscribed by new shareholders and paid in cash.

The extraordinary general assembly of shareholders, held on June 12, 2023, corresponding to Dhul-Qi'dah 23, 1444H,
approved amending the company’s Article of Association to comply with the new companies’ Act, and rearranging and
numbering articles to be compatible with the proposed amendments.

The company's main activity

The company's activity is represented in the general construction of residential buildings, the construction of roads,
streets, sidewalks, and road supplies, the construction and establishment of electrical power stations and transformers,
the construction and erection of wired and wireless communications stations and towers, radar, the extension of
electrical wires, communications wires, and networks, in addition to the installation of lighting systems, land
transportation of goods and transportation of goods and equipment (heavy transportation).

Company Address

The company's address is: King Fahd Road - Olaya District - Riyadh - Olaya Avenue Center - PO Box: 63657 Riyadh
11526 - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

- The financial year starts on January 1 of each year and ends on December 31 of the same year.
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
21. Statement of compliance

These financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are issued by SOCPA.

2.2, Accounting convention / measurement basis

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accrual accounting principle using the going
concern concept and on the basis of historical cost, except for:

- Employees’ defined benefits obligations that are measured at the present value of future obligations according to the
projected credit unit method.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements items are presented in Saudi Riyals (“SR”) which is the functional and presentation currency
unless otherwise stated.
5
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies on the amounts listed for assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Although these estimates and judgments are based on the best information available to management on operations and
current events, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The underlying estimates are reviewed on regular basis. Adjustments to the accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which these estimates are reviewed in the review period prospectively if the changed estimates affect the
current and future periods.

The following is an explanation of the information on the most important estimates and uncertainties when applying
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts shown in the financial statements:

3.1. Fulfilling performance obligations

The company must evaluate each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance obligations have
been met over time or at a specific time in order to determine the appropriate method of recognizing revenue. The
company evaluated this based on the contract agreements it concluded with customers and the provisions of relevant
laws and regulations.

The company elected to apply the input method in allocating the transaction price for the performance obligation, where
revenues are included based on the company’s efforts to fulfill the performance obligation, providing the best reference
for the revenues actually earned.

3.2. Determining the transaction price

The Company must determine transaction prices in relation to each of its contracts with customers. When making such a
judgment, the company evaluates the impact of any variable price in the contract as a result of discounts or fines, the
presence of any significant financing element in the contract and any non-cash price in the contract.

3.3. Measurement of employees benefits obligations

The Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that
employees have earned in current and prior periods and discounting that amount to arrive at present value. The
calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Judgments are used in
estimating the actuarial assumptions.

3.4. Provision for expected credit losses (ECL)

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model to determine the impairment losses of trade receivables and
other receivables. This requires the Company to take certain factors to ensure that the balances of receivables are not
overvalued as a result of the possibility of un-collecting them, such as ageing of receivables and continuous credit
evaluation. Provisions are recorded when there is an objective evidence indicates the possibility of un-collection
according to IFRS 9.

3.5. Useful lives of property and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives of property and equipment for calculating depreciation. This
estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets or physical wear and tear. Management reviews
the estimated useful lives and the method of depreciation to ensure that the method and duration of depreciation are
consistent with the expected model of the economic benefits from these assets.

The change in depreciation expenses (if any) is adjusted in the current and future periods.
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3. Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments (Continued)

3.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there are indications of impairment of non-financial
assets at each financial reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment if there are indications that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable.

When value in use is calculated, management evaluates the future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
chooses the appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of these cash flows.

3.7. Measurement of fair value
The fair value of the assets and liabilities

Fair value is the selling price that would be received in exchange for selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or liability, the company uses market observable data as much as
possible.

Fair values are categorized into a hierarchy based on the data used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: Listed (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites can be obtained on the
measurement date.

e Level 2: Inputs other than listed prices which already listed at level 1 which are observable to the assets and liabilities
in direct manner (such as prices) or indirect manner (derived from prices)

e Level 3: Inputs of assets or liabilities are not based on observable market data (non-observable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred. As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there are no transfers between
levels.

3.8. Going concern principle

The management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and has concluded that it has
the resources to continue its activity in the foreseeable future. In addition, management is not aware of any material
uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial
statements continued to be prepared on the going concern basis.

4. Material accounting policies

41. Current versus non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current / non-current
classification.
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)
41. Current versus non-current classification (Continued)
The assets

An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
The liabilities
A liability is current when:

e lItis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

4.2. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances, cash on
hand, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, banks and other highly liquid short-term
investments, if any, with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of its creation.

4.3. Property, plant and equipment

A) Recognition and measurement

o Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. The cost of acquiring an asset includes all costs related to acquiring the asset.

e An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset.

e The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property and equipment, and are recognized net in other income (expenses)
in profit or loss.

e Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits to the Group and can be
measured reliably.

e Financing costs related to loans to finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalized during the year
necessary to complete and prepare the assets for their intended purpose.

« If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives then they are accounted for

as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
8
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)

4.3. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

A) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

The carrying amount of a replaced item is disposed when significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals of time. The Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specified useful lives
and is depreciated accordingly.

Other repair and maintenance costs are included in profit or loss as incurred.

B) Depreciation

The cost less the estimated residual value is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Itel Useful Life of asset Ite Useful Life of asset
Building on leasehold land 33 — 34 years Devices and cabinets 10 years
Property, plant and equipment 20 years Air conditions 10 years
Computers 10 years Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 6 — 7 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

4.4. Borrowing costs

- Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred by an entity in connection with borrowing money.

- Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of an asset are capitalized using a capitalization rate up to
that point when the work necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended purpose is actually completed and
thereafter these costs are charged to profit or loss.

- Inthe case of specific loans, all such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that requires a substantial period of time to prepare it for its specified purpose or for sale, such costs are
capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

- All other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they occur.

4.5, Leases
Right-of-use assets and obligations of leases

The Company evaluates whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease. At the beginning of the contract, the
company establishes the right-of-use asset and the corresponding lease obligation in relation to all lease agreements in
which it is the lessee party, with the exception of short-term leases and low-value leases.

The assets and liabilities arising from the lease contract are initially measured on the basis of present value. The assets
and liabilities of the lease contracts are recognized and each lease payment is distributed between the liabilities and the
financing cost. Charge the financing cost to profits or losses over the lease period.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset and the lease term, whichever is shorter, on a
straight-line basis. The right-of-use asset is measured at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as
operating leases at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied from the inception date of the lease, but
discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

9
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)

4.5. Leases (Continued)
Obligations of leases

Lease obligation is recognized at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as operating leases at the
present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate as at the lease
date.

4.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to the recoverable amount. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. The value in use is
based on a discounted cash flow (DCF) model, whereby the future expected cash flows discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

An assessment is conducted at each reporting date to determine whether there is an evidence of impairment loss
previously recorded or curtailed. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of consolidated profit or loss.

Any impaired non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating unit.

4.7. Financial instruments
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

An asset and a financial liability are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual obligations of the
instrument.

All financial assets are classified and subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. The classification depends
on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

assets as described below at the time of initial recognition.
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)

4.7. Financial instruments (Continued)

All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income as stated below are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Net gains and losses are recognized and
include any interest or dividend income in profit or loss.

Assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the following two conditions are met:

- The objective to hold financial assets within a business model is to collect contractual cash flows.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- Financial assets classified as trade receivables are measured at amortized cost as they are held in the business
model to collect contractual cash flows from payments of principal and interest only.

- Amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Impairment of financial assets

The company, based on the perspective view, evaluates the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets
listed at amortized cost.

For receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires the recognition of expected losses on a
lifetime basis from the date of initial recognition of the receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, receivables
have been grouped based on common credit risk characteristics and the number of days past due. Expected loss rates
have been inferred from the Company's historical information and adjusted to reflect the expected future outcome.

Other financial assets such as employees' other receivables balances and balances with banks have low credit risk and
therefore the impact of applying expected credit losses is not material.

De-recognition

The company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual cash flows for those assets expire, or when the
company transfers the right to obtain the contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are substantially transferred.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the contractual arrangements, which also include creditors, the amounts
payable and loans. All financial obligations are initially measured at fair value, after the initial recognition, the direct
transaction costs are recorded at amortized cost using the effective commission rate over the life of the instrument and
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only

when there is a legally enforceable right and when the company has the intention to settle on a net basis to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1"
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)

4.7. Financial instruments (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenues arising from contracts are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements of applying
International Financial Reporting Standard No. (15), where revenues are included in the amount that reflects the price
that the entity expects to receive in exchange for services to the client.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract with the client and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of other parties. The company recognizes revenue when control of the products or services provided
to the client is transferred.

The company establishes contracts with clients based on the following five steps:
Step 1. Determine the contract (s) with a client:

A contract is an agreement concluded between two or more parties that establishes rights and undertakings and sets out
the criteria that must be fulfilled for each contract.

Step 2. Determine the performance obligations in the contract:
A performance commitment is a promise in the contract with the client to transfer goods or provide services to the client.
Step 3. Determine the transaction price:

The transaction price is the amount of the consideration that the company expects to receive in exchange for transferring
the goods or services promised to the client, excluding the amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:

In a contract that contains more than one performance obligation, the company will distribute the transaction price to
each performance obligation in an amount that determines the amount of the consideration that the company expects to
receive in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognition of revenue when (or where) the entity fulfills a performance obligation.

If the amount intended to be paid in the contract includes a variable amount, the Company shall estimate the amount that
the Company is entitled to in exchange for transporting the goods and services committed to be provided to the client.

The Company's revenues are:

Short-term installation and delivery services revenues

Revenues are recognized as described above, and revenues from short-term services provided are recorded when the
outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably at the financial reporting date. Accordingly, the company postpones
the revenues distributed to short-term services and recognizes them over that period on an accrual basis. If it is not
possible to measure the results in a reliable manner, revenues are included only to the extent that the expenses incurred
can be recovered.

Contracts revenue

Contract revenue is recognized when the contract outcome can be estimated with a reasonable degree of confidence.
Revenue and costs are recognized according to the percentage of completion method.

The completed work is measured based on the contract costs incurred for the completed work up to the date of the
financial statements to the total estimated contract costs, except if this does not express the stage that has been
completed, as it is then measured based on an inventory and estimate of the work that has been completed from the
contract, and orders are included. Changes in contract, claims and incentives within contract revenues to the extent that
they can be measured with a reasonable degree of confidence and their collection is considered probable.
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)
4.7. Financial instruments (Continued)
Contracts revenue (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the contract outcome with a reasonable degree of confidence, revenue is recognized
to the extent of the amounts expected to be recovered from the cost incurred. The contract cost incurred is recognized
as an expense for the period in which it is incurred.

When it is likely that the total costs of a contract exceed the total revenues of the contract, the loss is recognized as an
expense directly.

Recorded revenues in excess of the amounts issued in customer invoices are classified as current assets under the
name of revenues for which no invoices were issued. However, the amounts issued in customer invoices in excess of the
revenues recorded with them are classified as current liabilities under the name of invoices in excess of revenues.

Accounts payable and accruals

Trade payables are recognized for amounts payable in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed
by suppliers.

4.8. Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses include direct and indirect costs that are not
specifically considered part of the cost of revenues.

All expenses except financial charges, depreciation, amortization and impairment losses are classified as general and
administrative expenses.

Other common expenses are distributed between revenue costs, selling and marketing costs, and general and
administrative expenses on a fixed basis when necessary.

4.9. Zakat and tax
A. Zakat

The Zakat provision is calculated in accordance with the regulations issued by the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority
("ZATCA") in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The zakat provision is charged to profits or losses.

Any additional zakat obligations are recorded and adjustments resulting from the zakat assessment, if any, that may
become due upon completion of the assessment are processed in the same financial year in which the zakat
assessment is issued.

B. Withholding tax

The Company deducts taxes on certain transactions with non-resident entities in Saudi Arabia as required in accordance
with the applicable tax regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The withholding tax relating to foreign payments is
recorded as a liability.

C. Value added tax (VAT)
1- Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized after deducting the transaction tax (value-added tax), except for:

e When transaction tax incurred in connection with the purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the transaction tax is recognized as part of the cost of purchasing the asset or as part of
expense items, where applicable, and

13
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)
4.9. Zakat and tax (Continued)
o Receivables and payables that are included with the transaction tax amount.

2- The net amount of transaction tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the statement of financial position.

4.10. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded after converting them according to the prevailing exchange rates into the
functional currency (the Saudi riyal) on the date of the transaction, and the balances of assets and liabilities of a
monetary nature in foreign currencies are converted into the Saudi riyal (the functional currency) at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the financial statements. Gains and losses resulting from changes in exchange rates are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are retranslated using the
exchange rates as at the date of the initial transactions and are not subsequently adjusted. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Gains or losses arising on the translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value are treated in line
with the recognition of gains or losses from changes in the fair value of the related item.

4.11. Provisions

A provision is recognized if the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligations arising from previous events
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations, and can be measured
reliably. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to this liability.

4.12. Employees’ benefits
a) Defined benefits programs

The Company offers employees’ defined benefits plan in accordance with the labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
where the company's net obligation in relation to defined benefit programs is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefits that the employee has earned in the current and previous periods and deducting that amount. Defined
benefits obligations are calculated annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, which takes into
account the provisions of the labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company’s policy.

The defined benefit obligation is re-measured periodically by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows. Given the absence of a deep market for government bonds / sukuks or corporate bonds / sukuks in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the discount rate is determined by reference to the “yield to maturity” of the Dow Jones Sukuk
Index. Net commission cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation balance and
the fair value of the plan assets.

The costs of defined benefit obligations are calculated using actuarially defined retirement costs at the end of the
previous year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any significant one-time events such as program
modifications, workforce reductions, and reimbursements. In the absence of such significant market fluctuations and
one-time events, the actuarial liabilities are extended based on the assumptions at the beginning of the year. If there are
significant changes in assumptions or arrangements during the initial period, changes are considered to re-measure
these obligations and related costs.
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4. Material accounting policies (Continued)

4.12. Employees’ benefits (Continued)

a) Defined benefits programs (Continued)

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan liability consisting of actuarial gains and losses is recognized directly in
other comprehensive income. The Company calculates net benefit by applying the discount rate used to measure the net
defined benefit obligation or asset. Net interest expense and other related expenses for defined benefit plans are

recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is reduced, the resulting change in the
benefit that relates to previous service or profits or losses from the reduction is recorded immediately in profits or losses.

b) Short-term employee’s benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
in the Year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service. Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

c) Retirement benefit

Retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees are paid by company of the General Organization for Social
Insurance and considered as a defined contribution plan. The payments are expensed as incurred.

4.13. Dividends

a- The company records the obligations related to paying cash dividends to the company’s shareholders when the
distribution is approved.

b- According to the Companies' Act in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved upon approval of
shareholders.

4.14. Contract assets

Contract assets represent the total value of work carried out for clients for which extracts have not been issued until the
date of the statement of financial position. Its value is expected to be collected from clients in the following period when
the extract is issued in accordance with the contracts concluded with the clients. Unbilled revenues are recognized as
current assets in the statement of financial position.

4.15. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income attributable to shareholders of the company by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (after
adjusting for interest on convertible preferred stock) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be issued upon conversion of all
potentially dilutive common shares into common shares.

Since the company does not have any convertible shares, basic earnings per share equals diluted earnings per share.
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5. New standards, amendments and interpretations:
The new standards, amendments and appropriate interpretations are disclosed below as follows:
A New and amended standards applied

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting period
beginning January 1, 2023:

e Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of liabilities into current or non-current

e Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

e Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

e Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred tax relating to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction

The above amendments had no impact on the amounts recognized in the prior and current periods and are not expected
to have a material impact on future reporting periods.

- Other accounting standards relevant to the reporting period do not apply to the company.
B The new and amended standards are not effective or applied:

Below are disclosed the new and amended standards and interpretations that have been issued but have not become
effective until the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

Standard - interpretation Amendment Effective date

IAS 1 1 January 2024

Amendments to the “Presentation of Financial
Statements” standard related to the classification of
liabilities as current and non-current.
IFRS 16 Amendments to the lease standard relating to sale and 1 January 2024
leaseback transactions and assessing whether an
asset transfer is a sale.
Supplier financing arrangements Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 1 January 2024

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

7. Right-of-use-assets and leases’ obligations-Net
71. Right—of-use-assets
Right-of-use-assets represents the rental value of land, plant and equipment and the movement on them during the year
is as follows:

Land and Plant and

buildings* equipment™ Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2023 5,397,976 6,141,349 11,539,325
Additions during the period/year 1,233,901 3,276,000 4,509,901
Transferred to property, plant and equipment - (1,823,517) (1,823,517)
Balance at December 31, 2023 6,631,877 7,593,832 14,225,709
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2023 1,738,881 681,816 2,420,697
Depreciation for the year 656,819 352,392 1,009,211
Transferred to property, plant and equipment - (465,926) (465,926)
Balance at December 31, 2023 2,395,700 568,282 2,963,982
Net book value:
Balance at December 31, 2023 4,236,177 7,025,550 11,261,727
Balance at December 31, 2022 3,659,095 5,459,533 9,118,628

* It represents the rental value of 7 plots of land on which the company's warehouses are built for use in the
implementation of its projects in several cities within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

** It represents the rental value of a number of plant and equipment with financing leases from local companies under
leases of up to 36 months, including the right of the lessee to own the asset at the end of the lease term.

7.2. Leases’ obligations
Plant and December 31, December 31
Land equipment 2023 2022
Total leases’ obligations 5,982,126 4,180,690 10,162,816 8,345,734
Less: future financing costs (1,093,429) (315,835) (1,409,264) (1,397,488)
Leases’ obligations - Net 4,888,697 3,864,855 8,753,552 6,948,246
Lease obligations are classified in the financial statements as follows:
Current portion 746,315 2,033,634 2,779,949 1,947,223
Non - current portion 4,142,382 1,831,221 5,973,603 5,001,023
7.3. Minimum future lease payments as at December 31:
Plant and December 31, December 31
Land equipment 2023 2022
2023 - - - 1,947,223
2024 746,315 2,033,634 2,779,949 1,456,986
2025 693,631 1,536,043 2,229,674 826,356
2026 582,562 295,178 877,740 2,385,575
After that 2,866,189 - 2,866,189 332,106
4,888,697 3,864,855 8,753,552 6,948,246
18
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

7. Right — of — use leased assets and leases’ obligations-Net (Continued)
7.4. The following table shows the movement during the year in lease obligations:
December 31 December 31,
2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.948.246 7389 874
Additions during the year 4.509.901 1.439 800
Paid during the year (2,704,595) (1,881,428)
8,753,552 6,948,246
Current portion 2,779,949 1,947,223
Non—current portion 5,973,603 5,001,023
8. Trade receivables — Net
December 31 December 31,
2023 2022
Clients 77,816,400 69,322,372
Less:
Provision for expected credit losses (895,387) (1,102,736)
76,921,013 68,219,636

According to the agreement with the banks, the receivable is deducted in favor of the bank for its receivables for the
registered projects for which final letters of guarantee have been issued from those proceeds.

8.1. Movement in the provision for expected credit losses is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
At beginning of the year 1,102,736 1,102,736
Provision no longer required (207,349) -
At the end of the year 895,387 1,102,736
8.2. As of December 31, the aging of trade receivables was as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
1 - 60 days 42,094,215 35,094,918
61— 120 days 12,529,835 12,591,203
121 - 180 days 7,989,230 15,121,523
Past due by more than 180 days 15,203,120 6,514,728
Total 77,816,400 69,322,372

- The trade receivables item at December 31, 2023 includes amounts that are not impaired and past due more than the
normal collection cycle amounting to SR. 23.1 million (2022: SR. 21.6 million), some of which are due from
government and semi-governmental institutions, which amounted to SR. 17.2 million. Based on experience, it is
expected that these late amounts will be collected because they are good debts.

19
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

9. Contract assets - Net
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Unbilled revenue 54,688,264 20,611,616
Less:
Provision for expected credit loss (561,962) -
54,126,302 20,611,616

Contract assets represent the value of work carried out using short-term operating orders that were not invoiced until the
financial position date on December 31, 2023.

9.1. Movement in the provision for expected credit losses is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
At beginning of the year - -
Provided during the year 561,962 -
At the end of the year 561,962 -
10. Prepaid expenses and other receivable balances
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Advance payments to suppliers 6,631,916 27,261,774
Prepaid expenses 3,334,905 2,140,401
Letters of guarantee margin 1,184,411 925,456
Letters of credit margin 55,200 350,000
Retentions - Contractors 8,503,882 5,366,553
Employees’ receivables 329,154 1,281,365
20,039,468 37,325,549

1. Transactions with related parties

The related parties represent the company's shareholders, senior management staff in the company and the entities
owned or managed by these parties, as well as the entities that exercise joint control or substantial influence over these
parties. Transactions with related parties are carried out during the normal course of business through contracts
approved by the management.

The following is a summary of the most important transactions that took place between the company and related parties:
11.1. Due to related parties

The following are the balances due to related parties at the date of the financial statements:

Amount of transaction Balances as at
Nature of Nature of December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Related party Relationship transactions 2023 2022 2023 2022
Mohsen Bin Mutaib Major Payment /
Al-Otaibi shareholder financing (5,006,032) 5,006,032 - 5,006,032
- 5,006,032
20
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11. Transactions with related parties (Continued)
11.1. Due to related parties (Continued)

The balance represents the value of financing granted by shareholder Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi in 2022, for the
purpose of financing working capital, without financing charge, and it was repaid in 2023.

11.2. Benefits, rewards and compensation of senior management employees:

The Company's senior management personnel consist of senior management members who have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Salaries, compensation and allowances 2,006,000 1,545,866
12. Cash at banks
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balances at banks — current accounts 10,579,685 9,422,607
10,579,685 9,422,607
13. Share capital

The company's share capital was set with SR. 55,000,000 (Fifty-five million Saudi Riyals) divided into 5,500,000 shares,
the value of each share is SR. 10 fully paid.

*On June 12, 2023, the General Assembly of Shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ recommendation to divide
the nominal value of the company’s shares, by amending the nominal value of the share from the amount of SR. 10 to
SR. 1 per share, so the number of shares after the amendment became 55,000,000 shares. There is no change in the
company’s capital after the process of reducing the nominal value of the share (note 22).

14. Statutory reserve

- In accordance with the company's articles of association and the companies' Act in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the
company is required to transfer annually 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve until this statutory reserve
amounts to 30% of its share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.

- On 13 Jumada al-Akhir 1445H (corresponding to December 26, 2023), the company’s management amended the
company’s Atrticle of Association to be conform with the new Companies' Act, issued by Royal Decree No. (M/132)
dated 01 Dhu al-Hijjah 1443H, which entered into force on 26 Jumada al-Akhir 1444H (corresponding to January 19,
2023), and since the new Companies' Act does not require setting aside a statutory reserve, the company’s
management will transfer the statutory reserve to retained earnings after presenting it to the company’s next general
assembly.
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

15. Murabaha
December 31, December 31,
Note 2023 2022

Murabaha from banks 15.1 40,095,927 40,888,908
Murabaha from financing corporates 15.2 10,195,995 -
Total murabaha at December 31, 50,291,922 40,888,908
Murabahat are classified in the financial statements as follows:

Non-current portion 2,977,285 4,202,046
Current portion 47,314,637 36,686,862

15.1. Murabaha from banks
During the year 2023, the Company renewed its credit facilities contracts with two local banks at amounting to SR. 108.2
million in the form of commercial facilitation, Tawarroq, and letters of guarantee, in accordance with the terms of the

facilities agreement granted and with the following guarantees:

1- Facilities to finance multiple work orders for the Saudi Electricity Company, on condition to endorsement of the
assignment of the entitlements of these projects.

2 - Assignment in favor of project proceeds for which final letters of guarantee have been issued from the Company's
projects in favor of the bank.

3- Acknowledgement of indebtedness guarantee and personal solidarity bond signed by some shareholders.

4 - Personal guarantee from the major shareholder, Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi (promissory note). Endorsed
assignment of the proceeds of projects for which final letters of guarantee were issued from the Company’s projects in
favor of the bank.

5- Guarantee financing guarantee program for small and medium entities - Kafala program - amount of SR 15 million.
15.2. Murabaha from financing corporates

The Company mainly has entered into a number of contracts with local companies worth SR. 14.4 million in the form of
commercial facilitation with a guarantee of Promissory notes with the number of installments signed by one of the
shareholders, Mr. Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi.

16. Employees’ defined benefit obligations

16.1. Movement in net employees' defined benefit obligations

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balance at January 01, 3,947,266 3,886,242
Current service cost 1,103,100 1,081,470
Interest cost 160,654 158,170
Actuarial (gains) (178,839) (982,736)
Benefits paid during the year (1,143,643) (195,880)
Balance at December 31, 3,888,538 3,947,266
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16. Employees’ defined benefit obligations (Continued)

16.2. Actuarial assumptions

The evaluation of the employees' defined benefits obligations for the end-of-service benefit plan was prepared with the

assistance of the Company'’s actuary using the following key assumptions:

Discount rate
Expected salary increase rate
The assumed retirement age

16.3. Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions:

Basic assumptions

+1% salary change rate

Salary change rate & y 9
-1% salary change rate
+1% di

Discount rate 1% discount rate

-1% discount rate

17. Accrued expenses and other payable balances

Accrued expenses
Value added tax (VAT)
Other payable balances

18. Zakat provision

18.1.  Zakat calculation

Adjusted net profit
Total added items including adjusted net profit

Total deducted items
Adjusted Zakat Base (Zakat Base / 354*365)

The zakat due @ 2.5% of the adjusted net profit / zakat base

23

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
4.94% 4.07%
4% 2%
60 60

2023 2022
3,888,538 3,947,266
4,060,633 4,703,165
3,726,937 3,318,146
3,729,077 3,314,850
4,059,884 4,732,642

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
1,954,838 485,330
748,373 1,068,267
- 15,000
2,703,211 1,568,597

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
29,190,076 24,420,842
164,597,548 136,666,433
(49,971,764) (46,708,713)
114,625,784 89,957,720
2,865,645 2,248,943
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18. Zakat provision (Continued)

18.2. Movement of Zakat provision

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 2,267,925 1,698,141
Provided during the year 2,865,645 2,267,925
Paid during the year (2,267,925) (1,698,141)
Balance at end of the year 2,865,645 2,267,925

18.3.  Status of zakat

Years up to 2021

The Company filed its returns for those years, the assessment for the year 2014 was made in 2017, and the zakat
differences were paid to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) amounting to SR. 226,135 on May 05, 2017.
The Company submitted its returns until 2021.

Year 2022

The company filed the zakat return for the financial year ended December 31, 2022 and obtained a certificate from the
Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) valid until April 30, 2024. No final zakat assessments have been received
from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority for that year yet.

Value added tax

The Company is registered for VAT. The Company submits its returns and pays its VAT regularly on the specified
statutory dates.

19. Activity revenues
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Revenues from electricity installation and connection services 128,107,203 111,870,201
Revenues of installation and connection services for communications works 36,133,293 23,350,893
164,240,496 135,221,094
20. General and administrative expenses
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Salaries, wages, and equivalent 5,024,705 4,674,252
Governmental fees 155,437 340,724
Professional and legal fees 1,213,173 909,464
Medical insurance 259,430 268,258
Others 499,704 356,734
7,152,449 6,549,432
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
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21. Contingent liabilities

In addition to the amounts taken into account within the financial statements' items, there are the following contingent
liabilities at December 31, 2023:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Letter of guarantee 7,411,117 5,446,567
Letter of credit - 4,408,562
7,411,117 9,855,129

22. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Company's net profit for the year by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding on December 31, 2023, as follows:

2023 2022
Net profit for the year 22,687,142 20,898,277
Weighted average number of outstanding shares* 55,000,000 5,500,000
Earnings per share in net profit for the year 0,41 3,80

*On June 12, 2023, the General Assembly of Shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ recommendation to divide
the nominal value of the company’s shares, by amending the nominal value of the share from the amount of SR. 10 to
SR. 1 per share, so the number of shares after the amendment became 55,000,000 shares. There is no change in the
company’s capital after the process of reducing the nominal value of the share (note 13).

* There is no convertible obligation to equity instruments, therefore, the diluted earnings per share does not differ from
the basic earnings per share.

23. Financial instruments
23.1. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount that would be received when an asset was sold or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

23.2. Measurement of fair value of financial instruments

The table below shows the book values and fair values of financial assets and liabilities including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy and does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value if the book value reasonably approximates the fair value:

Financial assets Financial assets at

As at December 31, 2023 measured at fair value amortized cost Total
Book value
Financial assets
Trade receivables (net) - 76,921,013 76,921,013
Contract assets (net) - 54,126,302 54,126,302
Other receivables - 10,072,646 10,072,646
Cash at banks - 10,579,685 10,579,685

- 151,699,646 151,699,646
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23. Financial instruments (Continued)
23.2. Measurement of fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
As at December 31, 2023 (Continued) measured at fair value  at amortized cost Total
Book value (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Credit/Murabaha facilities - 50,291,922 50,291,922

Obligations of financial lease contracts - 8,753,552 8,753,552

Trade payables - 3,857,700 3,857,700

Accruals and other payables - 2,703,211 2,703,211

Zakat provision - 2,865,645 2,865,645
- 68,472,030 68,472,030

Financial assets Financial assets at

As at December 31, 2022 measured at fair value amortized cost Total

Book value

Financial assets

Trade receivables (net) - 68,219,636 68,219,636

Contract assets (net) - 20,611,616 20,611,616

Other receivables - 7,923,374 7,923,374

Cash at banks - 9,422,607 9,422,607
- 106,177,233 106,177,233

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities

measured at fair value  at amortized cost Total

Financial liabilities
Credit/Murabaha facilities - 40,888,908 40,888,908
Obligations of financial lease contracts - 6,948,246 6,948,246
Trade payables - 5,347,804 5,347,804
Accruals and other payables - 1,568,597 1,568,597
Zakat provision - 2,267,925 2,267,925

- 57,021,480 57,021,480

23.3. Financial risk management

Risks are part of the company's activities and are managed through a continuous mechanism consisting of identifying
risks, evaluating, and then following them up in accordance with the restrictions and other approved controls. The risk
management process is essential to a company's ability to generate profits.

Every employee in the company is responsible for managing risks related to his job or responsibilities.
The company is exposed to market risk, commission rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk.
23.4. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk related to the inability of one party, for a financial instrument, to meet its obligations, resulting in the
other party incurring a financial loss. The company does not have a high concentration of credit risk. To reduce exposure
to credit risk, the company has established an approval process whereby credit limits are applied to customers. The
management also continuously monitors the risks of credit exposure towards customers and creates an provision for
doubtful debt, which are based on the customer’s file and previous payment dates. Outstanding customer receivables
are monitored on a regular basis. To meet the credit risk of its debtors, the Company has also entered into insurance
arrangements in certain geographic areas.
26
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23. Financial instruments (Continued)
23.4. Creditrisk (Continued)

The total maximum exposure to credit risk in the company is the book value, which is as of the reporting date as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Trade receivables (net) 76,921,013 68,219,636
Contract assets (net) 54,126,302 20,611,616
Cash at banks 10,579,685 9,422,607
141,627,000 98,253,859

o Trade receivables and other receivables are stated at net after deducting expected credit losses in trade receivables.
e Cash balances held in banks with stable credit ratings.

23.5. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulties in obtaining the financing necessary to meet
obligations associated with financial instruments, and liquidity risk may result when the inability to sell a financial asset

quickly at a value close to its fair value.

Liquidity risk is managed through regular monitoring to ensure the availability of sufficient funds through available bank
facilities to meet any future obligations.

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the end of the fiscal year are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Less than 1 More than 5
Book value year 1-5 years years

Financial liabilities
Credit / Murabaha facilities 50,291,922 47,314,637 2,977,285 -
Obligations of financial lease contracts 8,753,552 2,779,949 5,973,603 -
Trade payables 3,857,700 3,857,700 - -
Accruals and other payables 2,703,211 2,703,211 - -
Zakat provision 2,865,645 2,865,645 - -

68,472,030 59,521,142 8,950,888 -

December 31, 2022

Less than 1 More than 5
Book value year 1-5 years years

Financial liabilities
Credit / Murabaha facilities 40,888,908 36,686,862 4,202,046 -
Obligations of financial lease contracts 6,948,246 1,947,223 5,001,023 -
Trade payables 5,347,804 5,347,804 - -
Accruals and other payables 1,568,597 1,568,597 - -
Zakat provision 2,267,925 2,267,925 - -

57,021,480 47,818,411 9,203,069 -
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23. Financial instruments (Continued)
23.6. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of fluctuation in a financial instrument due to changes in prevailing market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, and stock prices, which affects the company’s income or the value of the financial
instruments it owns. Market risk management aims to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable limits
while maximizing returns.

23.7. Interest rate risk (commissions)

Interest rate (commission) risk represents the risk related to the effects of fluctuations in interest rates (commissions)
prevailing in the market on the company's financial position and cash flows. The Company's interest risks (commissions)
arise mainly from short-term loans and deposits, which have floating interest rates and are subject to re-pricing on a
regular basis, and such changes in interest rates are monitored by management.

23.8. Commodity price risks

Commaodity price risk is the risk that is associated with changes in the price of certain commodities to which the
Company is exposed to an undesirable effect on the Company's costs and cash flows. These commodity price risks arise
from the expected purchases of certain commodities from the Company's raw materials

23.9. Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Currency risk arises when future business transactions and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies different from the Company's currency. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily limited to
Euro, British Pound and Dollar transactions.

The Company's management believes that its exposure to foreign currency risk is limited as the Company's currencies
are pegged to the US Dollar. The fluctuations in currency exchange rates are monitored on an ongoing basis.

24, Capital management

The Board of Directors' policy is to maintain an adequate capital base in order to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on working
capital and the level of dividends distributed to shareholders. In managing capital, the Company aims to:

- Protecting the entity's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders
and benefits to other stakeholders.
- Providing sufficient returns to shareholders.

25. Subsequent events

The management believes that there are no other significant subsequent events from the statements of financial position
date on December 31, 2023 until the date of preparing these financial statements that may have a material impact on the
financial position of the Company.

26. Segment reporting

The Company's current activity is contracting, therefore its activity is limited to the contracting sector and has no other
business sectors. Therefore, it does not report on operating segments in multiple products or in different geographies.

27. Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 18, 2024 (corresponding to Ramadan 08,
1445H).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

Introduction

We have reviewed the interim condensed statement of financial position of Rawasi Al Bina Investment Company —
A Saudi Joint Stock Company - (“the Company") as at June 30. 2024, the interim condensed statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the three and six months pericd ended on June 30, 2024, the interim
condensed statements of changes in equity and the interim condensed statements of cash flows for the six months
period then ended, and other explanatory notes. The management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these interim condensed financial information in accordance with International Accounting Standard
(34), “Interim Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim condensed financial
information based on our review

Scope of review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (2410), “Review of
interim financial information performed by the independent auditor of the entity” as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. A review of interim condensed financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

Conclusion:

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim
condensed financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with |AS (34) approved in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

FOR EL SAYED EL AYOUTY & CO,

Abdullah A, Balamesh

Certified Public Accountant
License No, (345)

JEDDAH: August 25,2024
Safar 21,1446H

An Independent Member Firm of Moore Clobal
Network Limited - Member Firms in principal cities
throughout the world,

144 | TABLE OF
CONTENTS




RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

e e e s s
Statement of Interim condensed financial position (Unaudited)
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

June 30,  December 31,

Notes 2024 2023
- {Unaudited) {Audited)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - net 5 36,314 484 37,204,038
Right - of - use assets - net 5.1 9,196,624 11,261,727
Total non-current assets 45,511,118 48,465,765
Current assets
Trade receivables - net T 87,745,389 76,821,013
Contracts assets - net 8 46,705,361 54 126,302
Account receivables and other receivables balances 2] 44 801,737 20,035,468
Cash at banks 1 1,083,113 10,578,685
Total current assets 180,335,610 161,666,468
Total assets 225,846,728 210,132,233
Equity and liabilities S
Equity
Share capital 12 55,000,000 58,000,000
Statulory reserve 13 B,182,353 8,182,353
Gains on re-measurement of defined employee benefit obligations 521,840 521,840
Retained eamings 64,317 683 74,067 472
Total equity 128,021,886 137,771,665
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Murabaha- Non-current portion 14 8,217,189 2,977,285
Lease obligations — Non-current portion 6.2 33127 5,973,603
Employees’ defined benefits obligations 4,380,275 3,888,538
Total non-Current liabilities 16,510,601 12,839,426
Current liabilities
Murabaha- current portion 14 66 467,313 47,314,837
Leasa obligations — currant portion 6.2 2403232 2,776,949
Trade payables 5610959 3,857,700
Accrued expenses and other payable balances 15 5,596 935 2,703,211
Provision for zakat 16 1,326,802 2,865,645
Total current liabilities 81,314,241 59,521,142
Total liabilities 97,824,842 72,360,568
Total equity and liabilities 225,846,728 210,132,233

The financial statements shown from pages (1) to (14) were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf
by:

Finance Manager Executive Director Chairman of the Board of Directors

The accompanying notes from (1) te (21) form an integra! part of these interim condensed financigl statements
1
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
—— e
Statement of Interim condensed profits or losses and other comprehensive income (unaudited)
For the three and six months period ended June 30, 2024
(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
Three month period ended Six month period ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30
Note 2024 023 024 2023
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Revenues of activity 27,089 867 46,778,275 38,004,260 64,202,132
Cost of activity (17,691,384} (32,512,833) (35,438,421) (B9,557,006)
Gross profit 9,398,283 14,263,442 2,655,848 24,645,126
General and administrative expenses {1,833,719) (1,082.802) (3,848,358) (3,735.214)
Expected credit losses on contract assets (251,889) - (251,899) -
(Loss) ! profit of activity 7,312,665 12,270,540 (1,545.410) 20,808,912
Financing charges {2.775.686) (2,699.427) (5,083.826) (4,570.287)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 53 {1,793,741) - (1.793,741) -
Net (loss) | profit for the period before zakat 2,743,238 9,571,113 (8.422,877) 16,339,625
zakat (1,096,147) (1,214,438) (1,326,802) (1,214 438)
Met (loss) | profit or the period after zakat 1,647,091 8,356,675 (9.749,779) 15,125,187
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be classified in profits or
losses:
Comprehensive income for the period - - - =
Total Comprehensive (loss) / income for the
period 1,647,091 8,356,675 (9,749,779) 15,125,187
Earnings per share of net (loss) / profit for o \
the period 17 0.03 0.15 (0.18) 0.28 |
The financial statements shown from pages (1) to (14) were approved by the Board of Direclors and signed on their behalf by

———

Finance Manager Executive Director Chairman of the Board of Directors

The sccompanying notes from (1) to (21) form an inegral part of these interm condansad financial statements
5 sl
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

e ——
Statement of Interim condensed cash flows (unaudited) for the six-month period ended June 30, 2024
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise slated)

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net {loss) f profit for the period before zakat (8,422977) 16,338,625
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 1.664,188 1,828,062
Depreciation of right — 524 342 354 714
Empioyees’ defined benefits obligations — cost of current service 706,162 586,678
Expected credit losses on contract assets 251,809 =
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,782,741
Financing charges 5,082 826 4,570,287
Change in:
Trade receivables (10,824,388) (1,266,373)
Contract assets 7,169,042 (22,037,280)
Account receivables and other receivables balances (24, 762, 269) (2,702 624)
Trade payables 1,662 259 1,128,664
Accrued expenses and other payables balances 2,893 724 (661,180)

{21,960,449) (1.879,247T)
Zakal- paid (2,865,645) (2.267,925)
Employees' defined benefils obligations — paid (214, 425) (418,812)
Financing charges - paid (5,063.826) (4.570,287)
Met Cash fiows (used in) operating activities (30,124,345) (9,136,271)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments to purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,184.723) __ (768.851)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (2,194,723) (766,651)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in Murabaha 24 302 590 10,465,703
Repayment of financing received from a major shareholder - (4,884,804}
Lease obligations - paid (1,670,084) (1,250,286)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 22,822 498 4,330,513
Met change in cash during the pericd (9,496,572) (5.562,409)
Cash at the beginning of the period 10,574,685 0,422 607
Cash at the end of the period 1,083,113 3,860,198
Non-cash transactions:
Transferred from right-of-use assets lo property, plant and equipment 673,662 1,367,561
Disposzals on the right of use assets 887,099
Additions to the right-of-use assets 5 3,276,000

The financial statements shown from pages (1) to (14) were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by

A A Gzl
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Finance Manager

Executive Director

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

e — e
Notes to interim condensed financial statements {Unaudited) for the periods of three and six-months
period ended June 30, 2024
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1. General
Company’s profile
Rawasi Al-Bina Investment Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company, incorporated and operates in the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company obtained the initial commercial registration number 1010260422 on January 4,
2009 (corresponding to Muharram 7, 1430H).

On June 15, 2022, the Capital Market Authority approved the application of Rawasi Al-Bina Investment Company to
register its shares for the purpose of direct listing in the parallel market.

The Company's activity is represented in the general construction of residential buildings, the construction of roads,
streets, sidewalks, and road supplies, the construction and establishment of electrical power stations and transformers,
the construction and erection of wired and wireless communications stations and towers, radar, the extension of
electrical wires, communications wires, and networks, in addition to the installation of lighting systems.

The Company's address is:

King Fahd Road - Olaya District - Riyadh - Olaya View Center
PO Box: 63657 Riyadh 11526 - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Company's current period begins on January 1, 2024 and ends on June 30, 2024. The Company's financial year
begins at the beginning of January of each calendar year and ends at the end of December of the same year

2, Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1, Applicable Accounting Standards

These interim condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS (34) “Interim Financial
Reporting” adopted in Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by Saudi Organization for

Chartered and Professional Accountant (SOCPA). These condensed interim financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

These financial statements do not include all the information required to prepare a complete set of financial statements
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. However, accounting policies and specific
explanatory notes have been included to explain significant events and transactions to understand changes in the
financial position and financial performance of the company since the last annual financial statements, in addition, the
results for the six-months period ended June 30, 2024 are not necessarily considered as an indication to the results that
could be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024, r

2.2, Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost principle and using accrual basis and
going concern principle except for:

- Employees’ defined benefits obligations, which are measured at the present value of future obligations in accordance
with the projected credit unit method.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements items are presented in Saudi Riyals (‘SR") which is the functional and presentation currency
unless otherwise stated.
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to interim condensed financial statements (Unaudited) for the periods of three and six-months
period ended June 30, 2024
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless ntherwise stated)

3. Material accounting policies

The preparation of the Company's interim condensed financial statements are consistent with those policies followed in
preparing the Company’s annual financial statements for the financial year ending on December 31, 2023.

3.2. New standards, amendments and interpretations

No new standards have been issued, however, there are several amendments to the standards that are effective from 1
January 2024, as explained in the Company’s annual financial statements, and they do not have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

4, Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of these interim condensed financial statements requires management to make judgment, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue,
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The significant judgments and estimates used by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies. Calculation
methods and the key sources of uncertainty about estimation were similar to those shown in the last annual financial
statements for the year ending on December 31, 2023.

Going concern and business condition

The Company incurred a net loss amounted to SR. 9.7 million for the period ended June 30, 2024, due to costs related to
the slowdown in certain contractual works. This slowdown in work caused the losses that were recognized, in addition to
that, the company achieved negative net cash flows from operating activities amounting to SR. 30.1 million (2023: SR. 9.1
million).

At the end of the second quarter and beginning of the third quarter of 2024, the Company signed several new contracts
that will strengthen the Company's financial position, with the delivery of the remaining works. These are expected to help
the Company to return to profitability.

The Company has several current projects in progress at reporting date as described in note 8. The management is
waorking with the contracts holders to issue extracts for these works and to collect balances for work completed to date and
believes that there is no need to recognize additional iosses for the projects based on the current estimate of the remaining
costs to complete these projects.

Given the current progress made by the management in completing profitable projects after the end of the period,
management believes that these losses are temporary and therefore are not indicative of impairment affecting assets,
including property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, management believes that it is not necessary to calculate the
recoverable amount of propeny, plant and equlpment o

Although the slowdown in certain projects, losses mcurred and other facters may cast doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, management believes that the above events and the resumption of key projects will allow the
Company to continue as a going concern, as well as continue its to collect existing receivables and fund to fulfill its
cbiigations.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
Notes to interim condensed financial statements (Unaudited) for the periods of three and six-months

period ended June 30, 2024
(All amounts in Saudi Riyais unless otherwise stated)

6. Right - of — use leased assets and leases’ obligations
6.1. Right — of - use assets - Net

Right-of-use assets represents the rental value of land, plant and equipment and the movement on them during the period
/ year is as follows:

Plant and
Land * equipment** Total
Cost:
Balance at January 01, 2024 6,631,877 7,593,832 14,225,709
Additions during the period - - -
Disposals during the pericd (1,409,036) - (1,409,036)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment*** - (748,512) (748,512)
5,222,841 6,845,320 12,068,161

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 01, 2024 2,395,700 568,282 2,963,982
Charged to the period 353,209 171,133 524,342
Disposals during the period (541,937) - (541,937)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment™* - (74,850) (74,850)

2,206,972 664,565 2,871,537
Net book value:
Balance at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited) - 3,015,869 6,180,755 9,196,624
Balance at December 31, 2023 (Audited) 4236177 7,025850 11,261,727

* It represents the rental value of the company headquarter and 8 plots of fand on which the Company's warehouses are
built for use in the implementation of its projects in several cities within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

** It represents the rental value of a number of machinery and equipment with financing leases from local companies
under leases of up to 36 manths with an average interest rate of 16%, including the right of the lessee to own the asset at
the end of the lease term.

*** During the period, one contract for leasing machinery and equipment, representing 4 machines leased by the
Company, expired and were added to the property, plant and equipment after transferring ownership to the Company.
Their book value amounted to SR. 673,662 (note 5.2).

6.2, Leases’ obligations
Plant and June 30, December 31
Land equipment 2024 2023
: {Unaudited) {Audited)
Lease obligations ) 3,497,711 2,818,648 6,316,358 8,753,552
Current portion 620,864 1,782,368 2,403,232 2,779,949
Non — current portion 2,876,847 1,036,280 3,913,127 5,973,603

TABLE OF
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Notes to interim condensed financial statements (Unaudited) for the periods of three and snx-months

period ended June 30, 2024 ) e
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
7. Trade receivables — Net
June 30, December 31
2024 2023
[Unaudited) {Audited]
Trade receivables 88,640,786 77,816,400
Less:
Provision for expected credit losses (note 7.1) (895,387) (895,387)
87,745,399 76,921,013
71, Movement in the provision for expected credit losses is as follows:
June 30, December 31
2024 2023
{Unaudited) {Audited)
At beginning of the period / year 885,387 1,102,736
Provision no longer required = ) (207,349)
At the end of the period / year 895,387 895,387

The trade receivables item at June 30, 2024 includes amounts that are not impaired and past due more than the normal
collection cycle amounting to SR. 29.7 million (2023: SR. 23.1 million), some of which are due from government and
semi-governmental entities, which amounted to SR. 7.8 million. Based on experience, it is expected that these late
amounts will be collected because they are good debts.

8. Contracts assets - Net
June 30 December 31
2024 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Unbilled revenue 47,519,222 54,688,264
Less:
Provision for expected credit loss (note 8.1) (813,861) (561,962)

486,705,361 54,126,302

Unbilled revenue represents the value of the works executed for government and semi-governmental institutions by way
of short-term operating orders that were approved and not billed until June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

8..1. " Movement in the provision for e)(pecfed credit losses is as follows:

. June 30, December 31
2024 2023
{Unaudited) (Audited)
At beginning of the period / year 561,962 -
Provided during the period / year 251,899 561,962
At the end of the period / year 813,861 561,962
9
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) .

Notes to interim condensed financial statements (Unaudited) for the periods of thiee and six-months
period ended June 30, 2024
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

9. Account receivables and other receivables balances
June 30, December 31
2024 © 2023
(Unaudited) {Audited)

Advance payments to suppliers 29,832,289 6,631,916
Prepaid expenses 3,376,037 3,334,905
Letters of guarantee margin 2,323,545 1,184,411
Letters of credit margin 999,314 55,200
Retentions - Contractors 7,886,348 8,503,882
Employees’ receivables 384,204 320,154

44,801,737 20,039,468
10. Transactions with related parties

The related parties represent the Company's shareholders, senior management staff in the company and the entities
owned or managed by these parties, as well as the entities that exercise joint control or substantial influence over these
parties. Transactions with related parties are carried out during the normal course of business.

The following is a summary of the most important transactions that took place between the Company and related
parties during the period:

10.1.  Due to related parties

The following are the balances due to related parties at the date of the financial statements:

Amount of transaction Balances as at
Nature of Nature of June 30, June 30, June 30, December 31
Related party Relationship transactions 2024 2023 2024 2023
Financing 8,948,000 7.808,000
Mohsen Bin Mutaib Major
Al-Otaibi shareholder Payment 8,949,000 12,692,904 - -

The balance represents the value of financing granted by shareholder Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi for the purpose of
financing working capital, without financing burdens.

10.2.  Benefits, rewards and compensation of senior management employees:
The Companys senior management personnel consist of senior management members who have the authontyand-

responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.

s

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
(Unaudited) {Unaudited]
Salaries and allowances 996,000 954,996

10
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RAWASI AL BINA INVESTMENT COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
Notes to interim condensed financial statements (Unaudited) for the periods of three and six-months

period ended June 30, 2024
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1. Cash at banks
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
(Unaudited] {Audited)
Banks — current accounts 1,083,113 10,579,685

1,083,113 10,579,685

12, Share capital

The Company's share capital was set with SR. 55,000,000 (Fifty-five million Saudi Riyals) divided into 5,500,000 shares,
the value of each share is SR. 10 fully paid.

On June 12, 2023, the General Assembly of Shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ recommendation to divide the
nominal value of the Company’s shares by amending the nominal value of the share from SR. 10 to SR. 1 per share, so
that the number of shares after the amendment became 55,000,000 shares (fifty-five million shares). There is no change
in the Company's capital after reducing the nominal value of the share.

13. Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company's articles of association and the companies’ Act in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the
Company is required to transfer annually 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve until this statutory reserve
amounts to 30% of its share capital.

An amount is set aside to the statutory reserve according to the annual financial statements.

- On 13 Jumada al-Akhir 1445H (corresponding to December 26, 2023), the Company's management amended the
Company’s Article of Association to be conform with the new Companies’ Act, issued by Royal Decree No. (M/132)
dated 01 Dhu al-Hijjah 1443H, which entered into force on 26 Jumada al-Akhir 1444H (corresponding to January 19,
2023), and since the new Companies' Act does not require setting aside a statutory reserve, the Company's
management will transfer the statutory reserve to retained earnings after presenting it to the Company’s next general
assembly.

14. Murabaha

June 30, December 31
Note 2024 2023

Unaudited) {Audited)
Murabahas from banks 141 52,113,031 40,095,927
Murabahas from. financing corporates. - v o142 22571481 10,195,995
Total Murabahas,at the end of the period lyear 74,684,512 50,291,922
They are classified in the financial statements as foliows: ' b ' _
Non-current portion 8,21 7199 2,977,285
Current portion . 66,467,313 47,314,637

14.1.  Murabaha from banks

The Company entered into a number of short-term contracts with a number of local banks in the form of commercial
facilitation with a guarantee of a favorable waiver in favor of the banks for project entitlements issued for which letters of
guarantee performance bonds were issued in accordance with the terms of the granted facilities agreement and with the
following guarantees:
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14. Murabaha (Continued)

14.1.  Murabaha from banks (Continued)

Notes to interim condensed financial statements {Unaudited) for the periods of three and six-months

- Facility to finance multiple work orders for the Saudi Electricity Company, on condition to endorsement of the

assignment of the entitlements of these projects.

- Assignment in favor of project proceeds for which final letters of guarantee have been issued from the Company's

projects in favor of the bank.

- A personal guarantee from the main shareholder, Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi (promissary note).

14.2.  Murabaha from financing corporates

The Company concluded a number of contracts with a local financing company amounting to SR. 31.7 million in the form

of commercial facilitation with a guarantes:

- Promissory notes with the numier of instaliments signed by the Board of Directors afd t}'e major shareholders Mr.

Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi.

- Indebtedness guarantee from the major sharehclder, Mr. Mohsen Bin Mutaib Al-Otaibi.

18, Accrued expenses and other payable balances
June 30, December 31
2024 2023
{Unaudited} {Audited)
Accrued expenses 3,763,011 1,954,838
Value added tax (VAT) . 1 ,833,924_ 7451,3:/3
5,596,935 2,703,211
16. Provision for zakat
16.1.  Movement of provision for zakat
June 30, December 31
2024 2023
{Unaudited} [Audited)
Balance at beginning of the period / year 2,865,545 2,267,925
Provided during the period / year 1,326,802 2,865,645
Paid during the period / year (2,865,645) (2,267,925)
2,865,645

Balance at end of the period /year 1,326,802

16.2.  Status of zakat

Years prior to 2023

[

The Company filed its returns for those years, the assessment for the year 2014 was made in 2017, and the 2021
assessment was made in 2024, and the zakat differences were paid to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA).

Year 2023

The Company filed the zakat return for the financial year ended December 31, 2023 and obtained a certificate from the
Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) valid until April 30, 2025. No final zakat assessments have been received

from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority for that year yet.
12
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17. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Company's net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding at June 30 as follows:

For the three months ended For the six months ended
June 30 June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {unaudited] [unaudited]
Net (loss) / profit for the period 1,647,091 8,356,675 (9,749,779) 15,125,187
Weighted average number of outstanding shares* 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000
Earnings per share in net (loss) / profit 0,03 - 015  (0.19) 0,28

* There is no convertible obligation to equity instruments, therefore, the diluted earnings per share does not differ from the
basic earnings per share.

* On June 12, 2023, the General Assembly of Shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ recommendation to divide
the nominal value of the company's shares by amending the nominal value of the share from SR. 10 to SR. 1 per share,
so that the number of shares after the amendment became 55,000,000 shares (fifty-five million shares). There is no
change in the company's capital after reducing the nominal value of the share (note 12).

18. Financial risk management

The Company's activities are subject to various financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The company's overall risk management program focuses on the fluctuations of the financial markets and the company's
management attempts to minimize potential negative effects on the company's financial performance.

Financial risk management framework

The risk management policy is implemented by the senior management in accordance with the policies approved by the
Board of Directors. Senior management identifies, assesses and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the
Company's operating units. The most important types of risk are credit risk, currency risk or fair value and cash flows
interest rates.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management
framework. The Executive Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. Any changes or matters relating to compliance with the policies will be reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee.

Risk management regulations are reviewed regularly by the executive management to reflect changes in market
conditions and the company's activities. Throligh training, management standards and procedures, the company aims to
develop a responsible and constructive control environment so that all employees are aware of their roles and obligations.

The Audit Commitiee oversees management's compiiance with the Company’s risk management policies and b?dce,d;;res':
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks encountered by the Company.

Financial instruments reported in the statement of financial position include accounts receivable and other current assets,
accrued expenses and other current liabilities. The methods of recognition used are disclosed in the statement of policies
relating to each item.

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk arises from changes and fluctuations in the value of financial instruments as a result of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

13
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18. Financial risk management (Continued)

Exchange rate risk (Continued)

The company did not carry out any transactions of materiality in currencies other than the Saudi Riyal and the US dollar.
Since the exchange rate of the Saudi Riyal is pegged with the US dollar, it does not represent a significant currency risk.
The Company's management monitors currency exchange rates and believes that the exchange rate risk is immaterial.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the failure of one party to a financial instrument to fulfill its obligations and cause the company to incur a
financial loss. The Company's own financiai instruments that may be exposed to credit risk mainly include cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and other debit balances. The company monitors the credit risks related to receivables
and related parties and establishes a provision for expected credit losses. The company deposits its funds in banks with
high creditworthiness and reliability. The company also has a policy regarding the amount of funds deposited in each
bank, and the management does not expect any significant credit risks arising from that.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficuities in obtaining the financing necessary to meet cbligations
associated with financial instruments, and liquidity risk may result when the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at a
value close to its fair value. Liquidity risk is managed through regular monitoring of the sufficiency of liquidity available to
meet the company's financial obligations, as the Company has sufficient liquidity to pay its obligations.

Share capital management

The main objective of share capital management is to maximize shareholders’ equity. The company's board of directors
monitors the return on capital employed and dividends to shareholders.

Fair value

Fair value is the value that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in a regular transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between book values and fair value
estimates. The definition of fair value is based on the measurement to the market and the assumptions used by market
participants.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost in the
interim condensed financial statements approximate their fair value.

19. Segment information

The Company's current activity is- contracting, theréfore its- activity is-limited to the contracting sector and has no other
business sectors. Therefore, it does not report on operating segments in multiple products or in different geographies.

20. Subsequent events

The management believes that there are no significant subsequent events from the statements of financial position date
on June 30, 2024 until the date of preparing these financial statements that may have a material impact on the financial
position of the Company.

21. Approval of the financial statements

These interim condensed financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on August 25, 2024
(corresponding to Safar 21,1446H).
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